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Corporate Information (Continued)

Securities Affair Representative
Han Bin

197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street

High Technology Industrial Development Zone
Weifang

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Postal Code: 261061

Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069

Fax: (86) (536)-819 7073

Website: http://www.weichaipower.com

Authorised Representatives
Xu Xinyu

Kwong Kwan Tong

Registered Address and Headquarters
of the Company

197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street

High Technology Industrial Development Zone

Weifang

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Postal Code: 261061

Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069

Fax: (86) (536)-819 7073

Website: http://www.weichaipower.com

Place of Business in Hong Kong
Room 3407-3408

34/F Gloucester Tower

Landmark

15 Queen'’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

Legal Advisors
Reed Smith Richards Butler

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

Hong Kong H-share Registrar and Transfer

Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Share Information
Number of issued shares as at
30 June 2014:

1,999,309,639 Shares
(1,513,549,639 A Shares,
and 485,760,000 H Shares)

Board lot (H Shares) 1,000 H Shares
(A Shares) 100 A Shares

Abbreviation of the Company’s share and Stock Codes

A Shares: Weichai Power (428 /7) 000338

H Shares: Weichai Power (#5£%) /1) 2338

Stock Exchange Listings

A Shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

Investors and Media Relations

The Company: Securities Department
Tel: (86) 536-819 7069

Fax: (86) 536-819 7073

Website: www.weichaipower.com

Hill & Knowlton Asia Ltd
Tel: (852) 2894 6321
Fax: (852) 2576 1990

Public Relations Consultant:

Website: www.hkstrategies.com
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Financial Summary

Revenue amounted to approximately RMB34,111 million, increased by

approximately 10.3%.

Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to
approximately RMB3,765 million, increased by approximately 80.6%.

Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMB1.88, increased by

approximately 80.8%.

(Important notice: This report is published in Chinese and English versions. In

case of inconsistency, the Chinese version shall prevail.)
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of

the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2014.

L.

Review of Operations

In the first half of 2014, amidst the complex and changing macroeconomic
conditions, the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and
the State Council firmly grasped its control over the development process
and adhered to the notion of providing drive for reform and renovation
and providing assistance to structural adjustments. Market forces played
an even more important role and targeted austerity measures were further
emphasized. The national economy demonstrated a generally stable trend,
making progress and growing while maintaining stability. In general,
the economy was generally stable, structural adjustment and fine-tuning
attained steady progress, and economic transformation demonstrated
sound momentum. In the first half of the year, gross domestic product
reached RMB26.9 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.4%.
On a quarter-to-quarter basis, it grew by 7.4% in the first quarter and
7.5% in the second quarter.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) T R ()

During the Period, benefiting from the factors including the increased
consumption demand under more stringent laws and regulations on
emission, the flourishing development of electronic commerce, and the
strong upward momentum of the logistics industry under China’s national
policies, the heavy-duty truck industry continued to attain a year-on-year
growth, delivering sales of 429,000 units, representing a year-on-year
increase of 6.5%. Under such influence, during the Period, the Company
reported sales of 168,300 units of heavy-duty truck engines, representing
an increase of 8.5% year-on-year. The Company’s share of the auxiliary
market for heavy-duty trucks with a gross weight of above 14 tonnes
reached 39.2%, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.7 percentage
points. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (BRiG &R TEH R
/A7l), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, reported an aggregate
sales of 49,500 units of heavy-duty trucks for the first half of the year,
representing a year-on-year increase of 5.3%, ranking the fifth in the
domestic heavy-duty truck industry in the PRC. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
REBELSEHEREERR)

has further consolidated its leading position in the industry with its

, a controlling subsidiary of the Company,

aggregate sales of 390,000 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-

year increase of 21.8%.

In the first half of 2014, fixed-asset investments of China reached
RMB21.28 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 17.3%, a drop
of 2.8 percentage points year-on-year. The total planned investments
for newly-commenced construction projects reached RMB19.68 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 13.6%, a drop of 1.5 percentage
points year-on-year. Investments in property development reached
RMBA4.2 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 14.1%, a drop of
6.2 percentage points year-on-year. With the decelerated pace of growth
in fixed-asset investments and property development investments, the
industry of construction machinery was still in depression. Other than the
forklift truck market, other market segments reported varying degrees
of decline. During the Period, the construction machinery industry in the
PRC reported sales of approximately 389,000 units, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 1.8%, and among which, the sales volume of wheel
loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was 57,000 units, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 9.0%. The Company sold a total of 33,500
units of engines for wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 19.3%. The Company continued
to maintain a leading position in the market of wheel loaders with a load

capacity of 5 tonnes, with its market share of nearly 60%.

1

REBRA  SEREBCERARRIBEE
ERETFTEBEDERABRBKEER
HYRTERERKBRNNHEREZ  EF
TEEEBERFRALER  BHRHEE429
BH RAHLER65% - FHTFE  RE
A AR RABEERREDHH16.838
& B LEHA8S% EABEE14MEL £
ERMSEEMAEXRE3N2%  ALRES
0.7 B E  ARFHERFAAIRAER
TEARAR L FEBEEEMREL95
B B EAS3%  HEEEAERR
EX- R ZIK“ET?‘WHQF-“ETWE%i%
BHRAEREARRHHEERRFIES -
FItb EF21.8% @ {TEE LML —FF
°

ii

20014F E¥F  BREFTEERE21.28
EERBT AHL®ER173%  #ERLE
B28EBE DR c A ITIEBFEIRIKE
19.68B BT MELEK13.6% ' BRRA
LEESE1SEBE SR - BHMEREREL.2
BET FAHERI14.1% @ EERLEE
62BN E - XETEEMEHEIREE
RTBEHNTE . I%%%%W“%@?EFH’MK
wARRE - RXEMIHIN - EElH Y
HIRTRBEHTIE #&%,HHW CFRET
REmMSLEELN389EE * AL TE
1.8% « HErp : SHEEHMHEES7TE S
L T/E9.0% » AR Ak sEE R ESME S &
MEEWIISER - R TIE19.3% @ £
sumﬁ*‘*ﬁﬁ%mimaﬁf 60% * HEBER
= — i M BESE AT o



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the Period, the passenger vehicle market achieved growth while
maintaining stability. Benefiting from favorable factors including the
accelerated urbanization, China’s passenger vehicle market reported
an aggregate sales figure of 279,000 units (including non-complete
passenger vehicles), representing a year-on-year growth of 4.3%. Among
others, the light passenger vehicle market continued to maintain its fast
growth momentum, and became the major force in driving the growth of
the passenger vehicle market. Passenger vehicles using new energy modes
reported good performance and played a clear role in driving the growth
of the public-transport vehicle market. With the continuous strengthening
of support and promotional efforts by the Chinese government on policies
concerning new-energy vehicles, the new-energy public-transport sector
is expected to attain further growth in the second half of the year. On
the other hand, with a share of the transportation market having been
taken up by China’s national express rail, the restricted consumption
on official receptions, vehicles and overseas trips (=28 %), and the
increasingly stringent regulatory regime on the grant of approvals for and
the supervision of passenger lines, the highway passenger transportation
market showed noticeable drop. During the Period, the Company’s
aggregate sales of engines for use in passenger vehicles amounted
to 10,100 units, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.3%, and
accounting for 14.2% of the market share of the large-sized and medium-
sized passenger vehicles, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.6

percentage points.

During the Period, the Company worked around the needs of the
market in fostering structural adjustments of its products. Equipped with
innovation, the Company led the trend of industrial development and
continued to maintain a trend of sound and stable development. In the
first half of 2014, the Company reported a sales figure of 213,500 units
of 10L, 12L and 13L engines, maintaining the stable leading position
of heavy-duty engine products in the heavy-duty truck market, large
passenger vehicle market and the market of wheel loaders with a load
capacity of 5 tonnes. Meanwhile, the Company’s self-researched and
self-developed “Landking” WP5 and WP7 engines, to which it owns
intellectual property rights, further expanded the scope of auxiliary uses.

For the first half of the year, it generated total sales of 7,246 units,
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

representing a year-on-year growth of 72.3%. In particular, 5,719 units
were used in passenger vehicles, representing a year-on-year growth of
61.5%. This demonstrated the prominent competitive advantages of
our integrated engine product and the wider prospects of the Group's
development. With the upgrading of the nationwide emission standards,
many cities and districts have already implemented the China IV Emission
Standards. Driven by such development, in the first half of the year, the
Company sold 46,200 units of China IV Emission Standards products,
representing 20.9% of the total engine sales. The Company continued to

lead the industry in the upgrading of emission standards.

During the Period, X3000 driving chamber of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company, successfully
passed the collision test conducted under European standard, signifying
that the safety standard of such driving chamber had attained an
advanced level under national or even European standard, thereby
laying solid foundation for the overseas promotion of the HX products.
The passenger-vehicle-series gearboxes of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
continued to find its auxiliary uses in 12-metre long public transport
products, and the AT gearboxes achieved breakthrough in the auxiliary

market of emerging products, posting a growth of nearly 300%.

During the Period, the Company remained committed to the main
theme of reforms and innovations. It adhered to the scientific approach
of development under the notion of “Grow organically and driven by
innovation”, expedited the adjustment of its model of transformation,
uplifted the all-round quality of development, and attained sound and
stable development. Firstly, the Company renovated the performance
management applicable to all staff members. Through strategic decoding
and the signing of personal performance contracts throughout the
hierarchy, the Company managed to distinguish the corporate goal of
each level strategically with the relevant pressure passing down from level
to level. The performance targets of staff members were also identified,
thereby raising their job motivation. Secondly, by benchmarking against
leading industry standards, and focusing on creating products with
the “Three Core Competitiveness” in terms of cost, technology and
quality, the Company successfully attained differentiated competitive
strengths and steadily-rising market competitiveness. Thirdly, based on
the notion of reforms encompassing “inventory protection payment
and guided production”, the Company successfully introduced its

model of safety stock management within the scope of the entire team.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

The model complements with the order-based management model,
thereby markedly raising the timeliness of the fulfilment of product
orders. Fourthly, the Company’s international development was further
expedited. The Company released its new brand image on a global
basis to embark upon a new journey of its international development.
By mergers and acquisitions, construction of its own factories and
licensed-based manufacturing, the Company’s model of overseas engine
businesses were starting to deliver results. The strategic cooperation
with Eaton Corporation plc was further intensified, creating room for
the development of the Company’s hydraulics business. Fifthly, the
Company'’s level of fundamental management was further uplifted.
The successful pilot run of the operation delicacy management project
contributed to the holistic supervisions, appraisal, analysis and illustration
of how the production lines are operated. The three years of betterment
production have delivered remarkable results, significantly raising the
betterment management level of the Company, and instilling into
people the betterment notion of continual enhancement and ongoing

improvements.

During the Period, the Company’s revenue increased by 10.3% over the
same period of 2013 to approximately RMB34,111 million. The net profit
attributable to shareholders of the Parent was approximately RMB3,765
million, representing an increase of approximately 80.6% over the same
period of 2013. The basic earnings per share was RMB1.88, representing

an increase of approximately 80.8% over the same period in 2013.

Dividends and Transfer of Capital Reserve

On 30 June 2014, the 2013 profit distribution scheme was reviewed and
approved at the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company. Based
on the 1,999,309,639 shares, representing the total share capital of the
Company, all shareholders were entitled to cash dividend of RMB1.50 (incl.

tax) for every 10 shares held.

On 29 August 2014, pursuant to the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board reviewed and approved the
distribution of cash dividend of RMB1.00 (incl. tax) for every 10 shares
held, based on the total number of shares of 1,999,309,639 shares,
without any transfer of capital reserve to capital. For details on the closure
of registers of members in determining the shareholders who are eligible
for the 2014 interim dividend, please refer to the further announcement

to be issued by the Company.

TR ] =E

4

Interim Report 2014 fEfsgs 11

‘DJJE-

MR BEEBEFE QTS ES N
AN REENRBEBERENE
Mo ARMEREM Eﬁmﬁﬁiﬁit
%ﬁ%mEEWWWLﬂ’EﬁTﬁE
RELBANZEER  TE oW A
EREEZRAFRKSEEZ  bER
mEREKFTHBRA  BESCE - TEIR
FHEBSRIE S EIRAAD ©

i#
I3
BT

WEMA - ARIEREERALNR34,111
E%ﬁAEMvﬁ::—Eiﬁ%%E
10.3% - FEAEIRARIRRAFIEL A
3765 BB TARE BT —=FRH

o HAFRINZEA1.88TTA
R - —=FRHAES480.8% °

5 8 B A 4 v 4 g AR
R2014F6 A30H + KAFI2013FRERH
FAEEHBB20OIB3FEEFNBOEHE -

2= #180.6%

LA ZK X B] 48 I AKX 1,999,309,639 ik A& H
o MEERRFIORRERSAFAR
150 (&) -

R2014F8H29H - ARAEZTGIRE
REARGHEE  BRBBADFERK
1,999,309,639 AEH - I EREST
10RIERBERSAFARKE1.00T(EFH) -
TEBAESEIERA - BEYERER

MBFELNEEAREBRKE20145F+ H]
BREHRRNFS - FLHEARAE T
BME—FIDE -



12 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. s

BARGERAF

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

I1I.

IV.

Acquisition and Consolidation

At the beginning of the year, the Company increased its shareholding in
KION from 30% to 33.3% by exercising the Superlift 3.3% call option. On
12 June, the Company became the largest shareholder of KION following
the decrease of the shareholding held by Superlift, the original largest
shareholder of KION, from 34.5% to 26.9%. At present, consolidation of
KION’s accounts have been completed and the operating results of the

Company have been further enhanced.

Outlook and Prospects

In the second half of 2014, the macroeconomic conditions are still
expected to be complicated. On a global perspective, the world economy is
anticipated to revitalize gradually. It is expected that the pace of economic
growth will be slightly higher than the first half of the year to attain
approximately 3.6% on an annual basis. Major developed economies
including Europe, the U.S. and Japan are steadily recovering and will
become the key drivers of the global economic growth, despite existence
of uncertainties. In China, the economy is undergoing a key stage of
transformation and structural adjustments. The main theme of “stabilizing
growth, adjusting structure, promoting reforms and maintaining steady
economic development” still holds true. In the long run, with the ongoing
release of reform benefit, there is still ample room for economic growth in
the future. Generally speaking, economic growth of China in the second
half of the year is not expected to experience significant fluctuation. On
the whole, the economy will demonstrate a rising trend while maintaining

stability. It is expected that the full-year GDP will grow at about 7.5%.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of its
related industries. In the second half of 2014, the heavy-duty truck market
will encounter more difficulties. It is anticipated that the accumulated
growth of the market will further narrow down, but the level of year-on-
year growth could be maintained, primarily attributable to the following:
Firstly, the confirmation of the implementation timeline of China IV
Emission Standards will stimulate the advanced spending in regions where
China IV Emission Standards are still not in force. Secondly, the energy-
saving development initiatives launched by the Chinese Government
have stated that 6 million yellow-label (i.e. highly polluting) vehicles
and old vehicles will need to be eliminated gradually, which policy will
be beneficial to the heavy-duty truck market. Thirdly, the replacement
of municipal slag-carrying vehicles and the sound development of the
logistics industry will further stimulate the release of demand in the

industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

With the launch of the plan for the “new model” of China’s urbanization,
construction of infrastructure facilities including railways, highways and
hydraulic works will be further expedited, providing a new round of
development opportunities for the construction machinery industry. In the
second half of the year, the series of “minor stimulus” policies introduced
by the Chinese government will gradually provide positive driving force for
the development of the industry. Firstly, the construction of municipal rail
transports have become widely popular, and plans for such constructions
have been approved and construction works have already commenced
in 36 cities in China. In total, an aggregate amount of RMB260 billion
is expected to be invested throughout the year. Secondly, while the Silk
Road economic rim has been brought on agenda, significant capital
has been spent in Xinjiang to build a “New Silk Road” transportation
system, and it is expected that more than RMB800 billion will be spent on
infrastructure construction during the year. Thirdly, the further stepped-up
efforts in railway construction will be exemplified by the increase in total
investments to RMB800 billion, close to the record high in 2010 in the
history of railway investment. Additionally, the favorable news including
large-scale renovation of shack areas and the construction of affordable
housings will also bring forth sound opportunities for the growth of the
industry. Nevertheless, in view of over-capacity in the industry, excessively
high inventory holding in the market (of more than 6 million units)
and difficulties faced by downstream customers in their financing, it is
anticipated that sales volume of the industry in the second half of the year

will be comparable to last year.

According to the notice issued by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of China, China IV Emission Standards will be
fully implemented on diesel-driven vehicles in China on 1 January 2015.
Approval of catalogues of new vehicles under China Il Standards and the
sale of vehicles under China Ill Standards will be cut off on 31 December
2014. As such, some segments of the market will experience a new
round of shuffling. At present, leveraging upon its advanced technology,
large-scale production of high-quality products, synergy presented by
the availability of global resources and strong base of loyal customers,
the Company has successfully tapped the China-IV compliant market
and captured a leading position, and done all the preparation work
for switching to China IV Emission Standards. It will be well-positioned
and poised to maintain its leading position in the market of high-power
engines, heavy-duty gear boxes and complete heavy-duty vehicles. The

Board has full confidence in the development prospect of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) T (A

In 2014, the Company pinpointed nine battles that it must win, covering
various aspects of business operations such as cultural construction,
management enhancement, formation of core product competence,
cost saving and efficiency enhancement, and international corporate
development, and setting a new pole to direct the Company’s next round
of reforms and innovations. In the second half of the year, the Company
will work strenuously on the following:

Firstly, based on the notion of making ourselves an outstanding market
player, and focusing on building the Three Core Competitiveness in
terms of cost, technology and quality, we will adhere to producing
good products and forming differentiated competitive strengths in the
market to ensure that the Company will maintain its leading position in
the market amidst the increasingly fierce market competition. Secondly,
the Company will foster reforms of organizations and renovation of
workflows and streamline the control over its subsidiaries. It will build
up an organizational structure and system which is process-oriented, has
clearly-defined scopes, well-segregated and has clear responsibilities,
create a scientific position management system, and optimize and
enhance its remuneration and incentive system, in order to ensure that
the organization will run under effective control and at high efficiency.
Thirdly, the Company will effectively consolidate its resources on research
and development, optimize and enhance its incentive mechanism, create
a clear channel allowing dialogues between the IT system and the sales
and marketing system, thereby gradually building up a mega R&D system
which is market-oriented and which will uplift its capability in self-
researches and innovations. Fourthly, the Company will carry on with its
innovative business model. It will follow the notion of “Factory-Vendor
Values Integration” for its after-sales market business. Extensive efforts
will be made to work on its activities under the theme of “Red Flag 400
(#1L7E400)", continually enhance its service network system, foster the
implementation of its business model of after-sales market business,
expand its profit channels, raise its profitability, thereby gradually
migrating from production-based manufacturing to service-based
manufacturing. R&D efforts on X3000 new-generation heavy-duty truck
products will be expedited in the heavy-duty truck segment. The Company
will continue to explore the integration potentials of the existing products
of tractors and self-unloading vehicles, seeking to expand the market
share of the natural-gas-driven vehicles and doing full preparation work
for subsequent growth. Companies producing gear boxes will continue
to focus on producing products which are light-weighted, automated
and multi-gear, in order to enhance the platform of the S-gearbox
products. For the components segment, we will intensify our research and
innovation, enhance core competence of our products and make good use
of the synergy between the component business segment and the engine
business segment.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

At the same time, with the implementation of its strategy of international
development, the Company will encounter differences in areas such as
economic conditions, legal systems, governance regimes and cultural
concepts across different countries and regions. We will follow the
notion of international development. Under the principle of “Unified
Strategy, Independent Operation, Resources Sharing”, we will gradually
streamline the mechanism for the control over overseas branches and
subsidiaries, coordinate the needs for expanding the domestic and
international markets and international business development, accelerate
the coordinated development of our business in complete vehicles,
powertrains, hydraulics controlling parts, automobile components
and after-sales market business segment, in order to fully utilize the
synergetic advantage of the brands, technology, manufacturing, market
and management of the domestic and overseas companies, continue to
enhance the quality and image of the Company’s development, and boost

the overall capability to manage risks.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care and
support, as well as all of our staff for their hard work and dedication in

the last six months!
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of

the results of operations of the Group for the Period as follows:

I. Industry Analysis
The Company is one of the vehicles and equipments manufacturing
conglomerate in China with the best comprehensive strengths. It is a
leading company in the market of powertrain, complete vehicles and
machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics parts and
components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply chain of
engines, gear boxes and axles and offers the related after-sales market

services.

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry
The first half of the year witnessed steady development in the
national economy, which showed sound momentum for growth
while maintaining stability. In the first half of the year, gross
domestic product reached RMB26.9 trillion, representing a year-on-
year growth of 7.4%, or a growth of 7.4% for the first quarter and

7.5% for the second quarter.

Influenced by the favorable factors including the implementation of
upgraded emission standards in China, the flourishing development
of electronic commerce, and the strong upward momentum of
the logistics industry under China’s national policies, the heavy-
duty truck industry continued to attain growth. During the Period,
the aggregate sales of heavy-duty trucks in the PRC were 429,000

units, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.5%.

2. Construction Machinery

During the Period, fixed-asset investments of China reached
RMB21.28 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 17.3%,
a drop of 2.8 percentage points year-on-year. Both the total
planned investments for newly-commenced construction projects
and investments in property development grew at lower rates of
varying degrees compared to the same period in last year. Under
the prevailing market conditions, the industry of construction
machinery was still in depression. During the Period, the aggregate
sales in China’s construction machinery market were approximately
389,000 units, representing a year-on-year drop of 1.8%. In
particular, 57,000 units of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5
tonnes were sold, representing a substantial year-on-year decrease
of 9.0%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

II.

3. Passenger Vehicle Market
During the Period, with the accelerated urbanization in China
and the government’s support and promotion of policies
concerning new-energy vehicles, China’s passenger vehicle market
demonstrated growth while maintaining stability. In the first half
of the year, China’s passenger vehicle market recorded sales of
279,000 units (including non-complete passenger vehicles), growing

by 4.3% year-on-year.

The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note XI.1 to the
consolidated financial statements. The following are the highlights of the

operation conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Sale of Diesel Engines

For use in Heavy-duty Trucks

With the continual growth of the heavy-duty truck market, the
Company’s aggregate sales of heavy-duty truck engines amounted
to approximately 168,300 units during the Period, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 8.5%. The Company’s
market share in the heavy-duty truck with a gross weight of above
14 tonnes reached 39.2%, maintaining the Company’s absolute

advantageous position in the industry.

For use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines to major
manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel loaders)
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. During the Period, the
Group's sales of engines for wheel loader with a load capacity of 5
tonnes were approximately 33,500 units, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 19.3%. According to the information published on
the website of China Construction Machinery Network (47 B T2
S 249), the Company’s market share in the market of wheel
loader with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was approximately 60%,

maintaining the Company’s leading position in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

For use in Complete Passenger Vehicles

During the Period, the Company’s aggregate sales of engines for
use in passenger vehicles amounted to approximately 10,100 units,
representing a year-on-year increase of 11.3%, and accounting
for approximately 14.2% of the market share of the large-sized
and medium-sized passenger vehicles, representing a year-on-year

increase of 2.6 percentage points.

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the Group reported an aggregate sales of
approximately 49,500 units of heavy-duty trucks, representing an
increase of 5.3% from approximately 47,000 units sold during the
corresponding period of 2013. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company
Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company, was ranked No. 5
among the heavy-duty truck enterprises in China. Before elimination
of intra-group sales, the heavy-duty trucks business contributed
sales revenue of approximately RMB13,968 million to the Group

during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 390,000 units
of heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of 21.8%
compared to approximately 320,000 units sold in the corresponding
period of 2013, and further consolidating its leading position in the
industry. Before elimination of intra-group sales, the gear boxes
business contributed sales revenue of approximately RMB5,655

million to the Group during the Period.

Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and
Heavy-duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling
Parts

Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulics controlling parts etc. During the Period, the
Group's sales of parts and components of engines and trucks and
hydraulics controlling parts were approximately RMB3,100 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 48.3% or an
increase of approximately RMB1,009 million, compared to the sales
revenue of RMB2,091 million in the corresponding period in last

year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

III. Financial Review
1. The Group’s Results of Operations

a.

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB3,189
million or approximately 10.3% from approximately
RMB30,922 million in the corresponding period of 2013 to
approximately RMB34,111 million for the Period. In particular,
the revenue from principal operations increased by 10.1%,
from approximately RMB29,813 million in the corresponding
period of 2013 to approximately RMB32,838 million for the
Period, which was mainly attributable to the continual growth
of the heavy-duty truck market in China and the continual
uplift of the competitiveness of products sold. During the
Period, the Group's sales of heavy-duty truck engines, gear
boxes and heavy-duty trucks were 168,300 units, 390,000
units and 49,500 units, representing a year-on-year increase
of 8.5%, 21.8% and 5.3%, respectively. Other revenue
increased by approximately 14.9%, from approximately
RMB1,108 million in the corresponding period of last year to
approximately RMB1,273 million for the Period, which was
primarily attributable to the increase in income from claims

received.

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated gross profit
from principal operations in the amount of approximately
RMB6,841 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB650 million or 10.5% as compared to approximately
RMB6,191 million recorded in the corresponding period of
2013. The increase in profit from principal operations was
primarily attributable to the increase in sales amount and

maintenance of stable profit margin for principal operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased slightly by
approximately 0.5% to approximately RMB1,543 million
in the Period from approximately RMB1,535 million in the
corresponding period of 2013. With rising cost of sales
staff and the increasing market development expenses, the
Company stepped up its effort in controlling transportation
expenses, after-sales expenses and product return expenses,
grasping effective management of its selling expenses. As
a percentage of revenue, distribution and selling expenses
decreased from approximately 5.0% in the corresponding

period of last year to approximately 4.5% in the Period.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 18.8% from approximately RMB1,749 million
in the corresponding period of 2013 to approximately
RMB2,078 million in the Period, which was mainly due to the
increase in staff costs and the increase of external support

expenses in relation to the internationalization of the Group.

Total Profit before Finance and Income Tax Expenses

During the Period, the Group's total profit before finance and
income tax expenses increased by approximately RMB1,764
million or a substantial increase of approximately 62.6%
to approximately RMB4,581 million in the Period from
approximately RMB2,817 million in the corresponding period
of the last year. It was primarily attributable to the one-off
gain of approximately RMB1,671 million in the acquisition
of KION during the Period, causing the Group’s operating
margin to substantially rise to approximately 13.4% from

approximately 9.1% for the corresponding period of 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

f. Finance Expenses

Finance expenses increased by approximately 64.1%
to approximately RMB105 million in the Period from
approximately RMB64 million in the corresponding period
of 2013. It was mainly attributable to the increase in interest
expenses and bank handling fees arising from an increase
in the Euro-denominated long-term borrowings used for
the investments in KION Group AG (“KION") and Linde
Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG as well as an issue of RMB800

million medium-term notes by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor

Company Limited in mid-2013.

g. Income Tax Expenses

The Group's corporate income tax expenses increased
by 3.8% from approximately RMB464 million in the
corresponding period of 2013 to approximately RMB482
million in the Period. During the Period, the Group’s average
effective tax rate was approximately 10.8%, representing a
substantial decrease as compared to approximately 16.9%
in the corresponding period of last year, which was primarily

attributable to the one-off gain during the course of

acquisition of KION.

h.  Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s net profit for the Period increased by
approximately 74.5% from approximately RMB2,289 million
in the corresponding period of 2013 to approximately
RMB3,994 million in the Period. Net profit margin for the
Period was approximately 11.7%, a substantial increase
of 4.3 percentage points from approximately 7.4% in
the corresponding period of last year. This was primarily
attributable to the increase in revenue, effective control over

costs and expenses and the one-off gain incurred during the

course of acquisition of KION.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated operating cash flows
of approximately RMB688 million and financing cash flows of
approximately RMB270 million. A portion of such proceeds
was applied as investment monies for acquiring 3,263,700
KION shares by exercising the Superlift call option, and for
paying for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
for the expansion of the Group’s business. As at 30 June
2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was 68.4% (as at 31
December 2013: N/A). As at 31 December 2013, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents, net of interest-bearing debts,
amounted to a net cash position, therefore, the gearing ratio is

not applicable.

2. Financial Position

a.

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of
Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in
Hong Kong published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in
December 2010, Mainland-incorporated issuers listed in Hong
Kong shall be allowed to prepare their financial statements
using Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises. As such,
on the annual general meeting 2010 of the Company held on
18 May 2011, it was resolved that with effect from 2011, the
Company would only adopt Mainland accounting standards
in its preparation of financial statements and would no longer
use Hong Kong accounting standards at the same time in

preparing financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB128,435 million, of which approximately
RMB68,607 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2014,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB 19,842 million (as at 31 December 2013: RMB19,580
million). On the same date, the Group’s total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB87,829 million, of which
approximately RMB48,245 million were current liabilities.
The current ratio was approximately 1.42 (as at 31 December
2013: 1.64).

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB40,607 million, of which approximately
RMB31,575 million was attributable to equity holders of
the Company and the balance was minority equity holders’
interests. The Group currently does not rely heavily on
borrowings. The borrowings of the Group as at 30 June
2014 amounted to approximately RMB24,836 million,
including debenture of approximately RMB7,628 million and
bank borrowings of approximately RMB17,208 million. The
Group's borrowings maturing within one year from 30 June
2014 amounted to approximately RMB3,613 million and
borrowings maturing in more than one year from 30 June
2014 amounted to approximately RMB21,223 million. As
at 30 June 2014, the Group’s borrowings mainly comprised
Renminbi-denominated borrowings and Euro-denominated
borrowings. The Group’s revenue was mainly Renminbi-
denominated, while the revenue generated by KION, a
subsidiary of the Group, was mainly denominated in Euro.

The Group, therefore, does not consider its foreign exchange
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

risk significant. However, the management will monitor its
foreign exchange risk and consider to hedge against any
material foreign exchange risk as and when necessary. As a
policy, the Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to shareholders through the
optimization of the debts and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2014, bank deposits and notes receivables
of approximately RMB5,525 million (as at 31 December
2013: RMB5,146 million) were pledged to banks to secure
the Group’s notes payables and notes receivables issued
by banks. The pledged bank deposits carry prevailing
bank interest rates. The pledge will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. The fair value of
the bank deposits at the settlement date is approximately the

same as the carrying amount.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Contingencies

As at 30 June 2014, the Group provided to certain distributors
and agents bank guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB2,549 million (as at 31 December 2013: approximately
RMB732 million) to secure their obtaining and use of banking
facilities. As at 30 June 2014, the Group provided guarantee
for joint liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under
finance lease to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk
exposure in respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB1,154 million (as at 31
December 2013: approximately RMB1,193 million). Details
are set out in Note VIl to the financial statements of the

Company’s 2014 Interim Report.

Commitments

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had approximately RMB 1,862
million capital commitments (as at 31 December 2013:
approximately RMB933 million), all of which are contracted
capital commitments and principally for the capital
expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. All the above capital expenditures are expected

to be funded from the Group’s internal resources.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had no investment

commitments (as at 31 December 2013: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3. Other Financial Information

a.

Employees

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had approximately 64
thousand employees (including approximately 22 thousand
employees of KION). During the Period, the Group had
paid remuneration of approximately RMB2,477 million.
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merits,

qualifications and competence.

Major Investment

During the Period, Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding
S.ar.l. ("Weichai Lux"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has exercised the Superlift call option in full and
acquired 3,263,700 KION shares from Superlift Holding, S.a r.l.
("Superlift”) at a total consideration of EUR95,333,723,
representing 3.3% of the issued share capital of KION, and
thereafter Weichai Lux became the holder of 32,933,700
KION shares, representing 33.3% of the issued share capital
of KION.

KION is the largest manufacturer of industrial forklift trucks in
Europe and operates its business in more than 100 countries
globally under six brands, namely Linde, STILL, Fenwick,
OM STILL, Baoli and Voltas. KION's shares are listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The global market for industrial forklift trucks, driven
primarily by recovery in Western Europe and China, improved
considerably for the Period. Benefiting from the growth of the
western European market and by strengthening its position
in key emerging markets such as China, KION outperformed
the market as a whole in the second quarter of 2014 in terms
of sales unit. For the Period, KION posted a sales revenue and
net profit of approximately EUR2,233 million and EUR60.6
million respectively. As at 30 June 2014, KION had total
assets with a book value of approximately EUR6,108 million,
including current assets of approximately EUR1,667 million.
On the same date, KION had total liabilities with a book value
of approximately EUR4,524 million, including current liabilities

of approximately EUR1,714 million.

KION continues to expand its research and development
operations and to increase investments in capital expenditures
in order to improve its capability and efficiency. Given
its good performance in the first half of 2014, KION is

forecasting profitable growth for 2014 as a whole.

Major Acquisition and Disposal
As at 30 June 2014, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Weichai Lux, was interested in approximately
33.3% of the issued shares of KION.

KION was previously treated as an associated company of
the Company and was accounted for by the Company using
equity method of accounting in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. Superlift informed the Company
that Superlift had completed its disposal of approximately
7.6% of the shares of KION (the “Disposal”) on 12 June
2014. Following the Disposal, Superlift’s shareholding
interest in KION has dropped from approximately 34.5% to
approximately 26.9%. Thus, the Company (through Weichai
Lux), being the holder of 33.3% of the issued shares of KION,
held more KION shares than Superlift did after the Disposal
and, accordingly, Weichai Lux became the largest shareholder

of KION. Accordingly, under the voting arrangements
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

contained in the KION Shareholders’ Agreement, subject to
Superlift’'s and Weichai Lux’s respective nomination rights
of the shareholder representatives of the supervisory board
under the KION Shareholders’ Agreement, Superlift would
vote at the general meetings of KION in accordance with the
voting decision of Weichai Lux in respect of certain specified
important matters, namely, the appropriation of profits, the
discharge of members of the management board and the
supervisory board of KION, the approval of management
matters as required by the management board of KION
(to the extent that such matter is not a reserved matter
requiring unanimous consent of Weichai Lux and Superlift
under the KION Shareholders’ Agreement), the approval of
management matters which have been previously rejected
by the supervisory board of KION, and the election of the

members of the supervisory board of KION.

Having then consulted with the auditors of the Company,
the Company considered that since Superlift would have to
vote at the general meetings of KION in accordance with
the voting decisions made by Weichai Lux in respect of the
said matters following the Disposal, the Company would
have control over approximately 60.2% of the voting rights
of KION in the said respects, the Company had obtained
effective control over KION on 12 June 2014. Pursuant to the
“Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 33 — Consolidated
ZERIFE335 - &SR
7<), following the Disposal, KION would be accounted for

A S

Financial Statements” (¥ &3

and consolidated into the consolidated financial statements

of the Company as a subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any other

major acquisition or disposal during the Period.
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Auditors” Review Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= Kk
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2014) Zhuan Zi No. 60729920_B08

To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated and company income statements,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for January-June 2014
and notes to the financial statements. The management of Weichai Power Co.,
Ltd. is responsible for the preparation of these interim financial statements. Our
responsibility is to issue our review report on these interim financial statements

based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an

audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance with

the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Zhang Fei
Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

You Jin

29 August 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

aHEER

20146 H30H (AR #T)

Note V 30 June 2014
ASSETS BE kil 201456 H30AH
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BE¥ES 1 19,841,947,842.96
Financial assets at fair value through UAREEFEEH
profit or loss FEHAZHER
B & R EE 2 16,814,383.80
Notes receivable e R IR 3 17,699,323,219.17
Accounts receivable FEUWBE X 4 12,455,618,495.54
Prepayments TaftRIE 5 616,806,087.99
Dividends receivable JE AT AR ) 6 3,040,000.00
Interests receivable R F) B 1,040,845.68
Other receivables H b fE I R 7 888,740,446.10
Inventories 78 8 14,177,146,738.46
Non-current assets due within one year —FRNAEAOIEREBEE 11 1,529,815,114.80
Other current assets Hine&E 9 1,376,528,607.49
Total current assets REEES 68,606,821,781.99
Non-current assets ERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEHESmEE 10 396,764,208.11
Held-to-maturity investments HEZERHEE 16,789.20
Long-term receivables £ HA B IR 11 2,588,903,034.60
Long-term equity investments RHRERE 12 1,532,121,207.19
Investment property KEEEE 13 534,790,690.32
Fixed assets BEEEE 14 23,091,233,727.99
Construction in progress HEEIR 15 3,597,439,039.56
Materials used in construction TREME 16 486,829.07
Disposal of fixed assets BEEBESHE 2,205,706.95
Intangible assets mpEE 17 12,393,232,254.51
Development expenditure BT H 17 2,558,953,134.19
Goodwill EES 18 9,308,350,005.23
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER 19 157,068,123.26
Deferred tax assets BREFTGMEE 3,482,955,924.32
Other non-current assets HiIERBHEE 184,152,340.20
Total non-current assets ERBEEA 59,828,673,014.70
Total assets B ERET 128,435,494,796.69
The financial statements have been signed by: MBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative:

BERERA

Principal in charge of accounting:

ETEEHIEEEA:

Tan Xuguang
P

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

R

31 December 2013
20134 12A31H
(Audited)

(FEEZ)

19,580,127,632.91

51,077,466.30
14,126,950,813.40
4,440,534,339.82
405,481,103.37
3,040,000.00
15,439,001.39
382,476,843.43
8,573,263,068.43

471,818,015.98

48,050,208,285.03

294,601,926.11

7,789,229,080.64
547,396,551.63
13,149,176,100.96
3,284,090,409.80
16,914.51
1,267,095.38
2,273,431,309.49
497,418,862.34
1,430,849,833.51
158,779,148.42
785,535,351.82
259,807,862.57

30,471,600,447.18

78,521,808,732.21

Head of accounting department:

BERIRBARAEA :

Zhang Zhigiang
iR & 58



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) AUFEEABER (H)
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (AR ¥oT)
Note V 30 June 2014
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERRRER M h 201456 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)
Current liabilities mEBE
Short-term loans RERE R 21 3,303,332,520.65
Financial liabilities held for trading XHETRARE 22 42,535,438.20
Notes payable FE =R 23 7,142,960,118.99
Accounts payable BRI 24 20,319,303,916.01
Advances from customers TE W R IE 25 1,907,214,186.34
Payroll payable JE A B T3 26 2,939,550,651.36
Taxes payable ERXTE 27 1,414,763,287.45
Interests payable FERTFI B 28 310,929,540.49
Dividends payable FET AR A 29 301,611,293.21
Other payables H MR R 30 4,668,432,934.01
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FAREHNIERB AR 31 3,368,963,758.02
Other current liabilities Hineai 32 2,525,505,905.56
Total current liabilities mEBESET 48,245,103,550.29
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Long-term borrowings REBER 33 13,594,594,951.98
Bonds payable B ES 34 7,627,965,055.49
Long-term payables REFEN R 35 5,471,375,162.80
Special payables EIEENMNK 36 53,000,000.00
Provisions FHEtBE 37 502,859,373.31
Long-term payroll payable £ B e 1< B8 T 557 B 38 6,251,076,229.26
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFMSHAR 3,965,073,414.50
Other non-current liabilities HiIERHAE 39 2,117,782,035.37
Total non-current liabilities FEREBBEARGT 39,583,726,222.71
Total liabilities BEAE 87,828,829,773.00
The financial statements have been signed by: BBBRRHATALIRE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

FTEETIESEA:

Tan Xuguang
ZEY

Kwong Kwan Tong
BRE

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

Zhang Zhigiang
RS8R

31 December 2013
20134 12A31H
(Audited)
(g&E=)

1,245,568,357.29
6,687,151,599.77
13,472,675,550.89
1,211,259,736.92
1,175,313,751.59
552,024,065.76
132,089,773.25
43,101,211.76
3,398,458,815.35
352,375,772.74
1,028,305,788.79

29,298,324,424.11

9,146,039,593.52
3,493,858,837.76
8,847,480.34
53,000,000.00
606,487,220.23
146,119,914.93
1,441,819,889.93

14,896,172,936.71

44,194,497,360.82

Head of accounting department:

SRHBREA ¢
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

EHEEAMER (H)
20146 H30H (AR #T)

Note V 30 June 2014
{iFsan 201456 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Continued) BERRRER(E)
Shareholders’ equity AR R i E

Share capital & 7%

Capital reserve BARRNIE

Special reserve HIEE

Surplus reserve BARNTE

Retained earnings 7R o BE F)

Exchange differences on foreign currency GNEESRRITE =58

translation

40 1,999,309,639.00
41 1,114,853,808.13
42 46,818,762.07
43 2,683,223,334.61
44 25,729,476,604.93

1,082,433.01

Total equity attributable to the shareholders
of the parent

BENERRRRERAR

31,574,764,581.75
9,031,900,441.94

Minority interests LHIRRE R
Total shareholders’ equity R

40,606,665,023.69

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BEMBR S AT

128,435,494,796.69

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting:
EEREKA TESHIEEBEA

Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong

BB BPIE =

FHBEBATALEE

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(&E=)

1,999,309,639.00
703,970,229.92
35,605,889.68
2,683,223,334.61
22,264,536,818.92

36,527,719.49

27,723,173,631.62
6,604,137,739.77

34,327,311,371.39

78,521,808,732.21

Head of accounting department:

BEHBEREA

Zhang Zhigiang
REE



Consolidated Income Statement

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

& F R R

2014F1-6 H( AR T)

Note V
MR

Revenue EEMA 45
Less: Cost of sales W R 45
Taxes and surcharges EEB® &M 46
Distribution and selling expenses HEEM 47
General and administrative expenses EHREA 48
Financial expenses MiEER 49
Impairment loss of assets BERMEEX 50
Add: Gain or loss on fair value changes m: AREBEEEHER 51
Investment income = 52
Incl:  Share of profit of associates and HA o HE A
jointly controlled enterprises MmaEtEN
HE W=
Operating profit EE XD
Add: Non-operating income s EEIMEA 53
Less: Non-operating expenses W BN 54
Incl:  Loss on disposal of Hep: ERBEE
non-current assets BREEX
Total profit M 55
Less: Income tax expense W TR ER 56
Net profit b E
Net profit attributable to the shareholders FEN A RRREFRE
of the parent
Minority interests LHRRIBR
Earnings per share B Y=
Basic earnings per share EAREGRKE 57
Diluted earnings per share mETRKE

Details of dividends payable and proposed to be paid during the period are
disclosed in Note V.44 and Note X to these financial statements.

The financial statements have been signed by:

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEETIHESEA:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
EE5

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

January to June
2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

34,111,434,568.32
27,143,799,729.80
146,790,621.00
1,543,287,260.29
2,078,454,681.26
104,747,315.66
273,454,327.04

(150,137,868.78)

1,743,670,915.56

94,884,597.49

4,414,433,680.05
74,116,130.10
12,397,585.18

6,156,044.70

4,476,152,224.97
481,695,914.07

3,994,456,310.90

3,764,836,231.86

229,620,079.04

January to June
2013

20135 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

30,921,619,033.95
24,639,987,069.30
141,314,886.82
1,535,460,534.86
1,749,371,137.22
63,849,988.00
225,290,766.47
132,974,506.91
11,820,004.38

5,694,427.50

2,711,139,162.57
57,517,399.66
15,148,512.80

7,038,956.17

2,753,508,049.43
464,046,511.72

2,289,461,537.71

2,084,967,415.03

204,494,122.68

1.04
N/A AN

NEEMN REZRRNREZF BRI B REMN T
Fo 44K EETHEEE o

MBMRENLNTALESE :

Zhang Zhigiang
K58

Head of accounting department:

BEIRBARA :



34 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

MR IRHBRAT

Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

EHEAE R ()
2014F1-6 H( AR T)

January to June
2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Note V
MR

Other comprehensive income
Those other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified into profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Share of investee’s other comprehensive income
not to be reclassified into profit or loss in
subsequent periods using the equity method

H ARG WS
LAfgE

2

FTEAE T REE
ERBEMHMER S WS
BRESEARENERKRE
B AREE R
DRERENEMBES R
STEANNE

(162,692,384.76)

Those other comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit or loss after meeting

VAR & 5T BRI FE 0 B R E
IR ED BHEES

(3,074,941.98)

40,864,388.98

certain criteria in subsequent periods B H A 47 A e
Share of investee’s other comprehensive income 1% R 255X E W FE IR
to be reclassified into profit or loss after KEBEMNBEHEE
meeting certain criteria in subsequent periods ﬁﬂ%ﬁmﬂ HREES R
using the equity method EERHEMEAERS W T
FEBHE
Less: current profit/loss transferred out W REF AR ARSI
for those originally taken to other R N
comprehensive income B
Exchange differences on foreign currency INE BT ISR R ITE =58
translation
Gain or loss arising from change of fair value of A[{tHE L FE &
available-for-sale financial assets DREEZEFK

RS HB LR

37,789,447.00

(37,917,209.95)

Net amount of items under other comprehensive
income after income tax

Hipr e am&HE 25l
M ERE BRAFHE

(162,820,147.71)

Total comprehensive income

e W EE

3,831,636,163.19

Incl:

Total comprehensive income attributable
to the shareholders of the parent

Total comprehensive income attributable to
minority owners

He -
FERETRARRRENES
2k 4858
BERVERRNGE

g o= 4858

3,604,488,007.62

227,148,155.57

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:

FTEEHIESREA :

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

MBHMRAAT ALEE

January to June
2013

20135 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgER)

42,281,400.00

(22,090,580.00)

(6,377,070.56)

(28,467,650.56)

(30,551,253.16)

(55,420,000.00)

(72,157,503.72)

2,217,304,033.99

2,002,770,768.89

214,533,265.10

Head of accounting department:

FEMBEEA

Zhang Zhigiang
R 75 58



Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(Unaudited)

Share
capital

Capital

reserve

e EfLE

I Atbeginning of period

) Netproft
(I} Other comprehensive income

| Movements in current period i

- REENRR

TEARRELE
(-) B1A
(o) Amane

Total comprehensive income
(1) Capitalinection and reduction
fom shareholders
1. Captalinjecton from shareholders
2. Minority interests
arsing from acaisition
3. Acquistion of minoriy
interests Note)
4 Others
) Profit appropriation
1. Distrbution to owners
(V) Special resenve
1. Appropriation during the period
2. Used during the period
(V) Others
1. Reversal of put options related to
minoriy interests

1. RERAER
2 hEEENIE
HHR
()

=2

3

Rl
o
BE S

4 i
(m) HEAHR

1. §RRHAR
(F) 2886

1. 580

2 FERA
(~) &t

1. BVERRELAE
MiEHEED B4

II. Atend of period So

TEERRE

Note: The Group obtained control over KION GROUP AG through business combinations

199930963900 70397022992

(124,902,937.76)

(124,902,937.76)

(150,732,575.09)
46,520,039.18

Special

reserve

LA

35,605,889.68

28414816.11
(17201.943.72)

639,999,051.88

199930963900 1,114,853.808.13

46,818 762,07

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

£ SO 25
Y ES

2014F1-6 H( AR T)
(RAEFZ)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

BERBLARARR

Surplus

Teserve

BOR

2,683,203,33461

2,683,203,33461

not involving entities under common control during the period. KION GROUP AG held
minority interests in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG (“Linde Hydraulics”), a subsidiary of
the Group. By means of business combination with KION GROUP AG, the Group acquired
the minority interests in Linde Hydraulics, which accounted for 30% of the shares in Linde

Hydraulics.

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREKA :

Tan Xuguang
=B

15,729,476,604.93

By

Exchange
differences

on foreign

Retained currency
translation

biLE e
i 3

eamings

FARAR

10,264536818.92 36,521,711949

3,764,836,231.86

3764836318 (35,04528648)

(150,732,575.09)

Subtotal

/J\ﬁ

11,713,173,631.62

3,764,836,231.86
= | (160,348, 224.24)

3,604,488,007.62

46,520039.18

(299,896,445.85)

(299,89,445.85)

2841481611

(17,20194372)

£39,999,051.88

D EI30%) °

31,574,764.581.75

MHEBERBEATALEE

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEETIEEEA :

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Minority
interests

HERERR

6,604,137,739.77

29620,079.04
[241.9341)

201,148,155.57

495,732,886.00

1819630417.92

(120,504,582.29)

14585.233.11
(8.829408.14)

Total
equity
RR##

i

30731371139

399445631090
(162,820,147.71)

3,831,636,163.19

495,732,886.00

1819,630417.92

(21.231,157.38)
46,520039.18

(299,89,445.85)
430000492

(26,031,351.86)

£39,999,051.88

903190044194 40,606,685,023.69

Head of accounting department:

SRTEBREA

Zhang Zhigiang
9% 7 58

AEBARRBMBIER 2 TEES HIRELHKION
GROUP AGHJ#E | - KION GROUP AGH B AREE
FRAMERBEBREE((MERE]NDHRE
#zE o NEERBEHEKION GROUP AGHIEA 6 -
HERE THREREN D HREEE ERERE

35



36 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %58 H R 5 R D T

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity (Continued)

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
(Unaudited)

A DF R HE £

BE R (4)

2013F1-6 H( AR T)
(RAEFZ)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

BRNSLAERER
Exchange
differences
on foreign
Share Capital Spedial Surplus Retained crrency Minority Total
Note capital Teserve reserve Teserve earnings translation Subtotal interests equity
Mz BREE
iE: B E50E BEGR BYLE AORHE fEEE it HERRER i
I Atbeginning of period - 199930963900 842,375,982.05 230895425 230012846682 19,737,619,540.81 (3317194725 248693512395 6,529,88455355  31,399,235,777.50
Il Movements in current period o
) Net profi - - - - 208496741503 - 08496741503 20449412268 2,28946153171
(I} Other comprehensive income (2) Etbaka V.58 - (41928283.78) - - - (40268362360 (82,196,646.14) 1003914242 (12,157503.72)
Total comprehensive income GahnaE - (41,928283.78) - - 208496741503 (4026836236)  2,00,77076889 21453326510 221730403399
() Captal ijecion and reduction rom (2) BREAMEDEA
shareholders
1. Acquiston of minoriy interests 1. kg ERRER - 6,748,35893 - - - - 6783893 (6,74835893)
(V) Proft appropriaton (m) HESE
1. Distibution to owners 1. HRRMAR IV o S o - (459841.21697) - (#59841.21697) (5,684,985.08)  (465,526,202.03)
(V) Specal resene (B) EBEE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. KRR VR o - 239344007 - - - 20,393, 44007 13,504.931.87 35,898,371.94
2. Used during the period 1. FHER i} = o (13542,95307) - - - (13542,95301) (90928359)  (22,63,78899)
Il Atend of period = FEERRE 199930963900 807,196,057.20 3194000952 230012846682  21,362,745,73887 (344030961) 2642787962180 67363957061  33164,276,19241
The financial statements have been signed by: HBEmMERAUTALESE

Legal Representative:

EERERA FTEEHIEBRA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong
BB BRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:

BRMRBREA ¢

Zhang Zhigiang

R 508
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G &R R
2014%F1-6 H (AR T)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

January to June

January to June

Note V 2014 2013
e 2014%1-6 A 20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXR) (REEZ)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEEHEENRS
ACTIVITIES mE
Cash received from sales of goods or HEER - BHEK
rendering of services W RHIRE ol e AEerA T 16,384,197,071.20

Refunds of taxes
Other cash received relating to operating

W B By 5 B IR R
W B H i B AR 2R B

154,939,433.90

activities BREHNIRS 59 456,371,169.05 459,063,957.77
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating LEFFRSAA
activities /INEt 21,811,462,357.92 17,015,354,850.32
Cash paid for goods and services BEMR BEXSH%
Y AHIR S 14,173,369,728.85 10,796,783,200.94
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees YIEB T AN A
BIXMNHRE IRt EEERY  2,162,775,076.40
Cash paid for all types of taxes SN EERE 2,207,309,421.19 1,821,072,202.44
Other cash paid relating to operating AR ELAth B AT E B
activities ENRS 59 2,203,972,979.14 1,500,034,548.86
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating R SEENIR &
activities et A PEPACIPPPICE S 16,280,665,028.64
Net cash flows from operating activities WEEBELENIRS
e R 60 688,203,134.96 734,689,821.68
Il.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHELENE S
ACTIVITIES mE
Cash received from sale of investments U B85 E W R 8 IR & 50,000,000.00 166,878,940.00
Cash received from return on 515 & Y s H B By
investments B 98,973,772.65 6,400,000.00
Net cash received from disposal of RERETEEE £
fixed assets, intangible assets and BEMAMRRAE
other long-term assets ERE®IRFE 630,278.96 1,167,462.64
Other cash received relating to U B E At B B R B
investing activities EBENRS 59 1,217,462,120.87 117,778,117.07
Subtotal of cash inflows from KRETHESRA
investing activities /NEt 1,367,066,172.48 292,224,519.71
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BREETEE 8
intangible assets and other long-term BEMEMREAE
assets EXMHRE 717,399,184.35 808,121,858.82
Cash paid for acquisition of investments KEXNEIRE 1,097,137,945.32 3,164,875,778.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from WA EERESNH
investing activities Nt 1,814,537,129.67 3,972,997,636.82
Net cash flows from RETHELENRS
investing activities MEFEE (v YOIKCLYRE)N (3,680,773,117.11)
The financial statements have been signed by: MIEmMREATALESE

Legal Representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

172,093,821.35

Head of accounting department:

EERRKRA TERIEEEA: BAHRBREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang
EEB) BRAR = SRR



38  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

MR IRHBRAT

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

/\Hfﬁi{m;% (%)
2014F1-6 H( AR T)

Note V
B 5 F

January to June
2014
201451-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Cash received from capital contributions
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from

capital contributions of
minority owners
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from issuance of bonds
Other cash received relating to

EEEPELNRS
mE

R B W R IR 2
Hep - FRERK D
BEREE

W B E 2
SRERKEINRS
?éfﬂsiffﬂﬁl FHRD
W B o B2 55 R B

495,732,886.00

495,732,886.00
627,785,309.90

financing activities BN E 59
Subtotal of cash inflows from EBEHHESTEA
financing activities N 1,123,518,195.90
Cash repayments of borrowings BREBINHRS 455,092,455.38
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or DRRA - MEHE
profits and for interest expenses HABEZRHHRE 382,285,910.96
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners He  FREIXN4EG
for distribution of dividends or DT R
profits by subsidiaries B& A ~ B 176,065,689.95
Other cash paid relating to financing AT E A BB E F
activities EANE S 59 15,784,702.16
Subtotal of cash outflows from EEFHR SR
financing activities NEF 853,163,068.50
Net cash flows from EBEHELENRS
financing activities e R 270,355,127.40
V. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE PO - [ERESHHWIRESH
ON CASH 3/% (18,241,733.92)
V. NETINCREASE/(DECREASE)INCASHAND # + BRERIREEEYF
CASH EQUIVALENTS #gm,/ Cmd) s 492,845,571.25
Add: Cash and cash equivalents imn: \YELRRS
at beginning of period LEWEREE 16,596,941,296.20
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N BRBEERESEE
AT END OF PERIOD YR EE 60 17,089,786,867.45
The financial statements have been signed by: MEmMERBATALESE

Legal Representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

EERERA :

Tan Xuguang
EEB

TESMIEEREA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

January to June
2013

20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgER)

3,318,202,923.00
797,600,000.00

459,500.00

4,116,262,423.00

2,160,193,489.31

254,970,229.04

140,378,502.98

2,415,163,718.35

1,701,098,704.65

(29,177,945.04)

(1,274,162,535.82)

14,099,151,353.22

12,824,988,817.40

Head of accounting department:

SEIBBEEA

Zhang Zhigiang
IR 58



Company Balance Sheet

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ASSETS EE

Interim Report 2014 #iizRs 39

NAEERMERE

201446 A308 (A R¥T)
Note XII 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
(Sl 2014%F6H30H 2013412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEFZ) (%)

12,592,547,384.92
11,937,761,919.43

1 1,933,899,583.35 244,988,175.52
72,840,576.47 83,071,374.23

= 43,075,603.72

437,250.00 14,815,594.44

13,384,081,420.60
9,766,230,445.12

2 1,826,984,525.63
1,858,681,359.12
76,475,462.11

30,299,628,061.03

235,680,000.00

3,4 8,217,211,805.11
1,024,516,021.28
2,519,327,159.95
1,770,922,268.16
328,595.32
338,250,125.35
579,145,043.76
268,015,756.73
1,428,482,448.00

16,381,879,223.66

Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BE¥ES
Notes receivable e &
Accounts receivable JE W AR K
Prepayments TENT FRIE
Dividends receivable JE U5 AR
Interests receivable FEU T2
Other receivables HAth FE MR
Inventories EAS
Other current assets Hthmeh&E
Total current assets mEEESE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AT ESRERE
Long-term equity investments RERERE T
Investment property REMEHE
Fixed assets EEE
Construction in progress ERETIR
Disposal of fixed assets EEEEFE
Intangible assets BmEEE
Goodwill EES
Deferred tax assets RIEFREHEE
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE
Total non-current assets EMEBEESE
Total assets BEMET

46,681,507,284.69

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREKA : FEETIEEEA :

Tan Xuguang
=B

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

FHEBEBEATALESE

1,762,289,386.87
1,979,350,646.02

27,277,902,646.52

235,680,000.00
7,701,961,114.30
1,055,234,504.30
2,612,062,852.50
1,724,376,418.56
328,595.31
341,165,627.61
579,145,043.76
293,625,964.26
1,073,203,388.00

15,616,783,508.60

42,894,686,155.12

Head of accounting department:

BHBEREA

Zhang Zhigiang
9% 7 58



40 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 28 H R AR A T

Company Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

~EIEEAME ()

20146 H30H (AR #T)

30 June 2014
201456 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

5,431,742,216.77
6,000,155,844.37
128,001,866.83
470,781,780.18
181,155,463.64
126,133,333.45
299,896,445.85
2,362,886,581.20
628,000,000.00

15,628,753,532.29

2,699,167,542.15
30,000,000.00
17,833,800.60
260,419,210.91

3,007,420,553.66

18,636,174,085.95

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERRRAER
Current liabilities mE AR
Notes payable FE =R
Accounts payable JFE T BR X
Advances from customers TE Wk IE
Payroll payable JRE AT BBk T %57 B
Taxes payable ERXME
Interests payable FERTFIE
Dividends payable JE A AR A
Other payables H M E A R
Other current liabilities Hitp e a s
Total current liabilities mEBAEEE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bonds payable ERES
Special payables HIAFER R
Deferred tax liabilities REFRGEREE
Other non-current liabilities HindEms afE
Total non-current liabilities ERBEESE
Total liabilities AfEEF
Shareholders’ equity % 3R
Share capital [
Capital reserve BARRNIR
Special reserve HIAH S
Surplus reserve BERNTE

Retained earnings

Ao EHE

1,999,309,639.00
1,019,475,033.38
27,002,907.18
2,683,223,334.61
22,316,322,284.57

Total shareholders’ equity

B A

28,045,333,198.74

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BERRRES A

46,681,507,284.69

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREKRA : ITEE
Tan Xuguang Kwong
A iR

Principal in charge of accounting:

SFAIEREA

Kwan Tong

MIBHMRAAT ALERE

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

(Audited)
(BEZ)

4,937,793,613.31
5,629,108,204.84

76,916,612.37
543,200,626.47
115,485,608.69
54,408,333.43

1,894,124,012.04

576,000,000.00

13,827,037,011.15

2,695,720,748.07

30,000,000.00
17,833,800.60
213,764,174.97

2,957,318,723.64

16,784,355,734.79

1,999,309,639.00
1,019,475,033.38

21,319,709.95

2,683,223,334.61
20,387,002,703.39

26,110,330,420.33

42,894,686,155.12

Head of accounting department:

BEIRBAERA :

Zhang Zhigiang
RER
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yNCIRIREES
Company Income Statement 2~ A
January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F1-6 A(ARE L)
January to June January to June
Note XII 2014 2013
M+ = 201451-6 8 2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEZ)
Revenue EEIWA 5 13,766,604,152.49 12,382,248,674.39
Less: Cost of sales o EERAR 5 9,689,981,479.84 8,841,827,374.89
Taxes and surcharges EEBE KM 86,062,623.12 90,097,198.78
Distribution and selling expenses HEER 544,314,799.75 595,878,844.45
General and administrative expenses EIEEH 917,859,211.84 788,481,230.47
Finance expenses BB (31,978,303.31) (47,614,084.46)
Impairment loss of assets EEREEX 77,421,690.85 83,717,025.87
Add: Investment income s RERE 6 101,549,790.57 130,656,862.79
Incl:  Share of profit of associates and B o v%ﬁ%fﬂ
jointly controlled enterprises aEPERN
AW 5,250,690.81 7,910,723.39
Operating profit =EERE 2,584,492,440.97 2,160,517,947.18
Add: Non-operating income o BEINIA 4,264,998.69 9,687,459.72
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEINTH 1,811,052.28 2,386,143.59
Incl:  Loss on disposal of Heh: SERBEE
non-current assets BEEK 131,212.28 593,774.24
Total profit b F L 2,586,946,387.38 2,167,819,263.31
Less: Income tax expenses W ST ER 357,730,360.35 296,530,310.20
Net profit 75 A 2,229,216,027.03 1,871,288,953.11
Other comprehensive income H i a s
Those other comprehensive income to be L/\ ‘e MW R B E R
reclassified into profit or loss after meeting HREESHEBINE
certain criteria in subsequent periods iR A W
Share of investee’s other comprehensive B S AZE N ERIE
income to be reclassified into profit or loss BEMNIAEESTHIBEE
after meeting certain criteria in subsequent WERTIREEBEEY
periods using the equity method HERRN ARSI
RPAEENMHE (6,377,070.56)
Gain or loss arising from change of fair value AfHESHEEAAE
of available-for-sale financial assets BEEBHEK R FSiE
FS (55,420,000.00)
Net amount of items under other comprehensive Hfh#z4 W& I8 B 5 540
income after income tax TSR & éE’]@r%ﬁ - (61,797,070.56)
Total comprehensive income ez E 2,229,216,027.03 1,809,491,882.55
The financial statements have been signed by: MEmERBEATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EERREA - FEEIEARA FEIHEBAERA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Zhang Zhigiang

RAB BRE o 508
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January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(Unaudlited)
. Atbeginning of period - FEBHE
I Movements in current period . REEREYLE

() Netprofit
(I Other comprehensive income

(=) FHE
(2) Atkaka

Total comprehensive income Fahang
() Profit appropriation (Z) #EAE
1. Distribution to owners 1. HREEAE
(V) Special reserve (B) £BERE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. FEHERR
2. Used during the period 2 FEFEA
Il Atend of period = FEBRHE

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Y

Company Statement of Changes in Equity NG S R

2014F1-6 H( AR T)
(RAEFZ)

Share capital Capital reserve

BA LGN

Special reserve

LR 1

Surplus reserve

BHOR

Retained eamnings

AOBAE

1.999,309,639.00  1,019,475,033.38 21319,709.95  2,683,223,33461  20,387,002,703.39

2,229,216,027.03

2,229,216,027.03
(299,896,445.85)

8,494,374.78
(2,811,177.55)

1.999,309,639.00  1,019,475,033.38 27,002.907.18  2,683,22333461  22,316,322,284.57

2013F1-6 A (AR ¥ L)

B K

Total equity
BT S Ch

26,110,330,420.33

2,029,216,027.03

2,29,216,027.03
(299,896,445.85)

8,494374.78
(2,811,177.55)

28,045,333,198.74

(Unaudited) (RAEER)
Share capital Capital reserve Special reserve Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
s VYN EHE BRAR Ewil REERA
. Atbeginning of period - FEBNRE 1,999,309,639.00  1,081,878,661.17 13,776537.65  2,300,128466.82  17,598,921,074.19  22,994,014,378.83
. Movements in current period Z FEEEEDLE
() Netprofit (=) BHE - - - - 187128895311 1,871,288953.11
Iy Other comprehensive income (Z) Eftlsalss - (61,797,070.56) - - - (61,797,070.56)
Total comprehensive incorne FANREE - (61,797,070.56) = - 1,871,288953.11  1,809,491,882.55
() Profit appropriation (Z) MESR
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRRMAE = = - - 45084121697)  (459,841,216.97)
(V) Spedial reserve (B) ERER
1. Appropriation during the period 1. FHRR - - 6,533,957.16 - - 6,533,957.16
2. Used during the period 2. THER = = (2,477,455.82) = > (2477455.8))
Il Atend of period = FEBRRE 1,999,309,639.00  1,020,081,590.61 17,833,03899  2,300,128466.82  19,010,368,810.33  24,347,721,545.75
The financial statements have been signed by: MEMEREATALTESE

Legal Representative:

EERERA E

Tan Xuguang

BB Y BIRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

BEEHTEREAEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

BREBREA

Zhang Zhigiang
R & 5R

Head of accounting department:



Company Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

MeE+=

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

January to June
2014
2014%1-68

(Unaudited)
(REEER)

10,302,825,381.83
321,905,398.30

10,624,730,780.13

8,298,784,774.60

640,734,579.37
1,159,555,646.15

402,051,395.62

10,501,126,395.74

123,604,384.39

67,009,108.44

64,228.80
38,232,850.00

105,306,187.24

64,093,630.47
865,279,060.00

929,372,690.47

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING — REEDELENRD
ACTIVITIES mE
Cash received from sales of goods or HEEM  REEH
rendering of services Bk &
Other cash received relating to LI L th B 4 8 U D
operating activities BHMIRE
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating KEFHRSMA
activities NEF
Cash paid for goods and services BEEM  BEXEB
SENEOE
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees AT 4R B T LA K BB
IxfImEe
Cash paid for all types of taxes XANE IR E
Other cash paid relating to 2N A AT 8 B
operating activities BRANE S
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating iR SEENIR
activities NEF
Net cash flows from KEEHELENRS
operating activities MEFE
Il CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING — - REERDELANES
ACTIVITIES meE
Cash received from sale of investments I B35 & Y B #9358 &
Cash received from return on 515 8 Yo s Y B By
investments He
Net cash received from disposal of REBEETEE B
fixed assets, intangible assets and BEMEMREBAE
other long-term assets EWEaIR & FE
Other cash received relating to U B E Ath B3 & R &
investing activities BN E
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing KREFRHHRESRA
activities INEF
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BREETEE  &F
intangible assets and other long-term BEMEMREE
assets EXN®RS
Cash paid for acquisition of investments BESZHR e
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing KEEHELS R LD
activities NET
Net cash flows from RETHELENRS
investing activities mEFE

(824,066,503.23)

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang

BB BIRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEGHIERBEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

MBHMRAAT ALEE

7w B4R i B AR

2014F1-6 H( AR T)

January to June
2013
2013%1-6 8

(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

7,637,421,831.06
376,863,297.92

8,014,285,128.98

5,012,454,106.54

539,742,338.46
1,102,931,624.76

839,278,091.13

7,494,406,160.89

519,878,968.09

114,067,880.00
47,432,039.82

95,578.07

161,595,497.89

235,951,442.27
1,518,353,572.00

1,754,305,014.27

(1,592,709,516.38)

Head of accounting department:

BERIRBAREA :

Zhang Zhigiang
R 508
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Company Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

NAEI B G aE R ()
2014F1-6 H( AR T)

January to June

January to June

Note XII 2014 2013
MsE+— 2014%1-68 2013F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING = EEEPELENRS
ACTIVITIES mE
Other cash paid relating to XN EMEEEE
financing activities FEAMNES 15,665,820.00 -
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EB8EFHEELRL
activities /N 15,665,820.00 -
Net cash flows from EEEHELENES
financing activities mEFRE (15,665,820.00) -
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE PO « FEXREFHHIRS W
ON CASH g 12,954.63 (14,891.85)
V. NET DECREASE IN CASH AND H BeRReEEYTF
CASH EQUIVALENTS B (AR RN (1,072,845,440.14)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents o YRS K
at beginning of period ReEED
FREE 11,252,295,276.97 9,457,082,461.58
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N HERBE4LRERES
AT END OF PERIOD EEYHRE 8 10,536,180,292.76 8,384,237,021.44

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Tan Xuguang
=B

BRE

Principal in charge of accounting:
TER:

=)

tTERRA :

Kwong Kwan Tong

FHEBEBEATALEE

Head of accounting department:

BEHBEREA

Zhang Zhigiang
R



Notes to Financial Statements

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate Background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock limited company
jointly established by Weifang Diesel Engine Factory (4375 mimR), as
the primary promoter, together with other promoters, upon approval by
People’s Government of Shandong Province with document Lu Zheng
Gu Zi No. [2002] 64 Shandong Province Joint Stock Limited Company
Approval Certificate (BEf%F[2002]645% LR E R H AR D FHEFE).
It obtained its legal business licence from the Administration for Industry
and Commerce of Shandong Province on 23 December 2002, with an

original registered capital of RMB215 million.

In October 2007, Weifang Diesel Engine Factory was converted into
Weichai Group Holdings Limited (#4<i%iR £ E AR A F)) (hereinafter
referred to as “Weichai Group Holdings”) upon approval by State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the People’s
Government of Shandong Province with document Lu Guo Zi Qi Gai Han
No. [2007] 45 (B E1& {2 K[2007]455%) titled “ Approval Concerning the
Conversion of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory into Weichai Group Holdings
Limited ( (BARSAEITSL MR R S IEIREE AR A FIR#LE) ) and

the Administration for Industry and Commerce of Weifang City.

In March 2004, the Company conducted a public offer in Hong Kong of
overseas listed foreign shares (H Shares) of ordinary shares of RMB1.00
each to global investors, totaling 126.5 million shares among which
11.5 million shares were state-owned shares, pursuant to the approval
document Zheng Jian Guo He Zi (FEE5E& ) No. [2003]44 issued by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission. Such shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
on 11 March 2004. In April 2004, the registered capital of the Company
increased by RMB115 million in total pursuant to the public offer of shares
to global investors and consequently the accumulated paid-in registered
capital amounted to RMB330 million. The aforesaid registered capital has
been verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (L5
ERF{EAE RS L&A1 E AT with asset verification reports numbered
Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (B 1E{=% ) No. (2002) 3209 and Lu Zheng Xin Yan
Zi (BIE{E%F) No. (2004) 3077.

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

S8 785 % B AR

20146 H30H (A R#T)

» AR ] B AR A L

HMEHIRDAERAR(UTHBI AR
Allsk[ AR ]) —RELRE ARBNEBRAR
F[2002]645% IR & IR0 B R A R HLERE
EHE - BT SRR E A R AR
EHMBERARRAELIIHRGERA
Al M2002F12A23ABBILEETHE
THEERERN(LEEIAEENR)
ReFfEARARYK215,000,0007T °

20075108 - KILREARBNREEE
EEEREZE BB EMMRK[2007]455%
CRAR S S e A SR E B AR
AEOBHBEIUARAST T IEHTRERERZ
o HBGEREmEE AAEERERR
RAaE - AR ERER ] -

200453 7 - ARAKkBEHEEFSFEEE
BZESFENEERST[2003]445 4
BN REEFERAZRKEE AREITE
SNETINVERAGREEARE1.007TH
TR (HAR) » BITEE12,6508 K (H+
EEFERMD1,15088) » WH200443
AR EEBBERSHERAR(SE
BERFT]) LR S ° 20045F4 8 - AR
AN EMERIEEEAFABITEEMNIE
EfEREGE AR 115,000,0007T « 35
BrMBFaMEFrERSERARY
330,000,000 ° £t 7t & A& LR IE
BRNEEREASTMEBADRNBIE
Z8 F7(2002) 32099 R B IE{E5F(2004)
30775 B EMESE TARE -
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WA S S R B 5 (48)
201446 5308 (A R#T)

— AR E BEAAE VL (4

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I. Corporate Background (Continued)

On 30 March 2007, China Securities Regulatory Commission issued
Zheng Jian Fa Hang Zi (FZ&53%77°F) No. [2007] 64 “Notice Concerning
the Approval of the Public Offer of A Shares by Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
and Its Absorption of TAGC by way of Share Swap” to approve the initial
public offering of shares by the Company and its absorption of Torch
Automobile Group Co., Ltd. GH X /B/AEBEEE %D AR A F)) (abbreviated
as “TAGC"), pursuant to which 190,653,552 new shares were made
available under the public offer to raise funds for absorption of TAGC by
way of share swap. On 23 April 2007, the Company issued 190,653,552
ordinary shares denominated in RMB (A Shares) of RMB1 each by way
of share swap, which shares were admitted for listing and trading on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 30 April 2007. Total capital upon the
aforesaid capital increase by way of share swap amounted to 520,653,552
shares with a total registered capital of RMB520,653,552, which has been
verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (1| IEJ&
MEHER EESEEIERFT) with asset verification reports numbered Lu
Zheng Xin Yan Zi (B I[E{=5 <) No. (2007) 3008. Upon completion of the
absorption of TAGC by way of share swap, the shares of TAGC and its

capacity as a legal person were both cancelled.

In accordance with the resolution of the second extraordinary general
meeting in 2008 and the amended Articles, on 16 December 2008, the
Company transferred 312,392,131 shares representing RMB312,392,131
from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon which the total
capital was 833,045,683 shares and total registered capital was
RMB833,045,683. The transfer has been verified by Shandong Zheng
Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (LR IEJRAE AR EFSFTENEHA) in
its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& IF{58 ) No. (2008) 3046.

In accordance with the resolution of the first extraordinary general
meeting in 2010 and the amended Articles, on 6 December 2010, the
Company transferred 833,045,683 shares representing RMB833,045,683
from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon which the total capital
was 1,666,091,366 shares. The transfer has been verified by Shandong
Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (IR FJRF(EE R ST @ stAiE
F&FT) in its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (B IE{£527) No. (2011)
3006.

200753 H30H - FEIESFEEEEZE
SR AETHEEFEITT2007]645 R 1Z
EHREDHIROERAAARBEITARE
B"ERRKEHFRANEAEEERG BRA
AIMAA)  HEARRERAREBEITR
SERBRRKEHFANEAEEERGE
RAR(EREIMAE])  2ABEITHR
190,653,552 % - AR IR AR WU & OF 0 X
/B > 20074 8238  ARAEKZETT
190,653,552k BIREEAREITHAR
@A (ARR) - 3200794 H308 ¢
BEERINELFZGHMEMRS o Lt
&% 18 & 1% M) B R 7N /520,653,552 1% + #F
& x4z s ARK520,653,5527T &
IWRERMEERETSFAEBMAR
E{E5F(2007) 30085 EREEFUR
F o mRRKEHMAETKE - MAE
A& 1 R N IEE AN B IS o

2008F 12 A16H * AR AR IE2008F 5
ZTARERBRRRGRABZNMENBERR
RE AEALNHEEEIMERARY
312,392,131 7T + ¥R A 312,392,131
f% - %% 1% 42 A% 7~833,045,683 /% - st
BERBE A AREES33,045,68370 kit
EIERG LR ERMEERE LA
EHPTAR EEBRF(2008) 3046575 &

%%%L\Xm“% °

2010512 A6H - RAAIRIKE2010FF
—RERRRERRERABZNMENBERN
RE AEALNHEEEIMERARYE
833,045,683 7T + # il i% 45 833,045,683
f% - #FE 1% B A1,666,091,3660% -
MERERKNREBRMEAERETES
B =5 AT AR IE(E 527 (2011)% 300655 5
BREEZ TURE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Corporate Background (Continued)

In accordance with the resolution of the annual general meeting 2011
and the amended Articles, on 29 June 2012, the Company transferred
333,218,273 shares representing RMB333,218,273 from the retained
earnings to registered capital, upon which the total capital was
1,999,309,639 shares. The transfer has been verified by Shandong Zheng
Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (| R IERFZ AR E TS TAISEEA in
its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (B 1E{£5: ) No. (2012) 1013.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. As of 30 June 2014, the
registered capital of the Company was RMB1,999,309,639. Please refer to

Note V.40 for the share capital structure.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

controller of the Group respectively.

The registered address of the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section
A, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development
Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province. It is not subject to any duration
of operation. The Company operates in the transportation equipment
manufacturing industry. The approved scope of operations of the
Company covers: Design, development, production, sale, repair, import
and export of diesel engines and auxiliary products; automobile (except
sedans), automobile axle and components, gear boxes and components
and other automobile components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors,
hydraulic valves, gears and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting
and casting products of hydraulic components; technical consultation and
technical services (should hold operating permit(s) for operations requiring

administrative permission).

These interim financial statements were approved by the board of

directors of the Company on 29 August 2014.

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE
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B IRHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates

1.

Preparation basis of the financial statements
These interim financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises —
No. 32 Interim Financial Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance
(the “MOF").

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory
notes, which are provided for easy understanding of the Group'’s
important events and transactions leading to its financial position
and change of results of operations since the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013. These selected notes do
not include all information and disclosures required under the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by MOF in
2006 for a full set of financial statements. As such, these statements
shall be read in conjunction with the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern

basis.

Other than certain financial instruments, these interim financial
statements have been prepared at historical costs. If the assets are
impaired, corresponding provisions for impairment shall be made

according to relevant provisions.

WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48
201446 5308 (A R#T)
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1.

MBEBRRAERER

7 R A B 5 R R AR U B R AR A
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) S 85 i 3R B 5 (4D
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)

II. Significant accounting policies and R (gL g T i I A W e

accounting estimates (Continued) (%)

2. Adoption of certain amended/new accounting 2. RAETBIE /st
standards 28|
In January to March 2014, the MOF formulated the “Accounting 2014F 1238 » BFEEHIE T4
Standard for Business Enterprises No. 39 — Fair Value XoiEREI9K - AR EEG
Measurement”, “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. ) (EGHEAFEIOR-F6E
40 - Joint Arrangements” and issued amendments to “Accounting ZHE) BRI T(hES T EE
Standard for Business Enterprises No. 30 — Presentation of Financial FI0% - BHMEINM)  (EE
Statements”, “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 9 — FPERIZEOS BT HM) (g
Employee Benefits”, “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises SERAEINRH - A HFHMBHmER) -
No. 33 — Consolidated Financial Statements”, “Accounting Standard (ESTERFE 25 - RERER
for Business Enterprises No. 2 — Long-term equity investments”. By FiieIEE@ 2819820144
The 6 accounting standards above will become effective from 1 July 7RATBRBIEST - BEERINLETH
2014, and early adoption is encouraged for entities listed overseas. EERAMIT - RRFERKAH
As a locally and overseas listed company, the Company adopted WA EHEE2013FE R
the 6 accounting standards above in its preparation of the financial xE o BIERIBITT LileEEeE
statements 2013, and transitional arrangements have been made B WZRHABNEERTET TR
where appropriate. For major impacts, please refer to the Group's B XEPEL2RAEEEHZE2013
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013. F12A31BIEMFERBERE °

3. Accounting year 3. SETHE
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December rEESAFERABABEFE 8
of each calendar year. This accounting period is from 1 January to FEH1ATBRE12A318IE - A g
30 June. FHEIEABE1A1BE6A30ALE °

4. Functional currency 4. ERAUE
The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in R B) 70 BR AN BN A Y 7K A B B S
preparing these interim financial statements were Renminbi. The MERFARANEEGAEARE - BA
amounts in these interim financial statements were denominated in FERIERBASN - SUARBE T RENR
Renminbi, unless otherwise stated. R o
The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the AR TBTFRAR AECEREE
Company may determine their own functional currencies based ¥ BEBEAKEMENFELHR
on the major economic environment in which they operate the BEITACHRIRAME - R
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional MARBITE S AR -

currencies shall be translated into RMB.
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B IRHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

5.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations

not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is a party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing
party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in
a business combination involving entities under common control
shall be measured at their carrying amounts at the combination
date as recorded by the party being absorbed. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or
the aggregate face value of shares issued as consideration) shall
be adjusted to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be
adjusted against retained earnings.

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating in
the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity participating
in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date refers to
the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the
acquiree.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

5.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control (Continued)

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their

fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of
the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, measured
at fair value, was recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently
measured at cost less cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair
value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the share of the attributable
net identifiable assets of the acquiree, a review of the measurement
of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, the consideration paid for the combination (or equity
securities issued) and the equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is conducted. If the review indicates that
the fair value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of the
share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the

difference is recognized in current profit or loss.

For a business combination involving enterprises not under common
control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously-
held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognized as investment income for the current period;
the amount recognized in other comprehensive income relating to
the previously-held equity interest in the acquiree is reclassified as

investment income for the current period.
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52 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B IRHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

6.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the half year ended 30 June 2014 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an enterprise or entity that is

controlled by the Company.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period and accounting policies as those
of the Company. When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are
different from those of the Company, the Company shall make
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based
on its own accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows resulting from intra-group

transactions are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share of
the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess

shall be allocated against minority interests.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair values of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized

on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which the
combination occurs. While preparing the comparative consolidated
financial statements, adjustments are made to related items in
the financial statements for the prior period as if the reporting
entity established through combination has been existing since the

ultimate controller begins to exercise control.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

6.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
The Group's control over an investee is re-assessed if change in
relevant facts and situations causes changes in one or more of the

control substances.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation
The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions

occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition,
in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates.
At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. All the resulting differences on settlement and monetary
item translation are taken to profit or loss in the current period,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income based

on the nature of the non-monetary items.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

8.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and
expense items in the income statement are translated using the
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions
occur. The resulting foreign currency exchange differences in the
financial statement are recognized in other comprehensive income
and presented as a separate component of owners’ equity in the
balance sheet. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognized in the profit or loss for the current period. If
the disposal only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation,

the amount is recognized on a pro-rata basis.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item

in the cash flow statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial
asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets), i.e. writes off
the financial asset from the account and balance sheet, when the

following conditions are met:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have

expired;

(2)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial

asset.

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.
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56  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #isEEN H IR AR A T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the

date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and derivatives designated as effective
hedging instruments. A financial asset is recognized initially at fair
value. In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly charged to the profit
and loss of the current period; transaction costs relating to financial
assets of other categories are included in the amount initially

recognized.

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by

its category:
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial assets held for trading is the financial asset that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial asset is acquired
for the purpose of selling it in a short term; the financial asset is
a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial asset is a derivative, except for
a derivative that is designated as an effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity investment
(without a quoted price from an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial assets, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial assets are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. Dividend income or interest
income related to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is

charged to profit or loss for the current period.

A financial asset is designated on initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss only when it meets one of the following

conditions:

(1)  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring

the financial instruments on different bases.

(2) agroup of financial instruments is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported on that basis to the
Group's key management personnel, according to formal
documentation regarding risk management or investment

strategy.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(3) a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument;
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s)

from the relevant hybrid instrument shall be prohibited.

(4)  a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent

balance sheet date.

Investments in equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably
measured shall not be designated as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

Financial assets on initial recognition classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified into financial
assets of other categories; financial assets of other categories
cannot be reclassified into financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss, either.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date
that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment and derecognition are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment are recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial
assets that are on initial recognition designated as available for sale
or are not classified as any of the aforesaid categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. The discount/premium is amortized using effective interest
method and recognized as interest income or expense. Changes in
the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized
as other comprehensive income in capital reserve, except for
impairment losses and exchange differences resulted from
monetary financial assets, until the financial asset is derecognized or
determined to be impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or
loss is transferred to profit or loss for the current period. Dividends
or interest income relating to an available-for-sale financial asset are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Investments in equity investments, which do not have quoted
prices in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured, are measured at cost.

The Group’s financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, and transaction costs relating to other

financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability is determined

by its category:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial liability held for trading is the financial liability that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial liability is assumed for
the purpose of repurchasing it in a short term; the financial liability
is a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial liability is a derivative, except
for a derivative that is designated as effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity investment
(without a quoted price from an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial liabilities, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial liabilities are recognized

in profit or loss for the current period.

A financial liability is designated on initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss only when it meets one of the following

conditions:

(1)  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring

the financial instruments on different bases.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(2) agroup of financial instruments is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported to the Group’s key
management personnel, according to formal documentation

regarding risk management or investment strategy.

(3) a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument;
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s)

from the relevant hybrid instrument shall be prohibited.

(4)  a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent

balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities on initial recognition classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified
into financial liabilities of other categories; financial liabilities of
other categories cannot be reclassified into financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss either.

Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, such kind of financial liabilities are

measured at amortized costs by using the effective interest method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to settle a debt or assume a liability to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair
value. For financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date; and the amount
initially recognized less the accumulated amortization determined

according to the principles of revenue recognition.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative. A financial derivative that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a
quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably

measured is measured at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to profit or loss for the current period, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in
other comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss

when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities for
which active markets exist are based on quoted prices in such
active markets. If an active market does not exist for a financial
instrument, the Group determines its fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include making reference to pries adopted in
recent arm’s length transactions among well-informed and willing
parties, prevailing fair value of other financial instruments which are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option

pricing models etc.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date the carrying amount
of every financial asset. If there is objective evidence indicating
a financial asset may be impaired, a provision is provided for the
impairment. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired is
one or more events that occur after the initial recognition of the
asset and have an impact (which can be reliably estimated) on the

expected future cash flows of the financial asset.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If an impairment on a financial asset has incurred, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to the present value of expected
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) and such reduction is taken to profit or loss for the
current period. The present value of expected future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
effective interest rate computed on initial recognition) and includes
the value of any related collateral. Where floating interest rate is
adopted, the discount rate for determining the present value of
future cash flow shall be equal to the prevailing effective rate which

is contractually stipulated.
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64 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B IRHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the asset is
individually assessed for impairment, and the amount of impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss for the current period if there is
objective evidence of impairment. For a financial asset that is not
individually significant, it is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
impairment. If no impairment incurs for an individually assessed
financial asset (whether the financial asset is individually significant
or not individually significant), it is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is individually
recognized is not included in a group of financial assets with similar

credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.

If, subsequent to the Group's recognition of an impairment loss
on a financial asset carried at amortized cost, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial asset and the
recovery can be related to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed and recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
However, the reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment loss not been recognized at the date the

impairment is reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, the accumulated loss arising from decline in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed
and recognized in profit or loss. The accumulated loss that removed
from other comprehensive income is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Objective evidence indicating that available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired include significant or prolonged decline in
fair value. Judgments shall be made in distinguishing “significant”

and “prolonged”. “Significant” is judged by the extent of fair value

below its cost and “prolonged” is judged by the length of period
where fair value falls below its cost. The impairment loss on an
available-for-sale equity investment is not reversed through profit or
loss, and any increase of fair value that occurs after the impairment is

recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on an available-
for-sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the original impairment loss
was recognized, the original impairment loss is reversed with the
amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss for the current

period.
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66  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B IRHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that such a financial asset is impaired,
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value
of expected future cash flows which are discounted at the current
market yield rate of similar financial assets is recognized as an
impairment loss in profit or loss for the current period. Once an

impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed.

For a long-term equity investment which is not quoted in an active
market and for which the fair value cannot be reliably measured,
any impairment is accounted for in accordance with the above

principles.

Transfer of Financial Assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee, the Group
derecognizes the financial asset; if the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group

does not derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for
as follows: (i) if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes
the financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities;
(i) if the Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the

transferred financial asset and recognizes the relevant liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)
10. Receivables

(1)

Receivables Which Are Individually Significant and
for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized
Separately

In judging receivables which are individually significant,
the Group takes into account accounts receivables and
other receivables due from individual customers, risks
specific to particular customers, risks specific to particular
countries, interest on long-term receivables and the extent of
guaranteed portion of receivables etc. Receivables which are
individually significant are tested for impairment individually.
When objective evidence indicates that the receivable has
been impaired, bad debt provision is made based on the
shortfall of the present value of future cash flow as compared
to its carrying amount, and is charged to profit and loss for

the current period.

Receivables for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is
Recognized by Group

For receivables which have not undergone individual
assessment, provision for bad debt is recognized by grouping
the receivables based on their credit risk features. Other than
receivables for which provision for bad debt is recognized
separately, bad debt provision is made according to the
actual loss ratio of the same or similar receivable groups or
receivable groups with similar credit risk features, with due

regard to the current situation make provision for bad debts.

If objective evidence shows a recovery in value of the
receivables, the original bad debt provision can be reversed

and carried through profit and loss in the current period.
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68  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B IRHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)
10. Receivables (Continued)

3)

Receivables Which Are Not Individually Significant
But Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized Separately
For receivables which are not individually significant but
objective evidence shows that the impairment has occurred,
bad debt provision will be made according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and its
carrying amounts and will be carried through profit and loss

for the current period.

If clear evidence indicates that the receivables are indeed
not recoverable, such as in case of cancellation, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the debtor or its serious cash flow problem,
then it is recognized as a bad debt and written off for bad

debt provision already made.

11. Inventories

Inventories include raw materials, materials in transit, work in

progress, finished goods, self made semi-finished goods and

turnover materials etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises

all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual

cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted

average method, first-in-first-out method or specific identification

method. Low value consumables are amortized by using immediate

write-off method.

The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

11.

12.

Inventories (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher
than the net realizable value, a provision for decline in value of
inventories is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If
factors that previously resulted in the provision for decline in value
of inventories no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is
higher than the carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is
reversed. The reversal is limited to the amount originally provided
for the decline in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments include equity investments in
subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates, and equity
investments where the Group does not have control, joint control
or significant influence over the investees and where there is no
quoted price from an active market and the fair value cannot be

reliably measured.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6H30H (A R#oT)
II. Significant accounting policies and —o B BOR R/ EH AL
accounting estimates (Continued) (74)

12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. REIRERE (&)

A long-term equity investment is initially recorded at its initial
investment cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment,
the initial investment cost is determined as follows: for a business
combination involving entities under common control, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment is the carrying
value of the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s equity of the
party being absorbed on the consolidated financial statements
of the ultimate controller; for a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the initial investment cost of
the long-term equity investment is the cost of combination (For a
business combination not involving entities under common control
achieved in stages that involves multiple transactions, the initial
investment cost is carried at the aggregate of the carrying amount
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
before the acquisition date and the new investment cost incurred
on the acquisition date.). The cost of combination is the aggregate
of the fair values of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity securities issued by the acquirer. Other comprehensive
income recognized as a result of equity accounting and held prior
to the acquisition date is accounted for on the same basis as where
the assets or liabilities are directly disposed of by the investee in
disposing of such assets or liabilities. Accumulated fair value change
on equity investments which are included in other comprehensive
income as financial instruments and held prior to the acquisition
date is transferred to profit or loss under cost accounting. For a
long-term equity investment acquired otherwise than through a
business combination, the initial investment cost is determined
as follows: for a long-term equity investment acquired by paying
cash, the initial investment cost is the actual purchase price paid
and those costs, taxes and other necessary expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisition of the long-term equity investment;
for a long-term equity investment acquired by the issue of equity
securities, the initial investment cost is the fair value of the equity

securities issued.

For a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in the
Company’s financial statements. Control refers to the power over
an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

RHIBREREERGE LG REK
AETIIRETE - BBR — 126 T H
EEAGERISHRBAKRERE - AR
BWA G T A E RS ERKIERT
BHMBHRERTOREEEN D REE
BUBGRERA - BBIER—ZEHT
BBEEHEGH - AAHRAER
NERERR(BBZ ARSI HE
BIER—ZH THOEREHN - UE
BRZAFAFKRBEE TWBERER
EEEERBERAMERERAZM
ERIBIRERAE) - EHRAEE
BEANEMEE  BHESAENE
& BOOEZEESNALEEZ
M BERZAFANERBEDE
TZEMERNEMEARE  ERE
ZERERRAERREENERR
ENMAEEXABRMERNERETE
ARE BERAZARKENERERE
EREZB T A AREMERAS KGR
AR BEESHENRKAERER
WAEHELG - REXAHEKRHE
HAR IR ASNTT UBRAS B = B A
BE - mRTITEREVIEREK
A XNBRSMEN - UERITH
BEERLEARSRAREREER
HENER HehEMBEHE
RVBRE A + BT FE I
TR RBITEaMEEFNAAEE
TERVIIRIRE KA -

AR RS AR B B E SR IEH A
RHIBRERE - £A R E R M5 H
RPFARAERE - 6] - BI5HE
BHBEREDWES - BE2ERIR
BOWMERESMEAAZLR - I
HBERENERHERETNENTZE
Bl ke e



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. Other than consideration
actually paid upon obtaining investments or cash dividend or
profit declared but not yet distributed which are already included
in the consideration, the entitled cash dividend or profit declared
by the investee is recognized as investment income for the current
period, and any need for impairment of the long-term investment
is considered based on policies on impairment applicable to the

relevant assets.

The equity method is adopted for a long-term equity investment
when the Group holds joint control, or exercises significant
influence on the investee. Joint control refers to the contractually-
agreed shared control over an arrangement and related activities
under such arrangement shall be decided upon with the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of an entity but cannot control or jointly control with other parties

over the formulation of those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the excess is included in the initial investment cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing entity’s
interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit or loss for
the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity investment is

adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses and other comprehensive income made by the
investee as investment income or losses and other comprehensive
income after the acquisition of the long-term equity investments,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profits or
losses after making appropriate adjustments to the investee’s net
profits based on the fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, using the Group’s accounting policies and
periods, and eliminating the portion of the profits or losses arising
from internal transactions with its jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, attributable to the investing entity according to its
share ratio (but impairment losses for assets arising from internal
transactions shall be recognized in full). The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced accordingly based on the Group’s share of
any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by the investee.
The Group's share of net losses of the investee is recognized to the
extent the carrying amount of the investment together with any
long-term interests that in substance form part of its net investment
in the investee is reduced to zero, except that the Group has
incurred obligations to assume additional losses. The Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment for any
changes in owners’ equity of the investee (other than net profits
or losses, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) and
includes the corresponding adjustments in the shareholders’ equity.

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference
between the proceeds actually received and carrying amount is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. For a long-term
equity investment accounted for using the equity method, the
amount originally included in the shareholders’ equity is transferred
to profit or loss for the current period on a pro-rata basis according
to the proportion disposed of.

For long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled
enterprises and associates, refer to Item 26 under Note Il for the
test for impairment and recognition of provision for impairment. For
other long-term equity investments which have no quoted market
prices in active markets and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, refer to Item 9 under Note Il for the test for impairment

and recognition of provision for impairment.
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II. Significant accounting policies and Zo OB G BOR | s Ah
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)
13. Investment property 13. REMEME

Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on

the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:

KREMFEHE =REARDESLE
AEE IMERAEMBAENEL
EBRcdEntERE Bl
e EEY) -

REUEFMERBRANETNGR
B -HREUFMEBEBAMNEEX
Ho REZEEFBNCENER
AIREMA B ERK AL ] ST &
AFF AREMFEHERA - BRI - ©
AR R AE B8 -

AEERARARAHREEFE
BTRESE  ERERSHARA
BAVERTIRITE S - DR ¢

Project Expected useful life (years)
HHE EEHERASE®(F)
Land use rights + 35 A A 48.5-50 yearsfF
Houses and buildings EEREEY 14.5-30 years*F

For an investment property that is subsequently measured using
the cost model, refer to Item 26 under Note Il for the test for

impairment and recognition of provision for impairment.
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II. Significant accounting policies and RN (L g T i A W e
accounting estimates (Continued) (74)
14. Fixed assets 14. BEEE
A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits BErEERTHEABANCENRR
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the AREMARER - BERAGEHA S

WHERS TURR - HEFTEESR
BEOERES L  FEZmEREER -
FFABRTEEERA - WK IEEREE
BREIEHHREEE: T REER
STASHIER o

cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in
profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.

BEEEERBRAETIAGE - 18
BEERETEENKARIEEEER - 8
BIRE  URARFGETEEEIEE
A{ERRERATEENTTEERBR
ZIEEEMAMIE o BREMARIA
ZEHEEBRKOETEE  ZRE

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising
from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve
offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts

of accumulated depreciation recognized; and certain equipment
of the parent company, and machinery and equipment of certain
subsidiaries namely Weichai America Corp., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co.,
Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd.,
for which double-declining balance method is used for depreciation,
the straight line method is adopted for the depreciation of other
fixed assets.

The original estimated useful lives, net residual value rates and
annual depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows:

BEEEENKA AR FIEGE I
ﬁwﬁﬂﬁﬁmiﬁﬁ& M&!
RlE D RE - FA E YN
Wﬁii%ﬁfﬁ@ **aﬁ&i
FEBERARRARETRHARES
BERAAMEERETERAER
MEBERE 2N HthE T EENE
HERAEHE ©

X*ﬁliﬁﬁé’\]ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂiﬁﬂéﬁ s
BEXRFHEXITAT :

Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
[tem (years) value rate (%) rate (%)
TaEtE A TRt R FINEX
1HAE () BEE(%) (%)
Land use rights T4 ET A A Indefinite & HARR 0 0
Houses and buildings B EMEEY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00
Machinery and equipment e 22 R 1 3-15 0-5 6.33-23.75
Vehicles FEHT A 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00
Electronic equipment BFEE 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Other equipment Hh 3% 45 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment THEE X EREE(RE)
leased out (long-term) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment FAHAXEREE(ER)
leased out (short-term) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
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14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BIE&EE (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term)

If the risks and rewards of the leased assets remains with the
company as the lessor under an operating lease, the assets are
reported as a separate item in the balance sheet and, being
measured at cost and are depreciated. To fund leases, industrial
trucks are generally sold to leasing companies. The industrial trucks
are then leased back to companies in the KION GROUP AG (head
lease), who sub-lease them to external end customers (described
below as “sale and leaseback sub-leases”). These long-term leases
generally have a term of four to five years. If, in the case of sale
and leaseback sub-leases, the risks and rewards incidental to the
head lease are substantially borne by KION GROUP AG and are
not transferred to the end customers, the corresponding assets are
reported as forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term)
under fixed assets. However, if substantially the risks and rewards
incidental to the head lease are transferred to the end customers,
a corresponding lease receivable is recognized. In both cases, the
funding items for these long-term customer leases, which are
funded for terms that match those of the leases, are recognized as

lease liabilities.

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) are assets
resulting from short-term rentals as well as industrial trucks in
relation to which significant risks and rewards remain with the KION
GROUP AG despite the trucks having been sold (“sale with risk”).

In the case of short-term rentals, Linde Material Handling Ltd
("LMH") and STILL Materials Handling Ltd (“STILL") under KION
GROUP AG, a subsidiary group under the Company rent industrial
trucks to customers directly. Short-term rental agreements usually
have a term of one day to one year. The significant risks and
rewards remain with the aforesaid companies. The industrial trucks
are carried at cost and depreciated over the normal useful life,

depending on the product group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
(Continued)

In an indirect leasing arrangement, industrial trucks are sold to
finance partners who then enter into leases with end customers.
If LMH and STILL provide material residual value guarantees or a
customer default guarantee (”sale with risk”), these transactions,
which are classified as sale agreements under civil law, are
recognized in accordance with the provisions on lessors with
operating leases in conjunction with the revenue recognition. In
this case, the trucks are recognized as assets in the balance sheet
at their cost on the date of the sale and written down to their
guaranteed residual value, or zero, on a straight-line basis over
the period until the customer default guarantee expires. If the
KION GROUP AG provides a residual value guarantee, an amount
equivalent to the residual value obligation is recognized under

financial liabilities.

For fixed assets leased under finance lease, depreciation for leased
assets is provided for using policy similar to that applied to self-
owned fixed assets. When it can be reasonably determined that the
ownership of a leased asset will be obtained at the end of the lease
term, it is depreciated over the period of expected use; otherwise,
the lease asset is depreciated over the shorter period of the lease

term and the period of expected use.

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for

impairment related to a fixed asset, refer to ltem 26 under Note II.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

15.

16.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant

expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset

is ready for its intended use.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
impairment related to a construction in progress, refer to Iltem 26

under Note II.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

16. Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset are being incurred,;

(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds before
being used on the asset or any investment income on the
temporary investment of those funds.

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined
by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure
on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose
borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is
resumed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

17. Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets

and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the

Group.

The original useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
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Useful life

EASES

Technology know-how =B i 3-20 years
3-20%F

Land use rights T Hb (5 AR 30-50 years
30-504F

Computer software ETE R 2-10 years
2-10%F

License R A 3-15 years
3-15%F

Orders on hand EFITE 1-25 years
1-25%F

Customer relationship BHEME 2-17 years
2-174F

Intangible assets arising from in-house N EBEA B TR T & 5-7 years
research and development 5-74F
Others Hih 3-10 years
3-104F

Trademark rights R 5 A indefinite

THEE
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II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acquired
are allocated between the land use rights and the buildings; if
they cannot be reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and

buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes

adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for
in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful

life stated above.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

17.

18.

Intangible assets (Continued)

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure on the research phase and
expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when
the Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (ii) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (i) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure in
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is

recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
impairment related to an intangible asset, refer to Item 26 under
Note II.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method with amortization period as follows:
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A RB#or)

II. Significant accounting policies and RN (L g T i A W e
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)

19. Provisions 19. EETEE

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations, the Group recognizes an
obligation related to a contingency as a provision when all of the

following conditions are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and (ji)
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

20.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value
of equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which
are vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant
costs or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the
capital reserve is credited accordingly. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions
have been fulfilled, and etc. For the fair value of equity instruments,

see Note VII. Share-based payment.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve, over the period in which
the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate

of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that

all other non-market conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A RB#or)
II. Significant accounting policies and RN (L g T i A W e
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)

20. Share-based payments (Continued) 20. R (8E&E)

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the
instrument ranted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. Initial measurement is based on fair value as at the date of
grant, and reference is made to the terms and conditions attached
to the equity instruments. Refer to Note VII. Share-based Payment.
If the right may be exercised immediately after the grant, the fair
value of the liability undertaken by the enterprise shall, on the date
of the grant, be included in the relevant costs or expenses, and
the liabilities shall be increased accordingly. If the right may not
be exercised until the vesting period comes to an end or until the
specified performance conditions are met, on each balance sheet
date within the vesting period, the services obtained in the current
period shall, based on the best estimate of the information about
the exercisable right, be included in the relevant costs or expenses
at the fair value of the liability undertaken by the enterprise, and the
liabilities shall be increased accordingly. On each balance sheet date
prior to settlement of the relevant liabilities and on the settlement
date, the fair value of the liability is re-measured and any change of

fair value is taken to profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

21.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group, its amount can be

measured reliably, and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue From the Sales of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold; and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue arising from the
sale of goods is determined in accordance with the consideration
received or receivable from the buyer under contract or agreement,
except where the consideration received or receivable under
contract or agreement is not fair. Where the consideration
receivable under contract or agreement is deferred, such that the
arrangement is in substance of a financing nature, the amount of
revenue arising on the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of

the consideration receivable under contract or agreement .

Revenue From the Rendering of Services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet date, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognized using the percentage
of completion method, or otherwise, the revenue is recognized to
the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable.
The outcome of a transaction involving rendering of services can be
estimated reliably when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group; the
stage of completion of the transaction can be measured reliably;
the costs incurred and to be incurred for the transaction can be
measured reliably. The Group determines the stage of completion
of a transaction involving the rendering of services by using the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs.
The total service revenue on a transaction involving rendering of
services is determined in accordance with the consideration received
or receivable from the recipient of services under contract or
agreement, except where the consideration received or receivable

under contract or agreement is not fair.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

21.

22.

Revenue

Interest Income

It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group's cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the
effective interest rate.

Royalty Income
It is determined according to period and method of charging as
stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.

Lease Income

Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or
loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured
at the amount received or receivable. If a government grant is in
the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at
fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is measured at
a nominal amount. Government grants for purchasing, building or
forming long-term assets in other methods regulated in government
documents are recognized as government grants related to assets.
Judgments should be made based on the necessary basic conditions
for obtaining the government grants when government documents
are unclearly stated. Government grants with purchasing, building
or forming long-term assets in other methods as basic conditions,
are recognized as government grants related to assets, whereas
the rest as government grants related to income. A government
grant related to income is accounted for as follows: (a) if the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses to be incurred in
subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income,
and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the related
costs are recognized; (b) if the grant is a compensation for related
expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized immediately in
profit or loss for the current period. A government grant related
to an asset shall be recognized as deferred income, and evenly
amortized to profit or loss for the current period over the useful life
of the related asset. However, a government grant measured at a
nominal amount is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the
current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

23.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises from
a business combination or relates to a transaction or event which is

recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

(1) where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (i) at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

(2) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.
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II. Significant accounting policies and RN (L g T i A W e
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)

23. Income tax (Continued) 23. FRBH (&)

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years
and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

(1) where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

(2)  in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized in the future.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

23.

24,

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

In the Case of the Lessee of an Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a lessee
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either included
in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of an Operating Lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)
24. Leases (Continued)

25.

In the Case of the Lessee of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased in under
finance lease, the difference between the book value of the leased-
in asset, which is determined as the lower of the fair value of such
leased asset as at the commencement of lease term and the present
value of minimum lease payments, and the book value of long-term
payables, which is determined as the minimum lease payments, is
treated as unrecognized finance costs which is apportioned to the
leasing period using effective interest rate method. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they

actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased out under
finance lease, the book value of finance lease receivable is measured
at the sum of minimum lease receipts and initial direct costs, whilst
risk exposure shall be recorded simultaneously; and unrealized
finance income shall be measured at the difference between the
sum of minimum lease receipt, initial direct costs and risk exposure,
and its present value. These are recognized using effective interest
rate method during the leasing period. Contingent rents are

charged to profit or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Hedge accounting
For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group adopts cash flow

hedging against interest rate risks and exchange rate risks.

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash
flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,

or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)

II. Significant accounting policies and S (N W L i L
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)
25. Hedge accounting (Continued) 25. EFEs (&)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument'’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were

designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are

accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income, while the

ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are transferred
to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or
loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is

recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised
(with the expiry of rollover of the hedging strategic component
or unfulfilled replacement or the termination of processing of the
contract), if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or if the hedge
no longer fulfills the accounting requirement of a hedge, the
amounts previously taken to other comprehensive income remain in
other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm

commitment occurs or is fulfilled in actual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

26. Impairment of assets
The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets
and long-term equity investments, which are accounted for using
the cost method and have no quoted market prices in active
markets, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, using

the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

26.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be reversed

in subsequent accounting periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W B ¥ 2 BT 5E (48

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

II. Significant accounting policies and S (g W i L

accounting estimates (Continued) (%)
27. Payroll 27. B T H

Payroll are all forms of consideration or compensation given
by the Group for obtaining services rendered by employees or
for terminating working relationship. Payroll include short-term
remuneration, post-employment benefits, severance benefits and
other long-term staff benefits. The benefits provided to spouses,
children, persons receiving maintenance, widows or widowers of

deceased staff and other beneficiaries are also included in payroll.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan)

The employees of the Group participate in pension insurance
administered by local governments. The relevant expenditure is
recognized, when incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the

profit and loss for the current period.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)

The Group operates defined benefit pension plans, under which
contributions shall be made to a separately-administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit pension plan is

determined using the projected unit credit method.

Any re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension
plan, including actuarial gains and losses, change to the effect on
maximum assets (net of amounts included under net interest) and
return on assets under the plan (net of amount included under net
interest), are recognized immediately in balance sheet, and included
as incurred in owners’ equity through other comprehensive income.

No reversal to profit or loss will be made in subsequent periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

27.

28.

Payroll (Continued)

Previous service costs are recognized as expenses for the current
period on the earlier of the following dates: when amendments are
made to the defined benefit plan; or when the Group recognizes

the relevant reorganization costs or severance benefits.

Severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its employees,
payroll payable arising from such severance benefits are recognized
on the earlier of the following dates and included in profit or loss
for the current period: when the company is unable to unilaterally
withdraw the severance benefits provided under its plan to
terminate working relationship with employees or redundancy plan;
or when the company recognizes costs or expenses relating to

reorganization involving the payment of severance benefits.

Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities or net assets
under the defined benefit plan with the discount rate. Changes in
the net obligations under the defined benefit plan are recognized
under cost of sales and general and administrative expenses in
the income statement. Costs of services include costs of services
for the current period, costs of services for previous periods, and
gains or losses on settlement. Net interest includes interest income
accrued upon assets under the plan, interest expenses incurred
due to obligations under the plan, and interest under the effect of

maximum assets.

Profit appropriation and distribution
The annual cash dividend of the Company is recognized as a liability

after being approved in the general meeting.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A RB#or)
II. Significant accounting policies and Zo OB G BOR M| R Ah
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)
29. Debt restructuring 29. EREA
A debt restructuring is an event in which a debtor is in financial BEBEHR BRIETEBAZTENHR
difficulty and a creditor grants a concession to the debtor in HOBRAT EREARBEEEGESA

accordance with a mutual agreement or a court judgment.

As a Debtor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the
difference between the carrying amount of the debt and the cash
actually paid is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
When a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-cash asset(s) to the
creditor in a debt restructuring, the difference between the carrying
amount of the debt and the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
transferred is recognized in profit or loss for the current period;
the difference between the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
transferred and their carrying amount was recognized in profit or
loss for the current period. When a debt is converted into capital in
a debt restructuring, the difference between the carrying amount
of the debt and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. When other terms
of the debt is modified, the difference between the carrying amount
of the debt under restructuring and the sum of the fair value of the
debt subsequent to the modification of other terms of the debt and
the provisions recognized in respect of amounts payable, shall be
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. When a debt is
satisfied by a combination of the methods mentioned above, the
carrying amount of the debt is reduced by, and in the sequence of,
the cash payment, the fair value of the non-cash asset(s) transferred
and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor, and then
accounted for in accordance with the requirements related to a
debt restructuring that involves the modification of other terms of a
debt.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

29.

30.

Debt restructuring (Continued)

As a Creditor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the
difference between the gross carrying amount of the debt
receivable and the cash received is recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. When a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-
cash asset(s) in a debt restructuring, the difference between the
gross carrying amount of the debt receivable and the fair value
of the non-cash asset(s) received is recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. When a debt is converted into capital in a debt
restructuring, the difference between the gross carrying amount
of the debt and the fair value of the equity interest received is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. When other
terms of the debt is modified, the difference between the gross
carrying amount of the debt receivable under restructuring and the
fair value of the debt receivable subsequent to the modification of
other terms of the debt, shall be recognized in profit or loss for the
current period. When a debt is satisfied by a combination of the
methods mentioned above, the gross carrying amount of the debt
is reduced by, and in the sequence of, the cash received, the fair
value of the non-cash asset(s) obtained and the fair value of the
equity interest received, and then accounted for in accordance with
the requirements related to a debt restructuring that involves the

modification of other terms of a debt.

If the creditor has provided for impairment loss on the debt
receivable, the above difference is used to reduce the impairment
provision and any excess is recognized in profit or loss for the

current period.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise
significant influence over another party, they are regarded as related
parties. Two or more parties are also regarded as related parties if

they are subject to control or joint control from the same party.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

31.

32.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3) the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

33.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and listed
equity investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group
at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs only under
the circumstances where such relevant observable inputs cannot be

obtained or practicably obtained.

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

SR 5 i 3R B 5 (48
20146 H30H (A R#T)
=~ o B EF R 0 ' ET AR B
(748)
33. ARAEEE

AEEREBREEEABRAUARE
BHHETESRIAMEMOERT
BiE - RRhfEE REME2HEE
T EABENBFR ST HE—
BAEMEREIEER —HEaERH
BRAMER  c AEEURAREAEG
EHHEENBE BRETLEEENK
EERABNBEFRHTEREEEL
BEMNEEMBET FTEEZED
HH AEEREZRHERBEEE
LEENRANTSET  FEmMS
(BT RAEEETE A
HEANRZ MG - AEBERATIS
SHETHZEEXBBETERAE
WELENZZEACATERORE -

\ﬁé%%ﬂ i%%mé?ﬁ
REAZRNEMTISZS

B
3
77;
]

AEERAEENBEATERALAR

AR A BE M {5 B
BERN - BLERBBEIBRRBA

B REEJERG ABEEZRGK
BRETERITHERT - A FEAT
T&ﬁuﬁiﬁﬂ)\{ﬁ

99



100 weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B IRHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

33.

34.

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 —
based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date; Level 2 — based on inputs other than inputs within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3 — based on input for the asset or liability that is not based

on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group re-assess
them at each balance sheet date to determine whether transfers

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments and estimates that will affect the reported
amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance sheet
date. However, uncertainty about these estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)
II. Significant accounting policies and Zo OB G BOR | s Ah
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)
34. Significant accounting judgments and 34. EAXEFTHERFM A (E)
estimates (Continued)
Judgments (Continued) #Er (48)
Confirmation of Functional Currency AR AU BB E

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing its
functional currency, multiple factors are taken into consideration
to recognize the major economic environment of their operating
locations. Under circumstances with multiple factors and no obvious
functional currency, the Group uses judgment to confirm its
functional currency. Such judgment is the best to reflect economic
influence of the underlying transactions, events and environment.
Unless there appear material changes in the major economic
environment relating to the recognition of functional currency, once
the functional currency is recognized, it would not change.

Finance lease — in the case of the lessor

Leases where all risks and rewards relating to the ownership of the
assets are substantially transferred are referred to as finance leases.
The Group does not retain all substantial risks and rewards of the
ownership of these leased assets, and thus they are regarded as
finance leases.
Operating lease — in the case of the lessor

The Group has entered into leasing contracts for its investment
properties. The Group is of the opinion that, according to the terms
of such leasing contracts, the Group has retained all material risks
and returns of ownership of these properties and therefore they are

accounted for as operating lease.

Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting

periods, are discussed below.
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II. Significant accounting policies and Zo OB G BOR M| R Ah
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)
34. Significant accounting judgments and 34. EXEFTHEF A (E)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks

The Group determines whether goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the asset group to
which goodwill and trademarks are allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset group and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.

Defined benefit plans

The management of the Group recognizes defined benefit plans
liabilities based on calculating model of the present value of the
defined benefit liabilities less fair value of the planned assets. The
present value of defined benefit liabilities comprises of various
assumptions, including term of benefits and discount rate.
Inconsistency between the future events and such assumptions may
subject the defined benefit plans liabilities on the balance sheet

date to material adjustment.

Fair value

Fair value of derivatives as at the balance sheet date is calculated by
the management of the Group based on models. Such calculation is
on the basis of some assumptions. Carrying value of derivatives may

differ significantly if future events deviate from such assumptions.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale financial
assets and directly recognizes movements of their fair values in
shareholders’ equity. When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether
there is an impairment loss that shall be recognized in the income

statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets
(other than goodwill and trademark with uncertain lifetime)

The Group assesses whether there are any indication of impairment
for all non-current assets other than financial assets at the balance
sheet date. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such indication
exists. Other non-current assets other than financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indication that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group is higher than its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the net of its fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from it), it
is indicated that such asset or asset group is impaired. The net of
the fair value less costs to sell is determined with reference to the
price in sales agreement or observable market price of similar assets
in arm’s length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs that
would be directly attributable to the disposal of the asset or asset
group. When calculating the present value of expected future cash
flows from an asset or asset group, the management shall estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or asset group and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those future cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.

HET A HEEM (&)
BemEEZININIETEEERE
(B ETEFNE A Em THEEBIEIES))
REEREEBERBYReNEE
ZONBERBEEABTRTFER
BEEERENTR - HERASHTE
i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁw
AN EEGEREDRE - i
BRI o }iﬁﬂ&%ﬂzﬁﬂéiéézz9hE@3E
RBEE  BCCEHREAPEERS
BB - ETTRERNR - BE
EXEEANEEEESRAIKE S
B AAABEREEEBRENSF
BEMEARKE S RENBERHR
=& RABETRE - AR EER
FEEBRENTE 2ZRFERS
FREUEENHEBRERIATERR
BB WISER  REAFTEESZBNZ
BEERBRESKAETE - BEARRK
ReENERER  BEBNEMZ
BEAENEEMANTETRAREDR
B WEERENNBAXEERKR
SREHIHRE -

BEEFFHEE
FERF]BE A fE 50 8 40 15 T 15 58 A DA
RN E R 2 AR E R
BRRER - EFLATA M AR A H A HE
Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂgﬁﬁmﬁk
BHEE  EF2EEEEMRKE
%M%Wﬁﬁ%X@ FRATFAE ﬁ
E SRR A S5 - %é?ﬁ%ﬂ“‘giw
VAR E e HE SR B3R L AT 15 m%%m%



104  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRBD AR D T

WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48
201446 5308 (A R#T)

II. Significant accounting policies and Zo OB G BOR M| R Ah
accounting estimates (Continued) (%)
34. Significant accounting judgments and 34. EXEFTHEF A (E)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realizable values

Write-down of inventories to their net realizable values is based on
the saleability of the evaluated inventory and their net realizable
values. The management’s judgments and estimates are required
for determining inventory impairment on the basis of clear evidence,
purpose of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events
and other factors. The difference between the actual outcome and
original estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories and
provision and reversal of decline in value of inventories during the

estimated revision period.

Impairment of receivable

Impairment of receivable is based on the recoverability of assessed
receivable. The management’s judgments and estimates are
required for determining impairment of receivable. The difference
between the actual outcome and original estimate will affect the
carrying amount of receivable and provision and reversal of bad

debts of receivable during the estimated revision period.

Recognition of provision

The Group uses contract terms, existing knowledge and historical
experience, to estimate and recognize the provision for product
quality assurance. On condition that such contingent matters have
formed a present obligation and the discharge of which is probable
to give rise to an outflow of the Group’s economic benefits, the

Group recognizes the best estimate.

Estimated useful lives of fixed assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets at least
once at the end of the year. Estimated useful lives are determined
by the management based on historical experience of similar
assets and expected technological advancement. Corresponding
adjustment to depreciation expenses for future periods will be made

in case of substantial changes in previous estimates.
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)
III. Taxation = FiIE
1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. EEBHERBRE

rates

Value-added tax (VAT)

- Output VAT is calculated by applying 17% to the taxable

B E T income for normal taxpayers, but the Group may pay
it after deducting deductible input VAT for the current

period.

—RATARETM AR 7%t H AT - WIRHBRE A
FHEHRE R B W Z R BUEER -

Business tax — It is calculated by applying 5% to the taxable income.
EEB REBM A %t BUEZER -

City maintenance and construction tax — Itis levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes
Wl T A R R R TR paid.

RERBARRERET % 5%

Education surcharge — Itis levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.
B BK N RERBME) RT3 % T8 -

Corporate income tax — Itis levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit. For
EMFH oversea subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate

of the countries or regions in which the subsidiaries

operate.

PEMSRIRERTTISEMN15%325% T8 < BINF R A
REMEBER - HEeEEREFTH -

Tax benefits and official approval

Value-added tax

In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from Value-
added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-purpose
Military Vehicles ( BIRE AR BEH2EUISERIEET B
40) ) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the sale
of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed police by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, is

exempted from value-added tax.

Corporate Income Tax

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008 and became entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15% for the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2010. The Company passed the review on high-tech enterprise and
is therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits and official approval (Continued)
Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine
Co., Ltd. (A%B) NGNS h AR EE 2 7)), Shanghai He Da
Auto Accessory Co., Ltd. (b/8METEARFAERRAF),Zhuzhou
Gear Co., Ltd. (FkiM %R B R & L2 7)), Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs
Co., Ltd. (BRI AE ANTEEBREE AR and Zhuzhou Euro
Grace Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd (RNEUHE I {EEhA%
7 AEBR 2 a]) have also been recognized as high-tech enterprises.
These subsidiaries passed the review on high-tech enterprise and
are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of
15% from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. was recognized as a high-tech
enterprise and is therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income
tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014.

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. was recognized
as a high-tech enterprise and is therefore entitled to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2015.

Other than Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. and Weichai Power
(Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd., the high-tech enterprise
certificates granted to the aforesaid companies already expired on
31 December 2013. As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, those subsidiaries were undergoing review on the
status of high-tech enterprises. Self-assessment conducted by the
management concerning the qualification of those entities as high-
tech enterprises have been completed, with the conclusion that it is
quite probable that high-tech enterprise status will be obtained by
those entities. It followed that the 15% tax rate was still adopted in

the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits and official approval (Continued)
Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) ( (BERARAE HE PR A0 AR 2 8 A BT BCR B AR AL )
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, as well as
the approval of relevant authorities, the following companies have

implemented preferential tax policy for the Western Development:

- Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. has received the approval of
Shaan Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (Bt ki S 7E
R 1K) No. (2014) 62 on 26 March 2014 and the company
has passed the examination of 2013 Taxation Filing, and it is
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy in
2014;

- Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. has received the approval
of Shaan Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (3% 2 = 3 7
LK) No. (2014) 218 on 16 April 2014 and at the same time,
received the approval of taxation filing, and shall proceed
the implementation of preferential tax policy for the Western
Development during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2020;

- Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
and Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. have received the approval of
Shaan Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (2% oA E 2172
4) No. (2014) 024 on 12 May 2014 and the companies have
passed the examination of 2013 Taxation Filing, and they are
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy in
2014.
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation (Continued)

3.

Major categories of taxes and respective tax
rates applicable to major overseas subsidiaries
Income tax

The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income
tax primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group
are set out below:

Basis of computation Applicable country

WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

= B ()

3.

BOAFTBEFRAAETEHRE
PTG HE
AEERIETRTFAREIEEMAND
XAAGHABR KR ERB RN N
T

Jan to June 2014

K HARR 2014%1-6 A
Amount of taxable income Germany
e P15 5E e 30%

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws

and regulations in force in the respective countries.

Value-added taxes
The basis of computation and applicable rate of value-added tax
primarily applicable to overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out

below:

HBEKAEHREEEREEMREE
eV

s E B
AEBEFIFARETZERNEED
SRR RERBERFIRNT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
S ERER B
Amount of taxable added value Germany

JEATIGERE = 19%

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax

laws and regulations in force in the respective countries.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial
Statements
1. Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

presented as follows:
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1. FRAEER
ARANBETAANERMT :

Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FREEY iRk EAMCR BHE ifex S2EE AERERE
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BRRUAREEAARENTA
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) limited liability Shandong Zhang Quan Trading Industry 89,795,918.00  Sale of diesel engines/diesel engines accessories  78076858-9
Spare Part Resources company  LIE ER BEE and working parts/components and dedicated
Co, Ltd. EREMLT diesel of
BaN(E)BneR B Ve S T
ERAA TN RERBANHE
0} Weichai Power (Weifang) limited liability Shandong Ren Xingwu Manufacturing 460,150,000.00  Manufacture and sale of grey iron, ductile iron ~ 78926896-X
Casting Co, Ltd. company  LIE TR Industry casting; manufacture, sale, hot treatment and
BXYN(ED)ERER  EREELA bt leansing of casting and stamping parts
A7 & RESHRE  HE
B BEMRE HER
B Shaanxi Wuhai Special limited liability Inner Mongolia  Hao Xiaogian ~ Manufacturing 228,000,000.00  Research and development, production, 56691594-7
Vehicles Co,, Ltd. company ~ AEH PEE Industry sale and senvicing of natural gas heavy-duty
RAGEEMAEAR  ARALLF g trucks and special vehicles
Rl AREFHEREHE -
EE HE BE
@ Weichai Power (Shanghal) ~limited liability Shanghai Zhang Fusheng ~ Manufacturing 340,000,000.00  Indlustrialization development, technical 69296887-1
Technology Development company L FRE Industry development, technical transfer,
Co, Ltd. BREFARA i technical consultation, technical services,
EEHN(LRRRER technical training, investment consultation
ERAR of transportation equipment, engineering
machinery, new energy,
hi-tech technology and product
SBEERE  TEER - FEk-
BHBMRERERRE  BFE
RiTEE  RiTAS - RORE-
GUEH R CER
() Weichai Power Yangzhou [imited liability Jiangsu Zhang Quan Manufacturing 400,000,000.00 Design, development, manufacture, saleand  69934189-5
Diesel Engine Co,, Ltd. company L& FR Industry after-sale services of engines and ancillary
ERYNANRARER  EREELA HiEx products; import and export of engines

G

and ancillary products, sale of automobile,
automobile accessories and lubricating ol;
warehousing service
ERRREERNRT  FE HE
HE EREBRE  ¥BER
REERMELOEH  AE-
FERERERROHE ARk
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial 4 ~& fif Bf %5 #it & W & OF 8

Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. ¥2aER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FRARE  Efs EARE B iftgs feEE ABKERR
6) Weichai Power (Chongging)  limited liability Chongging Lizhi Manufacturing 240,000,000.00  Industralization development and management, ~ 69394899-5
Western Development company  EE 38 Industry technical, investment and management
Co, Ltd. EREFAT g% consultation service of general perating
ExHN(ER) items, transportation equipment and
EHERARLA hi-techs technology and products

~REZER  RAEERE
BRRERNERLAZR
BE -5 RE - ERADHRS

0] Weichai Power (Beijing) [imited liability Beijing Wang Yong Project Investment 300,000,000.00  Project investment, investment management,  56368805-6
International Resource company LR 13 BR%A investment consultation; technica
Investment Co., Ltd. EREAAR development, technical transfer, technical
BLHN(ER) consultation, technical service; new energy
BRERREERAT technical raining; organize cultural-art

exchange (other than performance); sale
FARE RAER REHW:
BRE  REE - BE
RiRTS : SR
BETERTRORLRS) : 458

® Weichai Power (Luembourg)  limited liability Luxembourg Xu Xinyu Project Investment EUR100,000.00  Engaging in founding, developing, managing ~ N/A
Holding Sar. company  EFE B BERE E172100,000.00  and controlling of any company or enterprise. 7R
#5297 (ERE) BREEAR Investment acquisition and management of
BRERAA patents or other intellectual property of any
other nature or sources

SHER RY  EENEHERAR
% RERENERSHL
EfEREERRRN AREEEN

9 Linde Hydraulics GmbH & limited Germany Sun Shaojun ~ Investment EUR25,000.00  Investment management /A
Co.KG(LP) partnership {2 %)E management 2500000 REAER N
HEREAR ERaBLL REER
ABEX()

Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control

FA-HTLEANBEHZ0A

(10) Shandong Huadong limited liability Shandong Zhang Chuanghai -~ Manufacturing 450,150,000.00  Manufacture and sale of machine accessories, ~ 66674302-X
Casting Co,, Ltd. company W% FER Industry diesel engines and ancillary products, farming
WEEHFEFRAA BREMAH SR machines and engineering machines; import
and export of goods, import and export of
technology

BHEE  LBRREEER  BEER .
TRERNZE B& R0
R0



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Type of Place of Legal Nature of
subsidiary ~ registration representative  business

EROLTE L EARR EHHE

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

S5 R T (A

2014465308 (A R#T)
M -5 OF B 85 ok B A OF 6 E
(%)
1. FRAERE)
Registered Organization
capital  Scope of business code
iftEs feEE AEKERE

(1) Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor ~ limited liability Shaanxi TanXuguang ~ Manufacturing
Co, Ltd. company  RE Elliy Industry
REEHAEERAA EREFAT HiEx
(12) Shaanxi Hande Axle limited liability Shaanxi FangHongwei  Manufacturing
(o, ltd. company  RRE FiLE Industry
REZEERARAT  ARELAR b3
(13) Shaanxi Jinding Casting limited liability Shaanxi Wang Xiaofeng ~ Manufacturing
(o, Ltd. company B B\ Industry
RESSEEERAA BREEAR i

3,706,330,000.00 Manufacture of automabile (except sedans), sale 741272070
and export of automobile components and
engines; import of raw materials, machinery,
equipment, apparatus, instruments, spare
parts, components and technology which
are required by the production and research
of the company (conducted with relevant
license), commence Sino-foreign joint
venture of the company and cooperate to
develop "three categories of processing and
one category of compensation business”;
assembling, conversion and after-sale service
of automobile

RENE(PBERN)  AETBAR

EHANGE  B0SK: ALEAE
HRFEHENH - BHEE
B

Ek

At EEI=R-HIXH:
e R e 31

320,000,000.00  Research, production, manufacture, saleand  74504313-6
servicing industry of automobile axle and
axle components, manufacture of raw
materials, machinery, equipments, apparatus,
instruments, spare parts and components that
are required for research, purchase and sale
of components

MEERRERERANOMG 4E B

£ HE BBE - EENRAERM
B BRRE BREE BBl T
iidiol+:

435,360,000.00 Research, production, manufacture, senvicing ~ 77698602-2
and processing of casting products;
commence “three categories of processing
and one category of compensation business”
of the company
BEEROMA - £2 5 BBERINT
£%: RRACENIZR-B 155
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial 4 ~& fif Bf %5 #it & W & OF 8

Statements (Continued) (%)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. ¥2aER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE iR EAME e iftgs feEE AEKERE

(14) Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. ~ limited liability Shaanxi Tan Xuguang Manufacturing 256,790,000.00  Design, development, manufacture and 730431187
REZTHESERER company  BEF Ef Industry sale services of automobile components
Al BREFARA g% such as gear boxes, gears and forging

(except complete vehicle production and
customization of automobile); export of
self-manufactured product and technology
of the company; import and export of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipment, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
company (excluding commodities limited
to companies designated by the State for
operation or prohibited from exporting);
processing of incoming materials
miﬁu& &5 RHERETINR
% 2 HERB(TENEEE
E&Eﬁli%ﬁ?\\)l‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁuﬂu&&ﬁfﬁ A
% AEFEEREORENE  BR
BE BERE TEMRREHELD
$B(AFRELISENAZELL NS
Rk - ERMIER

(15 Baoji Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. limited liability Shaanxi Tan Xuguang Manufacturing 30,000,000.00  Design, development, manufacture, sale sevice 732645971
EREIREREREE  compy  BE i Industry and import and export business of automobile
A7 BREALRA HiEx components such as

transmission, gears and forging
mﬁﬁﬁﬁ” B RHERETIRNR
% i HERBRELNER

(16) Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive limited liability Shaanxi Tan Xuguang Manufacturing 134,700,000.00 Design, development, manufacture and sale 750249243
Co,, Ltd. company  BEE 2t Industry service of power shift transmission system
RRETREEDER  AREALA BiEx assembling and components product
27 MEEDZRENREBIERNRR

¥ REEERD
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) S 85 i 3R B 5 (4D
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial Y ~& fif Bf %5 #it & W & OF 8

Statements (Continued) (%)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FREER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary ~ registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FRARE s EARR EBIE iftEs feEE AEKERE

(17) Zhuzhou Gear Co,, Ltd. [imited liability Hunan Li Guiyang Manufacturing 531,314,951.00  Design, manufacture and sale of various types ~ 74591450-1
KNEREREERR company 2Ek Industry of automobile, engineering machinery,

BREFARA g% motorcycle, machine tools transmission

system assembling, gear and axles, cold and
hot processing of machinery, assembling of
mechanical equipments, sale of automabile
(except sedans), motorcycle and accessories;
wholesale and retail of electrical appliance,
machinery, equipment, hardware, electrical
appliance, general merchandise and
metal materials. Operating export of self-
manufactured products and technology
of the company; operating import of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
company; processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and
one category of compensation business”.
Machinery processing, assembling of
mechanical equipments and metal materials
Rt B BERENE  LEBH
BHE BREDZEN EERY:
BHA - BIT - BERERE
RE(TRINEE) - BREREMHE
ERERREN 12 RE BE-
SEMRETRE - HERLRRE
ERREENOLOEE  B2hh]
TERZHRENH  BEER
BHRE  SEEREMNENEE
BERENIAIZR-HI5% -
BENI BHREZR  SEME

(18) Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear —~ non-listing ~ Hunan PanXiaodong  Manufacturing 150,000,000.00 Research and development, production, sale 788017261
Automotive Transmission joint stock @ BER Industry and export of automobile machinery and auto
Co, Lid. limited BEx transmission, specialty actuators, automobile
KNERRESRNER company electronic and electronically controled
Af) FERIAER products and other automobile components
Al MERRREPERE BEEHE

REETERERREMAETAN
W BE - EEREOXEE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W B ¥ 2 BT 5E (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial 4 ~& fif Bf %5 #it & W & OF 8

Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. ¥2aER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE iR EAME B iftgs feEE AEKERE
(19) Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs ~ limited liability Hunan Li Guiyang Manufacturing 282,480,000.00  Manufacture of spark plugs, automobile 73676822-3
(o, Ltd. company % i Industry electrical appliance and components of
KINEABAERER  AREELA g% other vehicles and motorcycle, specil
=GN ceramic products, fire proofing products

and manufacture and sale of environmental
protection products; sale of automobile
(except sedans) and motorcycle; sale of
electrical equipment, construction hardware,
apparatus, instruments and metal materials,
chemical raw materials allowed under policies;
development and sale of computer software.
Operating export of self-manufactured spark
plugs, automobile electrical appliance and
components of other vehicles and motorcycle,
special ceramic products, fire proofing
products and-environmental protection
products; operating import and export of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
company; processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and one
category of compensation business”
NEE - REEBREMARE
BRETHN  HEREEM -
WW%E’]E% REREERD
EE BERE(FEBE)
BREHE  KERE BE IS
%E’E%ﬁ&&”ﬁ%%@m
KIWH’ TERRERY
”“"aM%EEWM%
Em&%mﬁ BRETHN
REBEHG  MAMHER
REREERMINER : BeA0%
TEREORENH  GEER -
BHRE  SRERRGHELOZE
BEEHMIAI= K- 125



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

W5 3R Y 5T (4
20146 H30H (A R#T)

g5 fF BB R R & OF

Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FAOER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary ~ registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FREEE iR EAMCER e ifEx S2EE AEKERE
(20) Shanghai He Da Auto limited liability Shanghai Han Guohong ~ Manufacturing USD4,248,200.00  Design and manufacture of decorative bars 60726120-7
Accessory Co,, Ltd., company L BEL Industry F714,24820000  of automobile, glass trough, tracking,
LEREREREER  BREELA BiEx doorframe and ts accessories; sale of seff-
A manufactured products of the company,
provide consultation services on products and
technology
Exﬁ EEAENEHE RRE
B PERARAHERT
BEER REERBMZARE
21 Chongging Jialing limited liability Chongaing Lizhi Manufacturing 1,186,000,000.00  Production and sale of automobile, 78156786-9
Chuanjiang Viehicles company  EE 8 Industry automobile components, motorcycle
Manufacturing Co, Ltd. ~ BREEAT £t components
EEMERIITAERE BE HE ﬁ% RERHE
ERAT ERETY
(22) Linde Hydraulics GmbH & partnership ~ Germany Jorg Ulrich Manufacturing EUR100,000.00  Production of hydraulic pumps, hydraulic N/A
C0.KG ABLE [ Steffen Appel  Industry E171100,000.00  motors, hydraulic valves, gears and others,  7FiER
WERERBLE(KG) Thorsten van 8452 as wel as other components
der Tuuk LERER RESE  REEM-
ERRAMEHH
23) KION GROUP AG Company Germany Gordon Riske ~ Manufacturing EUR98,900,000.00  Forklift trucks production and warehousing NA
IHEERMERAA  imtedby  2E Industry B17.98,900,00000  technology services iy
shares g RELENEBRIRH

H%/\ N T
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

Percentage of shareholding

(%)

1. F2RFBERE)

BRE

O~ & fF BB R B & OF

Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests
RAE RAE
HAERLE  HE(%)  BE%) A% it SYRRRR
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BBRUIRESHARENTAT
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources 89,795,918.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. 3
HE N (45 ) BRERERAT
() Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. 460,150,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
HEB N (B ERERAR 3
(3)  Shaanxi Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. 88,000,000.00 38.60 62.72 Yes 93,556,487.42
RASEERAEERAR b3
(@) Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Development 340,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes =
Co., Ltd. 3
BEEN( LB NBEERERAT
(5)  Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. 340,000,000.00 - 85.00 85.00 Yes 90,675,794.90
EEBNHNEREEREAAR 3
(6)  Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Development Co., Ltd. 240,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes =
HEEN(EE)RHERERAH Fa
(7)  Weichai Power (Beijing) International Resource Investment 300,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes =
Co., Ltd. 3
EEE (LR ERERREBRAT
(8 Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.ar.. EUR365,890,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes =
RN (ERE)ERERAT B772.365,890,000.00 =
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) S 85 i 3R B 5 (4D
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial P4 & £ B % $it & B & OF % &
Statements (Continued) (748)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRRIERE)

Percentage of shareholding

BRLA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests

RRE RER
HARRLE  ER(%)  HE%  HA%) Vit SURRER

(9)  Linde Hydralics GmbH & Co. KG (LP) EUR25,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
WEREERAEBLE(LP) Bi77.25,000.00 =

Subsidiaries acquired through business combination not involving entities under common control
FR—EHTRXAHRENFRA

(10)  Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. 450,150,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
IWRESZEFRAF =

(11)  Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. 1,890,330,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes  2,530,587,805.45
REERTEFR L 3

(12)  Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. 310,592,000.00 3.06 94.00 97.06 Yes (27,528,055.83)
REEESEFRLA =

(13)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. 435,360,000.00 - 99.75 99.75 Yes (75,641.39)
RESSEEERAA 2

(14)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 130,960,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes 3,762,775,869.56
REZTHEERERATAA =

(15)  Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 29,265,000.00 2.55 95.00 97.55 Yes 110,231,749.21
AT HERARATAH E

(16)  Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd. 134,700,000.00 - 99.78 99.78 Yes 4,983,617.04
BARETRAEBEHERAR =

(17)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. 467,102,295.92 8791 - 87.91 Yes 67,257,538.50
HHEREREEAR s
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) S 785 i 3R B 5 (48D

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6H30H (AR % T)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated Financial 4 ~& fif Bf %5 #it & W & OF 8
Statements (Continued) (748)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FREER(E)

Percentage of shareholding

BREA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are

end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests

RAE RAS
HRERLE  BE%)  BE%)  Rh(%) it SYRRRR
(18)  Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear Automotive Transmission 145,000,000.00 - 95.14 95.14 Yes 8,001,671.32
Co,, Ltd. 3
HHERGLESRAERAR
(19)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. 282,480,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes =
A EAEEEREEAT E
(20)  Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd. USD3,186,150.00 75.00 - 75.00 Yes 42,794,864.34
HEMERERGERAT %773,186,150.00 e
(21)  Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles Manufacturing 1,186,000,000.00 74.96 25.04 100.00 Yes =
Co,, Ltd. 3
EEMER/ITAELEERAR
(22)  Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG EUR270,957,500.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes 242,566,662.79
WEREABEE(KG) 71.270,957,500.00 3
(23)  KION GROUP AG (Note 1) EUR890,713,723.00 - 3330 60.20 Yes 1,819,630,417.92
IHERRNHERAR (1) B(71890,713,723.00 2
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)
IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated U ~& BF B B 3 0 G B
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)

FRRMER (&)

1 201446 A 128 #4551 ¥ KION

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1.
Note 1:0n 12 June 2014, Weichai Power’s voting right in KION GROUP AG

reached 60.2% and thus it obtained control over KION GROUP AG.

As a shareholder of KION Holding 1 GmbH, Weichai Power (Luxembourg)
Holding S.a r.Il. (“Weichai Lux”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Superlift Holding S.a r.l. (“Superlift”) and KION
Management Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. KG (“MPP") entered into an
Agreement of Shareholders (“Shareholder’s Agreement”) on 29 May
2013. This Shareholder’'s Agreement came into effect at the time when
KION Holding 1 GmbH became a company limited by shares and changed
its name to KION Group AG (“KION Group”) (i.e. the effective date was
earlier than the listing date of KION Group on 28 June 2013). It superceded
an old shareholders agreement entered into by and between the aforesaid
three contracting parties and KION Holding 1 GmbH on 31 August 2012.

In the Shareholder’s Agreement, Weichai Lux and Superlift reached a
series of agreements (“Bundled Arrangement”) in relation to the voting
mechanism on general meetings of KION GROUP AG in their capacity as
shareholders of KION GROUP AG, making the Company and Superlift act
in concert.

(@) Within the effective period of the Shareholder’s Agreement or
within five years of the listing of KION GROUP AG, whichever is
longer and which period is referred to as the “Bundled Period”,
both parties shall, before the holding of each general meeting,
convene a preliminary meeting to negotiate upon the resolutions
to be put forward on a general meeting and inform each other on
their voting intention towards such resolutions;

GROUP AGHIF R HEIEE]60.2% + &
WS -

£ /& KION Holding 1 GmbH & %
B OAKECHEEZETRAIMLYE
BH(EZRE)ERARRA(#
S EHE ) - Superlift Holding
S.ar.l. ( [ Superlift | ) #1 KION
Management Beteiligungs GmbH
& Co. KG([MPPJ)#201345H29
BE T —O(REBHE)([REH
#1) o B IREHFHIEKION Holding
1 GmbHEE R —RKRMHABERAF L
E#E 2 AKION GROUP AG([KION
GROUP AG) A (BN AR B HAF
HMKION GROUP AGH) ET HHI2013
F6H288) WHMARNUE=ZFEEXL
77 £ FEEKION Holding 1 GmbHR®
20128 A3 AEEMERRIHE -

EREHREFT  BEEREN
Superlift & 4b 1 & 75 £ & KION
GROUP AGH) % B ZEKION GROUP
AGHIIREAE IR ZMEIER T —
Ry (TEBLH]) - FHARHE
SuperliftiRIF1TE — 5 FE B :

(@) HERRBHENABHAKKION
GROUP AGLEMZ BZM RS
NABRNDE A& ZH
MBELAIMEHM])  &HE
ES-—BRERRSBHAMNBHE
EEE MBRRRENBZRE
TEELBAEDEEZER

RNREER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) S 785 i 3R B 5 (48D
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated U & BF BB 3 0 G B
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRRIER(E)

Note 1:(Continued)

(b)

During the Bundled Period, in respect of the following matters
that would be voted upon on a general meeting, only when
Weichai Lux and Superlift have agreed unanimously on their
preliminary meeting to vote in favour of the matters concerned,
could they vote in favour of such matters on the general meeting
(the parties should vote against the resolutions of which they have
not unanimously agreed on their preliminary meeting to vote in
favour):

- Amendment of Articles of Association;
- Delisting of KION GROUP AG;

- Increase or decrease of registered capital of KION GROUP
AG (including any resolutions relating to additional
authorization or increase of capital and approval of
the Management Committee of the Company to issue
convertible bonds, profit-sharing bonds and profit-sharing
right);

- Repurchase or redemption of shares of KION GROUP AG or
equity instrument convertible into shares of KION GROUP
AG;

- Reorganization of KION GROUP AG, such as merger,
demerger, divestiture or change of KION GROUP AG's legal
form;

- Company agreements involved for so long as KION GROUP
AG is covered by the German Stock Companies Act;

- Resolutions required to be passed on a general meeting in
respect of disposal of assets owned or substantially owned
by KION GROUP AG, except the disposal of STILL Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries in accordance with the German Stock
Companies Act;

- Liquidation of KION GROUP AG;
- Appointment of auditors other than Ernst & Young, Deloitte

& Touche, KPMG and Pricewaterhouse Coopers;

- Change of applicable accounting standards, save as
mandatorily required under the law.

1 ()
(b)

EHEHE  HRATERRE
RERROEFE - REEMHE
EREMSuperliftfETEL S %
F-BRAERERENER
T PIA A ERRERE EH
ZEFERERE(EHHE
EEGEPR —RRABREK
ENEERERFEAE L1HER
REE)

T

el

- AR ERE

W
il

- KION GROUP AGHET :

- # o sk & 2 KION
GROUP AG #E fit & &
()45 1T fa] B2 5% hn 4% 4%
RERALEGREER
EUARBEARERE

SERTUERES
FHEAZES - A RF
HoFHE)

= B B 3¢ B [ KION
GROUP AG & 15 8k &
£ fa] B] ¥ 3% & KION
GROUP AGH ) Ry
TITA:

— KION GROUP AG =
4 FlmE st AL
) B ok & # E KION
GROUP AGEZER

— EKION GROUP AGIE
REBRMD QA REE &
& E R FT R AR A
&

= BEEE KD R BER
TERESTILLERAR K
HFArmBERZN -
FERRAGBBNE
EKION GROUP AGFfT
BREBEELMBEEE
BOREE

- KION GROUP AG/E%E

= Eanbr T &K - 2E -
EERELEKEZ
EN: o= i

- BR TORA R HIERZ5h
BHERNEFHER -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Note 1:(Continued)

()

During Bundled Period, in respect of the following matters that
would be voted upon on a general meeting (“bundled matters”),
both parties agreed to vote, on the general meeting, in line with
the voting decision made on the preliminary meeting by the party
which at the time hold more shares of KION GROUP AG:

- Profit distribution scheme (including distribution of
dividends);

- Discharge of members of Management Committee and
Supervisory Committee;

- Matters submitted by the Management Committee to
a general meeting for approval in accordance with the
German Stock Companies Act section 119 (2);

- Matters submitted by Management Committee to a general
meeting for approval in accordance with Sentence 3 of
the German Stock Companies Act section 111 (4), which
matters have already been rejected by the Supervisory
Committee;

- The appointment of members of the Supervisory
Committee.

The Bundled Arrangement reached by and between Weichai Lux
and Superlift continues to be effective during Bundled Period. In
case of early termination of the Shareholder’s Agreement within
five years after the listing of KION GROUP AG, either Weichai Lux
or Superlift may terminate the Bundled Arrangement before the
expiry of the Bundled Period under the following circumstances:
(a) voting right of either party on General Meeting is less than
5%, or (b) the Group and its related parties own(s) or control(s),
directly or indirectly, over 50% voting right on General Meeting of
KION GROUP AG. Besides, the Shareholder’'s Agreement may be
terminated under the following circumstances: (x) either Weichai
Lux or Superlift ceases to be a shareholder of KION GROUP AG; (y)
either Weichai Lux or Superlift goes bankrupt, becomes insolvent,
undergoes bankruptcy proceedings and its holding of KION GROUP
AG's share or other assets becomes foreclosed by creditors or it
commits serious breach of contract; or (z) aggregate voting right
held by Weichai Lux and Superlift is less than 50% plus 1, or voting
right held by either Weichai Lux or Superlift is less than 15%.
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S5 R T (A

20146 H30H (A R#T)

g5 fF BB R R & OF

(%)

1. FRARBRAE)

a1 ()

(0

EHEBHB - HRUTER
RAGRANFE([HBESE
Bl) ErFRAEBEEBRRAE
rEBREELESHRTHERE
B 2R EHAEZKION GROUP
AGHD BB T REE MY 5 2 3%

BN

- FESEREDR(BER
FoBL)

- HEEEZEEMES
BREMERTR

- EEZEBEREEER

PREVEFE1I9FTFE 2R
RERRASHENS
18

- ERZESREEER
BREVEFINEFL4RK
EI3RBFBREAEZ
BER ERESEE
BROEMEIE

- EEgKEMNED -

ML EFRERMSuperlifiER
WE 2 HEE 50 HARA R 45 4B
AR BERRBZEEKION
GROUP AG EM# AF AR
RI#RIE - BIE OB &8 &
R EREBHESSuperliftE
7] — 75 A £ 46 & HA RS 45 3R AT
WIERHBLH - ()8R 2P
ERI—FERRAE MR RE
LHR5% - (b)) AEEREH
G E B ERA Sk E R
HIEKION GROUP AGREER X
g LHBB50% K RAE - It
G BREBEENETIE
FETRAKLE : \HEER
EMSuperliftPER—FTH
ZKION GROUP AGREE : (y)
ML EREMSuperliftip T
—FWE - BETEE  EA
WERRF - A KKION
GROUP AGHR 7 sk H fth & EE 1
BREALE  KEREELD X
(2) ML EFHREMSuperliftA st
FHBRREDLRS0%M
o E L E R RS Superlift
ER—FHENRREIR
15% °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) S 785 i 3R B 5 (48D

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated U & BF BB 3 0 G B
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRARBER(E)

Changes in registered and paid-in capital of the major subsidiaries

from January to June 2014 are detailed as follows:

FEFRAEMEERER20144F

Increase in Decrease in
31 December the current the current
2013 period period 30 June 2014
2013 2014F
12A31R REEm THED 64300
Shaanxi Heawy-duty Motor Co, Lid, REENHEARAT 2,706,330,00000  1,000,000,000.00 ~3,706,330,000.00
2. Change of scope of consolidation 2. EftEERE
Other than as described in Item 3 under Note IV, the scope of the BREFFEDD - 3R9ER RSN - A OISR
consolidated financial statements is in line with that in the previous rEEREEFFE -
year.
3. Entities newly consolidated in the current 3. AHEHFMAGHEERD

period

From January to June 2014, subsidiaries newly consolidated are as

follows:

Names of subsidiaries newly included as
part of consolidation

FRAAEGHEENFLARAERE

Time of inclusion
as part of
consolidation
A& B

& [E Y BF

e
2014F1-6 8 » FiIMABHEEDNT
AEIAT

Net assets as at
30 June 2014
2014%6H30H

Net profit from
date of
consolidation to
end of period
Xd=ES

BEE HARFEFE

KION GROUP AG

SHEBRNERAR (F£1)

(Note 1) 12 June 2014

201456 H12H

3,542,607,584.20 =

Note 1:0n 18 December 2013, the Company decided to exercise the call option
to acquire shares representing 3.3% interests in KION GROUP AG from
another shareholder of KION GROUP AG. Weichai Lux served a notice on
Superlift on the same day to exercise the call option, at a consideration of
EUR95,333,723. Upon exercise of the option, the Company’s shareholding
in KION GROUP AG increased to 33.3%. Further, in June 2014, Superlift
reduced its shareholding in KION GROUP AG from 34.5% to 26.9%.
Under the Bundled Arrangement reached by Weichai Lux and Superlift,
the Company essentially held 60.2% voting rights of and thus obtained

effective control over KION GROUP AG.

B

2013F 128188 * KR RIRTEITE
MKION GROUP AGHI R — IR E
HAEAKION GROUP AG 3.3% /%
MHREHEE  REEREERE
BRSuperlift# HiTHE@EM - 1TH#
¥ & BB 95,333,723 7L © 1T %
AATEKION GROUP AGHRI# A% Lt
Bl /33.3% ° B4N - R2014F6A -
Superlifti H B35 KION GROUP AGE
TR H34.5% B E26.9% °
RIBMSCEREMSuperliftE iR
MEH  ARAREBRRELD A
60.2% - EIHHKION GROUP AGH)
PR o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)
IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated 9 G F B % 3R 0 & OF # E
Financial Statements (Continued) (%8)
4. The exchange rate for translating items of key 4, AEERIKEERTIE
statements for the foreign operating entities BREEWHEE=R

of the Group

Average exchange rate Exchange rate at period-end
FHEXR BREZ

January to January to 30 June 31 December
June 2014 June 2013 2014 2013
2014%1-6 A 2013%1-6 A 2014F6H30H AIEESVEEN=

usD ey 6.1365 6.1528
EUR BT 8.4140 8.3946
HKD B 0.7912 0.7938
Indian Rupee fEEL 0.1008 0.1025
Russian Ruble RENES 0.1771 0.1838
5. Business combinations not involving entities 5. AHZREWI R —Z4T
under common control during the period tESH
Amount of
goodwill
mELHE

Merger with KION GROUP AG
AHIHEERDER AR 7,880,077,524.38
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Business combinations not involving entities 5.
under common control during the period
(Continued)
Fair value and carrying value of identifiable assets and liabilities of
KION GROUP AG on the date of consolidation are as follows:
T

30 June 2014

201446 5308 (A R#T)

O~ & fF BB R B & OF

RaftBEBnRR

FAHBRENER—ZHT

¥ S 6 (&)

KION GROUP AGRI i REEMAE
EBEEMEBDEAWD

30 June 2014
201456 H30H
Carrying value

IRME B A

20146 H30H
Fair value
AREE
Cash and cash equivalents EikEe 1,132,171,307.40
Financial assets at fair value through UAnEBEFEBEEES
profit or loss SFAEBEENEMEE 135,430,081.80
Interest receivable FEWLFIE 587,622.00
Accounts receivable FEUBR R 5,030,514,417.60
Other receivables Eoth FEHK 502,064,236.80
Prepayments FAfTERRR 44,080,044.60
Inventories FE 4,840,586,592.60
Non-current assets due within —F A EIR
one year FERBEE 1,529,815,114.80
Other current assets EfinahEE 781,184,686.80
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 102,162,282.00
Held-to-maturity investments BERI|HIRE 16,789.20
Long-term receivables ARG 2,588,903,034.60
Long-term equity investments REARIERE 1,202,358,558.00
Goodwill EES -
Fixed assets BE&EE 10,302,507,304.56
Construction in progress EEIRE 173,356,884.60
Intangible assets B EE 10,130,120,590.50
Development expenditure X 2,014,516,800.42
Deferred tax assets RIEFTETEE 2,613,448,845.00
Other non-current assets HibIEREEE 184,152,340.20
Short-term borrowings R HAfE AR (1,916,974,066.80)
Financial liabilities held for trading THhECRBE (75,442,270.20)
Notes payable JE R E (2,837,374.80)
Accounts payable FEATERFK (4,708,111,410.00)

1,132,171,307.40

135,430,081.80
587,622.00
5,030,514,417.60
502,064,236.80
44,080,044.60
4,840,586,592.60

1,529,815,114.80
781,184,686.80
102,162,282.00
16,789.20
2,588,903,034.60
1,202,358,558.00
12,544,671,980.39
10,082,023,729.80
173,356,884.60
6,165,044,607.60
1,619,847,199.80
2,613,448,845.00
184,152,340.20
(1,916,974,066.80)
(75,442,270.20)
(2,837,374.80)
(4,708,111,410.00)
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated U ~& BF B B 3 0 G B
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)

FBBRENER—ZHT

¥ES 6 (&)

5. Business combinations not involving entities 5.
under common control during the period
(Continued)

30 June 2014 30 June 2014

2014568308 2014568308
Fair value Carrying value
AREE REEE
Advances from customers TBURBR K (297,890,775.60) (297,890,775.60)
Interests payable FERHF & (106,762,522.80) (106,762,522.80)
Payroll payable JFE 1T Bk T 2 B (1,929,817,804.80)  (1,929,817,804.80)
Taxes payable JERX TR B (825,592,120.80) (825,592,120.80)
Other payables E At TR (40,369,631.40) (40,369,631.40)
Non-current liabilities due within —F R ENIERBBE
one year (3,055,139,118.60)  (3,055,139,118.60)
Other current liabilities HEtmEhai (1,432,630,830.60)  (1,432,630,830.60)
Long-term borrowings REAER (4,414,955,188.80)  (4,414,955,188.80)
Bonds payable JERIE S (4,130,319,486.60)  (3,718,144,626.60)
Long-term payables RAEFER (5,465,875,162.80)  (5,465,875,162.80)
Provisions SEEN=U (459,528,798.60) (459,528,798.60)
Long-term payroll payable £ HA &~ B8 T2 B (5,589,787,853.41)  (5,589,787,853.41)
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEmEaE (1,412,668,471.80)  (1,412,668,471.80)
Deferred tax liabilities BEMSHARE (3,900,667,060.89)  (2,526,598,313.40)
Minority interests DHIRER RS (1,819,630,417.92)
Attributable net assets ZHEREAE 1,179,688,325.54
Goodwill arising from acquisition EEELNE 7,880,077,524.38
Consideration paid for combination SHEE 9,059,765,849.92
Note 1: KION GROUP AG has total assets of RMB43,307,977,533.48 and total £1: KION GROUP AGEE#R B AR

liabilities of RMB39,765,369,949.29. As a listed company in Germany,
it is subject to local laws and regulations of Germany. The Group's use
of its assets and settlement of its liabilities will be subject to significant
restrictions.

43,307,977,533.487T ' R BEESE
AR #39,765,369,949.297C * {EA
EEEFTARTERAE WM ERE
B ASEFEREELEMSEESEER
BEEEZINERRS -

Note 2: While the occurrence of this business combination was close to the end 2 DEAHBAEAHNEEK  A6tD
of the reporting period, the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and BENEBEAHREE  BELRKEA
contingent liabilities obtained during the course of combination could BENAABERELEETE  BIE
only be determined on a temporary basis. According to Accounting (EESTEAFE20% —tEEH)
Standard for Business Enterprises No. 20 — Business Combination, the REBUAMBEN TR EERSERY
Group has recognized and measured the business combination based on ZEEEOET THRAMNGE - K8
the temporary values so determined, and will make adjustments to such 20146 A308 &L 1218 A A% a] %
temporary values of those identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent REE AENKEEENEREE
liabilities within 12 months from 30 June 2014. B#EITHAE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated

Financial Statements (Continued) (%)

5. Business combinations not involving entities 5. KNHEHIBAEMWIER-—EZHT
under common control during the period TESH(E)
(Continued)
Note 3: The Company, through its indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary Weichai Lux, 3 ARABBAERNEEETARMLEE

completed acquisition of 25% shareholding in KION Holding 1 GmbH on
27 December 2012, at a consideration of EUR467,000,000. On 8 March
2013, the Company exercised option to increase its shareholding in KION
GROUP AG to 30%, at a consideration of EUR328,380,000, and the
registration of this additional acquisition of shares with the competent
company registry was completed on 27 June 2013. On 27 June 2014,
KION Holding 1 GmbH was renamed as KION GROUP AG, and its publicly
issued shares were listed and commenced trading on Frankfurt Stock
Exchange on 28 June 2013. On 18 December 2013, the Company decided
to exercise the call option to acquire shares representing 3.3% interests in
KION GROUP AG from another shareholder of KION GROUP AG. Weichai
Lux served a notice on Superlift on the same day to exercise the call option,
at a consideration of EUR95,333,723. Upon exercise of the option, the
Company'’s shareholding in KION GROUP AG increased to 33.3%. Further,
in June 2014, Superlift reduced its shareholding in KION GROUP AG from
34.5% to 26.9%. Under the Bundled Arrangement reached by Weichai
Lux and Superlift, the Company essentially held 60.2% voting rights of and
thus obtained effective control over KION GROUP AG.

The shareholding already held prior to the acquisition date amounted
to a carrying value of RMB7,301,717,816.09, and a fair value of
RMB9,059,765,849.92, as at the acquisition date. Gain arising from re-
measurement of fair value amounted to RMB1,670,663,605.67. As a listed
company in Germany, KION GROUP AG is quoted in an active market
for its share price and the fair value as at the acquisition date is arrived
at by multiplying the number of shares by the market price per share
on the same date. An amount of RMB40,864,388.98 was transferred
to investment income from other comprehensive income related to the
existing shareholding prior to the acquisition date.

FREN2012F12 8278 =B KION
Holding 1 GmbH 25% K% U5 -
I B8 ¥ 8 5 BT 467,000,0007T © A
ARA2013F3 A8HTFIEIFKION
GROUP AGZE30% My H#i## » 2013
FORA2ITBEHFERNETTRETK
RBHBTROOEZFE 1R
51T E A BT 328,380,000
5T ° KION Holding 1 GmbH#2014
F6727HE ZAKION GROUP AG °
HARMBETHRGR201346 A28
AHBRELR R EBELARHMES -
2013F 128188 » AR RIRTEITE
MKION GROUP AGHIR—KERE
HET#HBKION GROUP AG 3.3% %
MHRBEHE  AEEREERNE
BESuperlift# HiTHREMBA - 1T
Y {8 A Bl 7T 95,333,723 7T 1THE%
ARAFEKION GROUP AGHI# A% Lt
Bl &33.3% ° BHh - R2014F6 7 -
Superlifti% H£ET#KION GROUP AGE,
BITHRN B34.5% B E26.9% -
RIS EREMSuperliftiEnk AR
MLH  ANAREBRRELDA
60.2% * EILHKION GROUP AGH]
] o

BEACZAIRMERELTEEANKR
HmEMEAAR7,301,717,816.09
T BEBNARBEARK
9,059,765,849.92 7t *© & B A A
BEEFAEMELENFNEAREK
1,670,663,605.67 7t ° M  KION
GROUP AGRERZE LK AR + &
REGEREMSHRE BEABNAR
BERBROBRALEBNRE - B
B B 2 AT R R A R AR R A A 4R
AR EEARERENESERARE
40,864,388.987T ©
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated g 5 OF B i 3R 0 A O
Financial Statements (Continued) (%8)
6. Subsidiaries with material interests of 6. EALERIENER

minority shareholders
Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as

follows: T

30 June 2014
20146 H30H

Proportion of equity held by minority DEIRR IS AR R L] -
shareholders:

PR ER B ARAT

PR = TR R AR R AR
IHEERND BRAR]

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
KION GROUP AG

January to June
2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Profit or loss attributable to minority SEBERLVERLEREZ :
shareholders:
AR TEBRAF

REETHEREREEDR

103,247,884.32
153,562,413.65

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.

30 June 2014

2014%6B30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)
Balance of minority interests accrued at  REE A &R A 25
balance sheet date: DEIR R AR -
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. PRPEER S EER A A 2,530,587,805.45

RIEE T EREREERF
JHEBEBRNER QA

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
KION GROUP AG

3,762,775,869.56
1,877,470,135.33

Note: KION GROUP AG is a subsidiary newly consolidated during the period.

FEEADHBEREDSHTAFMN

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

49%
49%

N/A(Note) &R (G

January to June
2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

75,976,306.61
150,725,692.21

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

1,915,843,039.14
3,583,259,113.50

N/A(Note) “MNEMA GGE)

& : KION GROUP AGERARHAFT M A S ff &
Bz FAR -
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated g 5 OF B i 3R 0 A O
Financial Statements (Continued) (%8)

6. Subsidiaries with material interests of 6. EADBRRNERS (F)
minority shareholders (Continued)
Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as

FHEEADHBERESNTAFMN

follows: (Continued)

T (8

Shaanxi Heavy-duty

Shaanxi Fast

KION GROUP AG Motor Co., Ltd. Gear Co., Ltd.

(Unaudited) AHEER 5 RAEERSE BEELEER
(REER) BRAH BRAH BREEAT
January to June 2014 2014%1-6H
Revenue WA 13,968,287,412.46 5,654,998,084.00
Net profit EFIE 202,912,266.01 318,866,890.23
Total comprehensive income IRENRESE 202,912,266.01 318,866,890.23
30 June 2014 2014%6A30H
Current assets MENEE 13,877,818,406.40 14,890,216,063.14 7,804,146,576.92
Non-current assets FERBEE 28,497,017,430.97 5,473,070,597.73 3,306,426,664.08
Current liabilities MENEE 14,358,661,094.40 13,355,561,436.11 3,374,354,578.49
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 25,201,376,938.89 1,614,715,297.51 -
January to June 2014 201451-6 A
Net cash flows from B EDELN

operating activities Reng ¥ 752,041,715.58 43,717,827.81
Net cash flows from REEBDHEEM

investing activities RemEFH (346,903,732.59) (129,802,113.28)
Net cash flows from MEEHEEN

financing activities ReneFs 872,101,561.49 (200,241,183.98)
Effect of changes in EXEFHHREK

exchange rate on cash and cash Re B2

equivalents 693,167.62 1,986,965.62
Net increase/(decrease) in BeMBESEND

cash and cash equivalents ZEn/ (R 1,277,932,712.10 (284,338,503.83)




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
Subsidiaries with material interests of

minority shareholders (Continued)

6.

Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as

follows: (Continued)
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W5 3R Y 5T (4
20146 H30H (A R#T)

L ‘/a;ﬁ?ﬁ!a‘i‘%*ﬁi%ﬂ‘]é‘ﬁ%
(%)
6. EXLBRRHERS(H)

FEERLVEBRREDNFRALD

T (8

Shaanxi Heavy-duty

Shaanxi Fast

Motor Co., Ltd. Gear Co., Ltd.
(Unaudited) REER S REETHER
(REER) ARAT BBREARAT
January to June 2013 2013164
Revenue WA 13,119,443,666.24 4,478,020,983.01
Net profit EFIE 146,192,124.93 314,519,193.31
Total comprehensive income AR EE 146,192,124.93 314,519,193.31
Current assets MEBERE 12,963,046,568.00 6,982,410,805.21
Non-current assets ErEEE 5,296,356,472.42 3,545,273,620.11
Current liabilities mEAaRE 12,677,509,518.81 2,960,386,380.56
Non-current liabilities FEEAE 1,383,095,924.57 =

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities
Effect of changes in exchange rate on

cash and cash equivalents

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents

REEDELNREREFR
RERDELMNREREFE
RETDELNASREFR
EXFHHRE R
RaFENNTE

ReNReFENN
FEh/ (RD)

263,270,604.26
(383,285,332.12)
249,534,749.31

(228,231.30)

129,291,790.15

(70,024,439.12)
(180,978,928.98)
(190,121,146.96)

(441,124,515.06)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements
1. Cash and cash equivalents

Original

currency

R

Cash e

-RMB -ARE 2,249,695.06
-Usb - 24,400.49
-JPY -Br 2,429.22
-HKD - 151,583.17
-EUR B 74,736.35
-5GD — T -
~ Indian Rupee -HEEW 101,360.00
-THB -&% 743,023.39
- UAE Dirhams — g 28,680.88

Bank deposits FAER

-RMB - AR 15,539,192,052.29
-Ush -%n 24,382,797.88
-JPY -Br 282,918.39
- GBP -5 2,256.55
-HKD - 3,932,536.92
-EUR —B 149,921,094.03
- Russian Ruble -RBEHER 234,336.46
- Indian Rupee -DEEL 476,517,960.39
~Belarus Ruble -BEERER 443,565.13
~ UAE Dirhams —E A 416,379.13
— Swiss Frank ~ AR =
-SGD —-HmET =
-THB - &k 10,057,658.27

Other cash and EhERES

cash equivalents

- RMB - AR% 2,832,258,074.17
-UsD %7 444,890.00
-ER -E7 141,369.87

30 June 2014
2014%6A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Exchange

rate

E%

1.0000
6.1528
0.0608
10.4978
0.7938
8.3946
0.1838
0.1025
0.0006
1.6811

0.1915

1.0000
6.1528
8.3946

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o~ BF B B ik 32 B H H RE R

1. E¥ES
31 December 2013
20135124318
(Audited)
(B57)

RMB Original Exchange RMB
equivalent currency rate equivalent
e ARH R E= RAARE
2,249,695.06 2,330,179.65 1.0000 2,330,179.65
150,131.35 26,410.75 6.0969 161,023.70
147.70 2,116.00 0.0578 12230
120,326.72 120,227.29 0.7862 94,522.70
627,381.75 13,509.00 8.4189 113,730.92
- 796.85 4.8641 3,875.96
10,389.40 110,936.00 0.0974 10,805.17
142,288.98 - - -
48,215.43 - - -
3,348,576.39 2,714,260.40
(ERXEREPAVY I 15,650,359,159.36 1.0000  15,650,359,159.36
150,022,478.79 26,998,559.37 6.0969 164,607,516.65
17,201.44 297,477.88 0.0578 17,252.02
23,688.83 4,689.61 10.1611 47,651.60
3,121,647.80 4,355,227.85 0.7862 3,424,080.14
1,258,527,615.93 86,452,572.77 8.4189 727,835,564.88
43,071.04 154,950.52 0.1860 28,820.80
48,843,090.94 135,952,861.78 0.0974 13,241,808.74
266.14 242,886,650.00 0.0006 145,731.99
699,974.96 1,394,748.43 1.6481 2,298,684.88
- 200.00 6.8174 1,363.48
- 153,124.16 4.8641 744,811.23
1,926,041.56 - - -
17,002,417,129.72 16,562,752,445.77
2,832,258,074.17 3,013,299,368.68 1,0000 3,013,299,368.68
2,737,319.19 63,174.34 6.0969 385,167.63
1,186,743.49 115,976.01 8.4189 976,390.43
2,836,182,136.85 3,014,660,926.74

19,841,947,842.96

19,580,127,632.91



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

1.

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB2,752,160,975.51 (31 December 2013:
RMB2,983,186,336.71), all of which are used in letter of guarantee
and security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance

bills and letter of credit.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
RMB1,212,138,740.77 (31 December 2013: RMB844,876,697.26),

which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for time deposits vary from three months to one year depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at

respective deposit interest rates of the bank.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

Foh 5 ¥ R BT 5E (48
201446 308 (AR H¥T)
o AP B R FEIEE R
(%)
1. EES(E)

Derivative financial assets PTHESREE
Forward contracts mEARE
Hedging instruments EHRTA

7 2014 6 A 30 H r&EH
HthE®BE2PBRBEARKE
2,752,160,975.51 70 (20134 12 A
318 : AR®2,983,186,336.7170)
FRRE A R IRIRITEA R ZE - 5
AREEPMHETHNRES ©

M2014F6 A30H  AE@AKF
MREBIONEBEESARARE
1,212,138,740.77 7L (20134 12 A
318 : AR#844,876,697.267T) °

RITE BT IR IR IR 1708 B33 5KOR =&
BBMSBA - EMERNERAE
BSEAEIFAE  KAKENRSE
FRME - LRIBAEHRTTERA
REFFBWA ©

UAREBEFEEEZE
SFAEBHESENEREE

30 June 2014 31 December 2013

20146 A30H 2013%12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

5,674,749.60 51,077,466.30
11,139,634.20 =

16,814,383.80

51,077,466.30
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51
Statements (Continued) (48)
3. Notes receivable 3. BEREE

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
201456 H30H 2013412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (g&EZ)

Bank acceptance bills RITAHESR 17,668,455,219.17 14,103,414,397.06
Commercial acceptance bills A ESR 30,868,000.00 23,536,416.34

17,699,323,219.17 14,126,950,813.40

As at 30 June 2014, top 5 notes receivable that were pledged are R2014F6H30H R AMATA
presented as follows: HEEHRMNEREENAT

Issuer Issuing date  Expiry date Issued by

HEEN & 5 A BH A 28 ARA

Anhui Hualing Automotive Co., Ltd 2014/5/30  2014/11/30  70,000,000.00 Everbright Bank
TREZETBEFR DA FRBAT

Dongfeng Liuzhou Motor Co., Ltd. 2014/41 2014/10/1  53,910,000.00 Everbright Bank

REMMNREFRRE KR RAT

Anhui Hualing Automotive Co., Ltd 2014/3/31 2014/9/30  30,000,000.00 Everbright Bank

THEZNEFRAA FRERAT

Xuzhou Xugong Excavator 2014/3/26 2014/9/26  25,000,000.00 Huaxia Bank
Machinery Co., Ltd. EFRIT

RM IR T A R A A

Anhui Hualing Automotive Co., Ltd 2013/3/31 2014/9/30  23,000,000.00 China Construction Bank

ZHEZEAEFGRAF] ERBIT

201,910,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Notes receivable (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, top 5 notes receivable that were pledged

are presented as follows:

SV 5 2 I G (

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

)

20146 H30H (A R#T)

T~ B OF B R R IEH H RE R

(%)

3. BEWEE(E)
M2013F12A31H » @8 & AWA]
AECERNEKREENT :

Issuer Issuing date  Expiry date Amount  Issued by

HEREBEN HEBH |5 H EH  ARA

Shandong Lingong Construction 2013/9/27 2014/3/27  38,300,000.00  Everbright Bank
Machinery Co., Ltd. FERERAT

IR T TE#MER QA

Anhui Hualing Automotive Co., Ltd 2013/9/26 2014/3/26  30,000,000.00  Huishang Bank

ZHEEAERRAR WERTT

Shijiazhuang Chenyang Centrino 2013/11/29 2014/5/29  16,000,000.00  Guangdong Development
Automobile Trading Co., Ltd Bank

ARERGANIEESERAA BB IRTT

Shanghai Hongzhao Investment 2013/10/31 2014/4/30  15,000,000.00  Bank of Shanghai
Development Co., Ltd EBRT

FEAKREERBERAA

Xuzhou Xugong Excavator 2013/9/30 2014/3/29  15,000,000.00 Bank of China

Machinery Co., Ltd.
HINGEIEZERERERA A

As at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group has not

transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure

in performance.

114,300,000.00

hERTT

K2014%6 30 A M2013F12 431
B AKEERLEABNBOMS
FEREBREYRROTR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Notes receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, notes receivable already discounted to third
parties but not yet expired amounted to RMB19,047,164.66.
As at 30 June 2014, notes receivable in the amount of
RMB13,177,155,172.19 had been endorsed to other parties but

not yet expired. The top 5 notes receivable outstanding are follows:

Issuer Issuing date
REM 3= B

Nanjing Xugong Automobile Co., Ltd 2014/5/8

ARETRERERR AR

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and 2014/3/27

Technology Co., Ltd
hEERIRD AR AR

Pang Da Brabus Auto Sales Service Limited 2014/5/15

BEADEITEHERBERAA

Shandong Liugong Concrete Equipments 2014/6/12
Co., Ltd

IERM TR L REER AT

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and 2014/1/23

Technology Co., Ltd
HEFERRGOBRAQF

RS 2 BT 5 (48
2014465308 (AR ¥T)
T AP HR FEIEE R
(%)
3. EREE(E)

#2014 6 A308 B LB b
FEHRINBHEREEASAR
# 19,047,164.66 JT ° K 2014
FOoHABABKEEE LM A E M
REHHNERERSEARARE
13,177,155,172.197L » &% &
AR HBIT ¢

Expiry date Amount
P RE] o]

2014/11/8 18,000,000.00

2014/9/27 18,000,000.00

2014/11/15 14,600,000.00

2014/12/12 13,824,500.00

2014/7/21 10,000,000.00

74,424,500.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

3.

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

SR 5 i 3R B 5 (48
20146 H30H (A R#T)

T~ B OF B R R IEH H RE R

Statements (Continued) (%)

Notes receivable (Continued) 3. EWERE(E)

The top 5 notes receivable outstanding as at 31 December 2013 MR2013F12A31HEEBERLMA

that had been endorsed to other parties are presented as follows: EHAREHNEREZESE R AW

RIEWT :

Issuer Issuing date Expiry date Amount
REM HEBH EIHH &%

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2013/9/23 2014/3/23 50,000,000.00

REAERRRAR

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2013/9/23 2014/3/23 50,000,000.00

REAERRRAR

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2013/9/23 2014/3/23 50,000,000.00

REAERRRAR]

Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial Vehicle 2013/7/29 2014/1/29 20,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.

EAKENAEAHAERRAR

Shanghai Hongzhao Investment 2013/10/31 2014/4/30 15,000,000.00

Development Co., Ltd
PR EERBER A A

As at 30 June 2014, notes receivable amounting to
RMB2,773,334,140.72 (31 December 2013: RMB2,162,362,220.85)

was pledged to banks for establishment of bank acceptance

bills. No notes receivable were pledged for short-term loans (31

December 2013: nil).

185,000,000.00

20146 8308 "EBRHR
MARMTALERME RO EK
2B A ARM2773,334,140.72
7L (2013F 12 A318H : AR¥
2,162,362,220.857T) ° ANE&[EHEH
REHERmME R EKEE(2013
F12A318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

MR IRHBRAT

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
4,

Accounts receivable

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,

and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new

customers. Credit period is generally one to six months, extending

up to six months for major customers. Accounts receivable is non-

interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ B OF B AR 1 EIH H RE R

(74)
4, FEWERF

AEEEREFHNE S HRFIAERAR
HRE  A—REFHELEAMNRK
RRERNFIET  ERMER
B1-6AA TBEEFPANUEREG
B A - ERRRAL TR

REFZEH > BRERNREDN

LN

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

Within 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years
Over 3 years

1F AR
16226
2EFE3F
3FEME

12,413,979,489.00
212,065,785.64
121,157,668.75
633,990,820.15

Less: Provision for bad debt in respect

of accounts receivable

B EUR TR AR E

13,381,193,763.54

925,575,268.00

12,455,618,495.54

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable

are presented as follows:

30 June 2014
20146 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

728,922,061.65
214,357,208.64
(15,775.60)

(16,781,923.92)
(906,302.77)

Opening balance H S F
Provision for the period/year NEFEHR
Adjustment for exchange differences INERRITEEZR
Decrease during the period/year: NEER A
Reversal #E o)
Write-off g
Closing balance Hi R

925,575,268.00

31 December 2013
20134 12A31H
(Audited)
(EE=%)

4,183,666,055.24
276,298,860.12
192,233,714.34
517,257,771.77

5,169,456,401.47

728,922,061.65

4,440,534,339.82

31 December 2013
2013912 A31H
(Audited)
(')

671,668,964.81
108,719,527.47
113,013.65

(51,656,826.87)
77,382.59

728,922,061.65
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
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PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued)

T~ B OF B R R IEH H RE R
(%)
4. BWRRFR (&)

30 June 2014
20146 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for ~ Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%)
xdt] atiE
RS (%) BIRER L B1(%)
Individually significant items BHESHEEAY
for which provision for bad debt BEHRRRER
is recognized separately 1,028,956,061.57 323,099,900.81
Items for which provision for RBETRERER
bad debt is recognized by group 12,079,507,225.70 509,038,544.54
Not individually significant items BHSBEHIEX
for which provision for bad debt BEEEERERE
is recognized separately 272,730,476.27 93,436,822.65
13,381,193,763.54 925,575,268.00
31 December 2013
2013%12A31H
(Audited)
(&&ER)
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%)
At g
RE#TE (%) BRER L B1(%)
Individually significant items BHESBEEAL
for which provision for bad debt B IEzHRIZEERE
is recognized separately 1,678,212,894.61 32.47 385,259,234.36 22.96
Items for which provision for RAGHIRERERE
bad debt is recognized by group 3,073,350,608.67 59.45 248,249,743.32 8.08
Not individually significant items BB &2 H# A E A
for which provision for bad debt {8 BIEFHRIZIR &
is recognized separately 417,892,898.19 8.08 95,413,083.97 22.83
5,169,456,401.47 100.00 728,922,061.65
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PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. BRI (E)
R20145%F1-6 A - ERFEWRFEE
FUEIERAT :

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

From January to June 2014, the reversal or recovery of significant

accounts receivables are presented as follows:

Anhui Anyu Engineering
Machinery Sales Co., Ltd
ZRRTFTIEEMEE

BRAF

Shenyang Xin Jin Xing Car Sales

Services Limited

Reason for
reversal or

recovery

0 5 e R

Partially or
wholly recovery

Hom2BRE

Partially or

wholly recovery

Basis for
recognition of
provision for

original bad debts

BERRR
EHENKE

Estimated
recoverable amount

R UREEHE

Estimated

recoverable amount

Accumulated
amount of
provision for bad
debts before

the reversal

or recovery

L AEEA JEI]
REBFER
BREREH

32,345,800.50

5,987,103.22

Amount reversed

or recovered

®BO
W El &5

6,687,404.22

2,209,848.72

BEELEREHERS B WKE ErtaE K EE
BRAT

Jining Shi Te Heavy Duty Vehicles Partially or Estimated 25,341,539.26 1,996,146.12
Sales Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount

BEMLRELTHHE HBarREWKE ErtaE K e
BRAR

Weifang Haotai Machinery Partially or Estimated 2,319,527.70 1,216,592.20
Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount

HETT TR, HBarREWUKE ErtaE K e E
BREMRR

Sichuan Shuang Xia Automobile

Co., Ltd

M) EEAEFRAF

Partially or
wholly recovery

HomzBRE

Estimated
recoverable amount

R uEkEHE

6,571,083.66

72,565,054.34

609,760.00

12,719,751.26
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S5 R T (A

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —H -~ & 0F B % it 3% 3 2 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (748)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)
In 2013, the reversal or recovery of significant accounts receivables

FE W B K (4R
20134 & - B A M8 MR 5 88 0 ok

are presented as follows:

YemEERamT

Accumulated

amount of
Basis for provision for bad
Reason for recognition of debts before
reversal or provision for the reversal Amount reversed
recovery original bad debts or recovery or recovered
$2 [l 5k U el Al
M E RIER RitEate o5
EE R RE BB IR BREGBTRE Yy m 5 58
Anhui Anyu Engineering Machinery Partially or Estimated 50,532,996.15 18,187,195.65
Sales Co., Ltd wholly recovery recoverable amount
UL FIREWHE # o2 AT M B R
BRRA]
Datong City Yi Fu Commercial and Partially or Estimated 22,878,618.07 12,627,290.43
Trading Co., Ltd wholly recovery recoverable amount
RATHERERRETAA o2 AU G HEtrAlm e 5
LLC PC ARGO (Russia) Partially or Estimated 6,347,690.76 4,357,891.41
LLC PC ARGO(fBZ& ) wholly recovery recoverable amount
# o s 2 U FEEt A el & 58
Qingdao CAIEC Special Automobile Partially or Estimated 3,631,191.30 3,487,050.00
Co., Ltd. wholly recovery recoverable amount
BEERARBAERRDA b L dr FEr A& 58
Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Sales Partially or Estimated 24,972,976.55 1,084,860.00
Co., Ltd wholly recovery recoverable amount
RERTAEHERR QA # stz HU e e 5
108,363,472.83 39,744,287.49

For the period from January to June 2014, accounts receivable
written off amounted to RMB906,302.77 (2013: reversal of
accounts receivable written off totally RMB77,382.59). Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
has approved writing off individual accounts receivable for which
bad debt provision has been made. Such accounts receivable
written off did not arise from related party transactions.

As at 30 June 2014, within the aforesaid balance of accounts
receivable, there was no amount due from shareholders that held
5% (including 5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31
December 2013: Nil). Balance of accounts receivable with other
related parties are set out in Note VI.6.

20145 1-6 A B 1% 38 /Y FE Y BR 3R 3%
=t AR #906,302.77 7L (2013 4F ¢
HEODZENERERETARE
77,382.597C) * AR\ ZFRAIPR
mERTEARA YD IREEREN
TE BB FUEHEEE T AL - %
EREHMNERERGEEB RIS E
/_ZEo

R2014F 6 A30H @ EUERKH &
BBEARRAIS%(E5%) A ERAE
f&1D MR R BE (L M 3K TB (2013412 A
318 ¢ &) o A& B BLH {th B 5 /Y
FEYBR FRERRE R EE7S « 6 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
5. Prepayments

Within 1 year TFAR
110 2 years 1826
2 to 3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3FHE

As at 30 June 2014, there was no large-amount prepayments with

an age of more than one year (31 December 2013: Nil).

As at 30 June 2014, within the aforesaid balance of prepayment,
there was no amount due from shareholders that held 5% (including
5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2013:

Nil). The balance of prepayments with other related parties of the

Group are set out in Note VI.6.

S5 e R M o (A

201446 A30H (A R¥T)

(%)

T~ B OF B AR 1 EIH H RE R

5. BEMAFIEA

30 June 2014
201456 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBEX)
Proportion
Amount (%)

&8 EEBI(%)

31 December 2013
20134128318

(Audited)
(&&E%)
Proportion
Amount (%)

ok EEBI(%)

563,082,786.57 91.29
32,899,291.40 533
9,996,484.72 1.62
10,827,525.30 1.76

616,806,087.99 100.00

375,762,672.41 92.67
18,010,181.88 4.44
7,579,149.57 1.87
4,129,099.51 1.02
405,481,103.37 100.00

MR2014F6 A30H @ EIREE —F A

R REENFIE(2013F12 A31

A:&)o

MW2014%6 A308 @ BNREFE
FEARRAES%(E5%) A ERRE
IR KRR R B AL FRIA (2013128
318 : ) - NEFEH A0

BNRIESRBRMENR 6



Interim Report 2014 s 141

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i R B (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f I % $it 3 1 BH H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
6. Dividends receivable 6. W
30 June 2014 2014F6 H30H
Increase Decrease Reason for
Opening during during Closing being not yet Whether
(Unaudited) balance the period the period balance collected impaired
(REER) CIEIE R 52 KR D HARE ABEHERE REBLERE
Within 1 year
TENUR
CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) 1,250,000.00  (1,250,000.00)
Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PERTER(AR)
EREFERAR
Over 1 year
TEME
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto 3,040,000.00 3,040,000.00 Declared
Co., Ltd. but unpaid
R AR E D BEEEREMN
AR A

3,040,000.00  1,250,000.00 (1,250,000.00)  3,040,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
6. Dividends receivable (Continued)

31 December 2013

WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

(78)
6. BUWERF (&)
20139F12H31H

T~ B OF B AR 1 EIH H RE R

Increase Decrease Reason for
Opening during during Closing being not yet Whether
(Audited) balance the period the period balance collected impaired
(BE%) FE RELZM REFD ERE AUENEE EEEERE
Within 1 year
TF LA
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye ~ 67,500,000.00 - (67,500,000.00) -
Investment Co., Ltd.
FEEHAERE
BRATE
Shanzhong Finance Leasing - 13,230,000.00 (13,230,000.00) -
Co., Ltd.
LWEREHEEER DA
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. - 6,400,000.00 (6,400,000.00) -
LA REAERS
BRAA
Over 1 year
16 E
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto 3,040,000.00 - - 3,040,000.00 Declared No
Co., Ltd. but unpaid &
PREERET 15 T R BEEERER
ARAA
70,540,000.00 19,630,000.00 (87,130,000.00)  3,040,000.00
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
7. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

Interim Report 2014 FsRsE 143

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

4~ B B R 3 OH H kR

(748)
7. HiEWR

H A FE UK BAAR N T

30 June 2014
20146 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Total other receivables H it FEU R 42 B8
Less: Provision for bad debts

in respect of other receivables

L B R BUR BR

931,573,036.04

42,832,589.94

888,740,446.10

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

31 December 2013
2013F12A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

423,287,857.58

40,811,014.15

382,476,843.43

Hip EURFRRERBNEFIOT ¢

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)

40,811,014.15
3,037,524.20

(1,015,948.41)

Opening balance HyF R
Charge during the period/year KE S FETIR
Decrease during the period: RERR A
Reversal 0
Closing balance HlFRE

42,832,589.94

ltems for which provision R AsHERRE R
for bad debt s

recognized by group

931,573,036.04

931,573,036.04

30 June 2014
201456830
(Unaudited)
(RBEH)

Proportion

Amount Provision for

(%) bad debt

Al (%) RRER

42,832,589.94

42,832,589.94

31 December 2013
2013 12A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

36,332,979.13
22,544,233.77

(18,066,198.75)

40,811,014.15

31 December 2013
2013F12A318
(Audited)
(B%#)
Percentage Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) (%) bad debt (%)
itiELpl AR
(%) 28 0% RRER (%)

(I 423,287,857.58

100.00

40,811,014.15 9.64

U 423,287,857.58

100.00

40,811,014.15 9.64
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
7.

Other receivables (Continued)

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

From January to June 2014, there was no other receivables actually
written off (2013: Nil).

As at 30 June 2014, within the aforesaid balance of other

receivables, there was no amount due from shareholders that held

5% (including 5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31

December 2013: Nil). The balance of other receivables from related

parties of the Group are presented in Note VI.6.

Inventories

Goods in transit
Raw materials
Finished goods
OEM materials

fishg
Rt
B
EEMIIH

Self made semi-finished goods  EZ KRR

and work in progress

Turnover materials

kEm
REIH

Gross carrying
amount

RAHE

556,324,116.96
3,32,360,262.77
8,749,543,204.51
114,726,240.52

1,669,030,701.45
178,874,363.61

14,500,858,889.82

30 June 2014
201456830
(Unaudited)
(REEH)

Provision for
dedline in value

HEEA

(37,462,481.77)
(246,080,734.32)
(385,564.55)

(37,524,371.58)
(2,258,993.14)

(323,712,151.36)

Carrying

amount

REEE

556,324,116.96
3,194,897,775.00
8,503,462,470.19
114,340,675.97

1,631,506,329.87
176,615,370.47

14,177,146,738.46

T~ O B R 3 IH H Rk R

(%)
7. HittEWRE (&)
20144 1-6 A 1% 35 10 E {tb 8 U 50
(2013% : &) o
201456 A30H E M U - &
FEARRAS%(E5%) A ERRE
Pt B R R B ) R AR (20135612 A
31H ) - REBEEBER e HAM
FEM R ERFE R IHFEIS - 6 ©
8. ®&
31 December 2013
2013812A318
(Aucited)
(B%#)
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount decline in value amount
BAAR HEERE REEE
93,293429.39 - 93,293,429.39

1,219,972,863.69 (54,014,136.79)  1,165,958,726.90

6,574,401,549.77 (255,267,684.84)  6,319,133,864.93

67,883,533.88 (425,171.22) 67,458,356.66

925,559,956.78 (36,854,179.53) 888,705,777.25
40,85,841.79 (2,143.928.49) 38,712,91330

8,921,968,175.30 (348,705,106.87)  8,573,263,068.43
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f I % $it 3 1 BH H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

8. Inventories (Continued) 8. ®E(H)
The changes in provision for decline in value are as follows: FEREBLEBEHNOT -
January to June 2014 20145 1-6 H

Decrease during the period

REED
Charge Adjustment
Opening during of exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period Reversal Write-off differences balance
(REER) B9 RHHR &R B EREERE B
Raw materials iR 54,014,136.79 6,850,580.16 (33,211.02) (23,300,170.59) (68,847.57) 37,462,481.77
Finished goods ERm 255,267,684.84 36,641,996.86 (2,629,439.66) (43,085,965.15) (113,542.57) 246,080,734.32
OEM materials REMINH 425177.22 - - - (39,612.67) 385,564.55
Self made semifinished ~ BEERRR
goods and &R
work in progress 36,854,179.53 1,868,365.38 (1,188,379.59) (9,793.74) 37,524,371.58
Tumover materials e 2,143,928.49 121,506.57 - (6,441.92) 2,258,993.14
348,705,106.87 45,482,448.97 (3,851,030.27) (66,386,135.74) (238238.47)  323,712,151.36
January to December 2013 2013 1-12
Decrease during the year
AERD
Adjustment
Opening Charge of exchange Closing
(Audited) balance during the year Reversal Write-off differences balance
(B&R) EZ0E REGHE £[ g3 EXZEHE EXH
Raw materials RAtE 80,490,172.67  16,021,279.08  (18,064,748.57)  (24,619,629.88) 187,063.49  54,014,136.79
Finished goods EMm 228,815,211.69  140,895,758.62 (5,483,196.02) (109,320,454.50) 360,365.05  255,267,684.84
OEM materials ZAMINH 425,177.22 - - - - 425,177.22
Self made semifinished ~ BEERK R K
goods and EEm
work in progress 31,153,381.79 12,915,160.50 (5,520,652.18)  (1,923,867.15) 230,156.57  36,854,179.53
Turnover materials AEHH 10,409,488.86 = (1,284,800.30)  (6,945,796.60) (34,963.47) 2,143,928.49

351,293,432.23  169,832,198.20  (30,353,397.07) (142,809,748.13) 742,621.64  348,705,106.87
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

8.

Inventories (Continued)

Provision for decline in value of inventories is determined based on

the excess of cost over net realizable value and shall be reversed

within the original provision for decline in value of inventories when

the factors that give rise to the decline in value of inventories in

prior years are not in effect in current year.

The decrease in provision for decline in value of this year was mainly

due to sale.

Amounts reversed as a proportion to the closing balance of

inventories as at the end of period/year, by categories, are as

follows:

RS 2 BT 5 (48
2014465308 (AR ¥T)
T~ A 0 B e 2 A
(%)
8. BFHE(#E)

AEBRBRASNAIZEFENE
B R EHREERE - XE UKL
FEEENZERFTERE £RE
AAEMFERERFNSEAEMD -

AEGERBERBRLIERBEE
B o

HOeREZBETEY FRHE

LB

SETIVETYA (o)
June 2014(%)
20145 1-6 A (%)

9. HMRBEE

30 June 2014
201456 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Raw materials JR# R}

Finished goods EE P

OEM materials ZEEMIM R

Self made semi-finished goods and BN R REESR
work in progress

Turnover materials [EEETvER

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses FEER

Deductible value-added tax AT NI E R

Principal amount of trusted P NG

fund management
Less: Provision for impairment of
trusted fund management
Advanced payment of corporate
income tax
Available-for-sale financial assets
Principal-protected fixed income
investment products
Others

B R RRE R

BEHLE

FrS#
A ESREE
RABEE RSB E E M

HAth

400,593,083.60
391,768,318.00

27,677,250.00

(27,677,250.00)

285,892,793.21
270,000,000.00

25,000,000.00
3,274,412.68

1,376,528,607.49

2013 (%)
20134 (%)

1.48
0.08

0.60
3.14

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

2,058,128.15
400,550,687.45

27,677,250.00

(27,677,250.00)

35,000,000.00

15,000,000.00
19,209,200.38

471,818,015.98




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

10. Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value

Interim Report 2014 ks 147

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

ﬁ~ﬁ%ﬁ5ﬁ%$ﬁ?@igiﬁﬁﬁi%
(78)
10. ﬂﬁith'%%ﬁﬂﬁg
MAnBEFENAIHEES
BEE

30 June 2014

31 December 2013

Equity instruments at cost

Fair value

Fair value change included in other
comprehensive income

Impairment provided for

WS W
oS Bk
¥ om H
2
b

5
5
m
& 3

BEatiERE

20146 A30H 2013%12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

200,682,101.60 194,000,000.00

210,682,101.60 204,000,000.00

10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00

Note: As at 30 June 2014, the Company held 40 million shares of Beiqgi Foton
Motor Co., Ltd. The stock was closed at RMB5.1 per share on 30 June
2014. As at the end of the period, fair value of RMB204,000,000.00 was

recognized.

Available-for-sale financial assets at cost

£ M2014%F6A30H  ARAFBEILLAR
EHAERND AR A A MHARKRESL000
B8 2014F6 A0 Z B ER W&
BASAT/ K BREARIAEBEA
R #204,000,000.007T °

AR AN EF 2/ Al 1 &

=

30 June 2014
20146 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

309,438,236.51
(123,356,130.00)

Equity instrument at cost T AMRA
Impairment provided for B RRE
Opening impairment provided for FYIE T IRRE
Provision for the period RERET IR
Decrease during the period N HR R
Closing impairment provided for HIRE FHERE

(123,356,130.00)

(123,356,130.00)

Equity investments which were not quoted in an active market and

the fair value of which could not be reliably measured as at 30 June

2014 was measured at cost. The Group does not have any plan of

disposal of such equity investments in the foreseeable future.

TRE

31 December 2013
20134 12831H
(Audited)
(&%)

213,958,056.11
(123,356,130.00)

(123,356,130.00)

(123,356,130.00)

MR201456 A30AE/ERMISEHEE
WE - AABETHEASAENER
MR EAKATE  AEEEAER
iR ER AR ENE BT

& -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
11. Long-term receivables

30June 2014
2014568308

RS 2 BT 5 (48

2014465308 (AR ¥T)

B OB A 2
s

11. REERRR

31 December 2013
2013124310

(Unaudited)

(REER)
Provision for
impairment

RERH

Gross carrying

Carrying
amount

REEE

amount

REGHE

Finance lease receivables BERERYH 4,118,718,149.40 4,118,718,149.40

4,118,718,149.40 4,118,718,149.40

It is analyzed by nature as follows:

(Audited)
(@27

Gross carrying
amount

Fasa

Provision for
impairment

RiEER

Carrying
amount

FHEE

Finance lease receivables Bl & & UK
Less: Provision for bad debts in respect & : £ HAJE U 70 E BR A4
of long-term receivables
Less: Long-term receivables due BT —F A EIHR Y R HA R R

within one year

12. Long-term equity investments

Listed investment EWEE
Equity method — associates A B
Unlisted investment ELETIRE

Equity method — associates

B RERERE R EER

Less: Provision for impairment of long-
term equity investments

BUEESHAT

30 June 2014
20146 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(')

4,118,718,149.40

4,118,718,149.40

1,529,815,114.80

2,588,903,034.60

12. REIRERE

30 June 2014
201456 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

31 December 2013
2013412 A831H
(Audited)
(&%)

6,631,346,533.88

1,532,405,706.75

1,158,167,046.32

1,532,405,706.75

284,499.56

7,789,513,580.20

284,499.56

1,532,121,207.19

7,789,229,080.64
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f I % $it 3 1 BH H 51

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (%)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. RERERE(E)
30 June 2014 2014F6 H30H
Increase Provision for
(decrease) Percentage Percentage impairment Cash
Investment Opening during Closing  of ownership of voting ~ Provision for madein  dividend for
(Unaudited) cost halance the period halance equity power impairment ~ current period the period
AR
(7227 REAAEE EEE ARE) BRY KREA RARLA HEER AEER  AHRSAA
Equity method Esit
Shanzhong Finance LERERERRAA
Leasing Co, Ltd. 360,000,00000  409,920,340.57 957058356 419,490924.13 39.13 39.13
Shandong Heawy Industry Growp  IUEE T £ BEHARAT)
finance Co, Ltd. 200,000,00000  213,732,394.01 12,014962.16  225,747,356.17 2000 2000
Xian FC nteligence Transmission  BX #4524 BHARAT
Co, Ltd. (Note 1) (1) 255,000,00000 23015006277 (19317,12888)  210,832,933.89 51.00 800 - -
KION Group AG AHEBRAERAA TAT7,185419.10  6,631,346,534.00  (6,631,346,534.00) - 330 60.20 - 96,986,272.65
Others it 050,017,43871 30436424885  371970,243.71  676,334,492.56 20-495 20495 (284,499.56) 1,250,000.00
Totl & BS02L85T81 178951358020 (625710787345) 1,532405,706.75 (284,49956) 98236,272.65
31 December 2013 2013%12A31H
Increase Provision for
(decrease) Percentage Percentage impairment Cash
Investment Opening during Closing ~ of ownership of voting Provision for made in dividend for
(Audited) cost balance the year balance equity power impairment current year the year
KEHR
(&82H) RENALE 48 KEE(R) EfH FRuLi FRELI HEER REEE  RERSMA
Equity method Bz
KION Group AG (orginaly KION I EBRAERAR
Holding 1 GmbH) (EKION Holding 1 GmbH) ~ 6,696,224682.00 38843192000  2,747,07,33388  6,631,346,533.88 30.00 30.00 - - -
Shanzhong Finance LERERERRAT
Leasing Co, Ltd. 360,000,00000 39902792174 1089241883 409,920,34057 39.13 313 - - 1323000000
XanFCInteligence Transmission ~~ EREHE R EHERD
Co, Ltd. (Note 1) (&#1) 255,000,00000 19361135167 36538,711.10  230,150,062.77 51.00 4300 - - -
Shandong Heawy Industry Growp ~~ IWRET£BEHARAR
Finance Co, Ltd. 20000000000 20242465478 11307,739.3  213,732,3%4.01 2000 2000 - - -
Others f 31729347740 20684317788 97521,071.09  304,364,24897 20495 20-495 (284,499.56) - (67,500,000.00)
Total &t 7818518,15940  4,886,226306.07 290328727413 7,789,513580.20 (284,499.56) - (5427000000
Note 1: According to the articles of association, another two investors have 21 REBER SMAREEEARER
four out of seven board seats at the board of Xi'an FC Intelligence HEEEHERAFNESSHA57
Transmission Co., Ltd. and hold over half of the voting rights, as such the NEBBMNMIMIESREN  ZEB
Group has no control over that investee. FEERRE  AEEEZKRES

L BAB 4
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)

13. Investment property

13. REMEHE
AR SR ITRE E
201441-6 A

Subsequent measure under the cost model:
January to June 2014

Opening Increase during  Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period  Closing balance
(REEEZ) ERIE | ZH 8 FHED HMAE
Gross carrying amount ~ BEERE
Houses and buildings FEREEY 591,466,267.63 1,838,593.00 (1,397,997.29)  591,906,863.34
Land use rights + Mo A A 47,204,688.83 - - 47,204,688.83
638,670,956.46 1,838,593.00 (1,397,997.29) 639,111,552.17
Less: Accumulated A RFHER
depreciation RetEs
and amortization
Houses and buildings EEREEY 88,519,301.18 12,800,698.50 (293,812.42)  101,026,187.26
Land use rights + 3t {55 A4 2,755,103.65 539,570.94 = 3,294,674.59
91,274,404.83 13,340,269.44 (293,812.42) 104,320,861.85
Net carrying amount IREFE
Houses and buildings FEREEY 502,946,966.45  (10,962,105.50) (1,104,184.87)  490,880,676.08
Land use rights T A 44,449,585.18 (539,570.94) - 43,910,014.24
547,396,551.63 (11,501,676.44) (1,104,184.87) 534,790,690.32
Less: Provision for A OREER
impairment
Houses and buildings EELEEY
Land use rights T AR
Carrying amount REEE
Houses and buildings FEEREEN 502,946,966.45 (10,962,105.50) (1,104,184.87)  490,880,676.08
Land use rights T AR 44,449,585.18 (539,570.94) = 43,910,014.24

547,396,551.63

(11,501,676.44)

(1,104,184.87)

534,790,690.32



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

13. Investment property (Continued)

Subsequent measure under the cost model: (Continued)

2013

(Audited)
(&%)

Opening balance

ENH
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SR 5 i 3R B 5 (48
20146 H30H (A R#T)

T~ B OF B R R IEH H RE R

(%)

13. REMFEHE (&)
RARAEREITEEHE - (8

20134
Increase during Decrease during
the year

REZN

the year

KERD

Closing balance

FRY

Gross carrying amount BEERE
Houses and buildings BEREEY 381,975,205.74 209,491,061.89 - 591,466,267.63
Land use rights T fE A 7,529,088.83 39,675,600.00 - 47,204,688.83
389,504,294.57 249,166,661.89 - 638,670,956.46

Less: Accumulated

W REHTEANR

depreciation st g
and amortization
Houses and buildings BEREEY) 58,629,982.19 29,889,318.99 - 88,519,301.18
Land use rights TR 879,541.52 1,875,562.13 = 2,755,103.65
59,509,523.71 31,764,881.12 - 91,274,404.83
Net carrying amount REFE
Houses and buildings BEREEY 323,345,223.55 179,601,742.90 = 502,946,966.45
Land use rights TR 6,649,547.31 37,800,037.87 = 44,449,585.18
329,994,770.86 217,401,780.77 - 547,396,551.63
Less: Provision for A OREERE
impairment
Houses and buildings FEREEY = = = =
Land use rights 3 R 4 - — _ _
Carrying amount REEE
Houses and buildings FEREEY 323,345,223.55 179,601,742.90 - 502,946,966.45
Land use rights TR 6,649,547.31 37,800,037.87 = 44,449,585.18

329,994,770.86

217,401,780.77 =

547,396,551.63
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51
Statements (Continued) (48)
13. Investment property (Continued) 13. REMEHE (&)

From January to June 2014, the amount of depreciation or
amortization was RMB13,340,269.44 (2013: RMB25,929,675.35).
No accumulated depreciation was transferred to investment property
from fixed assets during the period (2013: RMB5,835,205.77). As

at 30 June 2014, no investment property was mortgaged to secure

repayment of bank borrowings (31 December 2013: nil).

As at 30 June 2014, investment properties for which the Group

had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount
of RMB96,367,932.84 (31 December 2013: RMB99,286,564.20),

among which investment properties for which the Group was in the

process of applying for real estate certificates had a carrying amount
of RMB96,367,932.84 (31 December 2013: RMB99,286,564.20).

14. Fixed assets

January to June 2014

(Unaudited)
(REER)
Gross carrying amount BERE
Land, Houses and T FER
buildings BEY
Machinery and equipment £ 222%
Electronic equipment BF%
Vehicles EHIA
Other equipment Efk
Forklift trucks and RLHRER
equipment leased out RiB(RH)
(long-term)
Forklift trucks and AL RER
equipment leased out RE(RH)

(short-term)

Opening
balance

B8

6,247,057,239.57
12,360,196,439.65
834,203,871.70
362,041,242.24
1,450,674,775.80

21,254,173,568.96

Increase during
the period

RE

2,681,025,497.71
1,073,709,623.51
83,298,288.31
570,275,673.36
690,427,109.21

2,401,895,936.16

3,452,270,855.40

10,952,902,983.66

14.

Decrease during
the period

LN

(9,655,366.48)
(66,187,762.90)
(19,946,163.57)

(7,919,098.17)

(7,480,259.58)

(111,188,650.70)

2014 1-6 AstIRMITE K EHE S
A ANR%13,340,269.4450 (2013
£ ANR#25,929,675.357T) ° &
HEftETEEBAREEREER
25T 9T E (20134 : 5,835,205.77
JT) ° R2014F6 A30H - AE@E
EHAARBRERITERNIZE R
E(2013F12A318 + #&) »

M20146F6 A30H @ AEEHKRE
BRBEFHREEEHERTER
B ANR¥96,367,932.847T (20134
12A31H8 : AR ¥99,286,564.20
T) o HA - AEBTFERBEHE
FHNREUEEHERAEEAAR
#96,367,932.847C (2013412 A 31
B : AR%99,286,564.207L) °

BE&E
2014%1-6 A

Adjustment of

exchange
differences

ERZRAE

Closing balance

BARH

(41,060.89)
(1,813,229.39)
106,939.37
69,896.83
26,835.89

8,918,386,309.91
13,365,905,070.87
897,662,935.81
924,467,714.26
2,133,648,461.32

2,401,895,936.16

3,452,270,855.40

(1,650,618.19)  32,094,237,283.73
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i R B (48

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f I % $it 3 1 BH H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)

14. BIEEE(E)
20145 1-6 A (&)

14. Fixed assets (Continued)
January to June 2014 (Continued)

(short-term)

13,214,321,875.38

3,452,270,855.40

10,004,390,046.16

(28,747,701.22)

(1,361,657.66)

Adjustment of
Opening Increase during Decrease during exchange
(Unaudited) balance the period the period differences Closing balance
(REER) R REEmM s EXZEAZ MR
Less: Accumulated B RHIE
depreciation
Land, Houses and T BER
buildings e 1,072,444,393.42 135,095,528.07 (2,887,446.41) 1,659.56 1,204,654,134.64
Machinery and equipment ~ #2%:% 5,489,309,912.04 596,223,471.21 (50,148,343.15) (367,335.01)  6,035,017,705.09
Electronic equipment R 442,249,799.46 120,356,247.00 (19,415,620.17) 49,299.76 543,239,726.05
Vehicles BHIA 239,312,055.76 30,785,146.41 (7,215,741.64) 20,721.10 262,902,181.63
Other equipment Hitngk 796,535,532.90 66,052,544.81 (2,773,798.11) 6,694.06 859,820,973.66
Forklift trucks and BEOXERE
equipment leased out fB(RE)
(long-term)
Forklift trucks and BHOXERE
equipment leased out (2
(short-term)
8,039,851,693.58 948,512,937.50 (82,440,949.48) (288,960.53)  8,905,634,721.07
Net carrying amount BEFE
Land, Houses and i FER
buildings fe=%) 5.174,612,846.15 2,545,929,969.64 (6,767,920.07) (42,720.45)  7,713,732,175.27
Machinery and equipment 222} 6,870,886,527.61 477,486,152.30 (16,039,419.75) (1,445,894.38)  7,330,887,365.78
Electronic equipment BT 391,954,072.24 (37,057,958.69) (530,543.40) 57,639.61 354,423,209.76
Vehicles EHTA 122,729,186.48 539,490,526.95 (703,356.53) 49,175.73 661,565,532.63
Other equipment HibzR 654,139,242.90 624,374,564.40 (4,706,461.47) 20,141.83 1,273,827,487.66
Forklift trucks and REHRNER
equipment leased out RiB(RH)
(long-term) 2,401,895,936.16 2,401,895,936.16
Forklift trucks and RLHNER
equipment leased out RE(EH)

3,452,270,855.40

23,188,602,562.66
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BIEEE(E)
January to June 2014 (Continued) 2014F1-6 A (#&)
Adjustment of
Opening Increase during Decrease during exchange
(Unaudited) balance the period the period differences Closing balance
(REER) LERIE REEm ) ) EiZEAE BRE
Less: Provision for B REEE
impairment
Land, Houses and T FERE
buildings Exy) 2,524,547.15 - - 2,524,547.15
Machinery and equipment  #2%:% 61,181,933.03 32,189,114.36 (2,987.58) 93,368,059.81
Electronic equipment ERE 8,464.02 31,229.32 - 39,693.34
Vehicles BHIE 1,047,369.85 - - 1,047,369.85
Other equipment Hibzk 383,460.37 5,704.15 - 389,164.52
Forklift trucks and REHRER
equipment leased out RiB(RA)
(long-term)
Forklift trucks and AL RER
equipment leased out RE(RH)
(short-term)
65,145,774.42 32,226,047.83 (2,987.58) 97,368,834.67
Carrying amount REEE
Land, Houses and 1 BER
buildings BEY 5,172,088,299.00 2,545,929,969.64 (6,767,920.07) (42,720.45)  7,711,207,628.12
Machinery and equipment  #2%:% 6,809,704,594.58 445,297,037.94 (16,036,432.17) (1,445,894.38)  7,237,519,305.97
Electronic equipment B 391,945,608.22 (37,089,188.01) (530,543.40) 57,639.61 354,383,516.42
Vehicles FHIA 121,681,816.63 539,490,526.95 (703,356.53) 49,175.73 660,518,162.78
Other equipment HibR 653,755,782.53 624,368,860.25 (4,706,461.47) 20,141.83 1,273,438,323.14
Forklift trucks and R RER
equipment leased out RE(RH)
(long-term) 2,401,895,936.16 2,401,895,936.16
Forklift trucks and R RER
equipment leased out RE(EH)
(short-term) 3,452,270,855.40 3,452,270,855.40

13,149,176,10096  9,972,163,998.33 (28,744,713.64) (1,361,657.66)  23,091,233,727.99




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
14. Fixed assets (Continued)

S5 R T (A

20146 H30H (A R#T)

(%)

14. BEEE ()
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T~ B OF B R R IEH H RE R

2013 20134
Adjustment of
Opening Increase during Decrease during exchange
(Audited) halance the year the year differences Closing balance
(B%%) EXL REEM RERD EREERE ERY
Gross carrying amount BERE
Land, Houses and i BER
buildings BEY 5,111,705,083.12 1,187,166,418.27 (52,392,827.70) 578,565.88 6,247,057,239.57
Machinery and equipment BBk 10,717,767,484.66  1,804,089,913.76 (169,048,275.34) 738731657 12,360,196,439.65
Electronic equipment SFHE 507,182,340.22 342,607,729.56 (15,424,670.92) (161,527.16) 834,203,871.70
Vehicles BHIA 327,933,010.49 50,754,683.49 (16,546,686.21) (99,765.53) 362,041,242.24
Other equipment Hi kMl 1,337,731,588.14 127,258,763.52 (13,686,671.77) (628,904.09) 1,450,674,775.80
18,002,319,506.63 3,511,877,508.60 (267,099,131.94) 7,075,685.67  21,254,173,568.96
Less: Accumulated depreciation i : E5H47E
Land, Houses and T FER
buildings BEY 802,170,803.18 316,321,99%.12 (45,998,188.35) (50,217.53) 1,072,444,393.42
Machinery and equipment R 4434783739.06  1,163,280,851.10 (108,770,114.86) 15436.74  5489,309,912.04
Electronic equipment STHE 313,606,323.63 143,230,325.05 (14,590,667.76) 3,818.54 447,249,799.46
Vehicles EHIA 215,660,556.07 38,292,969.48 (14,601,420.01) (40,049.78) 239,312,055.76
Other equipment Bk 674,275,041.55 134,318,340.39 (11,460,448.13) (597,400.91) 796,535,532.90
6,440,496,463.49 1,795,444,482.14 (195,420,839.11) (668,412.94)  8,039,851,693.58
Net carrying amount REFE
Land, Houses and T FER
buildings BEY 4,309,534,279.94 870,844,422.15 (6,394,639.35) 628,783.41 5,174,612,846.15
Machinery and equipment BER 6,282,983,745.60 640,809,062.66 (60,278,160.48) 7371,879.83  6,870,886,527.61
Electronic equipment BTk 193,576,016.59 199,377,404.51 (834,003.16) (165,345.70) 391,954,072.24
Vehicles BHTA 112,272,454.42 12,461,714.01 (1,945,266.20) (59,715.75) 122,729,186.48
Other equipment ARl 663,456,546.59 (7,059,576.87) (2,226,223.64) (31,503.18) 654,139,242.90
11,561,823,043.14 1,716,433,026.46 (71,678,292.83) 7,744,098.61  13,214,321,875.38
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B IRHBRAF

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ B OF B AR 1 EIH H RE R

Statements (Continued) (%)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BEEE (&)
2013 (Continued) 20134 (45&)
Adjustment of
Opening Increase during Decrease during exchange
(Audited) balance the year the year differences Closing balance
(BF%) L2 REEN RERD EREERE EXRY
Less: Provision for impairment ¥, : Bi{E %
Land, Houses and T BER
buildings BEY 2,524,547.15 - - - 2,524,547.15
Machinery and equipment HER 31,436,575.16 30,087,554.05 (342,196.18) - 61,181,933.03
Electronic equipment ET#% = 8,464.02 - - 8,464.02
Vehicles EHTH 989,030.26 58,339.59 - - 1,047,369.85
Other equipment Hi 383,460.37 - - - 383,460.37
35,333,612.94 30,154,357.66 (342,196.18) = 65,145,774.42
Carrying amount REEE
Land, Houses and T BER
buildings BEY 4,307,009,732.79 870,844,422.15 (6,394,639.35) 628,783.41 5,172,088,299.00
Machinery and equipment HERE 6,251,547,170.44 610,721,508.61 (59,935,964.30) 7,371,879.83 6,809,704,594.58
Electronic equipment BTRE 193,576,016.59 199,368,940.49 (834,003.16) (165,345.70) 391,945,608.22
Vehicles EHTA 111,283,424.16 12,403,374.42 (1,945,266.20) (59,715.75) 121,681,816.63
Other equipment Hiv:R1E 663,073,086.22 (7,059,576.87) (2,226,223.64) (31,503.18) 653,755,782.53
11,526,489,430.20 1,686,278,668.80 (71,336,096.65) 7,744,098.61  13,149,176,100.96
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (748)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. B EEE(E)

From January to June 2014, the amount of depreciation of fixed
assets was RMB948,512,937.50 (2013: RMB1,795,444,482.14).
From January to June 2014, the amount of gross carrying amount
of fixed assets transferred from construction in progress was
RMB539,464,100.99 (2013: RMB3,361,399,485.81).

From January to June 2014, the addition to the gross carrying
amount of fixed assets was RMB10,952,902,983.66 (2013:
RMB3,511,877,508.60), of which addition to the gross carrying
amount of fixed assets from merger with subsidiaries amounted to
RMB10,302,507,304.56 (2013: Nil).

As at 30 June 2014, houses and buildings and machinery and
equipment pledged to secure for the Group’s bank loans amounted
to RMB40,714,793.97 (31 December 2013: RMB51,771,460.59).

As at 30 June 2014, the Group's idle fixed assets had a carrying
amount of RMB38,278,338.73 in aggregate (31 December 2013:
RMB46,856,298.46).

2014516 FEEEENESER
A E ¥ 948,512,937.50 7t ( 2013
F - AN R ¥ 1,795,444,482.14
L) 2 2014F1-6 ARERTRE
ANEBEEERENEZERARE
539,464,100.997T (2013%F : AR
#3,361,399,485.817T) ©

2014 F1-6 AREEEEMERER
AR #10,952,902,983.667T (2013
F: ANR#¥3,511,877,508.607T)
HABROEEAHFTEETEER
8 A A K% 10,302,507,304.56 7T
(20134 : /&) -

M2014F 6 A30H @ AEEBEEHH
RERGRITEFRNEERBEEDN
#eg Rt A AR 40,714,793.97
L (2013F 12 A31H : AR
51,771,460.597T) °

M2014F 6 A30H » AEER
EEEFREEEAFAARE
38,278,338.73 7L (2013 12 A 31
B : AR%46,856,298.467L) °
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. EEEE(HE)
As at 30 June 2014, fixed assets leased out under operating lease MR2014F6A30H @ K& MHHAEETE
were as follows: BEWMT :
Gross carrying Accumulated Provision for Carrying
(Unaudited) amount depreciation impairment amount
(REER) RERE EEEiE- BEERE REEE
Electronic equipment EFE 4,041,738.37 (3,269,204.53) 772,533.84
Machinery and equipment Hes R 30,797,246.90 (16,192,129.98) 14,605,116.92
Transportation equipment BRI 81,649.72 (79,200.23) 2,449.49
Forklift trucks and equipment AENYER
leased out (long-term) HE(RE) 2,401,895,936.16 2,401,895,936.16
Forklift trucks and equipment AENNER
leased out (short-term) SE(E) 3,452,270,855.40 3,452,270,855.40
As at 31 December 2013, fixed assets leased out under operating MR2013F12A318 - &L RN
lease were as follows: FEEWMT :
Gross carrying Accumulated Provision for Carrying
(Audited) amount depreciation impairment amount
(BE2) RERE 2iE %R REEE
Electronic equipment BEFRE 4,036,238.65 (3,174,394.66) - 861,843.99
Machinery and equipment SR H 30,884,396.34  (15,291,512.09) = 15,592,884.25
Transportation equipment B 81,649.72 (79,200.23) - 2,449.49
As at 30 June 2014, houses and buildings for which the MR2014F6 A30R + AEE K
Group had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying ESEHEENRFERZEYERE
amount of RMB1,943,308,084.60 (31 December 2013: BEE A AR ¥1,943,308,084.60
RMB2,039,195,294.54), among which houses and buildings for gL (2013F 12 A31H : AR¥
which the Group was in the process of applying for real estate 2,039,195,294.547T) - Hep » K&
certificates had a carrying amount of RMB1,855,409,550.31 (31 EFEHFFHEZNEEREEMER
December 2013: RMB1,910,901,295.58). mEEAAR¥1,855409,550.31

gt (2013%F 12 A31H : AR
1,910,901,295.587T) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i R B (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & ff i % $it 3 1 B H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
15. Construction in progress 15. ZE IR
January to June 2014 20144 1-6 H

Transferred to
fived assets
Opening  Increase during during Other Closing ~ Source
(Unaudited) balance the period the period decrease balance  of funding
AHEA
(REEH) L AN BE&E HtbEs BEE EERR
FAST transmission technology renovation A+ BEERMIEE [ERARLLLENA 65,825,320.80 (70,475,407.89) - 521,239,002.61 internal fund
project L)%
Weichai Power Testing Centre U I 484,177,190.28 31,856,664.05  (19,644,900.56) 496,388,953.77  internal fund
HE4E
Renovation for the casting project iz b 179,262,566.81 96,502,409.39  (52,614,845.29) 23,150,130.91  internal fund
of Weichai Power it HEEE
Logistics Park of Weichai Power BEBNYRE 136,935,837.65 23,553,457.19 - 160,489,204.84 internal fund
HEEE
Weichai Power Information Centre T T WISt AY  127,479,519.89 3,506,183.22 - 130,985,703.11 internal fund
L) -6
Huadong technology renovation T yES Tl 153,294522.76 6,754,117.91 (54,892,527.05) 105,156,113.62  internal fund
project of Weichai Power K] L) -6
Weichai Power interim testing workshop %48 1 5 &R 98,056,401.38 20,705,634.08 (18,762,301.63) 99,999,733.83 internal fund
project AH BERE
Weichai Power Landking Phase | BUHNEL_H 162,196,686.05 23,238,502.49 (85,614,573.53) - 99,820,615.01 i élternaﬁl fund
oE -
Construction of Yulin new factory area WTBRER 89,003,458.49 - (2,248 264.44) (1,900,894.87)  84,854,299.18 Internal funds
and bank
borrowings
BRELA
RITER
Zhuzhou gear technology VS EEGSCE] 79,427,299.11 23,277.51 - 79,450,576.62  internal fund
renovation project HEES
Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi Zhongqi~~ RE 5T — 5 68,903,227.31 5,521,466.82 (3,977,290.53) 70,447,40360  internal fund
HEEE
Project T of Weichai Power HLHNTER 48,725,143.93 5,135,603.13 (6,913,281.34) 46,947, 465.72  internal fund
L) -6
Project on workshop 3t 4in Factory lof #4548 71— 20,834,114.78 18,696,934.69 (858,653.83) - 38,672,395.64 internal fund
Weichai Power 3-4EHEE BEES
Overhaul of technological ETRREAE 12,585,442.01 402,620.00 (24030445)  12,747,757.56 internal fund
measures of FAST HEES
Project for combining three ETRERNS 162,393.16 7,448,753.94 (23,589.74) 75587,557.36  internal fund
workshops for FAST gear “HHER HEEE
Sparkplug technology renovation project A T EHBUEE 6,689,782.32 - - 6,689,78232 internal fund
HEEE
150,000 - tonne casting project in SEFBRISEN 972,298.00 470,798.36 (480,588.36) 962,508.00 internal fund
Jinding new factory area el L)%
Project of new heawy-duty truck in Xinjang BB FEHE 285,182.69 3,738,402.76 (3,736,946.45) 286,639.00 Internal funds
3R and bank
borrowings
HEEER
RITER
Others 2 785,655,505.84 37345536372 (219,220,930.35) (16,206,022.79)  923,683,916.42 internal fund
BEES
Sub-total It 2,980,535,662.16 686,835,510.06  (539,464,100.99) (18,347,222.11)  3,109,559,849.12
Add: Prepaid project equipment monies 111 TS TI2R B FAREULER) 478,312,495.38
Prepaid land premium Btz 11,986,232.58 13,304,963.00
Total &R 3,287,828,671.74 3,601,177,307.50

Less: Provision for impairment of
construction in progress

Total

3,738,267.94

3,284,090,409.80

3,738,267.94

3,597,439,039.56
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W B ¥ 2 BT 5E (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 /a;iﬁ BB e 1 IH H R R

Statements (Continued) (48)
15. Construction in progress (Continued) 15. EEITRE(HE)
2013 20134
Transferred to
fixed assets
Opening Increase during during Other Closing ~ Source
(Audited) balance the year the year decrease balance  of funding
. EFEA \ \
(1#55) il 5 BeaE L4 EXB ALHR
FAST transmission technology renovation £+ EEKAER  387,185,943.49 49511115009 (200,753917.05  (155,654,086.83)  525,889,089.70 internal fund
project BEE%
Weichai Power Testing Centre ERGHEBEL 65860869395 13819102792 (312,622,53159) - 48417719028 internal fund
AE4%
Renovation for the casting project of HEBNERER 755,689,743.26 82.817,067.29  (659,244,243.74) - 179,262,566.81 internal fund
Weichai Power Y BEEE
Weichai Power Landking Phase I HEHNEL"H 29988246653 293403313 (140,619,813.61) - 162,196,686.05  internal fund
BE4%
Huadong technology renovation projectof ~ #4ENZEF KM 129,246,782.90 6789240293 (43,844,663.07) - 15329452276 internal fund
Weichai Power ER BRES
Logistics Park of Weichai Power BEH DR 67,665,513.85 79,131,995.79 (9,861,671.99) - 136935837.65 internal fund
B5E2
Weichai Power Information Centre BEHAESLRL 6195988160 65,519,638.29 - - 127479519.89  internal fund
AEES
Weichai Power interim testing workshop #6448 /1 3 2 114,683,202.15 55,118,250.22 (71,745,050.99) - 98,056,401.38  internal fund
project B AE&%
Construction of Yulin new factory area WTBRER 277,888,534.33 50,771,187.98  (166,65,263.82)  (73,000,000.00) 89,003,45849  Internal funds
and bank
borrowings
AERAT
FAER
Zhuzhou Gear technology renovation U EEGSCE] 94,906,835.43 2,027,809.49 (17,507,345.81) - 79427299.11  internal fund
project BREE
Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi Zhongqi~~ BRERHE =5 67,900,178.87 81,888,519.76 (62,774,114.35)  (18,111,356.97) 6890322731 internal fund
BE4%
Project T of Weichai Power HLHNTER 185,448,274.75 33817,763.60  (170,540,894.42) - 4872514393 internal fund
B5ES
Project onworkshop 3to 4 in Factory lof %4871 —% K 152,345,024.65 86,359,09%.31  (217,870,006.18) - 20834,114.78  internal fund
Weichai Power 3-4ERER BEES
Overhaul of technological measures of AIRHEAL 6,373,867.54 24,498 766.41 (18,287,191.94) = 1258544201 internal fund
FAST AEES
Sparkplug technology renovation project A TEERHER 28479,968.91 559042007 (413633909 (3.24427657) 6,689,782.32 internal fund
AEA%
150,000-tonne casting projectin finding £ SAEE15EE 29588980772 15315587104 (425633709.97)  (22,439,67089) 972,298.00 internal fund
new factory area BHER BE4%
Project of new heawy-duty truck in Xiniang ~ TEER REHE  370,828,069.39 364400285 (35488676149 (19,300,218.06) 285,182.69  Internal funds
R and bank
borrowings
AERAT
FAER
Project for combining three workshops for i TR EREA 41,802,588.71 951541276 (51,155,608.31) - 162,393.16  internal fund
FAST gear “BHER BREE
Others Eh 495,146,371.89 71544368570 (413,259,358.39) (11,675,193.36)  785,655,505.84 internal fund
BEA%
Sub-total It 449193174992 215342820073  (3361,399485.81)  (303,424,802.68)  2,980,535,662.16
Add: Prepaid project equipment monies 1 B TRREHK  576,287,158.40 295,306,783.00
Prepaid land premium BT 110,618,777.61 11,986,232.58
Total ar 5,178,837,685.93 3,281,828,671.74
Less: Provision for impairment of B ERIERE 3,738,267.94 3,738,267.94
construction in progress Efl

Total A 5,175,099,417.99 3,284,090,409.80
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

15. Construction in progress (Continued) 15. EEITRE(HE)
As at 30 June 2014, there was no construction in progress that had MR2014%6A30H @ A E®EIKEH
been pledged by the Group to obtain bank loans (31 December REERTERNERETIE(20134F
2013: Nil). 12A318 - &) -
In this period, the Group has no capitalized borrowings for RKEAEFEEEEZTIRERERERE AR
construction in progress (2013: RMB11,723,298.63). (20134 : AR®11,723,298.63

JT) °

16. Materials used in construction 16. IEYWE

January to June 2014 20145 1-6 H
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing

(Unaudited) balance the period the period balance
(REEHER) iRE REE M EERD HRY

Special equipment ERRE 16,914.51 2,687,621.60 (2,217,707.04) 486,829.07

2013 20134
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year balance
(BEZ) FONEY RERLM KEFD FRY

Special equipment HRRE - 11,966,405.54 (11,949,491.03) 16,914.51
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
17. Intangible assets 17. B EE
January to June 2014 2014 1-6 H

Increase Decrease Adjustment of

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Gross carrying amount EERE
Technology know-how EERM
Trademark rights ARERE
Licence i
Land use rights TR
Orders on hand EFiIE
Customer relationship REEA
Intangible assets arising from ~ REFEFAK

in-house research and BVEE
development
Prepayments BAHE
Software B
Others i

Less: Accumulated amortization i - 23t 8
Technology know-how 2ERM
Trademark rights AR
Licence it i
Land use rights T
Orders on hand EFITE
Customer relationship REEA
Intangible assets arising from ~ EHEFAK

in-house research and BYEE
development
Prepayments BAHE
Software ks
Others ity

Opening
balance

LRI

397,946,054.86
226,203,400.00
61,396,024.64
1,376,361,556.58
312,238,546.98
415,598,699.70

125,687,552.10
9,625,222.83

2,925,057,057.69

352,052,941.15
15,562,372.69
6,197,346.24
128,698,867.23
38,634,332.10
53,670,487.50

54,711,074.68
2,098,326.61

651,625,748.20

during
the period
REEmM

899,390,059.48
4,990,396,624.20
517,602,641.40
64,636,462.54
1,620,065.56
3,579,174,390.29

12,289,694.40

7,202,566.80
69,188,116.98
48,821,671.30

10,190,322,292.95

5,136,519.22
2,920.02
3,068,962.10
14,766,208.97
11,798,447.36
26,815,418.00

4,644,253.68
2,310,568.57

08,543,297.92

the period
THED

during exchange

differences

(54,117.30)

(176,956.25)

(905,909.84)
(1,204,239.72)

(31,978.73)

(2,373,201.84)

(3,556.49)

(24,754.91)

(138,716.16)
(216,740.30)

(11,383.97)

(395,151.83)

Closing
balance

BARY

1,297,281,997.04
5,216,600,024.20
578,821,709.79
1,440,998,019.12
312,952,702.70
3,993,568,850.27

12,289,694.40
7,202,566.80
194,875,669.08
58,414,915.40

13,113,006,148.80

357,185,903.88
15,565,292.71
9,241,553.43
143,465,076.20
50,294,063.30
80,269,165.20

59,355,328.36
4,397,511.21

719,773,894.29
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f I % $it 3 1 BH H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)

17. B EE(E)
20145 1-6 A (&)

17. Intangible assets (Continued)
January to June 2014 (Continued)

Increase Decrease Adjustment of
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period differences balance
(REER) HA# KHEmM .- EXZERE Ay
Net carrying amount RETE
Technology know-how v 4589311371 894253,540.26 (50,560.81)  940,096,093.16
Trademark rights AR 210,641,027.31  4,990,393,704.18 5,201,034,731.49
Licence HatiE 55198,678.40  514,533,679.30 (152,201.34)  569,580,156.36
Land use rights T ERE 1,247,662,689.35 49,870,253.57 - 1,297,532,942.92
Orders on hand EFiE 273,604,214.88 (10,178,381.80) (767,193.68) 262,658,639.40
Customer relationship EPB% 361,928212.20  3,552,358,972.29 (987,499.42)  3,913,299,685.07
Intangible assets arising from RETELH,
in-house research and BYEE
development - 12,289,694.40 12,289,694.40
Prepayments S - 7,202,566.80 7,202,566.80
Software it 70,976,477.42 64,543,863.30 135,520,340.72
Others Hit 7,526,896.22 46,511,102.73 (20,594.76) 54,017,404.19
2,273,431,309.49  10,121,778,995.03 (1,978,050.01)  12,393,232,254.51
Less: Provision for impairment 3 © BE%E(E
Carrying amount REEE
Technology know-how EBR 45,893,113.71 894,253,540.26 (50,560.81) 940,096,093.16
Trademark rights AR 210,641,027.31  4,990,393,704.18 5,201,034,731.49
Licence ariE 55,198,678.40 514,533,679.30 (152,201.34) 569,580,156.36
Land use rights TR 1,247,662,689.35 49,870,253.57 - 1,297,532,942.92
Orders on hand EFiIE 273,604,214.88 (10,178,381.80) (767,193.68) 262,658,639.40
Customer relationship ZPHBR 36192821220  3,552,358,972.29 (987,499.42)  3,913,299,685.07
Intangible assets arising from R ERHTE /X
in-house research and apEE
development - 12,289,694.40 12,289,694.40
Prepayments i - 7,202,566.80 7,202,566.80
Software it 70,976,477.42 64,543,863.30 135,520,340.72
Others Hit 7,526,896.22 46,511,102.73 (20,594.76) 54,017,404.19

2,273,431,309.49

10,121,778,995.03

(1,978,050.01)

12,393,232,254.51
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F B % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
17. Intangible assets (Continued) 17. BEEE (&)
2013 20134
Increase Decrease Adjustment of
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year differences balance
(E%R) ENg REEM RERD ERERRE FRY
Gross carrying amount BERE
Technology know-how EERN 382,722,683.60 15,006,769.28 - 216,601.98  397,946,054.86
Trademark rights EEEAE 226,177,400.00 26,000.00 - - 226,203,400.00
Licence it 60,658,342.84 - - 737,681.80 61,396,024.64
Land use rights THERE 1,164,678,562.45 251,358,594.13 (39,675,600.00) - 1,376,361,556.58
Orders on hand EFE 310,082,107.59 - - 215643939 312,238,546.98
Customer relationship ZPARE 412,196,858.59 - - 3,401,841.11 415,598,699.70
Software it 100,099,459.14 25,588,092.96 - - 125687,552.10
Others Ef 9,080,032.80 436,351.56 = 108,838.47 9,625,222.83

2,605,695,447.01 292,415,807.93 (39,675,600.00) 6,621,402.75  2,925,057,057.69

Less: Accumulated amortization W B

Technology know-how EER 343,611,641.55 8,413,930.32 = 27,369.28 352,052,941.15
Trademark rights BEEAE 15,557,616.00 4,756.69 - - 15,562,372.69
Licence HaTE 58,379.00 6,012,804.84 = 126,162.40 6,197,346.24
Land use rights T ERE 102,206,807.63 28211,335.60 (1,719,276.00) = 128,698,867.23
Orders on hand EFiE = 37,839,058.40 = 795,273.70 38,634,332.10
Customer relationship ZFPBEE - 52,565,700.00 - 1,104,787.50 53,670,487.50
Software it 44,003,893.97 10,707,180.71 = = 54,711,074.68
Others it = 2,055,133.32 = 43,193.29 2,098,326.61

505,438,338.15 145,809,899.88 (1,719,276.00) 2,096,786.17 651,625,748.20

Net carrying amount REFE
Technology know-how EERI 39,111,042.05 6,592,838.96 - 189,232.70 45,893,113.71
Trademark rights BREAE 210,619,784.00 21,4331 - - 210,641,02731
Licence g 60,599,963.84 (6,012,804.84) = 611,519.40 55,198,678.40
Land use rights i 1,062471,75482  223,147,258.53 (37,956,324.00) - 1,247,662,689.35
Orders on hand EFiE 310,082,107.59 (37,839,058.40) - 1361,16569  273,604,214.88
Customer relationship ZEE& 412,196,858.59 (52,565,700.00) - 2,297,05361  361,928212.20
Software B 56,095,565.17 14,880,912.25 - - 70,976,477.42
Others Ei 9,080,032.80 (1,618,781.76) = 65,645.18 7,526,896.22

2,160,257,108.86 146,605,908.05 (37,956,324.00) 452461658 2,273,431,309.49

Less: Provision for impairment W OREER = - N - B

Carrying amount REER
Technology know-how EER 39,111,042.05 6,592,838.96 - 189,232.70 45,893,113.71
Trademark rights B E 210,619,784.00 21,4331 - - 210,641,027.31
Licence B 60,599,963.84 (6,012,804.84) - 611,519.40 55,198,678.40
Land use rights TifemE 1,062471,75482  223,147,05853 (37,956,324.00) - 1,247,662,689.35
Orders on hand EFE 310,082,107.59 (37,839,058.40) - 136116569 273,604,214.88
Customer relationship REHE 412,196,858.59 (52,565,700.00) - 2,297,053.61 361,928,212.20
Software s 56,095,565.17 14,880912.25 - - 70,976,477.42
Others Ein 9,080,032.80 (1,618,781.76) - 65,645.18 7,526,896.22

2,160,257,108.86 146,605,908.05 (37,956,324.00) 452461658  2,273,431,309.49




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)

2013 (Continued)

From January to June 2014, the carrying amount of intangible assets
increased by RMB10,193,560,685.67 (2013: RMB292,415,807.93),
among which RMB10,130,120,590.50 (2013: Nil) was attributable

to business combination.

From January to June 2014, amortization of intangible assets
amounted to RMB68,543,297.92 (2013: RMB145,809,899.88).

As at 30 June 2014, the intangible assets for which the Group had
not obtained land use right certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB196,806,028.25 (31 December 2013: RMB278,962,110.31).

The trademarks are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost.
The management of the Group are of the opinion that the Group
has both the intention and ability to renew the trademarks
continuously. As a result, the useful life of the trademarks is
considered by the management of the Group as indefinite because
the trademarks are expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will not be amortised until their
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead the trademarks will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

17. Intangible assets

(Continued)

Expenditure on development projects are as follows:

January to June 2014

(%)
17. BILEE (&)
FMEmEATHOT :

20149 1-6 A

T~ O B R 3 IH H Rk R

Increase Decrease
Opening during during Exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period differences balance
(REER) A k| RS EXnEEE HARY
HX complete vehicle HXBE NS
external flow field analysis A REIER
and optimization project 3,457,271.33 3,457,271.33
Improvement project on ERERHEER
driver's cabin 6,190,188.69 6,190,188.69
Hydraulics and forklift truck — RER NEIER
project 450,057,556.20  2,049,964,982.42 (26,241,519.60) (1,380,761.60) 2,472,400,257.42
Others Hip 37,713,840.12 39,191,570.63 - - 76,905,410.75
497,418,862.34  2,089,156,553.05 (26,241,519.60) (1,380,761.60)  2,558,953,134.19
2013 20134
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Exchange Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year differences balance
(BFR) ENH REE RERD ERTEZE ERY
HX complete vehicle HXZBESNE S
external flow field analysis T REEE
and optimization project 3,457,277.33 - - - 3,457,277.33
Improvement project on ER=EMEREA
driver's cabin 3,360,000.00 2,830,188.69 - - 6,190,188.69
Hydraulics project EEREE] 423,790,203.95 20,671,569.79 - 5,595,782.46  450,057,556.20
Others Hity 1,084,963.00 36,628,877.12 - - 37,713,840.12
431,692,444.28 60,130,635.60 - 5595,782.46  497,418,862.34

An additional development expenditure in the amount of
RMB2,014,516,800.42 (2013: nil) was attributable to business

combination.

HERpRRCEAHMEAEIEA
AR #2,014,516,800.42 55 (2013

F|E) -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

18. Goodwiill
January to June 2014

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

PO 5 S B R (4)
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H

A OF B % 3R 2 B IH H sE R
(748)
18. &

20144 1-6 A

Increase Among which:
Opening during Exchange Closing Provision for
(Unaudited) balance the period differences balance impairment
(REER) M k| EifrEZE MARY  Hi BEER
Merger with TAGC BHENE 537,908,504.02 537,908,504.02
Merger with KION B REER R
GROUP AG BRAR 7,880,077,524.38 7,880,077,524.38
Merger with Linde Hydraulics A f#hE R E
GmbH & Co. KG BBLE 892,941,329.49 (2,577,352.66)  890,363,976.83
1,430,849,833.51  7,880,077,524.38 (2,577,352.66) 9,308,350,005.23
2013 20134
Increase Among which:
Opening during Exchange Closing Provision for
(Audited) balance the year differences balance impairment
(EER) ENH AR ERHEER ERE EfREER
Merger with TAGC AHRAE 537,908,504.02 - - 537,908,504.02 -
Merger with Linde Hydraulics APERE
GmbH & Co. KG BBLE 905,206,283.29 - (12,264953.80)  892,941,329.49 -

1,443,114,787.31

(12,264,953.80)  1,430,849,833.51 =

Closing balance as at 30 June 2014 represented goodwill arising

from merger with TAGC, merger with Linde Hydraulics GmbH &
Co. KG, and merger with KION Group AG. Goodwill is tested for

impairment based on asset groups formed by the merger with assets
from TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG and KION Group AG.

201456 A30 R HIREARE B G O F
NE - MERE & % 1 % FKION
GROUP AGMEAEMEE - K& E
AE BERAJE - MIERES M
KION GROUP AGEERI{EREE
HHESETEERER -

167
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
18. Goodwill (Continued)
The goodwill and trademarks acquired through business
combination have been allocated to the following asset groups

units for impairment tests:

o asset group unit A: manufacture and sale of diesel engines

and related parts

o asset group unit B: major automobile components other than

automotive and diesel engines

o asset group unit C: manufacture of hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other

components

o asset group unit D: forklift trucks production and

warehousing technology services

The carrying amount of goodwill and trademark are allocated to the

asset groups as follows:

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T SO R R A H R
(74)
18. BHE(#&)
PEAHDBHNEERBEDEHE
ETEEMBES

e EEHMASA: EFERMHER
Pk PNl e =ii e

o  EEMAMEAB: TERIMEI
M EZTETEM

s EBEHMAESC: FERER -
BRERZE  BRERM - EH &
HZ M

e ZEMHMED: XEEERE
[E 45 BR 7%

BELKBENEEEE I EEEEM
BRI

Carrying amount of goodwill Carrying amount of trademark

BENRESE BRNEES R

30 June 2014
2014F6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Asset group unit A EEHRBEEA -
Asset group unit B BEHHEAB 537,908,504.02
Asset group unit C BEMBAC 890,363,976.83
Asset group unit D BEHHEAED 7,880,077,524.38

Total B CRELETEEIEIERS  1,430,849,833.51 5,201,034,731.49 210,641,027.31

31 December 2013 0TS0k S 31 December 2013
2013128318 2014564308 [IREESPEERR:]

(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(&%) (REBER) (le&#%)

= 116,422,784.00 116,422,784.00

537,908,504.02 94,215,323.29 94,218,243.31
892,941,329.49 = -

o 4,990,396,624.20 —




Interim Report 2014 FAsks 169

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial % - & ff B % #t 3% 1 26 H 5 &

Statements (Continued) (748)
19. Long-term prepaid expenses 19. REIFHBER
January to June 2014 20145 1-6 F

Increase Amortization

Opening during during Other Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period decrease balance
(REER) ERIE ¢ A H 52 0 A Hitrm 2 HMRY
Industrial mould fee THEES 75,827,737.35  19,469,964.51 (16,598,200.39) 78,699,501.47
Industrial equipment fee  T{IzEEE 44,376,961.19 7,935,964.87  (8,036,966.08) 44,275,959.98
Expenditure on BARTEE
improvement MRZH
of fixed assets leased in 38,574,449.88 5,580,878.65 (10,062,666.72) 34,092,661.81
158,779,148.42  32,986,808.03  (34,697,833.19) 157,068,123.26
2013 2013%F
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year decrease balance
(B=E%) ENY RELM KEEH Hitg > ERY
Industrial mould fee THEELS 73,108,748.15  34,557,288.66  (31,838,299.46) - 75827,737.35
Industrial equipment fee TREE 39,422,501.14  20,872,157.55  (15,917,697.50) - 44376,961.19
Expenditure on MABTEEE
improvement HR T
of fixed assets leased in 56,591,822.19 5,544,968.05  (23,562,340.36) - 38,574,449.88

169,123,071.48  60,974,41426  (71,318,337.32) - 158,779,148.42
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)

20. Provision for impairment of assets

January to June 2014

(Unaudited)

(RE%H)

Provision for bad debt FEER

Provision for decline GEBEER
in value of inventories

Provision for impairment of T/t HESE
avalable-forsale financial B E i E %M
assels

Provision for impairment of R EERE
long-term equity B
investment

Provision for impairment of ~ EfREEE
other current assets WEERE

Provision for impairmentof ~ EE A&
fixed assets L

Provision for impairment of R T (E
construction in progress B

Opening
balance

9%

769,733,075.80

348,705,106.87

123,356,130.00

284,499.56

27,677,250.00

65,145,774.42

3,738,267.94

1,338,640,104.59

Provision
for the period
AHR

217,394,732.84

45,482,448.97

32,226,047.83

295,103,229.64

20. EEREERE

20149 1-6 A

Decrease during the period

Y

Adjustment of

exchange

Write-off (0])18
1] B 2t

Reversal

(17,797,872.33) (906,302.77)

(3:851,030.27)  (66,386,135.74)

(2.987.58)

(21,648,902.60)  (67,295,426.09)

differences

EnZEaE

(15,775.60)

(238,238.47)

(254,014.07)

Closing
balance

BAZ

968,407,857.94

323,712,151.36

123,356,130.00

284,499.56

27,677,250.00

97,368,834.67

3,738,267.94

1,544,544,991.47
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) S 85 i 3R B 5 (4D
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
20. Provision for impairment of assets (Continued) 20. EERBEE®E (E)
2013 20134
Decrease during the year
RERD
Adjustment of
Opening Provision exchange Closing
(Audited) balance for the year Reversal Write-off Other differences balance
(&2%) g REHE £ B i EREERE EX%
Provision for bad debt ERER 70800194394 13126376124 (69,723,025.62) 71,382.59 - 11301365 769,733,075.80
Provision for decline FEREER
in value of inventories 35129343223 169,832,19820  (30,353,397.07)  (142,809,748.13) - 74262164 348,705,106.87
Provision for impairment of AthELE
avlableforsale financal ~ AEBEERE
assets 123,356,130.00 - - - - - 123356,130.00
Provision for impairment of long- & SR IER B
term equity HEER
investment 284,499.56 - - - - - 284,499.56
Provision for impairment of EHREEE
other current assets HEERE 27,677,250.00 - - - - - 267725000
Provision for impairment of ETEENE
fixed assets Efy 35,333,612.94 30,154,357.66 = (342,196.18) = = 65,145,774.42
Provision for impairmentof ~ EETRZEE
construction in progress El 3,738,267 94 - - - - - 3,738,267 94
124968513661 33125031710 (100,076,422.69)  (143,074,561.72) - 85563529 1,338,640,104.59
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

MR IRHBRAT

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
21. Short-term loans

22.

23.

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ B OF B AR 1 EIH H RE R

(%)

21. HHIER

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Mortgage loans
Pledge loans

Credit loans

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had no short-term loans which was

due but yet to be repaid.

Financial liabilities held for trading

Forward contracts

il
&
o)
&

Notes payable

Bank acceptance bill

Commercial acceptance bills

RITALER
BEAGLER

Total

At

As at 30 June 2014, within the aforesaid balance of notes payable,

there was no amount due to shareholders that held 5% (including

5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2013:

nil). Please refer to Note VI. 6 for the balance of notes payable

between the Group and other related parties.

171,000,000.00
1,365,801,420.00
1,766,531,100.65

3,303,332,520.65

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

91,000,000.00

1,154,568,357.29

1,245,568,357.29

R2014F6 5300 » A&EBE D 3 H

REENERE

e
A °

22. XRGMEmEE

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

42,535,438.20

23. EHEE

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

6,828,055,638.72
314,904,480.27

7,142,960,118.99

31 December 2013
201312 A31H
(Audited)
(')

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(&g&EZ)

6,600,177,677.15
86,973,922.62

6,687,151,599.77

M201456 A308 © AR AIBEEF
EEMBEERRAS%(E5%) M E
TORME IR 17 ) AR 3R B8 7 ) FE 1 R AR
(20134128318 : &) - "EEH R
H fth BB 7 FE T IR SRR RS
6o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) Foh 5 ¥ R BT 5E (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f B % $it 3¢ 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

24. Accounts payable 24. ERERRX
Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled ERBRRTEE  WABEE3-4EA
within three to four months. NEE °

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
201456 HA30H 201312 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (g&EZ)

Accounts payable FERTER 3K 20,319,303,916.01 13,472,675,550.89

As at 30 June 2014, the aging analysis of accounts payable based M2014F6 5308 @ EERRERE
on the invoice date is presented as follows: SHHMER O :

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
2014%6HB30H 2013%12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (EEZ)
Within 1 year 1ELARN 19,749,769,823.10 12,833,853,985.54
Over 1 year 1A E 569,534,092.91 638,821,565.35

Total AFF 20,319,303,916.01 13,472,675,550.89

As at 30 June 2014, there was no material accounts payable which MR2014F6 300 - EER# —F A
aged over one year (31 December 2013: nil). W REEMAFIE(2013F12 A 31
H: &) -
As at 30 June 2014, within the aforesaid balance of accounts R2014F6 8308 + AR A EEN
payable, there was no amount due to shareholders that held BERRAS% (E5%) LA _ERRiE
5% (including 5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 BRHOBBRREMNASEE (20134128
December 2013: RMB12,869,820.50). Please refer to Note VI. 6 318 : AR%12,869,820.507T) °
for the balance of accounts payable between the Group and other AEEHEEMBE T ENERGER

related parties. MEEIS « 6 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
25. Advances from customers

30 June 2014

31 December 2013

2014%6H30H 201312 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fE#|IZ)

Advances from customers TEU FRTE 1,907,214,186.34 1,211,259,736.92

MN2014%F6 A308 » EEH —F A
ERREEWFHIAE (2013412 A 31
H :ﬁ)o

As at 30 June 2014, there was no material advances from
customers which aged over one year (31 December 2013: nil).

R201456 8308 » KERP 4T
HIBUWEHEARDFI5%(E5%) AL
FORBE R D #0 RR 3R BB i 9 FB U F R
(20134128318 : &) - A&EER
H fth BB 5 TE U R IB AR EE R REOS

As at 30 June 2014, advances from customers did not include
amounts payable to shareholders that held 5% (including 5%)
or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2013:
nil). Please refer to Note VI.6 for the balance of advances from
customers between the Group and other related parties.

6 o
26. Payroll payable 26. FEASEE T % M
January to June 2014 20144 1-6 H

Increase Decrease

Opening during during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(RigzER) BAE AHE M 8= BARE

Salaries, bonuses, allowances T #% -

and subsidies SEAL A fH AL 792,478,825.67  3,043,281,619.23  (1,965,167,754.17)  1,870,592,690.73
Staff welfare BIREFE 15,449,823.84 144,644,412.78 (139,948,366.75) 20,145,869.87
Social security HeRBE 45,854,373.94 644,866,999.29  (344,577,481.33)  346,143,891.90
Incl: Basic pension insurance Hep AXEERR 13,058,311.03 380,310,254.02  (188,909,003.24)  204,459,561.81
Medical insurance BERRE 2,290,806.87  151,345,433.57 (70,971,133.34) 82,665,107.10
Contribution to pension fund FoHE 26,339,067.60 27,363,719.17 (31,210,228.31) 22,492,558.46
Unemployment insurance KERBRE 863,276.19 34,958,323.98 (16,719,685.06) 19,101,915.11
Working injury insurance TERBRE 410,144.18 14,701,053.85 (10,269,536.87) 4,841,661.16
Maternity insurance Y ERRE 381,691.53 14,656,582.95 (5,876,287.00) 9,161,987.48
Supplementary medical insurance BREERR 2,511,076.54 21,531,631.75 (20,621,607.51) 3,421,100.78
Housing funds FERES 8,909,297.68 104,790,003.47 (96,149,532.29) 17,549,768.86
Union running costs IeKE 132,604,917.90 27,938,121.06 (22,222,255.36)  138,320,783.60
Employee education costs BIZEKE 119,328,921.88 27,941,219.56 (11,759,890.76)  135,510,250.68
Severance benefit EREF 59,656,201.78 159,113,064.48 (6,539,756.08) 212,229,510.18

QOthers

it

1,031,388.90

1,175,313,751.59

227,501,385.31

4,380,076,825.18

(29,474,888.67)

(2,615,839,925.41)

199,057,885.54

2,939,550,651.36
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W B ¥ 2 BT 5E (48

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —H -~ & 0F B % it 3% 3 2 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (748)

26. Payroll payable (Continued) 26. FEATHE THEM (&)

2013 20134
Increase Decrease
Opening during during
(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(BER) E1H RERM KERD ERY
Salaries, bonuses, allowances T% - %% =i

and subsidies M8k 675,844,433.09  3,297,048,74035 (3,180,414,347.77)  792,478,825.67
Staff welfare BIGHE 15,464,868.59 238,497,793.13 (238,512,837.88) 15,449,823.84
Social security HERRE 46,948,217.91 617,572,037.06  (618,665,881.03) 45,854,373.94
Incl: Basic pension insurance He - EARZRRE 10,914,44758  327,013,257.61  (324,869,394.16) 13,058,311.03
Medical insurance BERRE 1,568,670.24  112,793,188.85  (112,071,052.22) 2,290,806.87
Contribution to pension fund FoH s 30,361,815.14 81,532,987.39 (85,555,734.93) 26,339,067.60
Unemployment insurance RERRE 608,189.21 29,410,109.65 (29,155,022.67) 863,276.19
Working injury insurance IHERRE 303,774.87 1549946157 (15,393,092.26) 410,144.18
Maternity insurance BRIME 497,495.92 11,312,851.23 (11,428,655.62) 381,691.53
Supplementary medical insurance BREBERR 2,693,824.95 40,010,180.76 (40,192,929.17) 2,511,076.54
Housing funds FEAES 10,213,486.62 181,304,578.26  (182,608,767.20) 8,909,297.68
Union running costs TegE 110,431,294.54 47,387,779.23 (25,214,155.87) 132,604,917.90
Employee education costs BIYEKE 107,711,505.89 58,692,887.84 (47,075,471.85)  119,328,921.88
Severance benefit BRTER 60,071,645.28 7,317,152.05 (7,732,595.55) 59,656,201.78
Others Hit 37,305.10 44,164,341.34 (43,170,257.54) 1,031,388.90
1,026,722,757.02  4,491,985,309.26  (4,343,394,314.69)  1,175,313,751.59
As at 30 June 2014, the Group had no payroll payable in arrears (31 20146 H30R - AEEEBNE

December 2013: Nil).

RAMEE W R B TN (20134128
318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

Statements (Continued) (%)

27.

27. EXHE

Taxes payable

Value-added tax EER
Corporate income tax EMRERH
Individual income tax & A PR %
Property tax BER
Stamp duty ENTERR
Land use tax TR AR
City construction tax R
Business tax EER
Other taxes HA1E
28. Interests payable
Interests on medium-term notes FRHEIZEE RS
Interests on borrowings EE RS
Others EHth

29. Dividends payable

Dividends payable to minority & A &) > E% A F
shareholders of subsidiaries

Ordinary share dividends payable & < 3 58 f% J% ) NoteV.44
Wit - 44

30 June 2014
20146 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)

516,039,227.03
604,051,026.56

38,116,932.03
18,940,139.54
11,869,169.24
8,863,259.48
16,147,714.33
1,737,023.66

198,998,795.58

1,414,763,287.45

28. EFRIA

30 June 2014

201456 H30H

(Unaudited)
(REEEFZ)

230,994,701.80

66,209,667.69
13,725,171.00

310,929,540.49

29. B RA

30 June 2014

201456 H30H

(Unaudited)
(REEEFZ)

1,714,847.36

299,896,445.85

301,611,293.21

T~ O B R 3 IH H Rk R

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

(Audited)
(T z)

167,108,222.70
270,526,774.59

16,055,039.68
17,294,631.37
13,696,583.16

8,138,998.97
19,646,300.36

4,528,933.06
35,028,581.87

552,024,065.76

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

(Audited)
(f&FE%)

83,361,666.82
48,728,106.43

132,089,773.25

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

(Audited)
(f&E%)

43,101,211.76

43,101,211.76
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) Foh 5 ¥ R BT 5E (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f B % $it 3¢ 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (748)
30. Other payables 30. HttEARK

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
2014%6B30H 2013%12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (EZ)
Sales discount HEYTE 1,378,209,675.62 934,427,156.57
Guarantees and deposits REZEAS 1,428,058,925.33 940,850,304.90
Payables for purchase of construction — FEf Ti2 3k & Bl & & E HEE X
and fixed assets 541,629,772.70 598,236,005.95
Repair and maintenance expenses BIRMpES 340,642,070.06 190,613,333.44
Land facility fee and land premiums THBELE R K+ K 33,898,189.55 35,055,562.70
Others Hith 945,994,300.75 699,276,451.79
4,668,432,934.01 3,398,458,815.35
As at 30 June 2014, other payables did not include amounts M2014F6 A30H © AERF &S
payable to shareholders that held 5% (including 5%) or more of EREMNFEERRRS%(E5%) M E
the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2013: nil). Please refer FORBE A7 B AR 3R B8 i /9 E At FE A 3R
to Note VI.6 for the balance of other payables between the Group (2013512A31H : &) - KK EHE
and other related parties. o th BA B 7 H A E S SR EREE R M A
N6
As at 30 June 2014, other payables in significant amount aging R2014F6A30H @ BRIE—FLALH
over 1 year are set out as follows: REHAMER AT
Reason for not
(Unaudited) Amount  being repaid
(REFEZ) SHE REERE
Estimated payables for purchase of ERIERLREEEES G 212,605,871.58  Not yet received
construction and fixed assets invoice and

longer period for
construction
BERWE - 1HA
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B IRHBRAF

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
30. Other payables (Continued)

31.

As at 31 December 2013, other payables in significant amount

aging over 1 year are set out as follows:

(Audited)
(K& =%)

RS 2 BT 5 (48
2014465308 (AR ¥T)
T AP HR FEIEE R
(%)
30. HtES (&)

M2013F12A318 » BB —F U
F)RREE ML BT -

Amount

=8

Reason for not
being repaid
KREBERER

Estimated payables for purchase of
construction and fixed assets

N TRAEEEEEL G

131,269,372.95

Not yet received
invoice and
longer period for
construction
BERIWE - HE

Non-current liabilities due within one year

Long-term borrowings due within

one year

Lont-term payables due within one year

Others

—FRIMORIMERK

—FARHHRIEA K
Hitp

Include:
Guaranteed loans

o
BREH

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

309,969,178.26
3,055,139,118.60
3,855,461.16

3,368,963,758.02

309,969,178.26

3. —FREHBNFERDER

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(TEZ)

352,375,772.74

352,375,772.74

352,375,772.74
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f B % $it 3¢ 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
31. Non-current liabilities due within one year 3. " FRIBVIEABHARSE
(Continued) (#&)

As at 30 June 2014, breakdown of the long-term borrowings due

within one year is as follows:

R201466 A30H - —FREIHHK
HIfE PR T -

Outstanding

Loan Annual amount

drawdown Loan interest (RMB

(Unaudited) date due date Currency rate (%) equivalent)

EE BT

(REEER) EXERE AME  WE FEFE(%) nEARY
The Export-lmport Bank of 1 B3 i O R 17

China (Shaanxi Branch) BREE 517 2012/11/16 20141115  RMBAR# 200,000,000.00

China Development Bank ~ EIZR I %8777
(Hong Kong Branch) BEEDT 2012/12/27 2014/10/15  EURE T 109,969,178.26

As at 30 June 2014, Bank of East Asia (China) Co., Ltd., Xi'an
branch, issued to the Export-Import Bank of China a finance
guarantee letter in respect of the money-lending business of
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, in the amount of RMB200,000,000.00.

As at 30 June 2014, the guarantee made by Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, to China Development Bank to secure borrowings of
EUR13,100,000.00 (equivalent to RMB109,969,178.26) is set out in
Note V.33.

309,969,178.26

201456 308 REET(H
B)ARARARZDITAEARARZ
FRAAIBRAERTEFR QAN
EXREBHAIYREMERIGEFTE
HHEORT EREEAARY
200,000,000.007C °

MR2014F6 A308 » ARAZF
NAHEB N (BB )ERERER
A A)E B R B R IT R E R E B
7 13,100,000.00 7t (& A R
109,969,178.2670) T8t R Mz A »
33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F B % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
31. Non-current liabilities due within one year 3. — FREFHBHPFERBES
(Continued) (%)
As at 31 December 2013, breakdown of the long-term borrowings M2013F12A31H  —FREHLN
due within one year is as follows: REIERBMET -
Outstanding
Loan Annual amount
drawdown Loan interest (RMB
(Audited) date due date Currency rate (%) equivalent)
N BT
(BER) fERER A FHA BE FFE(%) NEARY
The Export-lmport Bank of 1 B3 i O R 17
China (Shaanxi Branch) BRAEE 51T 2012/11/16 2014/11/15 RMBA R ¥ 4.20 200,000,000.00
China Development Bank ~ BIZR I %8777
(Hong Kong Branch) BEDT 2012/12/27 2014/10/15 EUREX T 2.82  118,701,568.82
China Development Bank  BIZ B33 R 1T
(Hong Kong Branch) BEDT 2013/6/15 2014/6/13 EURE T 3.04  33,674,203.92
352,375,772.74
32. Other current liabilities 32. HttREBAE

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
20146 A30H 2013412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)
Product quality assurance monies ERE2RFES
(portion due within one year) (—FREHIHD) 1,062,462,087.77 970,979,874.89
Deferred income BT =
(portion due within one year) (—FRE D) 665,137,736.40 -
Others Hib 797,906,081.39 57,325,913.90

2,525,505,905.56 1,028,305,788.79




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
33. Long-term borrowings

Guaranteed loans ERIER
Credit loans ZAEBR
Pledge loans BRER

As at 30 June 2014, long-term borrowings include an amount of
EUR1,038,000,000.00 (31 December 2013: EUR1,038,000,000.00)
which was provided by the Company to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd. as a guarantee for its
special borrowings from a bank for overseas acquisition, to invest
in KION Group AG and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG. Among
others, EUR13,100,000.00 will be due within one year and has

been re-classified as non-current liabilities due within one year.

34. Bonds payable

Medium-term note FEIE IR

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

W5 i R M 5 (48

201446 A30H (A R¥T)

ho SO R A H R
(748)

33. RHAfERK

30 June 2014 31 December 2013

201456 H30H 2013%12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (T z)

8,853,825,023.18 8,577,661,593.52

350,394,128.80 568,378,000.00

4,390,375,800.00 -

13,594,594,951.98 9,146,039,593.52

2014F6 4308 » REMBRPET
1,038,000,000.00 7T (2013 4F 12 A
318 : B7t1,038,000,000.007C) A
BAARRRMERGHED N (EH)
ERERBRA B MIRITEAREIN
WEREZEER - ARZEKION
GROUP AGHMIMEBREE ¥ % - K
B IT13,100,000.00 T E —FR
- BEESEE—FANIEHAER
AL -

34. ENES

30 June 2014 31 December 2013

2014%6H30H 2013412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fE®|HZ)

7,627,965,055.49 3,493,858,837.76

181
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
34. Bonds payable (Continued) 34. BIES (E)
As at 30 June 2014, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows: MR2014F6A30R « B EFHHRET
RIAR

Accrued

interest in

Interest  current period or

Qutstanding payableat increase upon Interest Interest
balance at period- acquisition of paid in payable at
(Unaudited) Face value Issuing date ~ Bond period period-end beginning subsidiaries  current period period-end
ARt
AEg i
(RE2R) fE BfTAH E5HR BABE  BUERAE FREEM  AHEARE  HREAHE
Medium-term note 2 1,300,000,000.00 2009-8-24 Syears 5 1,399,77833333 21,450,000.00 32,175,000.00 - 53,625,000.00
Medumtemnote  REZ 1,400,000,000.00 2011-7-28 Syears5§ 129938920882 3295833343 39,550,000.02 - 7250833345
Medium-term note S 400,000,000.00 2013321 3 years 3F 399,279475.47 15,540,000.00 10,360,000.00  (20,720,000.00) 5,180,000.00
Medumtemnote  REZ 400,000,000.00 2013521 Jyears3F 39919855127 1341333339 833333337 (1839333341) 335333335
Medium-term note 2 3,777,570,000.00 201326 TyearsTE  4,130,319,486.60 - 96,328,035.00 96,328,035.00

Total b 1,277,570,000.00 762796505549 8336166682 18674630839  (39,11333341)  230,994701.80

As at 31 December 2013, balance of bonds payable are listed as 20135128318 - ERNEHHE
follows: R
Interest
Qutstanding payable at Accrued Interest Interest
balance at period- Interest in paid in payable at

(Audited) Face value Issuing date Bond period period-end beginning current period current period period-end  Notes
(&%4) A %708 E#ER SRRE  BUEAAE  TEEHHE AEERFE HRERAS #
Medum{emnote ~ FEZE  1,300,000000.00 2009-8-24 Syears S 139844833333 21,450,000.00 6435000000 (64,350,000000  21,450,00000 (1)
Mediumtermnote ~ #EZE 1,400,000,00000 2011-7-28 Syears 58 12972241474 32,958,333.33 7910000010 (79,100,000.00) 329833343 (1)
Medumtemnote  RHZE 400,000,000.00 2013-3-21 3 years 3F 399,084,673.00 = 15,540,000.00 - 1554000000 ()
Medumtemnote ~ #EZE 400,000,000.00 2013521 3 years 3 399,053,416.69 - 13413333.39 - 134133339 ()

Total it 3,500,000,000.00 349385883776 5440833333 17240333349  (143450,000.00)  83,361,666.82




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
34. Bonds payable (Continued)

35.

Notes:

(M

)

©)

The Company registered at the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors in August 2009 for issuing medium-term notes in
a registered amount of RMB2.7 billion to be issued in two tranches. The
handling fee was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an aggregate amount of
RMB1.3 billion, was issued on 24 August 2009. Its maturity period was 5
years, with a coupon rate of 4.95%. Interest was payable every 12 months.
The second tranche of RMB1.4 billion was issued on 28 July 2011 with
a maturity period of 5 years. The coupon rate was 5.65% with interest
payable every 12 months.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
registered at the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors in February 2013 for issuing medium-term notes in a registered
amount of RMB1.4 billion to be issued in two tranches. The handling fee
was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an aggregate amount of RMBO0.4 billion,
was issued on 21 March 2013. Its maturity period was 3 years, with a
coupon rate of 5.18%. Interest was payable every 12 months. The second
tranche of RMBO0.4 billion was issued on 21 May 2013 with a maturity
period of 3 years. The coupon rate was 5.03% with interest payable every
12 months.

KION GROUP AG, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term
notes with a registered capital of EUR450 million in Europe in February
2013, with a coupon rate of 6.75%, a maturity period of seven years, and
interest payable every six months.

Long-term payables
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W5 i R M 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

4~ B B R 3 OH H kR

(%)

34. ENEZ (&)
S

(1)

A RFA2009F 8 A B RITRIT
EREHEFMBETHHERE - &
MewEAR27EBLT FEBXATH
2= DMIRELT o B —IKK2009
F8RA24BET  2EAARKI3
B EHFHRASF  ZEEMEAR
4.95% * HEBIEERRI12ER - EZIR
R2011F7H288%17  @BAAR
14T  BHERASTE - REF
RAE565%  (FEMEEAI12(EA -

RARZFRAKBERTEERA
AIR2013F2 AEFBIRITEMIHR
SEHEETMBETHIHRRE e
BMAIAMET  FEEXRTHZ="
DWIREELT o BE—IKR2013F3 A 21
AT @BEALMEIL BFHRAS
F . EEMKRAE518% @ [FEHERE
12188 - EZXMA2013F5821 0%
17 @EAMETT BHFHERAIF -
EEAMEAE5.03% © [FEIERA121E
)E] o

KA R ZFAAKION GROUP AG R
2013F 2 A EBNEITEMES A
ASERTHFHER  ZEEMER
6.75% ' EHHRAB7F - FEIEX
B6MEA -

35. REAEMNR

Government grants for
national debt projects
Sale and leaseback sub-leases

Finance lease

B {78 B BUT B

ErREMBFEA
BMEHEE

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

5,500,000.00
3,496,594,343.40
1,969,280,819.40

5,471,375,162.80

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(&g&EZ)

8,847,480.34

8,847,480.34
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
35. Long-term payables (Continued) 35. REAER R (&)
Long-term Finance lease payables are as follows: RHEMNREHERTHOT

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
201456H308 2013F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&E%)
RMB EUR RMB
B AR BT ARHE

Sale and leaseback sub-leases ERHOBER 416,529,000.00 3,496,594,343.40 - -
Finance lease MERE 234,589,000.00 1,969,280,819.40 - -

651,118,000.00 5,465,875,162.80 e =

36. Special payables 36. EIEHETR
30 June 2014 20146 A30H
Increase Decrease
At period- during during
(Unaudited) beginning the period the period At period-end
(REER) B S h oy EHED HRY
Interest subsidy for liquid fund BETHERH
granted by provincial finance RPELERHS
office 23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00
Special funds of national debt - BEFEES -
establishment of key industry BHERREM
revitalization and technological HIT3UEE B B
renovation projects 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00

53,000,000.00 53,000,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
36. Special payables (Continued)

RS

31 December 2013
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RS 2 Bt 5 (48

201446 308 (AR H¥T)

o AP B R FEIEE R
(%)

36. EIEEMNRK(E)
2013F12H31H

Increase Decrease
At year- during during
(Audited) beginning the year the year At year-end
(BER) E1H RERM KERD ERY
Interest subsidy for liquid fund HIHERTH
granted by provincial finance MEESEHRUE
office 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
Special funds of national debt- ~ EIEZEE S —
establishment of key industry BEHEZREN
revitalization and technological RBGEEEER
renovation projects 20,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 - 30,000,000.00
43,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 - 53,000,000.00
Provisions 37. BstAE
30 June 2014 2014F6 A30H
Increase Decrease
At period- during during
(Unaudited) beginning the period the period At period-end
(RigER) BAH KHE KR D BHRY
Product quality assurance ~ EmEERES

monies (portion due after
one year)

Guarantee provided to
external parties

Others

(—FNAEEHHS)

HOMRHRER

Hitr

461,196,973.51 461,196,973.51

18,955,006.80 18,955,006.80
22,707,393.00 22,707,393.00

502,859,373.31 502,859,373.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
38. Long-term payroll payable

W5 i R M 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

ﬂ\f%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁiﬁﬁmg
38, B M BT H B

30 June 2014

31 December 2013

20146 A30H 2013%12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (T z)

Defined benefit obligations REZHET
Share-based payments B0 2 A5

6,220,780,117.86 606,487,220.23
30,296,111.40 -

6,251,076,229.26

606,487,220.23

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in certain
foreign countries who meet conditions. The scheme requires that
contribution be made to an independently administered fund.
Under the scheme, staff are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit

provided for under defined benefit of the plans.

The Group's defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution
prior to termination of service. The scheme requires that
contribution be made to an independently administered fund. The
scheme is administered by an independent trustee in the legal form
of a fund. The assets held under the fund is held separately with
assets of the Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment

strategies of the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

HINRRA A b

TRERAtE - %t

G-DEST G LR

BIEETRRTES
SR IR IR -
AR E R EE 28

AHEIR —TERE AT
¥R EFE - ZETEIERABL
BEENESHFER - Zrt8INES
REETEA - YHBILRIEANETE
B HARAENEEEARENEESR
B o AR ERE %A 8K
BREE -

XRABZAENESKF - ZEZ
BREE-ABCRRBENRERR
EIERE o STEARBFEERNLE
RAERBYTTHE -

ZAtBIZ A RER  RAERXEAD
FEHEE A B B R B A F 5 T 5 A R A
s @,

E
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~ & f M % & = 2 EH H ii B

Statements (Continued) (%)
38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 38. REAERBE T &M (&)
The latest actuarial valuation of the assets under the scheme and ZETEEEMNROBEGENRES
the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined mEBHRECABRRERA SN
by the Company using the projected unit credit method. JRRETE ©
The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as TRAEEBEXRAMEANEER
at the balance sheet date: CREE S
30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
Discount rate (%) PTIR K (%) 2.95%-4.40%
Expected growth rate of future pension expenses (%) FEEI R RIKE B AL R R(%) 0.48%-3.53%
Expected rate of salary increment (%) TERHE IR E(%) 2.44%-4.16%
The actuarial valuation illustrates that the market value of assets BEMERETTIEENTEAAR
under the scheme is RMB234,968,627.53. Such actuarial valuation #5234,968,627.5370 + Az L& E
of assets accounts for 3.74% of the benefit provided for qualifying WIBEEBEMAMEKREEIHRED
staff. BHH3.74% ©
Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below: EFBERPERNEETEAT
January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Current cost of service & BRR 7% A AR 15,374,147.72
Interest expenses B &R 10,964,545.22

Net amount of the cost of post-employment benefit BB 1% 18 K 5k A< 7% 58 26,338,692.94

Credited to cost of sales ST AZBERK AR 13,102,543.52
Credited to general and administrative expenses STAEEER 2,271,604.21
Credited to financial expenses STAMBEER 10,964,545.21
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3¢ 1 2 H 51 &

. ==
Statements (Continued) (%)
38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 38. REAEEE T (&)

Deferred benefit obligations HETHRETR

The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair BETREBEHNTEEEALE

value of assets under the scheme are as follows: BEEHOT :

January to June 2014 20144 1-6 H

Cost of retirement credited to profit or loss Gain/(loss) on re-measurement taken to other comprehensive income
FABRNRRAE HARBSARENERRAE/(BX)
Return on assets
under the Actuarial Actuarial
scheme (net  changesarising ~ changes arising Increase upon
of amount  from changeof  from change acquistion of
Net amount of Remuneration ~includedin  demographic of financial Contribution ~~ subsidiaries ~ Translation
(Unaudited) 1 January 2014 Cost of services interest Sub-total paid  netinterest)  assumptions  assumptions Sub-total  from employers (Note) differences 30 June 2014
HEEERR ADg
(RafE BRRM HBER L]
W145 HEFEDN . F27%M

(RE&H%) 1818 BBAE HEsg it £8) [t [t # | £33 (&)

Defined benefit obligations X EXEZH 661,899,02685 1537414172 1138335.10 266124828 = (83,106.54) 5,589,787,853.40

Farvalue of assetsunder ~ 3tEI4E DA EE

the scheme (55,411,806.62) (27378989)  (273789.89) - (179,442,969.60) 159,938.58  (234,968,627.53)

Payroll ibiltes EMak 606,487,220.23 1537414772 1096454521  26,338,692.93 (83,106.54) 5410,344,88380  (1,750,542.16) 6,041,337, 148.26

The effective return on assets under the scheme from January to 2014F1-6 At EIEENER D4R

June 2014 amounted, in aggregate, to nil. ARARBARE -

Note: The increase in fair value of assets under the scheme arising from the e WEBTRRSMZETEEERAREBE
acquisition of subsidiaries was RMB179,442,969.60, which is included in BARE179,442,969.607T + FEEAM
other non-current assets. FRBDEEPZE -

2013 20134

Cost of retirement credited to profitor loss (Gainloss) on re-measurement taken to other comprehensive income
FTAREHRARA HARBSAKENERTENE/ (BX)
Return on assets
under the Actuaria Actuaria
scheme(net  changesarising  changes arising
ofamount ~ from change of from change
Net amount of Remuneration included in demographic of finandial Contrbution Tranlation 31 December
(Audited) 1January 2013 Cost of senices interest Sub-fotal paid net interest) assumptions assumptions Sub-total -~ from employers diferences 2013
B ARgs
(HHakE BR2l B R
JUIEES HeFgs dew Rl Exfg W3E

(3z#) 1A18 il He¥E gt BREH #4%) g2y EEE] gt ExiE 23 12318

Defined beneft obligations ~ FEREEH 61358174450 3000961505 2217357244 5218318769 380,34065 - (3889333056 2483119378 (14,062145.78) - 981589979 661,899,026.85

Farvaueof assetsunder 3T EAEALBE

the scheme (48525,419.04) = (2,001,05446)  (2,001,054.46) = (1,119,504.14) = = (1,11950414)  (3,174838.19) (590990.79)  (55,411,806.62)

Payrol abiftes EMak 56505632546 3000961525 2017251798 50,182,133 30034065 (1,11950414) (3889333956 2483119378 (1518164992 (17483819 922490900 60648722023
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f B % $it 3¢ 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%8)
39. Other non-current liabilities 30. HittERBES

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
2014%6B30H 2013%12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (f&EZ)
Put options in relation to B SRR AR B A
minority interests o B - 637,865,012.36
Deferred income BN = 1,926,388,006.20 641,140,695.49
Others Hih 191,394,029.17 162,814,182.08
2,117,782,035.37 1,441,819,889.93
Breakdown of government grants under investment income is as RIEW G P BB B BT -
follows:
30 June 2014 31 December 2013
20146 830H 2013 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Asset-related government grant ERE 7E B R B I T A B (REER) (f&FE%)
Land-related government grant £ + Jth ¥H B8 B9 B 4 B 590,901,173.37 526,020,218.96
Special funds for industry revitalization ~ ZEZIRBEF N FZEE S
and technological renovation 115,573,078.28 94,614,132.02
Special assistance fund BHEMHHES 3,624,033.31 1,747,083.33
National debt special fund FEHELS 15,937,622.39 15,937,622.39
Others Hi 2,770,068.25 2,821,638.79

728,805,975.60 641,140,695.49
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i % $it 3 1 2 H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

39. Other non-current liabilities (Continued) 39. HittERBEE(E)
As at 30 June 2014, items of liabilities involving government grants R2014F6A308 © # EEFMBIE
are as follows: BEEBEHET :

Credited to
non-operating
Opening  Increase during  income during Other Closing  Related to
(Unaudited) balance the period the period changes balance  assets/income
B A REE/
(rE%7) HILE B-F i XM 25 HRBE  UEEE
Land-related government grant a0 526,020,218.96 74,186,500.00 (5,450,084.43) (3,855,461.16)  590,901,173.37  Related to assets
it HEERB
Special funds for industry revitalization EFRENRR 94,614,132.02  20,962,000.06 (3,053.80) 115573,078.28  Related to assets
and technological renovation ERES HEERB
Special assistance fund ERRYES 1,747,083.33 2,000,000.00 (123,050.02) 362403331 Related to assets
HEERB
National debt special fund BEEES 15,937,622.39 15,937,622.39  Related to assets
HEERB
Others £ 2,821,638.79 (51,570.54) 2,770,088.25  Related to assets

REERR

641,140,695.49  97,148,500.06 (5576,188.25)  (3,907,031.70)  728,805,975.60

As at 31 December 2013, items of liabilities involving government M2013F12A318  HRBFEE
grants are as follows: WEEEBEWT :
Credited to
non-operating
Opening  Increase during  income during Other Closing ~ Related to
(Audited) halance the year the year changes balance  assets/income
REHA HEE/
(&2%) £¢8 B XA 28 ERBE  UEEE
Land-related government grant il 292,718,339.65  242,289,037.23 (8,987,157.92) - 52602021896  Related to assets
HFitaB HEERE
Special funds for industry revitalization EERENRER 39,085,659.38  81,383,158.29  (25,854,685.65) - 9461413202 Related to assets
and technological renovation BEES HEERE
Special assistance fund EEENEL - 1,750,000.00 (2916.67) = 1747,08333  Related to assets
REERE
National debt special fund EERES 17,929,825.19 - (1,992,202.80) - 1593762239  Related to assets
HEERE
Others Eth 2,226,779.90 697,999.98 (103,141.09) - 282163879 Related to assets
HEERE

351,960,604.12  326,120,195.50  (36,940,104.13)

641,140,695.49
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i R B (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial — Fi ~& ff I % $it 3 1 BH H 51

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (%)
40. Share capital 40. R
January to June 2014 2014%F1-6 H
At period-beginning Increase(decrease) of shares in current period At period-end
ERIL A5 (0 RE R
Transferred from
(Unaudited) No. of shares Percentage capital reserve Others Sub-total No. of shares Percentage
(*45%) it 4] MedEs 4] it R& 4]
(%) ()
Resticted shares - ERERHKA
State-owned legal person shares BEARR 427,876,464.00 ! 427,876,464.00
Other domesic shares ElbmEnk 114,624,000.00 | 114,624,000.00
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned b BREER
legal person shares EARR 57,792,000.00 f 57,792,000.00
Domestic natural person shares BRERA
ik 56,832,000.00 ! 56,832,000.00
Overseas shares MR =
Incl: Overseas legal person shares LG VN
B
Overseas natural person shares BERA
#R .
542,500,464.00 542,500,464.00
i, Non-estricted shares . ERERHRH
RMB ordinary Shares AREEER 971,049,175.00 b 971,049,175.00
Domestic isted foreign shares B EmRSNER =
Overseas lsted foreign shares SN LTESNER 485,760,000.00 485,760,000.00

1:456,809,175.00 1,456,809,175.00

jii. — Total no. of shares

DO 1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00

Note: As at 30 June 2014, moratorium period for 75,035,712 restricted e #H12014F6A30H  RAAIEAERE
circulating shares of the Company (accounting for 3.75%) had ended. & 14 &9 B% 19 1 75,035,712 % (& £
Those shares are still listed as restricted circulating shares because the 3.75%)  EREHH - ARRER
relevant procedures had not yet been completed. BFBEHNANETE  BWINERSK

FEIR o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
40. Share capital (Continued)

W5 i R M 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o~ B B R 1 BIH H kR

(%)

40. RA(4E)

2013 20134
At year-beginning Increase(decrease) of shares in current year At year-end
£k REE(R) R EXY
Transferred from
(Audited) No. of shares Percentage capital reserve Others Sub-total No. of shares Percentage
(&%) ey L1 N At 5t & L
(%) (%)
i Restricted shares EREGHRR
State-owned legal person shares AFEAGR 447,869,513.00 240 - (19,993,049.00) (19,993,049.00) 427,876,464.00 2140
Other domestic shares ERERR 142,224,000.00 m - (27,600,000.00) (27,600,000.00) 114,624,000.00 5.73
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned A BRFEEEA
legal person shares BR 85,392,000.00 477 - (27,600,000.00) (27,600,000.00) 57,792,000.00 289
Domestic natural person shares BRERALR 56,832,000.00 284 - - - 56,832,000.00 284
Qverseas shares EMEIR 94,128,000.00 4n - (94,128,000.00) (94,128,000.00 - -
Including: Overseas legal person b BNEARR
shares 94,128,000.00 47 - (94,128,000.00) (94,128,000.00) - -
Overseas natural person BRERARR
shares - - - - - - -
684,221,513.00 3422 - (141,721,049.00) (141,721,049.00) 542,500,464.00 21.13
i, Non-restricted shares EREGHRR
RMB ordinary Shares ARELER 829,328,126.00 4148 - 141,721,049.00 141,721,049.00 971,049,175.00 4857
Domestic lsted foreign shares BTN ER - - = - - = _
Overseaslisted foreign shares B ETEANERR 485,760,000.00 2430 - - - 485,760,000.00 2430
1,315,088,126.00 65.78 - 141,721,049.00 141,721,049.00 1,456,809,175.00 7281
jii.  Total no. of shares = Rheg 1,999,309,639.00 100.00 = = = 1,999,309,639.00 100.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

41. Capital reserve
January to June 2014

(Unaudited)
(REERZ)

Share premium

Change arising from the
re-measurement of net liabilities
of defined benefit scheme

Share of investee’s other
comprehensive income not to be
reclassified into profit or loss in
subsequent accounting periods
using the equity method

Share of investee's other
comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit or loss
after meeting certain criteria in
subsequent accounting periods
using the equity method

Fair value change of available-
for-sale financial assets

Effect of income tax related to
items taken to owners' equity

Other capital reserve

BB

RREDERENE
BIRBEAIAR
S HRATREN R
ERENEMES
WETRERNNE
BRESIRENE
RIRBEAIAR
S HRER ERE
R ED B
ERBNEMES
RETHEENNE

B \RBEEDRR
itleLoloiger sz
e VYN

At period-
beginning
B

541,499,400.71

10,627,154.94

(5,582,409.00)

(37,789,447.00)

10,000,000.00

(1,500,000.00)
186,715,530.27

703,970,229.92

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o~ B B R 1 BIH H kR

(%)

41. EXDTE
20144 1-6 A

Increase

during

the period
A

639,999,051.88

40,864,388.98

680,863,440.86

Decrease
during
the period
EHHD

(162,692,384.76)

(3,074,941.98)

(104,212,535.91)

(269,979,862.65)

At period-end
HARE

1,181,498,452.59

10,627,154.94

(168,274,793.76)

10,000,000.00

(1,500,000.00)
82,502,994.36

1,114,853,808.13

193
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
41. Capital reserve (Continued)

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

(%)

G ORI B AR 1 EH H R R

41. EERXRPE(E)

2013 20134
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
(Audited) beginning the year the year At year-end
(&&1) EE RERE RERD ERE
Share premium BAEE 554,512,867.33 7,017,901.66 (20,031,368.28) 541,499,400.71
Change arising from the B ERTE R HATE
re-measurement of net liabilities EEBEERHNEH
of defined benefit scheme - 10,627,154.94 - 10,627,154.94
Share of investee’s other ERERERENTE
comprehensive income not tobe  HIRAERI LA
reclassified into profit or loss in SH PR TEELE
subsequent accounting periods BREZONEMGE
using the equity method Wt EEnmnE = = (5,582,409.00) (5,582,409.00)
Share of investee's other RREREENTE
comprehensive income to be iR E B A%
reclassified into profit or loss e HRERRRTE
after meeting certain criteria in EHREENE
subsequent accounting periods BREZNEMGE
using the equity method RaEFMEENNE 6,377,070.55 - (44,166,517.55)  (37,789,447.00)
Fair value change of available- AHRNESREE
for-sale financial assets AREEED 75,200,000.00 - (65,200,000.00) 10,000,000.00
Effect of income tax related to Bt AFTEE#RIER
items taken to owners' equity EENEHEE (11,280,000.00) 9,780,000.00 = (1,500,000.00)
Other capital reserve HtnEARTE 217,566,044.17 = (30,850,513.90)  186,715,530.27
842,375,982.05 27,425,056.60 (165,830,808.73) 703,970,229.92
42. Special reserve 42. B # e
January to June 2014 20145F1-6 A
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period balance
(RE&ER) I B v BAREY
Safety funds REEEER 35,605,889.68 28414,816.11  (17,201,943.72)  46,818,762.07
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —# ~& 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (748)
42. Special reserve (Continued) 42. BIEf#E(E)
2013 2013%F
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year balance
(&E=R) ¥ RERM RERD ERY
Safety funds ZEEEE 23,089,542.52 48,038,956.35 (35,522,609.19) 35,605,889.68
43. Surplus reserve 43. B8N E
January to June 2014 20145 1-6 H
Increase Decrease
At period- during during
(Unaudited) beginning the period the period At period-end
(RigER) I A0 AER D BRE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBRLE 2,683,223,334.61 - 2,683,223,334.61
2013 20134
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
(Audited) beginning the year the year At year-end
(&ER) N RERM KERD ERY
Statutory surplus reserve FEERBAE 2,300,128,466.82 383,094,867.79 - 2,683,223,334.61
According to the provisions of Company Law and the articles of RIBATEAMARREROBTE @ A
association, the Company appropriated statutory surplus reserve RNAEEFFEE10% I EUE T &%
at 10% of the net profit. Where the accumulated amount of the PES - ATRBLABRHABEALR
statutory surplus reserves reaches 50% or more of the Company'’s AlFEMEARS0% A L&) » af T HIR

registered capital, additional appropriation is not needed. B o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (748)
44. Retained earnings 44, K7 B FE

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
20146 A30H 2013412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (')
Unallocated profit at current period- RNEEAY), AN FF )
beginning/current year-beginning KOBFE 22,264,536,818.92 19,737,619,540.81
Net profit attributable to shareholders 53 /& 7 & A &) B 58 89 75 )
of the parent 3,764,836,231.86 3,570,791,384.62
Less: Appropriation of surplus reserves & : IREIB AT
Note V. 43 MEEF - 43 383,094,867.79
Ordinary share cash dividends FE A i AR & AR A
payable 299,896,445.85 659,772,180.87
Ordinary share scrip dividends JE A 8 AR AR R AR )
payable =
Others Hib 1,007,057.85
Unallocated profit at HAR R oA 9 B F)
period-end/year-end 25,729,476,604.93 22,264,536,818.92
On 30 June 2014, the profit distribution scheme 2013 was M2014% 6 A30H - K2 & 2013
reviewed and approved on the 2013 annual general meeting of the FRREAFRGEZHB2013F
Company. Based on the 1,999,309,639 shares, representing the ERHEIBRAR  AAQRFHERAK
total share capital of the Company, all shareholders were entitled to 1,999,309,639k A EE - MK
cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held. RIB10BRERSALMARKE1.50
As at the date of approval for issuance of these interim financial TT(EB) « LA BB IHRK B E

statements, distribution of such dividends had been completed. WHEA - ZERFIEERTE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —# ~& 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (748)

45. Revenue and cost of sales 45. EXW AR KA
The revenue is listed as follows: EEWASRIAT
Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the WABERAEERBXGRIEFES
course of the Group’s ordinary activities. The Group's turnover, MEEBREMBA - REBAFE
which arises from the principal activities of the Group, represents EEBRELEMNEETEFRNNKR
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns, B EERN - ARUERENEEN
trade discounts and the value of services rendered; and gross rental EHEEVNERFEUREENRE
income received and receivable from investment properties. MED W R EKHE S W ALEE -

January-June 2014 January-June 2013

2014%1-6 8 20134 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REEZ)

Revenue from principal operations FEEBBA Splcebiivl el 29,813,363,870.79
Other revenue e 3PN 1,273,013,232.21 1,108,255,163.16

34,111,434,568.32 30,921,619,033.95

Cost of sales is listed as follows: BENATRAT

January-June 2014 January-June 2013
2014%1-6 A 20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REEER)

Cost of sales for principal operations ESE S I\ LTl OE I EEIS S 23,622,091,754.99
Other cost of sales H A EE SR AR 1,146,769,296.54 1,017,895,314.31

27,143,799,729.80 24,639,987,069.30

Information related to principal operations is listed by sector as FEREBNAITEEELOT ¢
follows:
January-June 2014 January-June 2013
2014%1-6 A 2013%F1-6 7
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (RigER)
Revenue Revenue Cost
A KA WA 2%
Manufacturing of RBERDBEREE
transportation equipment 32,632,991,977.07 25,789,421,684.85 29,680,686,306.86 23,493,011,478.78
Others Hity 205,429,359.04 207,608,748.41 132,677,563.93 129,080,276.21

EYR LR VARCEIN N LRV EWCE P 29,813,363,870.79  23,622,091,754.99
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
45. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

(%)

Information related to principal operations is listed by regions as

follows:
January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REBER)
REEE
KA D%
Domestic B A 28,607,873,980.55  23,130,779,610.72
Overseas BN 4,230,547,355.56  2,866,250,822.54

32,838,421,336.11  25,997,030,433.26

Information related to principal operations is listed by product type as

follows:
January-June 2014
2014%1-6A
(Unaudited)
(REEK)
Revenue
KA A
Complete vehicles and key EEREEZT R
components 24,411,992,291.42  18,793,332,736.10
Non-automobile engines  3E/5E B E E i 3,472,829,719.34  3,010,848,920.60
Other automobile Hiv T8
components 4,146,833,165.64 3,569,556,734.37
Others Hite 806,766,159.71 623,292,042.19

32,838,421,336.11

25,997,030,433.26

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o~ BB R T IH H kR

A5, EEWAR RA (&)
IHEBOIRERELMT :

January-June 2013
2013F1-6 3
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Revenue

L'ON

Cost
BA

27,434,549,908.98
2,378,813,961.81

21,452,057,848.29
2,170,033,906.70

29,813,363,870.79

23,622,091,754.99

FTEXBNDEMEEANT ¢

January-June 2013
2013F1-6
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Revenue

WA

Cost
A

23,375,559,155.13
2,110,443,082.22

3,936,632,350.60
390,729,282.84

18,603,127,682.87
1,657,755,129.46

3,043,047,799.04
318,161,143.62

29,813,363,870.79

23,622,091,754.99
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —Fi ~& Of B % $it 3 1 B0H H 51
Statements (Continued) (78)

45 EEWARRA(E)
2014F1-6 ARTABEFPHEZERA

45. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)
From January to June 2014, revenue from the top 5 customers is

presented as follows:

Beijing Foton Daimler Automotive Co., Ltd
EREAHSENTEFTRAF
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Automotive Co., Ltd
— BN ERAEBRAA
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine
Co., Ltd.
HERTBERE N ARA A
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd
(Commercial Vehicle Company)
REAEERAAMABERAA
Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial Vehicle Co., Ltd.

EARBAERRAERRAR

Amount

=8

4,024,701,553.00

848,259,861.35

730,846,883.27

679,045,019.58

481,346,861.54

6,764,200,178.74

From January to June 2013, revenue from the top 5 customers is

presented as follows:

LA

Proportion of

revenue
(%)
(- 3 ON 47
(%)

11.80

2.49

2.14

Relationship
with the Group

BEALERE

Non-related parties

FEBT

Non-related parties

Ed) b

Related parties

RA TS

Non-related parties

el b

Non-related parties

FERAME T

2013F1-6 AR ABRFHEZERA

T

Proportion of

revenue Relationship
Amount (%) with the Group
L—E L ON-AL]
&8 (%) BEAREERER
Beijing Foton Daimler Automotive Co., Ltd 3,349,655,861.41 10.83 Non-related parties
EREARBHTEERAF e )
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine 820,595,494.69 2.65 Related parties
Co., Ltd. 2 Bk
HERTIE R N BR A A
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Automotive Co., Ltd 704,660,784.04 2.28 Non-related parties
— AR ESAEBRAA SERIEE TS
Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial Vehicle Co., Ltd. 674,604,055.80 2.18 Non-related parties
FAKBRAEEREARAR JE AR
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 630,645,652.37 2.04  Non-related parties
(Commercial Vehicle Company) FE A
RESREERAREBERAA
6,180,161,848.31 19.98
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

MR IRHBRAT

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
45. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

46.

Revenue is listed as follows:

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o~ BB R T IH H kR

(%)

45. ERWARAA (&)
BEBAFRMT -

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

32,838,421,336.11

848,565,475.14
21,072,928.41
36,084,272.17
367,290,556.49

1,273,013,232.21

34,111,434,568.32

January-June 2013
2013%1-6H
(Unaudited)
(REE®R)

29,813,363,870.79

848,606,774.34
15,896,641.61
28,636,276.75
215,115,470.46

1,108,255,163.16

30,921,619,033.95

46. EEB S KM AN

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Revenue from principal operations EEEBBA
Sales of goods and others 4 7 o S HoAth
Other revenue E h 2R ULA
Sales of materials HEME
Sales of power HEEN
Lease income HEWRA
Others Eth

Taxes and surcharges

Business tax EEN

City construction tax YR
Educational surtax HEBHM
Others Eth

2,949,300.74
79,590,724.88
57,348,818.39
6,901,776.99

146,790,621.00

Please refer to Note lll. Taxation for tax rates.

January-June 2013
20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REeEZ)

4,890,729.00
74,900,726.18
52,244,505.71
9,278,925.93

141,314,886.82

SEURES BHES  BUA -
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
47. Distribution and selling expenses

48.
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S5 R T o (7))

201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o BB Rk T IH H kR

(%)
47. SHEEHR

January-June 2014
20145 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

After-sales and product return fee
Freight and packaging fee

Staff costs

Marketing fee

Fixed assets depreciation

Travel fee

Lease and warehousing fee

Office expenses

Others

—BRkEMREER

EBRDER
B I
mimAHAER
ErEETE
ERE
HEREHE
WAEMA
Hth

657,011,611.65
197,583,046.89
220,993,020.19
227,132,901.08
47,020,960.32
49,474,235.21
28,046,382.72
16,329,363.89
99,695,738.34

1,543,287,260.29

48. EEEH

January-June 2014
20145 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

General and administrative expenses

Staff costs B I A

Fixed assets depreciation BEEENE

Experiment expenses and HBRERFARER
development expenses

Office expenses VN =

External support fee INERZ 45 B

Taxes ik

Travel fee ZIRE

Fuels and materials expenses BB A R B

Lease fee HEE

Repair fee BRE

Transportation fee k=

Promotion fee SEEESR

Vehicle usage fee HEWHERE

Heating expense REE

Others HAh

880,961,209.67
233,151,161.67

171,159,319.77
141,584,349.17
225,157,818.29
90,800,910.51
31,150,593.33
28,357,107.94
44,552,836.92
22,231,480.91
17,130,396.21
6,913,539.02
7,558,900.28
1,039,422.86
176,705,634.71

2,078,454,681.26

January-June 2013

2013%F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

672,622,252.13
339,762,302.99
164,898,321.00
142,301,968.00
53,319,003.20
34,187,104.38
18,617,274.76
11,308,695.06
98,443,613.34

1,535,460,534.86

January-June 2013

20134 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

754,427,464.13
227,244,587.36

154,176,151.41
130,385,831.55
117,626,327.98
61,245,158.65
45,526,972.63
35,860,874.50
30,417,405.99
21,910,566.85
15,404,936.32
15,020,677.88
11,789,561.74
5,475,708.94
122,858,911.29

1,749,371,137.22
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
49. Finance expenses

Interest expenses
Less: Interest income

Amount of interests capitalized
Exchange gains

Handling fees and others

FEXH

L A B A
MEBER TR

PEE 30 W 2k

FEELHEM

Amount of borrowing costs capitalized has been included in

construction in progress.

Interest expenses:

Interests on bank loans, overdrafts and
other borrowings wholly repayable
within 5 years

Other interests

MBS

SERNAEEEEERT T%/TA
FHX R EAME R

Hb 58

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

278,736,144.40
165,994,973.63

(30,751,113.39)
22,757,258.28

104,747,315.66

RS 2 BT 5 (48
2014465308 (AR ¥T)
i~ B B e 2 A
(%)
9. BIKEHMR

January-June 2013

20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

241,731,580.92

166,943,761.39
4,416,274.98

(12,672,299.22)
6,150,742.67

63,849,988.00

EREREALBECFAEET

12 e

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

264,865,417.39
13,870,727.01

278,736,144.40

January-June 2013

2013%1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

156,743,551.98
84,988,028.94

241,731,580.92




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

50. Impairment loss of assets

51.
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PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IEH H RE R

(%)

50. EERERX

January-June 2014

Loss from bad debt
Loss due to decline in value of
inventories

Impairment loss of fixed assets

AR K
FERERK

B & ERER KL

January-June 2013

2014%1-6 8 2013%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)

199,596,860.51 130,327,063.46

41,631,418.70
(1) 32,226,047.83

273,454,327.04

(1) Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles Manufacturing Co.,

Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, decided to terminate the

production of logistics vehicles during the period. Relevant

production lines which could not be transferred were assessed

for impairment, and provision for impairment of fixed assets

in the amount of RMB32,226,047.83 was made.

Gain or loss on change of fair value

(M

94,922,029.66
41,673.35

225,290,766.47

KRR ZFARIEBEEMRE
LABERERRARANHAE
BIEY B R EE - W EREE
BmEIEDPOAEEESETT
BERAS  TFUARTAR
#32,226,047.83 THETE &
EREEE -

51. 2REBEESFHER

January-June 2014

January-June 2013

2014%1-6 8 20134 1-6 B
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXR) (REEZ)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for
the current period
Incl: derivative financial

instruments

NonBEAEBEAEES
SRASHESNEREE

Hep : fTEEWIA

(49,415,122.40)

(49,415,122.40)

Other non-current liabilities
Incl: Put options in relation to

minority interests

HiERBAE
Hep : SRS
Ekofekpaiik 4

(3,984,335.98)

(3,984,335.98)

Transferred out to investment

income upon fair value change

AR BEEHEHERE
LI&M

B

136,886,215.86

136,886,215.86

(3,911,708.95)

(3,911,708.95)

(96,738,410.40) =

(150,137,868.78)

132,974,506.91
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

51.

52.

Gain or loss on change of fair value

(continued)

(1) Loss on change of fair value, during the Period, of the call
options in relation to minority interests arising from the
acquisition of 70% interest in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co.
KG.

(2) Loss on change of fair value, during the Period, of the put
options in relation to minority interests arising from the
acquisition of 70% interest in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co.
KG.

Investment gain

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

ﬂ‘i?%%ﬁ%igﬁﬁﬁﬁ
(%)
51. ARBEEZEHES (H)

(1) AEEREESTONMNERE
ERbFEREDBRETHRIBK
REDARNEARRERAS
NREBEEPELNIEK -

(2) AEFEREEFT0%NERE
ERLEEDBRETERIBK
RiEZAMNHE BN A
NABEEHELNIELX -

52. RE W=

January-June 2014 January-June 2013

2014%1-6 8 2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEEZ)
Gain on long-term equity investments AR EN R HAREIR B U
under the equity method 94,884,597.49 5,694,427.50
Investment gain from disposal of RERIAKREBEREEENKRE
long-term equity investments W = (1,234,423.12)
Investment gain during the period in HAERAHDE SR E ERRIG
which the available-for-sale financial R & WS

assets were held
Recognition of loss on disposal BREEMHEHELEEDN
corresponding to call and put options REEL

Transferred in upon fair value change A BEE BE A

Profit and loss arising from TEEHTHRE
re-measurement of existing BtE AT ENEE
associates during the course of EXER

business combination

7,360,000.00

(118,615,698.00) =
96,738,410.40 —

1,670,663,605.67 =

1,743,670,915.56 11,820,004.38
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~ & f M % & = 2 EH H ii B
Statements (Continued) (%)

52. RE W= (&)
BEARENRARERERST
N BRRSEEOAARKREELN
follows: T

52. Investment gain (continued)
The top 5 investees with highest aggregate profit in long-term

equity investment income under the equity method are presented as

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8

KION GROUP AG
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.

SHEBRNERQE
WRETREMBEERAR
LWEREEERR AR
B ERASMESEARADA
PRPBETER AR R A

107,568,664.45
12,014,962.16
9,570,583.54
3,738,917.28
2,483,708.17

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.
Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.

135,376,835.60

January-June 2013

2013F1-6 A
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. LERmEHERRA A 13,556,600.99
KION GROUP AG S EE RN ER AR 11,101,720.00
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. IWRETEEYBERAA 3,805,287.63
Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd. PRFEBIE/TE YR AR A7) 2,070,613.80
Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd. T ERE AR AT 1,272,161.62

31,806,384.04

PR2014%F6 A30H © AEEMIKRER
BRI EERMRE

As at 30 June 2014, the Group was not subject to significant

restrictions in remitting investment income.

LRI

53. Non-operating income 53.

January-June 2014 January-June 2013

BT 7 Bh

Government grants

2014%F1-6 8 2013%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)

56,965,057.38

41,860,028.87

Gain on disposal of non-current assets  FERENE E R B A5 1,246,684.75 1,702,861.79

Incl: Gain on disposal of fixed assets A EFEEEEEFIZ 989,558.72 1,702,861.79
Profit from debt restructuring BB EHAFE 5,956,944.72 3,167,844.91
Others H1h 9,947,443.25 10,786,664.09

74,116,130.10

57,517,399.6
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
53. Non-operating income (continued)

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

Income of financial subsidies e NN
Value added tax subject to rebate & #18 iR IB(EFH
Others HA

W5 i R M 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ OB R 3 BIH H kR

(%)

53. EXRINERA(K)
HAEIBEOBR BN T -

January-
June 2014
2014%
1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

January- Related to
June 2013 assets/income
20134 REE/
1-6 A izl
(Unaudited)
(REgEZ)

33,952,426.02

17,436,443.11

5,576,188.25

40,126,564.81

related to income
B35 35 FE

— related to income

sl

related to assets

BE AR

1,733,464.06

56,965,057.38

During the period, the Company recognized government subsidy in
total of RMB56,965,057.38, including:

M

Pursuant to Qi Guo Shui Tong [2014] No. 01 document,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, obtained military tax refund in the total
amount of RMB17,436,443.11 released by Qi Shan National
Tax Bureau;

Shaanxi Automobile Huainan Special-Purpose Vehicle Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, obtained subsidies for
vehicle purchases for year 2013 from Huainan People’s
Government pursuant to Huai Fu Mi [2013] No. 110
document, and obtained tax refund concerning the use
of government land from the management committee of
Huainan development zone pursuant to Huai Kai Guan [2011]
No. 54 document, in the total amount of RMB15,000,000.00;

Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang Vehicle Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company, obtained financial grants including funding
for their various special projects or other government grants
from Development Zone (Tou Tun He Zone) Finance Bureau
totaling RMB5,338,494.93;

41,860,028.87

REAR TR BMA S5 A
R #56,965,057.387C + H A :

(M)

(2)

3)

RARRZFRAKRAEENS
BERAADREKEB®E
[2014]01 5% 3 14 B 15 Uk 1L §& B
MEBEROEERMLTAR
#17,436,443.117¢ ;

KABZFRAAKRAERZ
AR E AR QAR EEF M
[2013]110 5% X B 15 4 B9
ARBFEMR2013F EHEEH
A& S - BIBERE[2011]54
XM EETHEEES
& B BT £ (R
#;HEE AR 15,000,000.00
JG

RRQRZFARBRAHELSE
AR A E ES FEEE (BB
E)VRBEMNSHEEERE
& 5 B B B Bk H fth B B LAY
AL AR KES,338,494.93
71:;



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
53. Non-operating income (continued)

(4)  Amortization of deferred income of subsidiaries of the
Company amounted to RMB5,576,188.25 in total during the

54.

55.

period;

(5)  During the period, subsidiaries of the Company obtained

financial grants including funding for their various

special projects or other government grants totaling

RMB13,613,931.09.

Non-operating expenses
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PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o G E R
(748)

53. EEIPKA(E)

4) AMADEZ

JH H RE R

& T RAE

W s B KA ARK

5,576,188.257C

(5) AHARBZFEFRAEIE
BEEHRET TV RAMEEAM
ERBAMMBAGT AR
13,613,931.097T °

54, BT H

January-June 2014

January-June 2013

2014%1-6 A 20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Loss on disposal of non-current assets ~ FEREEE R BB K 6,156,044.70 7,038,956.17
Incl: Loss on disposal of fixed assets Hi: B FEEEREEEF 6,033,654.38 6,990,768.07
Loss on disposal of other HEH#nt EEREE

non-current assets VES 122,390.32 48,188.10
Loss from debt restructuring B EHBL 473,150.49 786,000.00
Donation expenditure E 5N B G 3,023,684.00 3,871,738.23
Others Hib 2,744,705.99 3,451,818.40
12,397,585.18 15,148,512.80

Total profit 55. R 4%

The Group's total profit is calculated based on revenue minus the

following major items:

AREE 2 N BARERE R AN

TE2HEBAREH :

January-June 2014
20145 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Materials used

Movement of inventories of finished
goods and work in progress

Staff remuneration expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Impairment loss of non-current assets
Rental payable
Finance expenses

e A B R Y

P fn % FE E
FRE
BTHMER
HEBNHHER
FRBEERMERR
XfmiEE

Bi5 &M

January-June 2013

20134 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

23,103,110,572.28

709,225,470.28
2,476,597,713.31
1,065,094,338.05
32,226,047.83
122,422,004.45
104,747,315.66

21,262,584,159.29

466,165,805.17
2,197,438,983.21
977,076,939.23

41,673.35
96,587,550.10
63,849,988.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
56. Income Tax Expenses

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T A ORI R R EIE H
(74)
56. FTSHEHR

January-June 2014

Current tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses

EEFGHER

January-June 2013

2014%1-6A 20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEXR) (REEZ)
647,381,202.89 459,804,018.09
(165,685,288.82) 4,242,493.63

481,695,914.07

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

464,046,511.72

PSR E A3 E2 ) B AR SR O B R 51 R 4

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8 20134 1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)

Total profit
Tax at statutory tax rate
Effect of different tax rates

GlNEEGE
BEEBRRFHENTIEA
BRARRFELETFAREM

applicable to parent company and 7~ @] ¢ R g 57 28

some subsidiaries

Adjustments to current tax of
previous periods

Profits and losses attributable to
associates

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax incentives on eligible
expenditures

Utilization of deductible losses
from prior years

Unrecognized deductible losses

Effect of unrecognized deductible
temporary difference

HURHARE RAEHAN
BENBECENER

IR A

AEE N E B A

B A R A S M E £
B EE

R LA B4R E 09 AT R NS 18

REERBR AT EINER
AERNAERNERUEEZE

2/ 45
gf -4

=

January-June 2013

4,476,152,224.97

Note & 1,119,038,056.24

(220,018,010.26)

(3,810,824.42)

(29,525,646.08)

(448,390,211.92)
12,369,837.85

(31,019,033.49)

(25,168,138.07)
91,400,421.96

16,819,462.26

Tax expense at the Group's
effective tax rate

BAKBERBEGTED
FriSTiE A

2,753,508,049.43

691,682,698.78

(283,740,576.27)

(461,397.39)

(2,432,828.71)

(1,200,000.00)

12,434,401.93

(26,408,191.36)

(18,399,676.45)
88,547,106.86

4,024,974.33

481,695,914.07

Note:

which the Group operates.

The income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated taxable
income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising from
the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable tax rate
according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the country in

464,046,511.72

7 AREMSREZETBEEARSMNG
AHEMBATISERER B EGE - R
A EL At b [ 8 48 Bt P 1S RO B IR IR IR AR
SEREMEBRRNRITER - iR

ANEFEG - LERAREE o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

56.

57.

Income Tax Expenses (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group

had no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the period.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current
period attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by

the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares.

The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows:
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RS 2 Bt 5 (48

201446 308 (AR H¥T)

T A OF B R R B IH H RERE
(%)

56. FRSHER(E)
Fl 7 75 52 8 3 25 A P9 7 0% 3 45 JE 40
BADE - MUK R BB SR M
1%0

57. 8K
EASRUHEREBRAAF LR
AR B 1 3 HF FUB - PR A BT A 4
LA 0 DA T 9 BT

January-June 2014

January-June 2013

2014%1-6 8 2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)

Earnings g
Net profit of the current period
attributable to ordinary shareholders & HERE

of the Company

FEBNA R E BRI

3,764,836,231.86 2,084,967,415.03

1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00

Shares dh)

Weighted average number of the ordinary 7N 72 &) 2 17 7E 40 & 3 A% 89
shares outstanding of the Company g9 &

EPS (RMB/share) Bl (TR

1.88 1.04

The Company holds no potential shares that are dilutive.

ARBEMBEEEK
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
58. Other comprehensive income

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

(%)
58. HitiRE W

f AU B A EHIEA

uary-June 2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

January-June 2014 Jan
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)
Those other comprehensive income not ~ LA78 @5t HARS TN eE E D fAHEIB %5
to be reclassified into profit or loss in R E 4R A Wk

subsequent periods
Share of investee’s comprehensive

Eﬁﬁ%éiﬁﬁﬁﬂ@&%&&ﬁﬁ

income not to be reclassified into et TES B
profit or loss in subsequent periods ERRNGEEWRTRESR
using the equity method 8917 28
Included in other comprehensive income 5+ A E 4R & W (162,692,384.76) 42,281,400.00
(162,692,384.76) 42,281,400.00
Those other comprehensive income not LA @ st ARSI T aE B D A HE 1B
to be reclassified into profit or loss in HE AR & M as
subsequent periods
Share of investee’s other comprehensive X BB ERENERIREE
income to be reclassified into profit AT HBERRRTE
or loss after meeting certain criteria {lﬂfF BEE AEBROE
in subsequent periods using the e lamFRREERMEE
equity method (3,074,941.98) (22,090,580.00)
Less: current profit/loss transferred out 38 : Rat A E 4R A& U
for those originally taken to B HE A E
other comprehensive income B
Tax effect Frisiis e 40,864,388.98 (6,377,070.56)
37,789,447.00 (28,467,650.56)
Gain or loss arising from change —Mﬁﬁ’%%ﬁiﬁﬁ’&ﬁ{ﬁﬁ
of fair value of available-for-sale % BB A FI1S R IBKET
financial assets taken to other AE MR E Wz
comprehensive income (65,200,000.00)
Less: Tax effect W FTEERE 9,780,000.00
(55,420,000.00)
Exchange differences on foreign INERRITEERE
currency translation -
Taken to other comprehensive FFAEMARE W
income (37,917,209.95) (30,551,253.16)
Less: current profit/loss transferred out & © Bet AEfiR & S
for those originally taken to HA®E I Et A8 Bl s
other comprehensive income - -
(37,917,209.95) (30,551,253.16)
Others Efh = -

(162,820,147.71)

(72,157,503.72)




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

59. Notes to items in cash flow statement
Other cash received relating to operating activities

Interim Report 2014 FAsks 211

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

4~ B B R 3 OH H kR

(%)

5. RE&RERBBHIE
WRIMEELZEEE @

Be

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Government grants

After-sales compensation claim
Interest income

Others

BT w8 Bh
=BREX
FRWA
Hit

51,388,875.88
198,750,454.14
182,474,820.70
23,757,018.33

456,371,169.05

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

SIS RO L A B

Be

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

After-sales and product return fee
Freight and packaging fee
Marketing fee

External support fee

Travel fee

Office expenses

Others

373,352,457.62
214,713,443.10
234,046,440.10
225,157,818.29

80,624,828.54
157,913,713.07
918,164,278.42

2,203,972,979.14

January-June 2013

2013%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

41,860,028.87
207,807,410.26
173,600,598.63
35,795,920.01

459,063,957.77

KLEBDAERED

January-June 2013

20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REFEZ)

573,979,558.78
355,167,239.31
146,314,369.78
117,626,327.98

79,714,077.01
141,694,526.61

85,538,449.39

1,500,034,548.86
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

59. Notes to items in cash flow statement

(Continued)

Other cash received relating to investing activities

MR IRHBRAT

S5 e R M o (A

201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ O B R 3 IH H Rk R

(%)

k>

January-June 2014

Asset-related government grant

Capital compensation for minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Net cash received from acquisition of

subsidiaries and other business units

2014%1-6 8

(Unaudited)

(REER)

B & R B8 Y BUIT 4 B 85,290,813.47
FRE VB EE A FHE

REFRAREMEEEN

W BRI F5E 1,132,171,307.40

1,217,462,120.87

Other cash received relating to financing activities

AN
=z

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Interest penalty on delayed contribution % 3R {3 & 5| S5 &

of capital from shareholders

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

K2

January-June 2014

Handling fee for guarantee
Others

2014%1-6 8

(Unaudited)

(REER)

BRFEE 15,665,820.00
HAb 118,882.16

15,784,702.16

59. REREREBEE(E)

WEIE MR EESAERNE

January-June 2013
20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

84,967,612.88

32,810,504.19

117,778,117.07

LR

BEsAEMEA

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

459,500.00

=

XN EMESE

BEsAENE

January-June 2013
20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

60. Supplement to cash flow statement
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (1)
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PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

(%)

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REE&ER)

Net profit
Add:

assets

Depreciation of fixed assets
and investment properties

Amortization of intangible
assets

Amortization of long-term
prepaid expenses

Loss on disposal and
retirement of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets

Finance expenses

Investment income

Loss/(gain) on fair value
changes

Increase in deferred tax
assets

Increase in deferred tax
liabilities

Increase in inventories

Increase in operating
receivables

Increase in operating
payables

Increase in special reserve

Others

FFHE

Provision for impairment of i :

3,994,456,310.90
BEEREER

273,454,327.04
BlE&EREEMEFEE

e 961,853,206.94

m A EEH
68,543,297.92
REGFHE RSN
34,697,833.19
BREMBEEETEEE
EREEME MR
BERBX
4,909,359.95
% E R 296,977,878.32
HE W= (1,743,670,915.56)

DR BEEZHELR (W)
150,137,868.78
EREFAS T A E AR
(83,971,727.50)
ET PSR A AR
(81,713,561.32)

FEsgm (671,917,986.18)
M PRI B A9 N

(6,539,827,666.75)
ae s MRS IE B A9 N

4,249,663,586.29
HIAF RGN 11,212,872.39
Hth (236,601,549.45)

Net cash flow from

operating activities

BEEDELNRDREFE

688,203,134.96

4~ B B R 3 OH H kR

60. REREBERBRER
ReREXkMiTER

January-June 2013
20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

2,289,461,537.71

225,290,766.47

866,922,910.16

73,317,743.42

36,836,285.65

5,336,094.38
266,493,250.98
(11,820,004.38)
(132,974,506.91)

(26,809,240.13)

31,051,733.76
(669,983,675.91)

(10,127,101,144.70)

7,289,958,273.73
8,850,487.00
609,859,310.45

734,689,821.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

60. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)
(2) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash B
Incl:  Cash at bank H - EFHRe
Bank deposits on demand ATRERE AR T
RITFR
Other cash equivalents on ATRERE AR XY
demand EmEEKES
Cash and cash equivalents atend of Hi /F KIS MR L ZED
period/year EREE
Closing balance HF R

Balance

Less: Balance of restricted cash and

ERER

W ERARERANEE

cash equivalents B
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 8 /F R L RIBELHEY
period/year -]

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ B OF B AR 1 EIH H RE R

(%)

60. REREBERBRER (F)

(2) RekRe

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

3,348,576.39

17,002,417,129.72

84,021,161.34

17,089,786,867.45

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

19,841,947,842.96

2,752,160,975.51

17,089,786,867.45

EEW

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

2,714,260.40

16,562,752,445.78

31,474,590.02

16,596,941,296.20

31 December 2013
201312 A31H
(Audited)
(gEZ)

19,580,127,632.91

2,983,186,336.71

16,596,941,296.20




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

The related parties defined in these interim financial statements included

the related parties under accounting standards and related parties under

the information disclosure requirements of SFC.

1. Parent

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

SR 5 i 3R B 5 (48
20146 H30H (A R#T)

A~ BT BAR R R 5
74 PR 20 75 98 A o B R A M
GEE LRVl bl Aok s SR L
ARHHB S  0EEBERERRE
5 B R RS -

1. BQF

Proportion of  Proportion of

ownership voting

Registered Legal Nature of Registered interestin power in

Type of enterprise address representative  business capital - the Company  the Company

#xRE  HARR

i+ -4l it EARK EHrE AmER SRS RRELH

(%) (%)

Weichai Group Holdings Limited  Wholly state-owned Weifang City, TanXuguang ~ External investment financial 1,200,000,000.00 16.83 16.83
HEEREEERRA EBE Shandong Province IR quarantee investment advisory

WREEST planning and organization/

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller

of the Company.

2. Subsidiaries

Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note IV.

3. Associates

Details of major associates are set out in Note V.12.

coordination and management of
production operating activities of
corporates under the Group
HMRERBRRRARARE
BE/hAERsINELE

LEAETED
RRRNFRIEHARLRET LM
BRAF -
2. F4FH

FREEEFRMED -

3. BMEhE
TEMECEFAMER  12-

215
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WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48
201446 5308 (A R#T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 B 18 ) HR2 5 (7))

(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which 4, RAEBEREEARISH
entered into material transactions with the Huu@EEEBER
Group

Related party relationships

BA 75 B &

Referred to as

R

Shandong Heavy industry Group Co., Ltd
IWRBEBTEEEFR QA

Weichai Group Holdings Limited
MR EE AR AR

Weichai Deutz Diesel Engine Co., Ltd.
DR BROR M A R A 7

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.

IR OB R AR
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
HRERRIDBR AR

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.
BMEEFERMHBRAF
Yangzhou Shengda Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
BMNREREEFR AR
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery (Weifang)
Generator Equipment Co., Ltd
HREROED)ZERBERLQA
Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Works
EE A BB
Chongging Jiangjin Region Chongwei
Casting Co., Ltd
EEFMILEREATEFTRAF

Chutian Engineering Machinery Company Limited

IR R TR A R A &)

Shantui Heavy Industry Machinery Co., Ltd.
IWHEE THMERA A

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.
LI HE T2 MR (5 B PR 2 7

Shandong Shantui Machinery Co., Ltd.
IER L HE AR B R A A

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.

WRETREHBERAF]

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co.,Ltd.
LEmEHERRAA

Ultimate controller
BREPEH A

Parent

SN

Common control by parent
[ — &R aliEl
Common control by parent
A — &~ al
Common control by parent

A—8 A A

Common control by parent
B — &R aEl
Common control by parent
[ — &~ al izl
Common control by parent

A—8 2 A4

Common control by parent
A — &~ al bl
Common control by parent
B —& R aEl

Same ultimate controller
Al —J Azl A
Same ultimate controller
Al — & A& F il A
Same ultimate controller
A — R AR E A
Same ultimate controller
A —J Azl A
Same ultimate controller

Rl — & &I HIA

Same ultimate controller

Rl — & &I HIA

Shandong Heavy Industry

IWRET

Weichai Group Holdings

SR B

Weichai Deutz

HESC B AR

Weichai Import and Export

ML O

Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery

B

Yangzhou Yaxing

HIMNEE

Shengda Special Vehicles

RERER

Heavy-duty Generator

EREE

Chongging Weichai
BEHLE
Chongwei Casting
BHEE

Chutian Engineering

L 2

Shantui Heavy Industry

ST

Shantui Engineering

L+ T2

Shandong Shantui

I iig 2

Heavy Industry Finance
Company

ETHMBRA

Shanzhong Finance Leasing

LWEREHRE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

S 5 K I

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

(74)

20146 H30H (A R#T)

Related party relationships
B ER

N ~ B Bk O B AR e AR 5 ()

BEAEERLEBEARZMN
HAibBAME S B (F

Referred to as

&

Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.
IEEEERLQF

Beiqi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.

LA EHARERMBER AR

FOTON Lovol Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
EHEAEREIROHERDF

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
PRETAEEREEFR AR

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
BRASEEXEFR LA

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
PRI AEEEEGREERNR

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
Transmission Co., Ltd.
PREET R AEEHEEFTRAA
Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and
Trading Co., Ltd.
RAZE="ETIZHREEAR
Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and
Trading Services Co.,Ltd.
RAZEE=ETEREERAF
Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
pRENERAERREEAA

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

PRAEBREHWHAR DA

Baoji Huashan Engineering Vehicles Co., Ltd.
BERE LT EEWERSELT

Xi'an Lande New Energy Automotive Technology
Development Co., Ltd.
BARBENRTERMFAEERA A

Same ultimate controller
Al — & A&zl A
Same key management personnel
A—FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
A—RAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-EAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-—FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—AREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFNRIRFA—AREEAS

Shanzhong Jianji

IEg=2r

Beigi Foton

bt m

FOTON Lovol

BEERX

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings
BOTHER

Shaanxi Industry

PRTE %

Shaanxi Automotive
A& E

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

POXE B

Huazhen Sancan
ERTE

Huazhen Services

EHRYE

Tongli Special Purpose
BOEH

Lantong Transmission
EREYH

Baoji Vehicle

BHER

Lande New Energy
BIBATREIR

217
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

S5 i R B T (A

)

201446 5308 (A R#T)

Related party relationships
B BR

7N ~ Bl B O B AR e AL AR 5 (1)

BAEEBLEEARIN
HibBAM 5 B R ()

Referred to as

L

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and

Components Co. Ltd.
PREES AEZHHERAA

Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard

Components Co. Ltd.
PRy BT EREHFR AR
Shaanxi Tongchuang Huaheng Vehicle
Radiator Co. Ltd.

PREGRBIEZ T

Special Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.

AN EEEAGERERERR LA
Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong

Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

BRAREEERADRBAEREFTRAR
Shaanxi Automobile Group Yan’an Special

Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PR AEEEELERAEFRAA

Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd

PRARSE@M AN AR AR

Shaanxi Zhongfu Wulian Technology Service Co., Ltd
PR 7 = B

BMERFEBERAR

Shanghai Yuanxing Supply Chain

Management Co., Ltd
FPERTHEREEARAA

Shaanxi Zhongjiao Tianjian Vehicle Net Information

Technology Co., Ltd

PRPGP R KR ERBESRMARRQA

Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
ERmEHERRA A

Shaanxi Dongfeng Axle And Transmission
System Co.,
BRAREEBEDRGRNER QA

Ltd

EHABREEAR
Shaanxi Automobile Group Xunyang Baotong

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA—FEAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA—FEAREEASR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-EAREEASR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-—EAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-EAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-EAREEASR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA—FEAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFNRIRFA—FEREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFNRIRFA—FEREEAS

Shaanxi Wanfang
BRAE Ty

Fangyuan Automobile

JTESE

Tongchuang Huaheng
Rl &=

Xunyang Baotong
AGER

Changsha Huantong
ROIRB

Yan'an Special Purpose
Vehicles

ELEMRE

Dongming Automobile

REAE

Shaanxi Zhongfu
PREEHE

Yuanxing Supply Chain
EITHERE

Zhongjiao Tianjian

PRR 2

Deyin Leasing
EIREE

Dongfeng Axle
REER



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

S 5 K I

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

(74)

20146 H30H (A R#T)

Related party relationships
B ER

7N ~ B B T A S HL 32 5 (A

BEAEERLEBEARZMN
HAibBAME S B (F

Referred to as

&

Shaanxi Automobile Group Wenzhou Yunding
Automobile Co., Ltd.

PR TELEBRMNETEAEFR DA

Shaanxi Tongjia Automobile Co., Ltd.

PREBR AERREEAR

Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited
N E R R D BR A A

Zhuzhou Automobile Gear Factory

RN TEE R R

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.

PRPTBESEYRER AR

Xi‘an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd.

ARLHEREDHARAA

CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

HEPRIERN(AR)EREFGRAT

Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.

BAREAEEDEER A A

Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd

REBAREREBRAA

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.

PRARET T RO BR A A

Weichai Power Westport New Energy
Engine Co., Ltd.

HLETEBRTRLREN AR A A

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FEAREEASR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-EAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA-—FAREEAR
Associate of subsidiaries
FREIZEERE
Associate of subsidiaries
TRAEIZEE R
Associate of subsidiaries
FRAIZE LR
Associate of subsidiaries
FRRZHBE R
Associate of subsidiaries
TRAEIZE SR
Associate of parent
BARZBELE

Note: As KION GROUP AG became a subsidiary of the Group in June 2014 and EE
was an associate of the Group from January to June 2014, the amount of
transactions between the Group and KION GROUP AG for the reporting

period is disclosed in this interim report.

Wenzhou Yunding

BN ETR

Tongjia Automobile
BRAE

Zhuzhou Company

i N=1REn)

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

R R

Tonghui Transportation
BEYR

FC Intelligence Transmission
[iEkd=253
CIMC-SHAC

SR BT
Xi'an Cummics

% FRRA T

Shangi Tianma
PR

Eurostar

R AT

Westport New Energy
AR

SIHE B BRARNR20145%6 A
ERAKEHREFAA  K1-6 AN
RAEEMEEDE - AhHIKR
EREASEAHEGNHEERNDE
BRARNRZHE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related
parties

Purchase of goods from related parties

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

A~ BT BAAR R A2 5 (4)
5. AKEEEBBINEIER

January-June 2013

2
(1) BB REmMEHERS
BB B R B
January-June 2014
2014%1-6A

(Unaudited)
(REER)

Amount Percentage
=8 L 5
(%)

2013%1-6 A

Percentage

Ee 17
(%)

Westport New Energy
PEE AL R

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
7 )

Tongli Special Purpose
BOIER

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREEE 77

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESRE

Weichai Import and Export
S L O

CIMC-SHAC
PERTER

Xi‘an Cummics
7% BR AR AT

Lantong Transmission
EREH

Weichai Deutz
HESCBHOR

Huazhen Sancan

EBR-E

1,571,183,849.50

1,534,802,885.87

409,105,350.53

213,363,253.50

146,596,133.74

133,525,702.18

106,604,201.71

97,095,823.10

76,620,246.83

73,433,204.17

60,033,984.61

1,685,834,849.05

1,058,773,598.37

360,068,229.35

261,855,503.27

135,433,687.14

78,249,724.08

157,215,833.96

85,823,249.18

62,166,962.35

80,764,935.84

154,695,965.47

38.67

24.29

8.26

6.01

1.80

3.61

1.97

1.43

1.85

3.55



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its 5.

5.

related parties (Continued)

(1

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Purchase of goods from related parties (Continued)

Fangyuan Automobile
FE~E
Tongchuang Huaheng
RAIET

Zhongjiao Tianjian
R K

Xunyang Baotong
AEE®

Weichai Group Holdings
SR X

Dongming Automobile
RERE

Others

Hith

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEXR)

7N ~ Bl Bk O B AR e AR 5 ()

FEBEBABINEER
Z (&)
BT ARNEBER S

(1)

Amount Percentage

=8

48,492,868.61

46,801,940.22

29,813,198.88

27,557,666.67

21,374,913.25

20,980,374.21

134,398,532.23

4,751,784,129.81

el
(%)

&)

BRI ER B (&)

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

Amount  Percentage

G| Lt 51

(%)

46,799,219.21 1.07
44,859,171.01 1.03
24,061,330.72 0.55
991,250.36 0.02
13,504,079.00 0.31
107,688,113.76 2.47
4,358,785,702.12 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its 5.

5.

related parties (Continued)

(1)

MR IRHBRAT

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Receiving services from related parties

Weichai Group Holdings
SRR

Tonghui Transportation (Note)
AEYR ()

Shaanxi Automotive

PRt

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
Gl

Chongging Weichai

Others

Hith

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Amount Percentage

=8

55,858,054.34

36,639,478.74

30,590,720.17

21,709,639.82

6,558,407.34

151,356,300.41

Note: From January to June 2014, Tonghui Transportation provided
comprehensive services including agency procurement,
warehousing, logistics distribution and receipt and payment
services to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company. Agency services provided by Tonghui
Transportation to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. amounted
to RMB36,639,478.74, and goods purchased by Tonghui
Transportation on behalf of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.

amounted to RMB1,196,013,931.58 during the period.

7N ~ Bl B O B AR e H AR 5 ()

FAEBMEBABINEER
& (&)
(1) BEITBEmNEBERS
(&)
BRI L XS5
January-June 2013
2013%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(Rig&EZ)
Amount  Percentage
L 5l T HE e 1
(%) (%)
68,780,322.91 46.46
25,538,490.88 17.25
437,439.88 0.30
17,308,597.41 11.69
20,154,014.49 13.62
15,802,271.95 10.68
148,021,137.52 100.00

MR2014F 1-6 B + BE YK
BARARZFRARIKAER
FMEBRARRHARER
g B DREEXERRA
WHEHREAERHE - RERRA
EMAERRAAEXARE
MENRERBESEAAR
# 36,639,478.74 7t 1t 1P
FENEDSEAARE
1,196,013,931.587C °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its

5.

related parties (Continued)

(1

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Sale of goods to related parties (excluding tax)

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BOEE S

Westport New Energy
mAE R R

Deyin Leasing

EIREE

Beigi Foton

Biat -y

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESEE M

Yuanxing Supply Chain
EITHIER

Weichai Import and Export
HESE O

Shaanxi Wanfang
pREEE 77

Tongli Special Purpose
BAOIER

Shantui Engineering
T A2

Yangzhou Yaxing
HMEE

Baoji Vehicle

BAEH

7N ~ Bl Bk O B AR e AR 5 ()

5. AKEERBINEER
& (&)

(1)

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Amount

=8

950,462,746.77

728,757,033.05

708,296,752.14

291,532,893.79

215,901,209.67

111,456,666.67

107,008,919.58

97,837,244.90

86,182,120.57

68,097,019.69

67,474,755.67

63,313,581.70

Percentage
L 41
(%)

&)

MBI mMEBERS

IR & B (T &)

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(CRig&EZ)

Amount  Percentage

T8 e 1

(%)

590,434,078.44 16.96
820,222,423.69 23.56
287,063,331.90 8.25
198,001,147.59 5.69
112,368,620.03 3.23
156,428,662.84 4.49
95,628,303.98 2.75
82,470,246.15 2.37
24,252,904.00 0.70
21,972,632.99 0.63
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related
parties (Continued)

Sale of goods to related parties (excluding tax) (Continued)

S5 e R M o (A

2014465308 (AR ¥T)
N~ BT BAR R 5 ()
5. AEEHEBAEINEER

& (&)

(1) BEITBEmNEBERS

(&)

g T 35 & B (T2 )

(%)

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Amount

ot

Huazhen Sancan
EHR-E
Shengda Special Vehicles
REFES
Shaanxi Zhongfu
pREEH =
Weichai Deutz
WSS E HOR
Huazhen Services
EZRIRTE

Others

HA

4,244,280,249.85

61,487,480.43

40,747,230.31

499,016,381.75

Percentage
4]
(%)

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 7
(Unaudited)
(REeEZ)
Amount  Percentage
Gak:) Lt 1
(%)

60,615,300.84

57,651,117.04

28,441,795.28

104,883,867.04 3.01
31,934,643.00 0.92
955,329,105.07 27.44
3,480,989,966.72 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
5.  Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) EEITERMEBEIS
parties (Continued) (#&)

7] B B 7 1 (1 85 7

Rendering services to related parties

January-June 2014 January-June 2013
2014%1-6 A 20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBERK) CREEZ)
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
&8 L 41 T e 1
(%) (%)
Others
EHpth 17,227,538.05 100.00 16,464,245.71 100.00
17,227,538.05 100.00 16,464,245.71 100.00

During the period, the prices for the Group's sale of goods
and rendering of services to related parties as well as
purchase of goods and receiving services from related parties

were determined with reference to market rates.

AMASERABEBELOHEER
CRESEBERS  KEEM
REREB2ETIHERRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5.

Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

()

Leasing with related parties
Revenue from leasing of assets to related parties

MR IRHBRAT

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

A~ BT BAAR R A2 5 (4)
5. AKEEEBBINEIER

& (&)

(2) BT HEE

B BB 7 4 T B E A

January-June 2014
201451-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

FC Intelligence Transmission
AR

Tonghui Transportation
REYR

Xi‘an Cummics
7% BR AR T

Shanzhong Finance Leasing
LWERMERS

Weichai Import and Export
WS O

Heavy-duty Generator
BREE

Westport New Energy
AR

Shaanxi Industry
POTEE

Huazhen Sancan
EER-E

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREEE

Shaanxi Automotive

L aEE]

8,111,621.70

5,024,980.32

4,080,981.84

3,066,353.04

2,379,435.84

2,250,000.00

2,089,850.22

323,060.40

164,268.00

58,620.00

27,549,171.36

January-June 2013

20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

4,382,862.63

4,700,760.00

4,080,981.84

2,250,000.00

2,089,850.22

1,811,226.30

243,664.20

19,559,345.19
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7 ~ Bi i 5 Bl & e H A2 55 (48)
(Continued)

5.  Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(2) Leasing with related parties (Continued) (2) BB HEE(E)
Expenditure on leasing of assets from related parties B BGR 7 &TH L E S

January-June 2014 January-June 2013

2014%1-6 B 2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEER)
Weichai Group Holdings
HESeE IR 15,076,520.04 20,529,099.52
Shaanxi Industry
PRAE S 14,376,435.90 -
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BOEE S 7,127,340.20 5,987,961.78
Chongging Weichai
BEE AL 1,999,998.00 1,999,998.00
Shaanxi Automotive
prT S 1,427,428.84 1,136,564.17
40,007,722.98 29,653,623.47
During the period, the prices for the Group's leasing with NEAAREEEER T HE XL
related parties were determined with reference to market BRXEMBERRE °

rates.
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7N ~ Bl B O B AR e H AR 5 ()

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5.  Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties (3) BBt EEEE

Nature of transaction January-June 2014 January-June 2013
ReE|H 2014%1-6 A 20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) CREEZ)
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
=8 e 41 T Lt 1
(%) (%)
Purchase of KION GROUP AG
fixed assets
REETEE S EERMNERA A 31,098,144.00 - -
31,098,144.00 - —
Sale of Shaanxi Fast Gear
fixed assets Automotive
HEBRTEE POEED 1,737.00 = -
Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery
HESREW 4,738,542.02 99.93
Heavy-duty Generator
ERBRE 3,301.46 0.07
1,737.00 4,741,843.48 100.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(4)  0On 21 March 2013, the Group entered into the Financial
Services Agreement with Heavy Industry Finance Company.
Pursuant to the agreement, Heavy Industry Finance Company
provided deposit, credit, accounting and clearing services
as well as other financial services to the Company and its

controlling subsidiaries.

Cash and cash equivalents placed with related parties

Interim Report 2014 ks 229

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

7N ~ Bl Bk O B AR e AR 5 ()

5. AKEERBINEER
& (&)

(4)

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Heavy-duty Finance Company
ETHHAR

Percentage of

total cash and

Amount cash equivalents
HE¥

¥ EBELETEHLH
(%)

AEBEETHKEQAN2013
F3IA2NBEICEBRS
#) REREAD  BEINE
RAlB AR RERFAGRME
T8 HEREMSH

FHEH T THERED

31 December 2013
20134 12A31H
(Audited)
(fEZ)
Percentage of

total cash and

9,096,401,625.84

Amount  cash equivalents

mEE

T BLRENLH

(%)

4,274,578,045.16 21.87
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O B AR e H AR 5 ()

(Continued)
5.  Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(4) (Continued) (4) (#&)
Short-term loans 2 EIE K

Heavy-duty Finance Company
ETHHAT]

Long-term borrowings

Heavy-duty Finance Company

BETHBRA

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)
Percentage of
total cash and
Amount cash equivalents
HE¥E
Ex-] SHAEN LB
(%)

80,000,000.00

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Percentage of

total cash and

Amount cash equivalents
HE¥E

-] SHERE LB
(%)

100,000,000.00

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)
Percentage of
total cash and
Amount  cash equivalents

HEBE

28 SRBALLD

(%)

100,000,000.00 0.51

RHIEH

31 December 2013
20134124311
(Audited)
(&%)
Percentage of
total cash and
Amount  cash equivalents

HE®E

£E BN

(%)

100,000,000.00 0.51

Except for the transactions with associates, all the above
related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

BREBERBETRSZIN
Fir B Lk 2l A Bt 77 32 5 R B 4 K
BB AT ET AR RIS 14AFT
EH MR 5 RIF BB
5 o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6.

B Bt 75 B W P {9 R IR BRBE

30 June 2014 31 December 2013

2014%6H30H 20135124314
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (1&EZ)
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt amount bad debt
AR BREE BRER BRI R B

Accounts receivable

FE W BR X

Beigi Foton

itREH

Yuanxing Supply Chain
RITHIERE

Yangzhou Yaxing
HMEE

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E

Changsha Huantong
RAERRA

Shengda Special Vehicles
BERREE

Weichai Import and Export
SN

Eurostar

BR &

Shaanxi Wanfang
REE T

Tongli Special Purpose
BOHEMR

Huazhen Sancan
EER_E

Baoji Vehicle

BHEH

Others

Hith

337,608,225.88

103,036,300.00

83,824,354.28

81,147,786.78

75,525,949.02

70,984,590.60

50,638,141.60

41,414,178.46

27,831,323.59

25,956,214.10

25,484,320.15

25,428,831.71

246,141,139.85

1,195,021,356.02

(16,880,411.29)

(5,151,815.00)

(3,815,188.08)

(5,833,631.85)

(10,434,639.12)

(3,550,597.53)

(1,879,363.52)

(24,271,502.36)

(1,396,851.22)

(1,297,810.71)

(1,365,357.42)

(863,233.61)

(9,633,596.83)

(86,373,998.54)

30,273,174.30

9,955,478.40

11,303,812.03

80,763,784.58

11,670,827.37

40,939,153.90

621,850.39

2,834,510.83

42,612,813.37

5,027,956.47

45,269,396.52

(1,513,658.72)

(506,513.92)

(37,113.15)

(4,038,189.23)

(477,310.77)

(2,046,957.70)

(31,092.52)

(141,725.54)

(2,130,640.67)

(267,074.23)

(7,092,702.09)

281,272,758.16

(18,282,978.54)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

(Continued)

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

(%)

30 June 2014
201456 H30R
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Other receivables

H A FE WK

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
PO ES

Shaanxi Automotive

LORE L

Others

Hit

Gross carrying
amount

AR E EREE

98,118,180.14

24,930,805.69

134,589,801.96

257,638,787.79

Provision for
bad debt
BRERE

(1,311,580.40)

(12,255,004.77)

(13,566,585.17)

7N ~ Bl B O B AR e H AR 5 ()

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6.

B8 Bt 75 BB WL HE {9 RR TH BR BE

31 December 2013
20134128318

(Audited)

(RREZ)
Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt
AR R R B
2,634,110.08 (131,705.50)

50,506,828.00

(12,038,869.49)

53,140,938.08

(12,170,574.99)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

6. BETEWENREKRE
(%)

30 June 2014 31 December 2013

20146 A30H 20134 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)
Notes receivable
EREE
Deyin Leasing
mIREE 1,168,580,000.00 -
Shantui Engineering
TR 55,260,000.00 15,000,000.00
FOTON Lovol
BHRERX 24,000,000.00 -
Shandong Shantui
LR 1L 100,000.00 -
Beigi Foton
94| 1,120,000.00
Changsha Huantong
ROIRB 3,000,000.00
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E 5,000,000.00
Yangzhou Yaxing
HMEE 64,608,300.00
Shengda Special Vehicles
BiEFRERE 30,670,500.00

1,247,940,000.00

119,398,800.00
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MR IRHBRAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties

(Continued)

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

A~ BT BAAR R A2 5 (4)
6. BAME T MEUW B RIHER

(%)

30 June 2014
201456 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)

Prepayments

AN S|
Huazhen Services
EHIR
Huazhen Sancan
HER-E

Baoji Vehicle
BHEH
Eurostar

BR & 5

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREEE 5

Shaanxi Automotive
BT E

Weichai Import and Export
HESE O

Beigi Foton
e H

Weichai Heavy — duty Machinery

MR E
Yangzhou Yaxing
BN E

Tongjia Automobile
BERIVE

27,745,817.14

14,739,782.17

8,515,347.31

1,696,558.97

1,022,629.53

875,201.00

273,000.00

219,114.00

56,175.00

55,143,625.12

Interests receivable

FE W R 2

Heavy-duty Finance Company
EEIHBRA

453,223.68

Dividends receivable

Uk B

Eurostar

BREF 45

3,040,000.00

31 December 2013
201312 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

13,409,579.28

16,225,901.15

1,022,629.53

7,260,208.61

219,114.00

3,649,219.01

2,380,500.00

401,601.02

44,568,752.60

14,815,594.44

3,040,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6.
(Continued)

A Bt 75 FE WL HE {9 RR TH BR BE
(%)

30 June 2014 31 December 2013

201456 A30H 20134128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (E&ER)
Notes payable
ENRE
Tonghui Transportation
BIEYR 6,031,395.77 -

Accounts payable

AR

Tonghui Transportation

BEYR 590,551,186.49 170,002,871.51
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

BROE(E B 295,520,264.93 220,023,974.59
Tongli Special Purpose

BOEA 183,781,755.06 137,018,653.93
Westport New Energy

BT AER 166,299,315.43 6,439,180.65
Shaanxi Wanfang

PREE S 62,560,284.98 99,050,989.95
Lantong Transmission

ERESH 36,935,566.31 19,015,358.23
CIMC - SHAC

RERRER 29,757,212.71 26,457,094.71
Tongchuang Huaheng

b=l 23,627,845.66 19,099,934.26
Fangyuan Automobile

HEAE 23,025,974.79 20,588,365.31
Huazhen Sancan

BEER-E 21,212,864.80 43,779,191.11
Others

HAth, 144,458,367.86 121,110,084.47

1,577,730,639.02

882,585,698.72
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O B AR e H AR 5 ()

6. BELTEWENRERE
(%)

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
20146 H30H 201312 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (&E=%)

Advances

LS

Baoji Vehicle

BHHH

Tongli Special Purpose
BIEMA

Changsha Huantong
RYRB

Shantui Engineering
T2

Beigi Foton

138 H

Xunyang Baotong
ABER

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREEE 75

Yuanxing Supply Chain
EITHER

Yan'an Special Purpose Vehicles
EZERE
Yangzhou Yaxing
BZINE 2

Wenzhou Yunding
BMET

Dongfeng Axle
REERE

Shantui Heavy — Industry
IWHET

12,565,407.00 -

1,363,212.00 237,355.00
999,574.23 999,574.23
632,268.61 679,793.01
562,483.00 =
180,464.00 _

56,251.00 1,376,351.00
6,608.89 =
1,487,700.00

182,060.91

125,378.90

74,000.00

15,200.00

16,366,268.73 5,177,413.05
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 2% B G ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7 ~ BB J5 BAR R A2 5 (%)
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BB LT EWNENRERE
(Continued) (#&)

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
2014%6H30H 201312 831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (E=)
Other payables
His AR
Shaanxi Automotive
prTEEE 54,675,398.49 36,921,912.29
Others
Hh 49,858,969.15 62,329,888.29

104,534,367.64 99,251,800.58

Dividends payable

AR

Shaanxi Automotive

D nt-S] 41,386,364.39
Amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest bearing JE U K2 St RA B 5 sRIA S AR B -
and unsecured. Of which the terms of repayment for amounts of EIE - Hdh  ESARMERE
trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of trading, while WESKFETE  IEBEFERERTFE

amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms of repayment. B o



238 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #%E HIRODAR DT

W5 i R M 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

VIL Share-based Payment L Bt AT

1. Overview 1. ¥

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

30 June 2014
20146 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

Aggregate cash-settled share-based payments RTINS EUNRSEENRN T4
granted 20,222,591.40
TRMNSELR S EENRM X T a%E

Aggregate cash-settled share-based payments
exercised

Aggregate cash-settled share-based payments lapsed

Range of exercise price in respect of cash-settled
share-based payments outstanding as at end of
period

Remaining contract terms in respect of cash-settled
share-based payments outstanding as at end of

KRB BRNR S BEO RN AR
HIRBITEIN AR B E A A
TTHRERNEE

HIRBITEIN AR B E A A
& RIFERHIR

period

Note 1: The liabilities under cash-settled share-based payments shall be subject to a
range which is 20% below and above the product of multiplying the share
price by the number of shares as at the exercise date, and subject to a
maximum which is 2 times the share price prevailing on the date of grant.

Note 2: Share options granted by KION GROUP AG in 2013 have remaining
contract terms of 18 months and those granted in 2014 have remaining
contract terms of 30 months.

Share-based Payment Plan

A performance share plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Share
Plan”) has been implemented by KION GROUP AG for motivating
and rewarding those who have contributed and will contribute
to its operations. The Executive Board members are allocated
virtual shares over a fixed period (two-and-a-half years for the
2013 tranche and three years for all subsequent tranches). The
remuneration component measured over the long term is based in
equal parts on the total shareholder return (TSR) of KION GROUP
AG shares compared with the STOXX®Europe TMI Industrial
Engineering index as a measure of market performance,and with
return on capital employed (ROCE) as an internal measure. It also
depends on the performance of KION GROUP AG shares during the
relevant period.
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014FERTHRZEE - ARF
HAMR30M@A -
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NBESHEERNRNDZF(2013FE
BFeB R iR 2301 A - BERT
BEME TR XY EHR 2361
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VII. Share-based Payment (Continued)

2.

Share-based Payment Plan (Continued)

The first performance period for the 2013 tranche ends on 31
December 2015, while the performance period for the 2014
tranche ends on 31 December 2016. The 2013 tranche are subject
to appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31
December 2015, and the 2014 tranche are subject to appraisal for
business performance during a period ending 31 December 2016.
At the beginning of the period subject to appraisal, corresponding
virtual shares are granted by KION GROUP AG pursuant to the terms
of service contracts signed with the respective members of the
executive committee. Fair value of the virtual shares granted in 2013
amounted in aggregate to RMB2,518,380.00 (EUR300,000). Fair
value of the virtual shares granted in 2014 amounted in aggregate
to RMB1,678,920.00 (EUR200,000). At the end of the performance
period, the number of the virtual shares is amended depending on
the degree to which the relevant targets are achieved. The resulting
final number of virtual shares multiplied by the smoothed price
of KION GROUP AG shares at the end of the performance period
determines the amount of cash actually paid. The Supervisory Board
can also use a discretionary personal performance factor to adjust
the final payment at the end of the performance period by + / —
20 per cent. The maximum amount payable is limited to 200 per
cent of the value of the shares allotted to an individual at the grant
date. The pro-rata expense calculation based on the fair value of
the virtual shares on each valuation date is carried out using Monte-

Carlo simulation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIIL. Contingencies

1.

Exposure to Confirmation Risks

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors and
endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money of not
lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment of bank
acceptance bill according to the amount of credit facility provided
by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the difference between
amount of notes and guarantee money. As at 30 June 2014, open
position of outstanding acceptance bill was RMB2,548,883,671.00
(31 December 2013: RMB732,460,930.00).

Finance lease business

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a cooperation agreement with Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd. and CBD Leasing Co., Ltd. (“finance lease
companies”) respectively. It is agreed by and between the two
parties that the finance lease companies shall provide finance lease
service to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. or its distributors.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall provide joint liability
guarantee in respect of the leasee’s failure to pay the instalment
payments and interests under the finance lease. As at 30 June 2014,
potential risk exposure of joint liabilities was RMB1,154,333,820.00
(31 December 2013: RMB1,192,900,000.00).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W B ¥ 2 BT 5E (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)
IX. Commitments U~ ARSI

30 June 2014

31 December 2013

20146 H30H 2013412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEX) (BEZ)

Operating lease KERE 1,835,277,455.78 120,586,349.70
Capital commitments B R 1,862,465,107.77 932,983,349.67

Pursuant to the leasing contract signed with the lessor, the minimum
lease payables under non-cancellable leases as at 30 June 2014 were
RMB1,835,277,455.78 (31 December 2013: RMB120,586,349.70).

Subsequent Events

On 30 June 2014, the 2013 profit distribution scheme was reviewed and
approved at the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company. Based
on the 1,999,309,639 shares, representing the total share capital of the
Company, all shareholders were entitled to cash dividend of RMB1.50 (incl.
tax) for every 10 shares held. As at the date of approval for issuance of
these interim financial statements, distribution of such dividends had been

completed.

On 29 August 2014, pursuant to the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board reviewed and approved the
distribution of cash dividend of RMB1 (incl. tax) for every 10 shares held,
based on the total number of shares of 1,999,309,639 shares, without
any transfer of capital reserve to capital.

BIEELAASZITHAESR - K2014F
6EH30B PAIREHE EHENZEREN
TREE A AN 1,835,277,455.7870 (2013
F12A318 + AR®120,586,349.70

JT) °
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FRAEEZBB2013FEMNBIEAIR
LA ZK A &) #8 B% 725 1,999,309,639 I% & £
H o AEPERERIORKBERSAFAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Other Significant Events
1. Segment Reporting
Operating segments
The Group organizes and manages its operating business in
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@  manufacturing and sale of diesel engines and related parts

(“Diesel engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile
components other than diesel engines (“Automobiles and

other major automobile components”);

(0 manufacturing and sale of other automobile components

("Other components”);

(d)  provision of import and export services (“Import & export

services”);

(e)  Forklift trucks production and warehousing technology
services (“Forklift trucks and warehouses technology

services”).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Other Significant Events (Continued)

1.

Segment Reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with the
Group's total profits, except that interest income, finance expenses,
dividend income, gains or losses from changes in fair value of
financial instruments as well as head office expenses are excluded

from such measurement.

Other than Forklift trucks and warehouses technology services,
segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, long-term equity investments, goodwill, deferred tax
assets and other unallocated head office assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Other than Forklift trucks and warehouses technology services,
segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)
XI. Other Significant Events (Continued) t-  HAEEREIE ()
1. Segment Reporting (Continued) 1. DEPRE (E)
Operating segments (Continued) 1REE IR (45)
January to June 2014 20144 1-6 H
Automobiles
and other major
automobile Other Import & export
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components Services
RER
(REEH) 91 TEEHHL Ay B35k £ NRE
Segment revente: LN
Sale to external customers NIRFHE 13,203,613,889.43  19,251,488,621.11 1,613,078,710.78 43,253347.00  34,111,434,568.32
Inter-segment sale PEHREHEE 3,178,851,188.45 1,392,064.54 69,218,609.66 24,413,603.15 3,273,875,465.80
Total &t 16,382,465,071.88 19,252,880,685.65 1,682,297,320.44 67,666,950.15 37,385,310,034.12
Adjustment: Lo
Elimination of inter-segment sale BHEOUMEE (3,273,875,465.80)
Revenue WA 34,111,434,568.32
Seqment results GRS 2,661,945,257.80 490,599,913.38 (161,074,322.08) (55,578,065.96)  2,935,892,783.14
Adjustment: FE
Elimination of inter-segment results BEAIRES (87,375,393.10)
Interest income B 165,994,973.63
Dividend income and unallocated income - R EMA R A AE M 1,744,779,735.77
Corporate and other unallocated expenses % K E & 2 EREIX (12,397,585.18)
Finance expenses BBRA (270,742,289.29)

Profit before tax RaifE 4,476,152,224.97




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Other Significant Events (Continued)
Segment Reporting (Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)

1.

30 June 2014

(Unaudited)

(RiEEH)

Seqment assets AHEE

Adistment: g

Elimination of inter-segment assets BHAUMER

Comorateand other inalocated assets P EREMADEEE

Totalassets fEE

Seqment iabites AHEE

Adustment: HE:

Eimination of nter-segment fiablities ERADRER

Comorate and other nallocated iabilties A EREHAAE AR

Totallbiltes 28

January to June 2014

(Unaudited)

(%8%7)

Other segment information; LUbE R

Share of profit and los from: EETHRTHERES :

Gainfloss) from assodates BEMSIE/(BR)

Reversal of impairment of inventories FEHEER

Reversalof impaiment of accounts EREHRE RS
receivable and other receivables HEEE

Depreciation and amrtization TEREY

Gainflos) from disposel of fed assets ~ ERAEREME/(B%)

Investment i assocates REERANRE

Capital expenditure ERER

Diesel engines

3L

28,667,704,123.84

17,132,401,326.94

Diesel engines

YL

(5,250,690.81)
872521857

100,687,846.96
(461,588,347.75)

(2,599,467.11)
581,111,467.88
(349,865,46.51)

Automobiles
and other major
automobile
components
RER

g 5

27,658,504,609.98

16,557,026,803.19

Automobiles
and other major
automobile
components
RER
IR

17,921,668.62
26,270,358.93

96,926,798.09
(462,261,821.%)
(2,054,468.62)
520,764,331.58
(496,083, 134.66)
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Other

(omponents

LR

52,220,540,957.45

9,334,675,930.48

Other

components

RHERH

(107,568,664.45)
6,635,781.20

1,974,090.36
(129,154504.45)
(396,180.95)

(119,743, 554.51)

Import & export

services

£ AR

7,263,944,457.49

1,201,364,089.21

Forklift trucks
and warehouses
technology
services

X2k
RERHRE

43,307,977,533.48

39,765,369,949.29

20144 1-6 H

Import & export

services

EdnEH

13,089.15

§125.10
(12,021,406.23)
6,021.02
42,412,347.83
(12,824,754.48)

Forklift trucks
and warehouses
technology
services

XER
REATRY

387,832,559.90

159,118,671,682.24

(53,203,936,399.16)

20,520,759,513.61

128,435,494,796.69

83,990,838,099.11

(10,857,568,702.97)

14,695,560,376.86

87,828,829,773.00

(94,884,597.49)
41,631,418.70

199,596,860.51
(1,065,026,080.39)
(5,044,095.66)
1,532,121,207.19
(978,516,890.16)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B i R B T (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)
XI. Other Significant Events (Continued) - HAhEEEIE(H)
Segment Reporting (Continued) D EEwE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) eE DI (&)
January to June 2013 20134 1-6 H
Automobiles
and other major
automobile Other Import & export
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components services Total
AER
(kiEzk) il TETHH EhTHH ENORE Bt
Segment revente: AHRA -
Sale to external customers NEEPEE 1197236497737 17,296,054,743.43 1,613,983,726.96 39.215,586.19  30,921,619,033.95
Inter-segment sale HHEKE 2,594,759,838.62 - 58,925,998.45 19,716,980.61 2,673,402,817.68
Total & 14,567,124,815.99 17,296,054,743.43 1,672,909,725.41 5893256680  33,595,021,851.63
Adjustment: FE:
Elimination of inter-segment sale BHIDHHE (2,673,402,81768)
Revenue WA 30,921,619,033.95
Seqment results A%E 2,198,084,985.11 493,016,069.75 63,819,24.03 (1292184698 2,741998,43191
Adjustment: g
Elimination of inter-segment results ik p e 32,990,718.66
Interest income HIEHA 166,943,761.39
Dividend income and unallocated income. R 8RR AW 57,517,399.66
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ AEREMK SRR (15,148,512.80)
Finance expenses BERA (230,793,749.39)
Profit before tax HafE 2,753,508,049.43
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W B ¥ 2 BT 5E (48
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2014F6 H30H (A E#or)
XI. Other Significant Events (Continued) t-  HAEEREIE(H)
1. Segment Reporting (Continued) 1. DEPRE (E)
Operating segments (Continued) REDE (&)
31 December 2013 2013%F12H31H
Automobiles
and other major
automobile Other Import & export
(Audited) Diesel engines components components services Total
AER
(£E%) il TETIH LU ENORE At
Segment assets PHEE 2418967397435 23,639,584,456.15 11,454,532,778.06 7,663,715,242.80  66,947,506,451.36
Adjustment: FE:
Elimination of inter-segment receivables BREODEERE (9,085,962,629.99)
Corporate and other unallocated assets tEREMRAREE 20,660,264,910.84
Total assets BEE 78,521,808,732.21
Segment liabilties HBaE 1502782510550 13,211,435,355.75 9,279,975,579.38 1,148350,600.40  38,667,586,701.03
Adustment: HE:
Elimination of inter-segment payables BHEIDEEATE (9,123,792,212.63)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities % &ﬁﬁﬁ TREE 14,650,702,872.42
Total liabilities BEE 44,194,497,360.82
January to June 2013 20134 1-6 H
Automobiles
and other major
automobile Other Import & export
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components services Total
AER
(xEE7%) Pl TERHH LU EHORE fit
Other segment information: EABER -
Share of profit and loss from: FE(E TR D RFE REE :
Gain/(loss) from associates BEMEIE/ (B%) 7,910,723.39 (9,634,844.79) 11,101,72000 (3,683,171.10) 5,604,427.50
Loss of impairment of inventories BERERL (3676325.83) (82,005,919.86) (9,239,783.97) - (94,922,029.66)
(Loss) of impairment of accounts receivable  FEYBR 2 R E fr MR 20
and other receivables HE(BX) (63434,691.78) (65,253,937.96) (1486,331.73) (15,101.99)  (130,327,063.46)
Depreciation and amortization HERER (383,949,107.86) (482,476,324.87) (124,395,045.76) (10,452,619.93)  (1,001,273,098.42)
Gain/{loss) rom disposal of fixed assets BEAERENE/(BX) (484,208.87) (4,484,295.94) (319.40147) - (5,287,906.28)
Investment in associates REERRANRE 569,398,767.85 534,303,851.77 6,436,326,383.00 42,527,03137 7,582,556,033.99
Capital expenditure ERRR (1,083,637,578.70) (665,886,388.32) (57,352,065.99) (10,845,793.85)  (1,817,721,826.86)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Other Significant Events (Continued)
1. Segment Reporting (Continued)

Group information

Information about products and services

Revenue from external transactions

Complete vehicles and key components

EHRERT M

Non-automobile engines B R EER
Other automobile components H b = 565
Others Epth
Geographic information

Revenue from external transactions

China H B K

Other countries and regions HAth B R A3t [

Revenue from external transactions is attributable to the areas

where customers are located.

PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

Jr*ﬁﬂﬁi%%
2 EHE (&)

E .’fl:l /N
E ip 45 7515 8.
HINZ WA

January-June 2014

2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

(%)

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CRE®EZ)

24,411,992,291.42
3,472,829,719.34
4,146,833,165.64
2,079,779,391.92

23,375,559,155.13
2,110,443,082.22
3,936,632,350.60
1,498,984,446.00

34,111,434,568.32

30,921,619,033.95

IEE R
I ZPA

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

32,913,935,988.38
1,197,498,579.94

29,708,201,575.05
1,213,417,458.90

34,111,434,568.32

30,921,619,033.95

HINZ R ABBNEPERE -
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XI. Other Significant Events (Continued)

1.

Segment Reporting (Continued)
Group information (Continued)

Total non-current assets
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201446 A30H (A R¥T)

o H Al B R

(%)

1. 2&EE|E(E)

SEES(4

&)

FEREEEARE

30 June 2014
20146 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

China el 17
Other countries and regions B B R A [

19,318,924,109.49
34,041,125,738.18

53,360,049,847.67

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets

are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of RMB4,024,701,553.00 (January to June 2013:
RMB3,349,655,861.41) was derived from sales by Diesel engines
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities

which are known to be under common control by that customer.

Fair value

The following is the carrying value and fair value of each type of
financial instruments other than short-term financial instruments
for which the difference between carrying value and fair value is
very small and equity investments for which the fair value cannot be

reliably measured:

31 December 2013
2013F12A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

19,532,242,876.22
9,610,323,933.43

29,142,566,809.65

#ﬁ@fﬁ?ﬁ% MNEZEEMEES -
BRESREETECHSNEE -

FERPER

BRI A AR A4,024,701,553.0070
(2013516 A + ARH#3,349,655,861.41
TO) R BRI S BATE REAM
FERBTHHBEE—EFAES
(BEEMZZEPES THRE X

B RMA o

2. RREE

UTRALEREEEERREAREE
HERIHEHeMTA - AM“TE
T FHENERTAREZING
s ITANEKREERARE

g :

Carrying value

REEE
30 June 2014

201456 A30H

Financial assets TRMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EERMEE
— Listed equity investments — R TARKRE

— Long-term receivables — R Hi R

210,658,221.60
2,588,903,034.60

Fair value
DAREE

30 June 2014
201456 H30H

210,658,221.60
2,588,903,034.60
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Other Significant Events (Continued)

o B Al T O (A

Fair value (Continued)

2.

IREEE)

Carrying value Fair value
REEE RAEE
30 June 2014 30 June 2014
201456 H30H 201456 H30H

Financial liabilities SEBaE
Long-term borrowings RHER 13,585,793,188.38  13,925,407,017.00
Bonds payable fEHE FH 7,612,794,560.09 7,646,422,567.05
Long-term payables RHEIERR 5,471,375,162.80  5,471,375,162.80

The management has assessed the cash and cash equivalents, notes
receivable, accounts receivable, financial products, non-current
assets due within one year, short-term loans, notes payable,
accounts payable and long-term liabilities due within one year. In
each case, the fair value and carrying value are similar due to short

remaining period.

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department. It is responsible for formulating policies and procedures
applicable to the measurement of the fair value of financial
instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet date, the
finance team analyzes the change in value of financial instruments
and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the valuation. The
process and result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined as the
amount at which well-informed parties undergo exchange of assets
or settlement of debts out of free will and in a fair transaction. The
following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair

values.

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according

to quote prices on the market.

ERECKAEHTERES  RBUEE
B BWER  BEMER - —FR3
HOERDEE BHER  ENER
B BNERFNM—FRAIHNEHE
BEE  ARBHARTE  QAEESR
FREEERS -

AEBOMBEEEENBHRHIREA
RE - AFRYEERITA/ABES
ENRERNEF - YEEKERAE
FHBENEAZEERS - BEE
EREXRA  WBEBESTEmTA

B - HERENEREERMBESR
AL -
TREENSBMBENAAEE A
ERFRGH  AEBANRZE
B

BHETE o AT IEMBRBR AR G5
REE-



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Fair value (Continued)

Fair values of long-term and short-term borrowings are determined
using discount cash flows, at rates equal to market yield of other
financial instruments with similar contract terms, credit risks and
remaining term. As at 30 June 2014, non-performance risks
underlying long-term and short-term liabilities were appraised as
insignificant.

Fair values of bonds payable are determined as quoted prices on the
market.

The following table shows the hierarchy of fair values of financial
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PO 5 S B R (4)
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

Jré‘ﬁﬂi%$£$

{(#)
’Aﬁfﬁ(%g)
REMEBEFRRARRBESRENRE
WEARBME  LEBUERER -
ERARRBAMFGAROEMER TA
WMl s EIERNTIRE - 20145
6H30H  HERRAEEZFE ST
BHRBTHEATERK -

BfES  UHEHREREAAE
e

instruments:

Financial instruments at fair value:

30 June 2014

ERMSRE
(Level 1)
(E—BX)
Financial assets at fair value WRnEETEE
through profit or loss HEFHAZH
BamMeREE
Investment products with FEhEHREESR
variable income
Listed available-for-sale equity HHESREE
instruments for available-for-sale EmA#hE
financial assets EanIH 204,000,000.00
Financial liabilities held for trading X S &R AR

As at 30 June 2014, the Company has no Level 3 financial

instruments measured at fair value.

From January to June 2014, there were neither transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of financial BB E
assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3.

20146 A30H

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
AREEFEEANGAE
Quoted Key Key

observable unobservable

prices in

active markets inputs inputs
EEZTHE EEZTAER
BAE BAE
(Level 2) (Level 3)
(B=BR) (B=BR)

16,814,383.80 16,814,383.80

270,000,000.00 270,000,000.00

6,658,221.60
— 42,535,438.20

210,658,221.60
42,535,438.20

MN20145E6 8300 » RAEIEE =B K
HAAREBEFENSHITE -

R2014F1-6 8 WELHMEEMS
ERREBEFEEE —BXIMNE
ZERZEMER - JNEE A RE

FE=FBRNER

251



252  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 2B H R AR AT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)
XI. Other Significant Events (Continued) - Hfth S IE (4)
2. Fair value (Continued) 2. MAREEGE)
30 June 2014 2014%F6 A30H
Disclosure of financial instruments measured at fair value: BREAREBEFENESHRIA

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

AAEEEEANGAE

Quoted Key Key
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
EZTHE EEZTTEE
ERT S HRE BAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—BR) (€3=3-)/9 (E=ER) CH
Long-term receivables REE YR - 2,588,903,034.60  2,588,903,034.60
Long-term borrowings REER 4,419,404,326.80  9,506,002,690.20 13,925,407,017.00
Bonds payable ERES 7,646,422,567.05 - 7,646,422,567.05

Long-term payables REEAR - - 5471,375,162.80  5,471,375,162.80

3. Other financial information 3. EMEBEER

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
2014%6H30A 2013F12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (FER)
The Group The Company The Group The Company
&5 G &8 A

Net current assets MEEETE P A RO S LR A S S 18,751,883,860.92  13,450,865,635.37
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHAE ORISR PSS Sy BRIV 49,223,484,308.10  29,067,649,143.97




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements

1.

Accounts receivable

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
except for new customers, where payment in advance or cash
on delivery is normally required. The credit period of accounts
receivable is generally one month, extending up to six months for

major customers. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice date is

presented as follows:
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TR ] B R I H

B
1.

Within 1 year 1FE AR
1-2 years 1824
Over 3 years 3FLAE

B EMARFUR AR

Less: Provision for bad debt for

accounts receivable

Changes in provision for bad debt for accounts receivable are

presented as follows:

Opening balance ] FONH
Provision for the period ANHAGT 1R
Reversal during the period N EAgE O]
Closing balance HFERE

FE W AR K

|

AEBEREFHNE S HRFIAERAR
ZRE  A—REFHEL AN KK
REERANKOANET  ERYER
BIUER  T2REFPANEREG6HE
H o BUERRIAL RS -

RIEFZEHE - BRERER TN

™

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

2,015,877,416.16
606,183.96
3,518,650.03

2,020,002,250.15

86,102,666.80

1,933,899,583.35

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&#EZ)

249,878,477.80

3,518,650.03

253,397,127.83

8,408,952.31

244,988,175.52

FEMBR TR BRE B BB N T -

30 June 2014
20146 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

8,408,952.31
77,693,714.49

86,102,666.80

31 December 2013
201312 A31H
(Audited)
(')

23,155,234.63

(14,746,282.32)

8,408,952.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 6 ()
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

|

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +- B/ W EEB B HEEH &+

Statements (Continued) (&)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1. BWERM(E)
As at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013, provision for bad debt 7K2014%F6 A30H &2013412 A31
was recognized by group. There was no individually significant A EREERZHASETIR - &
accounts receivable for which provision for bad debt was recognized BESBEEAVEHAIREREEN
separately (31 December 2013: Nil). FEURER R (20134124318 « &) -
Provision for bad debt is recognized by group as follows: RAEAFHREREERNT ¢

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H

Provision Proportion

Amount  Proportion for bad debt  of provision

(Unaudited) Xl 5 4] BIRERE sT32 bt i
(REEIZ) (%) (%)

Within 1 year 1 AR 2,015,877,416.16 99.80 82,553,707.56 4.10
1-2 years 1229 606,183.96 0.03 30,309.21 5.00
Over 5 years S E 3,518,650.03 0.17 3,518,650.03 100.00

2,020,002,250.15 100.00 86,102,666.80

31 December 2013
2013%F12A31H

Provision Proportion

Amount Proportion for bad debt  of provision

(Audited) k-] Lt 1 EERER FHiR LAl
(fe2=z) (%) (%)
Within 1 year 195 AR 249,878,477.80 98.61 4,890,302.28 1.96
Over 5 years S5 E 3,518,650.03 1.39 3,518,650.03 100.00

253,397,127.83 100.00 8,408,952.31

As at 30 June 2014, there was no accounts receivable from R2014F6A30H @ RERF#HEEPE
shareholders that held 5% (including 5%) or more of the voting FEWHEBEARNRANGS%(E5%) A ER
shares of the Company (31 December 2013: Nil). RERMHIRREMARKR(20134F

128318 : #&) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i R B (48

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +- B/ W L E BB HEEH &+
Statements (Continued) B(H)

FEUR BR =X (4B)
R2014F6 A30H @ FEWERKEREAT

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1.

As at 30 June 2014, the top 5 accounts receivable are presented as

follows:

Beijing Foton Daimler Automotive Co., Ltd
EREASENIERTRAA
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.
PREERTEFRA A
Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co., Ltd

— New-engine passenger vehicles branch
BNFREERGERAAMERTED QT
Changsha Zoomlion Heavy Industry Technology

Development Co., Ltd. — chassis branch

EYPBBETMEERENERAREED QA

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd.

B (D) BREBR AT

Amount

ot

277,444,421.67

237,683,875.64

112,392,401.03

79,686,800.59

63,305,356.26

770,512,855.19

ABHWT -

AR

Within 1 year
1E LR
Within 1 year
1E LA
Within 1 year
1E LA

Within 1 year
10K

Within 1 year
1E LR

Percentage of

total accounts
receivable

R AR TR 5
iy EE 51

(%)

13.73
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial

Statements (Continued)

WoF 5 i 3R B 5 (48

201446 A30H (A R¥T)

TR AR R EM W FEIEH G
B (4)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) FEWEREF(E)
As at 31 December 2013, the top 5 accounts receivable are 201312 A318 » EWERZR S
presented as follows: RIBAIT
Percentage of
total accounts
Amount Age receivable
RN AR 4E R
o BR iR B9 Lt Bl
(%)
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. 52,570,830.78 Within 1 year 21.46
SN N () BRUEBR AR 1F A
Hunan Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd 21,949,659.84 Within 1 year 8.96
MR AEREEREEAR 19 AR
Changsha Zoomlion Heavy Industry Technology 20,040,700.59 Within 1 year 8.18
Development Co., Ltd. 1F AR
RAOPHMEINZERRNHER QA
Jinhua Yaman Vehicles Co., Ltd. 6,757,225.00 Within 1 year 2.76
CEF2EBWHARADA 1F AR
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery (Weifang) Generator 6,586,506.00 Within 1 year 2.69
Equipment Co., Ltd 1 AR
MR ER(ED ) BHERBERRAF
107,904,922 .21 44.05




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements (Continued)
2. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:
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T B E R EM R IEE i
()
2. HEWR
H A R R AT IO T

|

30 June 2014 31 December 2013
20146 A30H 2013F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

1,813,169,581.88 1,748,035,172.23
3,317,352.05 3,612,780.95
10,075,715.52 10,152,115.47
27,666,067.92 28,005,533.60

Within 1 year 1 AR

1-2 years 1824

2-3 years 2E3F

Over 3 years 3FLAE

Less: Provision for bad debt for R B R AR R

other receivables

1,854,228,717.37 1,789,805,602.25

27,244,191.74 27,516,215.38

Closing balance FARE

1,826,984,525.63 1,762,289,386.87

As at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013, provision for bad debt
was recognized by group. There was no individually significant
other receivables for which provision for bad debt was recognized

separately (31 December 2013: Nil).

Provision for bad debt is recognized by group as follow:

30June 2014
2014%6A30R

(Unaudited)

(%EFH)
Provision for
Amount  Proportion bad debt
8 Al BRER

(%)

Within 1 year [EDL 1,813,169,581.88 97.79 1,499,010.03
1-2 years 1228 3,317,352.05 0.18 497,602.81
2-3 years 123F 10,075,715.52 0.54 3,022,714.66
3-4 years 3Z4E 10,874,757.84 059 5,431,318.92
45 years 4B5E 19,123.76 - 15,299.01

Over 5 years SEMNE 16,772,186.32 090 16,772,186.31

Total At 1,854,228,717.37 27,244,191.74

720146 A30H &2013412 A31
B SEREEHRREATIE &%
BEeEBEAWBIETIRBRERNE
fhEM K (2013F 124318 + &) -

BASHRERERGET :

31 December 2013

20135128318

(Audited)

(A27)
Proportion Provision for Proportion
of Provision Amount Proportion baddebt  of Provision
LAl 8 ] SRR RN
(%) (%) (%)
(NGRS 1,748,035,172.23 9767 1,563,015.31 009
15.00 3612,78095 0.20 541,917.14 15.00
30.00 10,152,115.47 057 3,045,634.64 30.00
50.00 10,846,244.30 061 542312215 50.00
80.00 1,083,815.82 0.05 867,052.66 80.00
100.00 16,075,473.48 0.90 16,075,473.48 100.00

1,789,805,602.25 100.00 21516,21538
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XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +- B/ W EEB B HEEH &+

Statements (Continued) B(H)
2. Other receivables (Continued) 2. HEWR(E)
As at 30 June 2014, the top 5 other receivables are presented as H2014F6A30H @ HithEW S5
follows: MAZMT :
Percentage of
total other
Amount receivables
1 H 1t B8 IR
| IR e EER R B
(%)
Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. 1,782,733,902.67 Within 1 year 96.14
LB N D ) BIREBR AR 1FE A
Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Development 12,808,968.39 1-2 years and 0.69
Co., Ltd. 2-3 years
HEDH(EE)ARBERBR LA 1-2F K 2-3%F
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 10,823,892.02 3-4 years
RN E R BERREERF) 3-44
Hangzhou Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing 9,203,387.08 Over 5 years
Co., Ltd. S5FME
UM B IR AR 2 )
Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export 6,350,399.53 Over 5 years
Co., Ltd. S5ELE
B R L O QA

1,821,920,549.69
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XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +- 8/ &) BB & FHH &

Statements (Continued) B(H)
2. Other receivables (Continued) 2. HiEW(E)

As at 31 December 2013, the top 5 other receivables are presented MR2013F 128318 » EfER K E
as follows: HAILAWT

Percentage of

total other

Amount Age receivables

1 H 1 8 UK

-0 BR iR HBEREE B

(%)

Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. 1,721,174,533.71 Within 1 year 96.17
ML) I D) BIRAR A A 1F A

Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Development 12,808,968.39 1-2 years and 0.72
Co., Ltd. 2-3 years
HEB N (EE)ALBERAR DA 1-25F }&2-3%

Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 10,823,892.02 3-4 years 0.60
NI ERBEEAEREERN A 3-44F

Hangzhou Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing 9,203,387.08 Over 5 years 0.51
Co., Ltd. S5F M E

UM BRI A 7]

Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export Co., Ltd. 6,350,399.53 Over 5 years 0.35
B SREEL AR S5 E

1,760,361,180.73 98.35

As at 30 June 2014, there was no other receivables from 20146 A308 + AERFHEPE

shareholders that held 5% (including 5%) or more in the voting JEWIFHERRAS% (E5%) A EXR

shares of the Company (31 December 2013: Nil). RIERRD B IR R BB RRIA (2013 4F

128318 : #&) o
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Investment in associates

RS 2 BT 5 (48
201446 A30H (A R¥T)

TR ] B R I H

B (H)

|

3. HMELXRE

Place of
Type of registration/  Legal Registered
Company Key operation  representative capital  Scope of operation Organization code
it/
APRE IEEEM  EARR ifEx L2468 AERERE
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co,, Ltd. ~limited liability company ~ Shanghai Nie Xinyong 150,000,000.00  Industrial investment, 79274447-X
LEEREERERRAT BREFAR 9] £HE investment management
EXRE REER
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment Fund Partnership  fimited partnership Shanghai Xu Hua Dong 400,000,000.00  Equity investment, investment 56710317-4
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) ERE¥LE L RER management and investment
BE(LEREREESRELE consultation
(BRA%) RERE  REERRRERA
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ Shandong Shen Chuan Dong  1,000,000,000.00  Business approved by China 59782870-7
WREISEHBERAA ERERAF WE il Banking Regulatory Commission
BEhARTREEERE e
BENETS
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing limited liability company ~ Liaoning Yu Jianguo USD22,818,208.00  Hardware tools and automobile 70215501-5
Co, Ltd. ERELLA Bz TEH %7122,818,208.00  parts and accessories
REERERSERRAT RETEANETRY
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ Beijing Dong Ping 920,000,000.00  Finance leasing 68690250-X
LERARERRAT BRERAA i3 BY HEMEEH
Long-term equity investments 4. RERERE

30 June 2014
201456 A30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)

Non-listing investment cost method ~ 3F_E 3% & B A&
Non-listing investment equity method 3E 4% & #E25)%

7,648,219,024.33
581,111,467.88

Less: Provision for impairment of B REARR IR BB ERE

long-term equity investment

8,229,330,492.21

12,118,687.10

8,217,211,805.11

31 December 2013
2013 12A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

7,138,219,024.33
575,860,777.07

7,714,079,801.40

12,118,687.10

7,701,961,114.30
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30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements (Continued)
Long-term equity investments (Continued)

4.

As at 30 June 2014, the breakdown of long-term equity investments

under cost method was as follows:

(Unaudited)

(REEH)

Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co, Ltd.
Baudouin (Wefang) Power Co,, Ltd,

Weichai Power Hydraulc Technology Co, Lid.

Weichai Power (Wefang) Equipment Senvice Co, Ltd.
Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy Group Co,, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Wefang) Spare Part Resources Co,, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Weflang) O Co, Ltd.

Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co, Ltd.

Thuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co, Ltd.

Thuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co, Ltd.
Thuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co,, Lid.

Torch Import & Export Co,, Ltd.

Weichal America Corp.

Weichai Power (Weflang) Reconstructon Co,, Ltd.

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) nternational Development Co,, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Shanghal) Technology Development Co,, Ltd.

Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Development Co,, Ltd.

HEINERFHAERAT
[ (458 18RLA
YN RENEERLA
RN RERIREERLT
HEER(RR )L REEARLA
HE9n(8) BRERERLA
HX9N (8 RRERLA
HXN (8 BRERLA
FMAEAERER *1 27
fileEBRSERRE
HRAERERERR EE
KEREOERERA
Weichai America Crop.
HXN08)BELA
#5958 BRERARAT
(LB HRERARAT
H590(2R)EDLRARLA

Weicha Power (Befjng) Intemational Resource Investment Co, Ltd. #5877 BB ERRERR

Xinjiang Equipment Imports and Exports Co,, Ltd.

Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control Technology Co,, Ltd.

Thuzhou Gear Co, L1d.

Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co, Lid.

Weichai Power (Weilang) ntensive Logistics Co,, Ltd.
Shaanxi Heay-duty Motor Co, Ltd.

Shaanii Fast Gear Co,, Lid.

Shaani Hande Are Co, L1d.

Shandong Synergy Oil Co,, Lid.

Baoj Fast Gear Co, Ltd.

Chongaing iging Chuznjiang Vehicles Manufacturing Co, Lid.

WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD

HEREELIARAT
B8N (FH) - HiTERAR
fiNEEERERAA
ERERRERAT

BE97 (45 EOERERAT
REEREERAT
WEETHERERAT
REREBEERL
URERARERAA
EEEThERERLT
BEMERIITEREARA
WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD

Cost method total

HAEA

Investment
cost

REARLE

100,000,000.00
13,066,352.00
50,000,000.00
76,000,000.00
7,981,632.00
101,410238.34
10,706,159.11
460,150,000.00
557485840
130,898.993.14
38,363,180.85
3397305438
214108
122,000,000.00
378750,138.28
340,000,000.00
240,000,000.00
300,000,000.00

150,000,000.00
532,334,431
39,163,469.71
10,400,000.00
1,992,116,000.85
1,082,558,680.59
14507,358.03
9,426918.00
10986483.27
918,000,000.00
12432641.29

7,648.219,024.33

Opening
balance
£
100,000,000.00
13,066,352.00
50,000,000.00
76,000,000.00
7,987,632.00
101,4102383¢
10,706,159.11
460,150,000.00
2557485840
130,898993.14
38,363,18085
33,973,054.98
14108
122,000,000.00
378,750,138.28
340,000,000.00
240,000,000.00
300,000,000.00

150,000,000.00
532,334714321
39,163,469.71
10,400,000.00
1,482,116,000.85
1,082,558,680.59
14507,358.03
9,426918.00
10986,483.27
918,000,000.00
12432,641.29

713821902433

Increase/
reduction
in current

period

L1

510,000,000.00

510,000,000.00
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B ()
RKRERE(R)

4.

Closing
balance

BRY

100,000,000.00
13,066,352.00
50,000,000.00
76,000,00000

1987,632.00
10141023834
10,706,159.11
460,150,000.00
557485840
130,898,993.14
38,363,18085
33,973,054.98
214108
122,000,00000
378,750,138.28
340,000,000.00
240,000,000.00
300,000,000.00

150,000,000.00
532,334,431
39,163,469.71
10400,000.00
1,992,116,000.85
1,082,558,680.59
14,507,358.03
9,426918.00
10986,483.27
918,000,000.00
12432641.9

7,648.219,024.33

MR2014F6 A30H » BAE K HIRS #

RERAWNT -

Percentage of
shareholding

0

100.00%
50.98%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
8791%
75.00%
5200%
51.00%
51.00%
3.06%
46.00%
255%
51.00%
100%

Percentage of
voting rights

v b

100.00%
5098%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
10000%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
10000%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
10000%
10000%
100.00%
8791%
5.00%
5200%
51.00%
51.00%
306%
46.00%
255%
51.00%
100%

Provision for
impaiment

REER

(12,118,687.10)

(12,18,687.10)

|

Provision for

impaiment Cash
dividendin

current period

in current

period
KHitk
HEER  AEREAA

1,704,714.74

10,124,759.08
536,121.22

9,299,099.76
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HL'L{

XII.Notes to Ke
Statements (%
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4.
As at 30 June 2014, breakdown of long-term equity investments

under equity method was as follows:

KRERAMT

Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment Cash
Investment Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof  Percentage of  Provision for incurrent  dividendin
(Unaudited) cost balance period balance  shareholding votingrights  impairment period  current period
AEiR
(RiEEh) REAALE Ha% KEEH HRY KRR RAERA HEER HEER  AEREAA
Fquiy method B
Guanya (Shanghal vestment Fund Partnerhip RE(LEREREE 2 H0R
Enterprise Limited Partnership) (ER&%) 19,800,00000  18,335,757.92 30809798 1864385590 1.75% 1.75%
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manfacturng Co, td. — AERFRHESEERLT VIB5000  u3B454 488072 2437829619 1731% 1731%
Shanghai Xnian Chuzngye Investment Co, Lid. LESBHEREERLA 585368325 11464646180  (1239442313)  102252,038.67 333% 333%
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Fnance Co, Lid LEETEREKARDA 20000000000 2137323001 120149216 225,747,3%.17 2000% 000%
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co, Ltd. LERFEREERAT 18000000000 20477274787 531717308 21008992095 1957% 1957%
Fquity method total EatAy 41059718325 STS860,77701  5,250,69081  581,111,467.88

As at 31 December 2013, breakdown of long-term equity

M2013F 128318 @ Ak K #IR%

investments under cost method was as follows: R ERRMAINT

Increase/ Provison for
reducton impairment (ash
Ivestment Opening incurtent Closing ~ Percentageof  Percentageof ~ Provison for in curent dividend in
(Audited) st balance period blnce  shareholding  voting rights impairment period  current perod

K
(i2h) REikeE 508 KEER Hx% BRAE mRED HEER HEEE  AERLUA
Weicha Power Freshen Al Technology Co, Lt B NERR I HAERAT 100,000,000 - 100,000,00000 100,000,000 10000% 10000% - - -
Baudouin (Weftng) Power Co, L. (45 9 ERAT 13,066,350 - 1306635200 1306635200 50%8% 50%% = = -
Weicha Power Hyraulc Technalogy Co, L. Mm EHEERAA 50,000,000.00 - 5000000000 5000000000 10000% 10000% - - -
Weicha Power (Wefang) Equipment Senvie Co, L. BEDN (452 RRERBARAT 7600000000 - 600000000 7600000000 10000% 10000% - - -
Weichai International(Hong Kong) Energy Group Co, Lid. XER(EE) R RERERAT 798763200 - 797600 798763200 100.00% 100.00% = = =
WeichaiPower (Wefang) pare Part Resources Co, Lid. N0 BRERERAA 10141023834 10141023834 - 10141023834 10000% 10000% - - 10057245
Weicha Power (Weflang) O Co, Lt. BEDN (45 R0ERAT 10706,159.11 10,706,159.11 - 1070615911 10000% 10000% = - OB
WeichaiPower (Weilang) Casting Co, Lid. B804 BRERAA 460,150,00000  460,150,000.00 - 46015000000 10000% 10000% > = =
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs o, L. fENEAEAEEERERDA USSTAZRRA0  MINIBB BRI U5TTAEBA 10000% 10000% - - 189111946
Thuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacuring Co, Lt M ERREERREELA 130898993.14  130898993.14 - 13089899314 10000% 10000% - - =
Thuzhou Torch Auto Lighing o, Lid. flEAERERARRELAT BBI085 3836318085 - BB 10000% 10000% - - -
TorchImport & Expot Co, Lid AEREORRERAA BIBIAB  BIB54% - BIBI% 10000% 10000% - - =
Weichal America Corp. Weichai America Crop. WA s - WA 10000% 100.00% - - -
Weicha Power (Weflng) Reconstrcton Co, L. $E87 (45 EREAT 12200000000 122,00000000 - 12200000000 10000% 10000% - - 8IBB08
Weicha Power (Hong Kong) Intemational Development Co, Lid. - %5871(&7%) EBERARAR 37875013828 37875013828 - 37875013828 100.00% 100.00% = - =
Weicha Power (Shanghal Technology Development Co, Ltd. %4897 £15) KRR ERAT) 50000000000 50000000000 (160000,000)  340,000,000.00 10000% 10000% = - -
Weichai Power (Chongaing) Wester Development Co, td. ~ %4897)(E8) R%EERAT 240,000,00000  240,000,000.00 - 240,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% = = =

WelchaiPower (Befjng) Intemational Resource vestment Co, Ltd. %2871 (3 7) B BB RE AT 300,000,00000 300,000,000.00 - 30000000000 10000% 10000% - -
Xinjiang Equipment Imports and Bxports Co,, Ltd. FEREELOERAR - - 100.00% 10000% ~ (12,118,687.10) - -
WelchaiPower (Qingzhou) Drve ContolTechndlogy Co, Ltd. %281 () B ATARAT 15000000000 150,000,000.00 - 15000000000 10000% 10000% - - -
Thuzhou Gear Co, Ltd filEsERELAA S3UTB 5338 - B3I 8191% 8191% - - -
Shanghi He Da Auto Accesoy Co, L. AREREARAT 1016346971 3916346971 - 3016346971 75.00% T5.00% - - S50
Weicha Power (Weflang) ntense Logistic Co, L. BEN (45 £RRER AT 1040000000 1040000000 - 1040000000 5200% 5200% - - -
Shean Heavp<uty Motor Co, Lt. KEEREERAT 1462,116,00085 1482,116,00085 - 1482,16,00085 51.00% 51.00% - - 6859500000
Sheani Fast Gear o, L. WEEERERAT 1,082,558,680.59 1,082,558,680.59 - 108255868059 51.00% 51.00% - - 1914356992
Sheanx Hande A Co, Lt. REEEEEERAT 1450735603 1450735803 - 457380 306% 306% - - 49BN
Shendong Synergy O Co, Lt IR EREERA 94691800 942691800 - 94691800 4600% 4600% - - SIS
BaojiFast Gear o, L. TR ThERERAT 109648327 1098648327 - 1096483 2155% 255% - - -
Chongging iing Chuanjiang Vehices Manufactuing Co, td. ~ EE R\ 5EHERRAT 91800000000 4500000000 87300000000 91800000000 51.00% 51.00% - - -
WEICHA SNGAPORE PTE. LTD WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD 1243064129 629 1246500 1243264129 100% 100% - - -
Costmethod totel kR 72982190433 6,122,05947276 1,016,15955157 7,1382190433 (12,118.687.10) - A0533330958
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HL'L{

XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements (Continued)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the breakdown of long-term equity

investments under equity method was as follows:

20139128318 « #aE2REK
RERERAMT

Increase/ Provison for
reduction impaiment Cash
Ivestment Opening ncurent Closng ~ Percentageof  Percentageof ~ Provison for in curent dhidend in
(Audited) st halance period balnce  sharcholdng  votingrights impaiment period  current perod
TR
= REfASE g% KR Bx8 BRAS RRERD HEER HEEE  AERLUH
Equiy method At
Guanya (Shanghai vestment Fund Partnerhip TE(LBREREERALE
Enterprie (Limied Partnersip) (BRa%) 19800,000.00 - 1BIBITN 18357579 U75% UT5% - -
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufactuing Co, Lt FERRRHEEERAT U500 MU3S000  (BI0084%) U344 1731% 1731% -
Shanghai Yinlian Chuangye Ivestment Co, Lid. EABHLREERAT (58536325 G101231277  S3E2414903 11464646180 B B - -
Shandong Heavy Industy Group Fnence Co, Ltd IRETEBEHERAE 20000000000 042465478 1130773923 2137339401 2000% 2000% - - -
Shanzhong Fiance Leasing Co, Ltd. LEREHERRLT 18000000000 19850514791 6267399% 20477274787 1957% 1957% - - 661500000
Equiy method fota R 41059718325 43689561546 8896516161 57586077707 - - 661500000
5. Revenue and cost of sales 5. EEWARRKRAK
Revenue Cost of sales
=E L ON XA
January-June 2014 January-June 2013 January-June 2014 January-June 2013
201451-6 8 2013F1-6 4 2014%1-6 A 2013%1-6 7
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (RgER) (REER) (RIEER)
Principal operations FEER
Sale of goods EmEER 13,143,476,525.93 11,788,847,397.94 9,115,025,281.06 8,297,953,497.71
and others Hith
Other operations Hith %% 623,127,626.56 593,401,276.45 574,956,198.78 543,873,877.18
13,766,604,152.49 12,382,248,674.39 9,689,981,479.84 8,841,827,374.89
Information on principal operations by sectors was as follows: TREBRNDOITEEEBNOT ¢
Revenue Cost of sales
=L ON EEMA
January-June 2014 January-June 2013 January-June 2014 January-June 2013
20145%1-6 8 2013%1-6 4 20145 1-6 B 2013F1-6 3
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEK) (REER) (REERK) (REERZ)
Manufacturing of RBEHRME
transportation equipment &L ¥ 13,143,476,525.93 11,788,847,397.94 9,115,025,281.06 8,297,953,497.71
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Statements (Continued)

5.

Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)
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TR ] B R I H

()
EEWARKA(E)
2014F1-6 AR ABRBRFPHEZERA

5.

Revenue from the top 5 customers from January to June 2014 is

presented as follows:

It EREEE ST
BRAF

Beijing Foton Daimler
Automotive Co., Ltd.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., PRPEERRE AR A A [0kl Aok 0]

Ltd.

Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto —ERNE RS
Factory BRAF]

Weichai Power Westport New #4578 7 ¥ 85 R 8) )
Energy Engine Co., Ltd. HE AT

Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial b /4K 441 & g F B
Vehicle Co., Ltd. BR AT

Amount

=8

3,094,854,854.70

619,299,005.13

720,113,407.19

481,346,861.54

8,007,822,191.36

Revenue from the top 5 customers from January to June 2013 is

presented as follows:

mT -

Proportion of

revenue
(- 3 ON 47
(%)

22.48

22.46

4.50

5.23

3.50

|

Relationship
with the Group
B 7K &< @B R

Unrelated party
B
Subsidiary

F A7

Unrelated party

JERARSE TS
Related party
o)

Unrelated party
JERARE TS

20135 1-6 AR A B EPHEE WA

mF

Proportion of

Relationship with

Amount revenue the Group
SHE  hEEWRALLA B E R
(%)
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor PrPRE A S EAR A A 2,576,164,241.30 20.81 Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. SEINT]
Beijing Foton Daimler IR EEEBEERE 2,558,100,256.41 20.66 Unrelated party
Automotive Co., Ltd. BRAE] JERBEE
Weichai Power Westport New 4 %2 7 74 ¥7 66 R &) /) 777,888,774.36 6.28 Related party
Energy Engine Co., Ltd. BERAT oy
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto — AR EEARE 471,147,043.68 3.81 Unrelated party
Factory BRAA JERAHE T
Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial _E /5 4k # 7] 41 & 75 FH &8 438,141,673.89 3.54 Unrelated party
Vehicle Co., Ltd. TR AT SERERSE
6,821,441,989.64 55.10
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Statements (Continued) B (H)
6. Investmentincome 6. REW=
January-June 2014 January-June 2013
2014%1-6 A 2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REBEZ)
Long-term equity investments under X 7Sk 4z B 1) & B AR 1
the cost method RE W 96,299,099.76 116,346,139.40
Long-term equity investments under {25 5 4Z E 1) & B 1
the equity method "B W= 5,250,690.81 7,910,723.39
Investment income during the period At HE SR EE
in which the Company held HE IS IR E W
available-for-sale financial assets
- 6,400,000.00
101,549,790.57 130,656,862.79
Items of long-term equity investments income under the cost KA EZE R ES B WS B
method are presented as follows: W
January-June 2014
201451-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)
Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd. #4568 h (4D ) R ERER A 7 70,124,759.08
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. M Eh o (M h ) BELE DR 23,933,504.72
Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co., Ltd. HEEE N ZERF R ERAQR 1,704,714.74
Weichai Power (Weifang) Oil Co., Ltd. HELEE) ) (L) B R BR AR 536,121.22
96,299,099.76
January-June 2013
20134 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)
Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd.  #4£E) 1) (497 ) 8 R E R AR A 7 102,057,224.55
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. LB ) () BRE AT 8,284,890.82
Shandong Synergy Oil Co., Ltd. IR BB R AR A A 5,339,174.57
Weichai Power (Weifang) Oil Co., Ltd. HESEE N DT ) Mm B R A A 664,849.46

116,346,139.40
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XII.Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial += B/ W EEB & #EEH &+

Statements (Continued) B(H)
6. Investment income (Continued) 6. BEWZ(E)
ltems of long-term equity investments income under the equity BmEAZENRERERE NGBS
method are presented as follows: mr
January-June 2014
20145 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Shangdong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. IWHRETSEEMBEERA A 12,014,962.16
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. LEmERERRA A 5,317,173.08
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment Fund Partnership B ( L) REREESARDE
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (BREE) 308,097.98
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. RNER RN 2 E B R A A 4,880.72
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. LEEMAIXIREBRAT (12,394,423.13)
5,250,690.81
January-June 2013
20134 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. LEREHERRA A 7,790,413.03
Shangdong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. LWRETEETBERAA 3,805,287.63
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment Fund Partnership Bh(EE)REREEGEELE
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (BEEE%) 16,661.41
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. LEEBAIERERERAA (3,701,638.68)
7,910,723.39
As at 30 June 2014, the remittance of the Company’s investment 201466 A308  AARIRE W

income was subject to no significant restriction. b (515 4 KR i o
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Statements (Continued) B(H)
7. Supplement to cash flow statement 7. RERERBRER

January to June 2014 January to June 2013

2014%1-68 2013%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEEZ)
Net profit SFFHE 2,229,216,027.03 1,871,288,953.11
Add: Provision for impairment of assets il : 5H12 84 E Rl (B 4 77,421,690.85 83,717,025.87
Changes in special reserve HIEREE ) 5,683,197.23 4,056,501.34
Depreciation of fixed assets and BEEEEREENE
investment properties EHERE 310,224,596.94 263,742,699.26
Amortization of intangible assets A B 2,915,502.26 3,672,786.14
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed RERBTETEE -
assets, intangible assets and | AEMN
other long-term assets HMREBEED
& IVEEES (316,949.61) 519,034.50
Finance expenses B 7% & A 75,158,839.47 75,191,838.86
Investment income & W= (101,549,790.57) (130,656,862.79)
Decrease in deferred tax assets EIEPRIS T E ERR D 25,610,207.53 23,486,195.32
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERREL,(3Em) 120,702,497.92 (101,602,693.46)

Increase in operating receivables

Increase in operating payables

AR e IR B 9 EE A
R IR B BN

(3,635,297,949.74)
1,013,836,515.08

Net cash flow from operating

activities

RERBELN

REREFE 123,604,384.39

(5,133,217,731.90)
3,559,681,221.84

519,878,968.09
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8. Cash and cash equivalents

MR IRHBRAT
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TR ] B R I H

Parent Financial

B (B

|

8. RERAEEEY

30 June 2014
2014%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Cash
Incl: Cash on hand

Bank deposit on demand

R
Hep: ERFHRE
FIRER A XY B RTTIE K

196,611.57
10,535,983,681.19

Closing balance of cash and cash B/ FRESRRE
equivalents Z(EYREE 10,536,180,292.76
30 June 2014
20146 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)
Closing balance of cash and cash B/ FREBESHBE

equivalents
Less: Balance of restricted cash and

cash equivalents

12,592,547,384.92
B EARARGNEEESRE
2,056,367,092.16

Closing balance of cash and cash

equivalents

B/ FRAS KRS SENHE
10,536,180,292.76

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

191,113.98
11,252,104,162.99

11,252,295,276.97

31 December 2013
201312 A31H
(Audited)
(')

13,384,081,420.60

2,131,786,143.63

11,252,295,276.97
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1. Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss

(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

Interim Report 2014 FHEAZRE

B 15 i 3%
7T & R

201446 A30H (A R¥T)
1~ FEREHEHE MR

Amount in

January to June 2014

2014%1-6 A &%

Gains and losses arising from re-measurement of existing
associates in the course of business combination

Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets

Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current

period, except for those closely related to the ordinary
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or
quantity according to certain standard based on state

policies

Gains or losses on the changes in fair value generated from
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and
loss on investment from disposal of financial assets held for
trading, financial liabilities held for trading and available-for-

sale financial assets, other than effective hedging business

relating to ordinary operating business of the Company

CRAGPHRARE AR ERT

FRBEERERR
AAAEHBRENBAME (EERR

BRARERREEBHBENE R

EEAMNER 1,670,663,605.67

(4,909,359.95)

BEBEZIER  TEERKRK

ME BR-CERECHEATE

FEZ XA BRI
56,965,057.38

ERMRERBI - HEXZMUES
MEE RFHULTRMEEEED
ARBEEPESE  UARBREXR
ZHUHEREE XZUESHEE
MAHHESREENGHRE

Bx (172,015,156.38)
Reversal of impairment provision of receivables tested BEYB 1T R BRI B Y PR R R TE RV
individually g o) (12,322,662.27)
Non-operating income and expenses other than Br bl T8 2 SN E Ath 2 AN A
the above items M 9,662,847.49
1,548,044,331.94
Tax effect ST ER 41,376,556.16

Effect on minority interests

DPBBERESTEH

(20,430,668.64)

1,568,990,219.46

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information

Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 —

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43).

AEEHFELEMHRRA R NERKR
(AHRBETEFNAREERERELR
SRR - FEEFUERR)(BEERE

[2008]435% ) IR EBTIT ©

269
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Financial Statements (Continued) M A E R (4
30 June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20146 H30H (A E#or)

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2~

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
January to June 2014

3 A WAt 3R B i ML 2R

201451-6 B

Basic EPS Diluted EPS

Weighted

(Unaudited) average RONA
hn¥EF g

(CREEEZ) FEERSR

FENARTBERRRS
F B

MR FE N RERBEN
REEBRIREFER R

Net profit attributable to the
Company'’s ordinary shareholders

Net profit attributable to the
Company'’s ordinary shareholders
after extraordinary profit and loss

mRERKE
(RMB)
(AR®T)

EXgkia
(%) (RMB)
(AR%TT)

N.A.
TER

N.A.
TER

January to June 2013 201351-6 A
Weighted
(Unaudited) average RONA Basic EPS Diluted EPS
5
(REEZ) FEERRE EXZRKE mESKRKES
(%) (RMB) (RMB)
(ANR¥T) (AR%T)
Net profit attributable to the FENA AT BRRER N.A.
Company’s ordinary shareholders b 8.06 1.04 NiE A
Net profit attributable to the HN&RIELE B BRERBRN
Company’s ordinary shareholders A E B AR R R A F F A N.A.
after extraordinary profit and loss 7.58 0.98 NiE A

The Company holds no potential ordinary shares that are dilutive.

The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules

No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the

Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings
per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC.

ARBEREEECLBM

REBHFEEWR XN R TIR
KEPEEES(AFAETESFNARES
BRERBMRANESR —FEEREXNER
WasH)FTH R EE ) (2010FER]) B E -



Other Information

Directors’” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2014, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code"), were as follows:
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O N R I A Sk R Ry
i) RE £
MN-Z—NEXNA=Z+H 2F =HEEAEB
REENAARREBEEZE (TR RESFRE
BEAEBI(FH RS GG ) EXVED) KRD - 18
BRDERESFT  BEERBEEFLAEKHE
32 EARTAFENELMATLEE - R
BEMARIERERITESFRFHZESTR([1BE
TFRAIDHEEENEARAREAHZAMHER R
VNG UE=DETNE

Percentage of

the issued

Number of Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity “A" shares held "H" shares held of the Company

EEAEE

342 47} FAREE FsHRE R BITRFEDL

Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 16,512,000 (Note 1) - 0.83%
BEx EREAA BitzE1)

Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
B E EGEAA BitzE)

Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
BROE EREAA BitzE1)

Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
kR EHEAA BitzE1)

Yeung Sai Hong (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 114,584 (Note 2) - 2.81%
B (HEE3) RREEERE BitzE2)

Julius G. Kiss (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 1,080,000 (Note 2) - 2.06%
Julius G. Kiss(CEFIHG. 540 (k) BXEEEFE fitzE2)

Zhang Zhenhua (Note 5) Interest held by spouse 25,300 - 0.001%

R E (M RES5) (LT A 5
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Other Information (Continued)

Directors’” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. These were previously foreign shares of the Company. The foreign shares were ordinary
shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-denominated par value of RMB1.00 each,
which were subscribed for and paid up in a currency other than Renminbi. These shares
became “A" shares of the Company upon the “A" share listing of the Company on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

3. Yeung Sai Hong, a non-executive Director, was directly and indirectly interested in the
issued share capital of Peterson Holdings Company Limited (“Peterson”), which in turn
held 56,114,584 “A" shares in the Company.

4. Julius G. Kiss, a non-executive Director, was indirectly interested in the entire issued share
capital of IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. (“IVM"), which in turn held
41,080,000 “A" shares in the Company.

5. Zhang Zhenhua, an independent non-executive Director, was deemed to be interested
in 25,300 “A" shares in the Company which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Wu
Miaodi.

6. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.

oAt R ()

o N B S R ey K AH R Bk
e 2k (4H)

BisE

ERMDZAARRAANER - NERRBARRAE
mEER - LARBIE  SREEARE.00
CAARBRERBEIXARINABE - ZER
PRARAARTERINEAFAZ A ETEREAETR
Al ZARK ©

AN

el

2. ZERNDZARBRRRINER - IPERBARAH
TOEEER - UARKIIE SREBAR®1.00
T MARBINNEEREBRER - ZZRHRN
RRABABRERIFES RS ETRRBARRZA
B% o

3. FNTEEHEMEEREEEGEFIERER
AEI(BEHDEBTRAER  MBEFHUFE
56,114,584 88 A& X A AR B9 ©

4. FEHITE Eulius G. Kiss(EFIHG. 58 MEHE
B FIIVM BT AER AR ([IVM]) 25
EEITIRA - MIVMEI#H 41,080,000 R QX EIA
AR 15 o

5. B IEMITE FRIRERR BR25,300R A2 FIA
R G EZ  MREROEEZFREREL
TEREA -

6. ERMAIIMMEREERGRER



Other Information (Continued)

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company
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P 7S 2 ) A T 35 1 M oy ) i

Approximate

Class and percentage

number of interest in the

securities entire issued

interested share capital

Name of associated Nature of or deemed of associated

Name of Director corporation interest to be interested corporations

BFEERY EEEEE R

BRABEREREN ERITRAEN

EEME B EE AR EEME BRERRHE EREBNESL

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG Beneficial owner 365,250 ordinary shares 0.37%
(MzE) SUBEBRGOBRLIF EREAA gp ke

Interest held by spouse 3,000 ordinary shares 0.003%

A AR R A R et

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 365,250 shares in
KION Group AG and he was also deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares in KION Group
AG which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, none of the Directors, the chief

executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to

Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to

the Model Code.

iS5

BizE : 9E ¥ 17 2 = Gordon Riske & KION Group AG HJ
365250 M BEREE A LHBEANREET
Benita Riske % + & # #5 B #93,000 Jx KION Group

AGBRI A ©

B EXPREESN R

E-MWEARA=TAH

BMEEE BSTHABREERARRHEAL
I REEE B - MEROREFTEERE
&5 R G RPI 5352 15 R E AL BN & R B PR
AFENBSLMANERIARR - HBRBELEST

AIEAERARNBERIORE -
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth &R} (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and A< %8 8 A1 = 2 o 55 1
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

() Changes in share capital () BEESHER
Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2014) BRAZEFERK(BE_ZT—MFES
A=+AH)
Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -) After the movement
FREHH KRBEER (+-) FREH%
Percentage  New shares Transfer of Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued Bonusissue  surplus to capital Others Subtotal  No. of shares (%)
8E §I(%) RTHR #R DEEER -4 gt )] S A(%)
. Restricted circulating shares ERERHRD 542,500,464 27.13% - - - - - 542,500,464 27.13%
1. State-owned shares BZHR - - - - - - - - -
2. State-owned legal person shares AR 427,876,464 2140% - - - - - 47876464 21.40%
3. Shares held by other domestic entites EmERR 114,624,000 5.73% - - - - - 114624000 5.73%
including: Shares held by domestic Hi BRFEAEARR 57,792,000 2.89% - - - - - 57,792,000 289%
non-state-owned legal persons

Shares held by domestic natural persons BRaRAER 56,832,000 2.84% - - - - - 56,832,000 2.84%
4. Shares held by foreign entites HERR = S = - = S = = =

including: Shares held by overseas legal persons e < SN E AR = = = = = = = = =

Shares held by overseas natural persons BHaRAER - - - - - - - - -

I Non-restricted circulating shares EREEARN 1,456,809,175 72.87% = = = = - 1,456,809,175 72.87%
1. RMBordinary shares AREERR 971,049,175 48.57% - - - - - 971,049,175 4857%

2. Domestic isted foreign shares B EAANER - - - - - - - - -

3. Overseas listed foreign shares Eoh ETEVERR 485,760,000 24.30% - - - - - 485,760,000 24.30%

4. Others b - - - - - - - - -

[l Total number of shares Rires 1,999,309,639 100% - - - - - 1,999,309,639 100%
Note: As at 30 June 2014, moratorium period for 75,035,712 restricted circulating shares of 2 E1E2014%F6A30H  AREREERENR G S
the Company (accounting for 3.75%) had ended. Those shares are still listed as restricted 75,035,712 (15 t63.75%) © EREm - ARR

circulating shares because the relevant procedures had not yet been completed. ERAFELRIFIETE  INERERFTR -
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Other Information (Continued) oAt &R (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and A< % B A 5 B B 3R 55 1% Ot
Substantial Shareholders’” Shareholdings (%)

(Continued)
(I) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2014)

I EERRERBER(RA=ZF—DO
F£XA=1+8)
BRERAE 149,754 - EFRARRIE
149,468F » HIXIXE286F

The number of shareholders is
149,754 among which 149,468 are

Total number of Shareholders

shareholders of “A" shares and 286
are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

AT10E IRERFFRIB R

Approximate Number of
percentage of  Total number of restricted  Number of shares
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder shares held (%) shares held shares held  pledged or frozen
BRENEDL BRERE ERRER
EE RRME (%) Bhey g kh#g
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.22% 484,242,794 = N/A
BRTREEREABRAT] MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.83% 336,476,400 336,476,400 -
BEERERER AT BAEA
Weifang Investment Company State-owned legal person 3.71% 74,156,352 74,156,352 -
BHTRERT] BAEA
Fujian Longyan Construction Machinery (Group) Domestic non-state-owned legal person 3.26% 65,100,240 57,792,000 -
Company Limited
BREEIREA(EE)ARAF SREEEEA
Peterson Holdings Company Limited Overseas legal person 2.81% 56,114,584 - -
BHERER AT BENEA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H Overseas legal person 2.05% 41,080,000 - -
B FIVMR B AECAERRA BENEA
Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd Domestic non-state-owned legal person 1.75% 35,030,043 - -
RITEFREEEARL A BREEFEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Domestic non-state-owned legal person 1.35% 26,600,000 - -
Limited
WRECEAELZRHBERAR FREEFEA
Guangxi Liugong Company Limited State-owned legal person 0.86% 17,243,712 17,243,712 -
ERNIEEERAT BAEA
Tan Xuguang Domestic natural person 0.83% 16,512,000 16,512,000 -

EYip

BRAERA
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Other Information (Continued) FoAt R (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and B A< % B fin 3= 2 5% oK R %5 0
Substantial Shareholders’” Shareholdings (%)

(Continued)

() Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as (II) FERFEFRIBER (A== —
at 30 June 2014) (Continued) FXA=1+H)(&)
Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders AT 104 B R & R IR FFAR 1B

Number of
the non-restricted

Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares

BRERE BEEREREROBE ROESR

HKSCC Nominees Limited 484,242,794 Overseas listed foreign shares

BERREERIEABGRAA] BN ETAINE IR

Peterson Holdings Company Limited 56,114,584 RMB ordinary shares

HITIER B R A A AR E @R

IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H 41,080,000 RMB ordinary shares

B8 3 )1V M BT 74 3R 4t A B BR 2 A AREELBER

Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd 35,030,043 RMB ordinary shares

RINTEIFIEEEEERAA AR E @R

Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 26,600,000 RMB ordinary shares

IWERERERELERNHER QA AREELBER

Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd 11,903,049 RMB ordinary shares

HRNMEEEEREEREEER QA AR E @R

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. — $REE R B 10058 B D REHF R ERE S 11,691,591 RMB ordinary shares

PRERARITROERAR —REZXFI00EHIABSFREES AREELBER

UBS AG 11,251,450 RMB ordinary shares

AR E @R

Gao Hua — HSBC — GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO. 9,641,305 RMB ordinary shares

53— EY — GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO. AR L @R

DEUTSCHE BANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 8,271,795 RMB ordinary shares

AR E @R

Notes: Bt 5

1. It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the top ten 1. AR AR AE AT+ BRR R E At BT - B &R
shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholder or whether there is ERERRZEARBFEBERBEER - thRHM
any acting in concert relationship among them. HEREBBR —BITBAL -

2. Among the shareholders, Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding Group 2. ARRER MNTREEEREERER
Co., Ltd held 3,049 shares through general account and 11,900,000 shares ARARBAEBEEREFFA3049 - Bif
through client account of collateral securities for margin trading at Guotai Junan BRELIEFRNDERAAEFPEARXRSE
Securities Company Limited, totaling 11,903,049 shares. REHBEFHEH11,900,0000% @ BEEESHEF

%511,903,0498% -

3. Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd, a shareholder of 3. ARRFEHRNTREEEREERERFR
the Company, conducted earmarked repurchase transaction through Guotai Junan NRABBERELELFRMDAER A AL EE
Securities Company Limited. No new initial transaction or repurchase transaction EEAKRFETHTEERRS  MEHAK
was conducted during the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period, BEFNVBER S REBRS - #IEREH
the volume earmarked for repurchase amounted to 8,090,000 shares, accounting RETH I ZEE 8 48,090,000 @ (AR A

for 0.4% of the total shares of the Company. f&170.4% °



Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2014, the following persons (other than the
directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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HoAth &R ()

FEEBR
ARRRERES R AEKOEI6HEFENT
BERREBLM(BEME BB ZAMBRNNE)
RN -_ZT-—HFARNA=+tH " FTIAL(E
£ REREEABREZHRINEARARND R
RN HEE TR RER (A)

Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital Percentage of
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued
Name Capacity position Ashares only A shares H shares only H shares share capital
EARRE EHRRE HERTRE
£ a4 R/ %R AREE Al HREA Al ayEM
Weichal Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 336,476,400 2.23% - - 16.83%
BEEREEERAR EREAA e
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
WRETEBERAA(HE1) BXEEERE e
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 2.23% - - 16.83%
of Shandong Province (“Shandong SASAC") (Note 1) AREEERE e
WREEEAEEEERZEE(WREAZ ) (M)
Brandes Investment Partners, LP Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.93%
REgR e
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long 5 = 62,668,076 12.90% 3.13%
REER e
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long - - 2,406,648 0.49% 0.12%
EGABA e
Investment manager Long - - 20,387,520 4.20% 1.02%
REgR e
Custodian (except bare trustee) Long - - 720 0.00% 0.00%
ZRARBIEARID) e
Custodian - Corporation/approved  Long - - 60,267,579 12.41% 3.01%
lending agent iR
REA-EE/BEREREA
83,062,467 17.10% 4.15%
Beneficial owner Short - - 371,600 0.08% 0.02%
BHEEA e
Schroders Plc Investment manager Long - - 39,498,430 8.13% 1.98%
REER e
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. (Note 2) (Fifz¥2) Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 27,669,400 6.84% 1.66%
the substantial shareholders
RNRR ARSI Z B e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 2) (Fiz+2) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 142%
REgR e
Barclays PLC Person having a security interestin -~ Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
shares e
HROFERIERHA
Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.21%
the substantial shareholders e
ARRFE I EE R
25,978,602 535% 1.30%
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

e

oAt R ()

TR ()

Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital Percentage of
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued
Name Capacity position A'shares only A shares H shares only H shares share capital
EARRE fEHRRA HERTRA
8 5 HE/ KB ABREE ARt HB#E At agEs
Interest of corporation controlled by Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%
the substantial shareholders wE
RERFESI AR R
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Beneficial owner Long - - 25,447 376 5.24% 1.27%
ERHAA #e
Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 155,380 0.03% 0.01%
the substantial shareholders i#8
ARRFES I EEER
Custodian - Corporation/approved  Long - - 4,917,240 1.01% 0.25%
lending agent &
REA- 28/ BEREREA
30,519,99 6.28% 1.53%
Beneficial owner Short - - 24731412 5.09% 1.23%
EGEAA e
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 100,000 0.02% 0.01%
the substantial shareholders e
ARRFES I B R
24,837,412 511% 1.24%
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation Interest of corporation controlled by~ Long - - 24,827,262 5.11% 1.24%
the substantial shareholders e
RERFEHIE B E R
Black Rock, Inc. Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 24,548,923 5.05% 1.23%
the substantial shareholders e
AERFEHIE B E R
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 1,875,200 0.39% 0.09%
the substantial shareholders e
AERFEHI 2B R
Notes: B s
1. State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province 1. LR EHEREEREEZE([LEREZ])E

("Shandong SASAC") held the entire capital of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd.,
which in turn held the entire capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Weifang Diesel Engine Works).

2. The number of H shares reported above held by the relevant substantial shareholder does
not take into consideration the Company’s bonus share issuance on 17 August 2012 as
there is no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in
percentage of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2014.

BURETEEARATNZHM/RA - MURET
SEERABDFEMKRZEREBAR AR (FIMHES4
DM B 2 IR -

FR 22 EEEZRRGAE JHRE B L E R
AREARZF-——FN\A+LAMNARIKRETE
BTN BIERESF KRR ED - HERRR 2R
B W EES - ABANERES

B EXHEEEN RZZE-—NESA=THAR
Bl R AR R RS BT RA T B EREA
HEEDIORR -



Other Information (Continued)

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regarded to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
six Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an Independent Non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has

reviewed the reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan”), and that
the directors of the Company did not attend each of the Company’s annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting during the Period due to
other essential business engagements, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to

the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard set out in the Model Code for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 29 August 2014.

Publication of the Interim Report on the websites
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company

The 2014 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.
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WEICHAI POWER CO..LTD.

#, 4t D LREHS T SR E R B B RESR A 19755 F
S i : +86-536-8197777 (#A#%)

= B . +86-536-8231074

bl ] 1 261061

PR 7% £ 4R : 800 860 3066

EFEFHE : weichai@weichai.com

4 HE . http://www.weichaipower.com

Address : Section A, 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
Tel 1 +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

Fax : +86-536-8231074

P.C. 1 261061

Service hotline : 800 860 3066

E-mail : weichai@weichai.com

Website : http://www.weichaipower.com
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